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The information of the Company up to the date of this report was as follows:
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MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
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Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Abacus Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
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STOCK CODE
680

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
China CITIC Bank International Limited

Bank of Communications Co., Limited

Luso International Banking Ltd.

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd
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Nan Hai Corporation Limited (“Nan Hai") (the “Company”) is a corporation listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock
code: 680). On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company, |
present to our shareholders the annual report of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The Group continued to operate in the areas of culture and media services,
property development and enterprise cloud services, through Dadi Media (HK)
Limited and its subsidiaries, Dadi Cinema Investment Limited and its
subsidiaries and Oristar Technology (HK) Limited and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “Dadi Media"), Nan Hai Development Limited and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “Nan Hai Development”) and Sino-i
Technology Limited (stock code: 250) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as “Sino-i"), and the businesses have developed steadily. In the meantime,
the Group has also commenced businesses stably through Dadi News Media
(HK) Limited together with its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “News
Media Business”) and Dadi Innovation (HK) Limited together with its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “Innovative Business”).

2018 was the tenth year of confirmation of the Group's three main businesses,
which are culture and media services, corporate digitalization and smart
operation, which has been transformed into enterprise cloud services, and
property development, and also the second year of implementation of the
OMO (Online - Merge — Offline) transformation and development strategy
decided by the culture and media business segment. In 2018, the exploration
of the OMO operating model by several entities of the Group has achieved
initial results. Offline scenario advantages (cinema business) and organizational
advantages (CE Dongli's extensive business and localization service network)
played an increasingly greater role in supporting the Group’s OMO
transformation. “Regard Users as our Core” and “Driven by Operation” became
the principles for almost all management teams during the year.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRS

In 2018, as the business model of Crabtree & Evelyn has been transformed, the
Group recorded a decline in earnings as compared to that in 2017 due to the
loss caused by the necessary store closures. Although we maintained a high
level of profitability, our profit was mainly derived from the property segment.
In the next few years, our culture and media business will continue to deepen
the OMO transformation launched in 2017, Sino-i will also continue to find the
right time for business transformation in rapid feedback. After a series of
product innovation and a number of new business attempts, the “News Media
Business” has shown a leap-forward growth in various indicators and is
expected to enjoy economic benefits in the future. Crabtree & Evelyn, as an
innovative business, has repositioned its target users and adjusted its business
model in 2018 and started its transition from the traditional retail model to the
OMO model. As for the property development segment, the construction and
sales of existing projects will be completed while achieving breakthroughs in
new project development.

In fact, since the Group has decided to conduct internet transformation in
2017, our operation team, with an entrepreneurial spirit, has been continuously
developing new businesses and conducting transformation of existing
businesses. In the course of exploration, we have found that quantity and
quality of (enterprise and individual) users are the important indicators for
assessing corporate value in the internet age. In addition to our existing offline
scenario advantages and organizational advantages, the Group has discovered
another significant comparative advantage, which is C-side traffic (a huge
number of cinema viewers) and corporate customers (CE Dongli’s customer
resources). Therefore, the Group has initiated research on the membership
economic model and also began preparations for the pre-technical and
commercial structure in 2018. We believe that the new paradigm of
membership economy will be the next big wave in the internet age after the
upgrade of consumer internet.

The construction work in the Group's headquarter which started in 2017 has
begun to take effect. The Group initially established a management system for
operation and the tracking of implementation. 2018 was a groundbreaking
year for headquarters work. The organization construction has initially
completed, and optimization will continue in the future. Sharing of resources
within the group, multi-service linkage, and cross-industry collaborations will
also continue to proceed. The leadership value of headquarter in terms of
business models and organizational ecology is also emerging.
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In the future, we will continue to adhere to the three major directions of
culture and media services, property development and enterprise cloud
services. Taking OMO as the entry point, we will establish an internet support
system for related industries and endow our corporate users with capabilities.
We will also promote a cross-business value integration and strategic synergy
and add value to our individual users with a view to establishing the Group as a
brand enterprise with the principles of people-oriented, business-driven and
continuously value-added.

Last but not least, | would like to express my gratitude to the shareholders for
their concern and support, and also to the Board, executive committee and all
staff of the Company for their dedication and contribution.

Yu Pun Hoi
Chairman
Hong Kong, 28 March 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group continued to operate in the areas of culture and media services,
property development and enterprise cloud services, through Dadi Media, Nan
Hai Development and Sino-i, and the businesses have developed steadily. In
the meantime, the Group has also commenced businesses stably through
News Media Business and Innovative Business.

The Group issued US$120,000,000 guaranteed senior notes that bear interest at
9.75% per annum in May 2018, which was due 2019 and successfully listed on
the Stock Exchange. The successful issuance of the notes further expanded the
Group's financing sources, optimized its debt structure and further enhanced
its capital operation capability, thereby supporting the Group’s growth in the
future.

During the year, revenue of the Group was approximately HK$16,789.5 million
(2017: HK$15,900.9 million), representing an increase of approximately 5.6% as
compared to the corresponding period of last year. Profit for the year of the
Group was approximately HK$974.3 million (2017: HK$1,602.4 million). The
decrease in profit was mainly due to the impairment of goodwill and assets
arising from the Group’s adjustment of the business model of Crabtree &
Evelyn business, disposal of inventories and closure of stores as well as an
increase in finance costs. The net assets of the Group were approximately
HK$6,955.3 million (2017: HK$7,195.3 million).

Revenue
=
16,789.5
HKS million
BEETT
Net assets
of the Group

rEBEERE

6,955.3

BEENWNE D

AEEBBE T AMERE - SRR EHE
SERAMR XL RERERY FHEREREE
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MHRAE
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BRFARE  RETERBESIENEEREER
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69.553 87T (2017 4F : 71,9538 T) °

Earnings per share
for profit attributable
to the owners of the
Company
RRTEE AEL R
Mz BREF

1.66

HK cent
B

HKS million
BEATT
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS REVIEW £ % q1) ]

During the year, the revenue of the culture and media services segment was ~ F R » XL BEEREESIRB 2 KFZLH A

approximately HK$4,931.5 million (2017: HK$4,150.1 million). Loss before 49315187 7t (20174F : 41501 B8 7T) » B 1S

income tax was approximately HK$660.4 million (2017: HK$600.9 million). A E B X B660418 78 7T (2017 F : 600918 78
7)) ©

ORISTAR

2S5 pR 5 Hh = 22 TR 2R %

B 5

Cinema Operation A E 28

In 2018, the national gross box office in China amounted to RMB56.58 billion 2018 FHEBEH ZRE A5658 BT ARE (&R
(excluding service charges), representing a year-on-year increase of 80%. The &%) - FILLIER80% : AKX A17218  FtiE
annual admission of audiences was approximately 1.72 billion, representinga  £62% : 2FZEBETE A1 HPHES
year-on-year increase of 6.2%. There were 81 films with box office over RMB100  §£45%6 o

million, including 45 domestic films.
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GEOGRAPHICAL DISTRIBUTION OF CINEMA OPERATION OF THE GROUP

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

HZE2018F 12 A31 AARAEEE R ED HE
Total Number of Cinemas £ & & :

494

Qinghai
i
1

National Gross Box Office
(RMB hundred million)

2ERFAE(AREET)

2018 565.80

2017 523.80
2016 457.12

2015 440.69

2014 296.39

Number of Screens in the Group's
Cinemas (pieces)

AEBYRREHUE ()
2018 [T

2017 2,745
2016 1,911

2015 1,481

2014 1,262

Box Office of the Group’s Cinemas
(tax included) (RMB hundred million)

FEBEREEHRRE (ARBET)

MBS 3340
2017 2841
2016 2237
2015 2213
2014 15.08

Number of Audiences in the Group’s
Cinemas (ten thousands)

REEZRBEAR(BA)

2018 10,000
2017 9,161
2016 7325
2015 7,158
2014 4,909

f Nan Hai Corporation Limited ﬂ BSERERAE

Beijing SlE A 15
Hebei Ak 17
Shandong W= 29

ol
¥

Tianjin

- a N
= u o

Henan AR 13
Shanxi [iiEis) 5
Shaanxi 5 $id) 1
Ningxia =25 4
Inner Mongolia A& 5
Gansu H&E 3
uos  EM 7
e w17
e mm s
Cchongang EB 18
Qinghai 58 1

Number of the Group’s Cinemas
(Number)

REEZRHE (R)
2018

2017

2016

2015
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the year, the cinema business of the Company achieved a box office
revenue (tax included) of RMB3,340 million, representing a year-on-year
increase of approximately 17.6% and contributing to approximately 5.9% of the
national box office receipts with the admission of audiences of approximately
100 million. The increase was attributable to the inclusion of box office (tax
included) income of City Entertainment Corporation Limited (“OSGH") in 2018
(the acquisition of OSGH was completed on 28 July 2017) and the ongoing
optimization of its cinema business model. As of 31 December 2018, the Group
has an aggregate of 494 cinemas with 3,014 screens operating in 29 provinces
and 184 cities in China. In addition, there are 132 cinemas contracted to be
opened but not yet in operation. In the future, the Group will consolidate its
position of second in ranking among cinema investment and management
companies throughout China and continue to increase its market shares.

In 2018, cities below the second-tier in China were still the main driving force
to the growth of admission of audiences. The Group’s strategic advantages of
its prospective plan and the advantages of cinema network under the OSGH in
first-tier cities have generated synergy effect. At the same time, the Group's
“Film +" strategy achieved initial success. The Group established cooperation
with Disney and obtained the official authorization to sell Disney’s plush toys
and food. The Group also co-operated with Burger King to open its first
restaurant in Hangzhou. “Shi Bu (+ )", the Group's food and beverage brand,
has constantly enriched its type of products and expanded its market size. The
"Music ME Live (& %4MEZR 35)" has officially launched. In 2018, the Group's
cinema business continued to develop and adjust in terms of business model
and organization. After a year of repeated practice and optimization, the Group
has basically confirmed to use the OMO business model with a user-centered
approach based on two aspects of membership operation and improving
service experience.

In 2018, the Group's advertising income maintained stable growth. As for the
products, in 2018, the Group effectively utilized the space in cinema lobby and
shopping malls and optimized and transformed the digital projection platform.
The Group also combined client’s idea with offline scenarios to achieve the
conversion of scenarios from offline to online. As for the customers, the team
actively expanded the direct sales customer base to the motor vehicles and
internet industries in 2018. At the same time, the team actively explored and
developed business customers around the cinemas as it is considered that
contributions from such customers will be an important part of cinema
advertising income in the future.
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Dadi Film

In 2018, the film market in China continued to achieve new record highs. With
continuous improvement in quality, domestic films have been recognised by
the audience and the market. Like many consumer industries in China, the film
market has reflected the transformation from “channel-oriented” to “quality-
oriented” in 2018.

During the year, Dadi Media (HK) Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as "Dadi Film”) under Dadi Media continued to develop its business
in three aspects of film content, animation and distribution.

In 2018, the Company invested in a number of blockbusters with high
reputation. The Company also joined forces with the industry’s leading
companies to initiate and implement relevant framework cooperation plans.
During the year, the distribution team completed the distribution and
promotion of several films. As for animation content industry, “Mini Force X",
which was invested by the Company, was published on Tencent and iQlYI,
both are network video platforms, in October 2018 and achieved over 100
million click rates on Tencent within 3 months and top-ranked in the iQlYl
Children’s Channel Hot List (B &7 &/ R AEBEEE S ). At the same time, the
team convened an authorized investment promotion conference to introduce
the integration of the product development and product launch strategy of
the licensee by formulating distribution and authorization plan for the overall
IP operation with an aim to maximize its internal value.

Oristar

After a decade of meticulous efforts, products of Oristar Technology (HK)
Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “Oristar”) are well
recognised by the market. During the year, Oristar participated in facility
construction for approximately 9,000 halls, and entered into technology service
contracts with approximately 1,478 cinemas, covering 30 provinces,
autonomous regions and municipalities across China.

During the year, Oristar launched the platform of “Huiyingyun” (Z§%) with
the big data of cinema users as the core, providing cinemas with
comprehensive product development matrix in three major scenarios of
marketing, operation and security, and setting up scene marketing channels
and data platform for construction of cinemas and operation management to
provide comprehensive services.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PROSPECTS

Looking forward, the film market in China shows tremendous potential. In
2018, the box office in China hit a record high and achieved a higher growth
rate as compared to that in North America and global markets. With 9,381
newly added screens across the country, the total number of screens has
reached 61,439, which is the highest in the world. There are 19 domestic films
with box office of more than RMB500 million and 9 domestic films with box
office of over RMB1 billion.

As for the cinema operation business, the Group will continue to implement
the OMO business model with a user-centered approach and further develop
the membership system. We will use “U+" as our unified member brand and
integrate our four major lines of cinemas, namely “Dadi Cinema”, “OSGH
Cinemas”, “iFree Cineplex” and “Very Cinemas”. We will also effectively enhance
the linkage among nearly 500 cinemas across the country by enhancing brand
influence with chain and large-scale cinemas and integrating its resources in
order to provide value services for our users, consolidate and expand our

membership base and strengthen our member’s economic foundation.

The Group will further develop its “Film +" strategy. In the future, the Group will
also provide various business value-added services items such as peripheral
products, Disney’s plush toys and food, children’s entertainment area, co-
operation with Burger King and live performance to increase production yield
and gross profit, thereby achieving sound economic benefits. In 2019, along
with commencement and development of diversification and digital operation
of cinemas, we will also enrich our media products in cinemas by conducting
IP cooperation and member joint marketing and providing entertainment
scenario products in order to provide more marketing services of integrating
cinemas scenario for customers.

As for the content, in 2019, Dadi Film will continue to put effort into developing
and producing films with an aim to produce high-quality films that keep pace
with the market for audiences. As for the animation content industry, the
Group will keep exploring and developing authorized channels and seek for
suitable product carrier and licensee based on nature and distribution concept
of IP contents.

As for the cinema revenue services, regarding the fast-growing cinema industry
in China, Oristar will launch the cinema revenue management cloud service
system and smart cinema solutions and establish the Theatre Management
System 4.0 (TMS4.0) + Advertising resources and screening management
platform, so as to enhance its operational efficiency and profitability and
provide quality online products and services for cinemas.

BEENWR DN

R

REARK  FRHEFMHEE T EREN - 2018
F FREFEERE TELLHE  BRERIL
EREHMS  2ERFILIRE 03811 - BHET
614398 LB R B 19HBEFXH EEIEB
BSETARE oXBEEFXAREFBBI0CET
AREE o

B m %15 £ - AEBBAEBEOMO EKHE
ALETEE  UWAPAKRL  RELKZLEER
FoBMBERTU+] AR—MNEEME LN
UWEAET [ Rk  [BRRXEAREZH] 18
AW [ PIRERZM] MR EBL
[FIBF pN 58 2 BT S00 R B O B 28 Bt B - DA 8H
b RE(ERREZENNEREARN T
B AR fn R P REEERY - ZE AN

WEERE  SEEENS BLBERE -

REBWGEERC [EZ+] B - KK - £EH
RFEVTEm BATREATANRM  RERE
B ERFAEE BERSEZEBEER
% RBRAELLANEN  UERIRIFOEHE
Wk ° 2019 FHEF L T R BFLEENE
RIAN  MATENKEBERBBENER
PEIF - EEBAEH EZRESSERS

REPRHEZMZRSRBA LHRG -

HEARMIHE - 2019F  AEXBSEEEE
FARHREHESRHE N TESEEEM
BEYANRERMGEL  REBZAL - D2
NREXTH  AEESSRERRIAIIRE
RE REBEPATHNKERSHELSTRAEN
EE BB LA -

EERWEREFE Y ENERRERSR
WPETRTE  REMEBERERKRESERE
ERBEANESETRAERTE  EREREMS
EREE R A0 (TMS40)+ B & LR N pe & 12
F i NEWIRACEREMATEESD - B
iR EEM A CMER R

| —E-N\FEER n Annual Report 2018 {



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWR DA

Property
Development
5 ih 7 B 2%




Management Discussion and Analysis

During the year, revenue of this business segment was approximately
HK$9,908.3 million (2017: HK$9,958.1 million) and profit before income tax was
approximately HK$6,018.3 million (2017: HK$5,820.4 million). Profit for the year
was mainly attributable to the continuous recognition of the sales income of
Phase 3 of “The Peninsula” property project of the Group during the year.

“The Peninsula” Project in Shenzhen

“The Peninsula” project of Nan Hai Development adheres to provide quality
products with exquisite decorations. The sale of Phase 3 of “The Peninsula” was
launched on 9 April 2016 in Shekou, Shenzhen. As of 31 December 2018,
accumulated sales amounted to RMB20.303 billion. Up to 79,000 sg.m. in Phase
4 of “The Peninsula” will be made available for selling in 2019. The main
construction has completed while the preparation for decorative work has
commenced. The project also has a commercial area of approximately 55,800
sg.m., which is held by the Group and the operation will be commenced in the
first half of 2020. It is expected to operate a number of businesses including
smart hotel, social and creative business and shared offices.
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“Free Man Garden” Project in Guangzhou

"Free Man Garden” project of Nan Hai Development in Guangzhou is located at
the junction of Baiyun District and Huadu District, which enjoys the favorable
factors brought by the airport economic area and takes advantage of new
environmental concepts, scarce urban green areas and excellent community
operations to create a 1.5 million square meters residential area in north of
Baiyun district, Guangzhou. There are a total of eight phases in “Free Man
Garden” project, of which Phase 1, 2, 4 and 7 have been sold out before 2018.
Phase 3 will be self-owned for commercial use while the delivery of possession
of Phase 4 commenced in September 2018 and that of Phase 7 will be
commenced in May 2019. Phase 5, 6 and 8 are saleable, while Phase 5 and 6
have launched on 1 December 2018. As of 31 December 2018, a total of 101
flats were sold with the area of 12,326 sq.m. and the sales amount of RMB296
million.
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In addition to two projects mentioned above, the Group actively explored a
new model of cooperation in real estate business and developed domestic and
overseas quality projects in various ways to achieve a stable and sustainable
development in real estate business. Currently, the Group has entered into
strategic cooperation agreements for various projects while invested in
Guangzhou Jinghu Avenue project and successfully selected as the best
applicant for the Taipei City One project. Guangzhou Jinghu Avenue project is
located in the eastern side, opposite to Guangzhou Free Man Garden with the
capacity building area (5 A2 £EE 1]) of 78,000 sq.m., and will be developed
into an integrated commercial project covering functions such as dining, hotel
and entertainment.

“City One” Project in Taipei

On 27 December 2018, the Department of Rapid Transit Systems, Taipei City
Government announced that the Group has been selected as the best
applicant for the City One project. As such, the Group will enter into the next
phase of the bidding process and will commence negotiation on the terms of
an investment agreement with the Taipei City authorities and it is expected to
enter into such agreement in the first half of 2019 (as the case may be).

Prospects

2018 was a challenging year for the real estate industry. Due to continuous
increase in domestic policy regulation, corporate finance tightening and the
weak land market, the property market will enter the stage of adjustment in
2019 and the central government is establishing a long term mechanism for
the real estate industry. Under the new situation, Nan Hai Development will
take advantage on its existing projects, grasp the historical opportunities
arising from the prosperous urban development in China, utilize the benefits
under the policies regarding the construction of Guangdong-Hong Kong-
Macao Greater Bay Area and integrate its industrial resources to further
optimize the strategic network. At the same time, Nan Hai Development will
build a robust capital chain and establish an effective internal operation and
risk management and control to ensure the strong corporate development.

The Group is committed to green building and environmental-friendly
technology, focusing on stereoscopic greening, key technology research and
development as well as commercial transformation in the field of ecological
construction. Its subsidiary % JII 7 22 88 £ K 4kt T2 B BR 2 7] (Shenzhen
Cui Lu Technology Engineering Company Limited*) has launched the first
vertical greening system with international technology level in the country,
solving a lot of technical problems in stereoscopic greening. The world’s largest
single three-dimensional green area, which is located in the “Free Man Garden”
in Guangzhou, was completed in the second half of 2018 and perfectly
integrated into the land with up to 33.5% green coverage.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE W N DT

BUSINESS REVIEW

By virtue of the comprehensive cloud computing infrastructure services,
e-commerce and total “Internet+" solutions offered for corporate clients in
China, this segment spent unremitting efforts on the development of
digitalization and smart operation. Leveraging on its unremitting efforts, this
segment has successfully established an outstanding nation-wide business and
localized service network in the industry, so as to effectively address “the last
kilometer” problems from service providers to corporate clients. In the
meantime, in respect of product development, after prolonged exploration
and promotion, this segment successfully launched a series of leading cloud
services corporate digitalization and transformation in the industry. (&) /7
A% 1D B BR 2 7] (CE Dongli Technology Company Limited, “CE Dongli")'s
portal business and 3t FUET A EIE 2 B 5T BBR 22 A (Beijing Xinnet Cyber
Information Company Limited, “Xinnet")’s cloud computing services have also
commenced stably, which played a significant role in promoting the growth of
the number of users.

During the year, with key subsidiaries CE Dongli and Xinnet as Sino-i's main
business entities, more efforts were continuously made in the development of
cloud services for corporate digitalization and smart operation by providing
comprehensive laaS (Infrastructure as a service), cloud application, corporate
e-commerce services, “corporate digitalization transformation” total solutions
and big data-based business intelligence cloud service to China market. During
the year, revenue of this segment was approximately HK$997.9 million (2017:
HK$829.3 million), representing an increase of approximately 20.3% over the
corresponding period of last year, due to the increase in revenue generated
from all-net portal products of CE Dongli. Loss before income tax was
approximately HK$125.1 million (2017: HK$66.4 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CE Dongli

With 19 years’ experience of being a services provider for enterprises in China,
CE Dongli has not only established a corporate “Internet+” product operating
system but also built an extensive business and localized service network,
providing one-stop solutions regarding a corporate smart operation for small
and medium enterprises (SMEs). During the year, CE Dongli, on the basis of all-
net portal services, continued to launch portal products for different industries
and enterprises via its cloud platform, so as to meet the specific needs of
different customers. While constantly improving its core business, CE Dongli is
also committed to keep seeking breakthroughs in all key aspects of digital
marketing, integrate its resources into key aspects such as transactions and
customer management as well as launch new products in e-commerce and
new retail business segment and foreign trade customer management
segment. CE Dongli not only constantly improved its product system, but also
continuously strengthened its management of direct branches across China
and further enhanced its localized service capacity through the establishment
of customer care divisions in various branches across China. In particular, the
enhancement in service capacity of the “the last kilometer”, which is crucial to
enterprises, would make such services closer to user needs. In addition to
providing digitalization and operation solutions for SMEs, CE Dongli is also
constantly exploring new market opportunities. During the year, CE Dongli
launched a high-end customized brand CE Ultimate (f 1 & 2£), which is
committed to providing high-end customers with a continuous “MarTech”
digitalization and smart operation flagship service, continuously establishing
digital marketing technology service capabilities, with a view to creating brand-
new business value. Since its inception, CE Ultimate has provided a full range
of digital operation for more than twenty Fortune Global 500 companies and
approximately 100 top companies in various industries in China. In the
meantime, in the process of meeting the complex digital needs of high-end
customers, CE Dongli has continued to build its product and service
capabilities, perform sampling and integration, and rely on the support of the
middle structure of business (3 7% &), gradually forming specific products
and industry solutions for different industries and meeting the needs of
customers at different stages. CE Dongli has also insisted to enhance the digital
value of the enterprise and provide all customers groups with a full range of
products and services of enterprise digital management suitable for their
industry and its own development stage.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWE DN

Xinnet

During the year, Xinnet continued its cloud services such as laaS, domain name
hosting and synergistic communication for SMEs and micro-enterprises
through internet online and distributor channels established across China. In
2018, relying on its core product “Arrow Cloud (&78852)" and resources in the
cloud data centre, Xinnet launched various solutions such as Public Cloud (&
B &), roprietary Cloud (8 A &) and Hybrid Cloud (V& & &) to meet the
growing business needs of users. The “Arrow Cloud” is also the first product to
support IPV6 (Internet Protocol Version 6) with Trusted Cloud Qualification
Certification (A {5 &1 \%ﬁ%\éﬁ‘) and Computer Level 3 Protection Record (&T
= 4 E R & B R), thereby enhancing product quality as well as
improving and promoting the industry reputation and market brand
awareness. In the meantime, Xinnet continued to improve the cloud business
and operation platform, optimized customer experience and operational
efficiency and ensured the effective implementation of strategies in the cloud
computing business.

PROSPECTS

The management of the Group considers that enterprises in China will
continue to increase its investment in digitalization and transformation, and
business intelligence services based on big data will be developed. Although it
still takes time for market ramp-up and promotion, cloud services for corporate
digitalization and smart operation and industrial solutions will enjoy the
enormous room for development. Going forward, this segment will continue
to improve its ground services capability by putting users as its core, relying on
the industry and making full use of the Internet, which allows it to quickly
respond to the needs of enterprises and provide timely solutions to issues.
Meanwhile, this segment will enhance its overall operational capability and
online services capability. In respect of product application, with an in-depth
understanding of the industry’s business scenarios, the Group will quickly
respond to the needs of business scenarios in different industries based on the
cloud product model and the middle structure of business (% 7 & 4&).
Furthermore, this segment will also increase its capital investment in the data
centre, cloud computing technology, automatic operation and maintenance
technology as well as big data technology, and enhance its overall technical
core competence to further develop and optimize its products and services for
the enterprise’s digital intelligent business scenario.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE W N DT

NEWS MEDIA BUSINESS
BUSINESS REVIEW

There are two business divisions under the news media business, namely
"HKO1” and "Duowei Media". During the year, total revenue of the news media
business was approximately HK$222.0 million (2017: HK$246.3 million), of
which revenue from third parties increased from HKS$21.3 million to HK$54.3
million. Loss before income tax was approximately HK$385.9 million (2017:
HK$322.5 million).

Based in Hong Kong, “HKO1" is a pioneer of innovative media, aiming to create
an internet lifestyle platform for Hong Kong people, which is a new conception
of combining internet with news media business. In 2018, the internet lifestyle
platform has undergone a series of product revolutions by adding the “eatojoy
(e FEF)", a food order and takeaway platform, preparing a platform for travel
services and online donations, providing useful information such as weather
and transportation as well as organizing various activities including market,
concerts, film screenings, philosophy courses and forums. Traditional sports
news has upgraded to “Sports Division” by strengthening the cooperation and
service exchange with various internet services in order to provide Hong Kong
people with a more comprehensive and quality internet service in all aspects
based on news and information. During the year, the average number of daily
page views of the website and mobile apps of HKO1 reached 5 million, which
was more than doubled versus that in 2017. Page views reached over 10
million at peak and the average traffic in the fourth quarter amounted to over
7.20 million. Active users of webpages and mobile applications reached over
760,000, representing an increase of 25% over last year. In respect of members,
the average number of new members per day was more than doubled
compared to 2017. With high quality news reports, HKO1 won 34 news awards,
including 4 awards in “Human Rights Press Awards ({ A # ¥ B 22 ))", the
Excellent Journalism Award ({4 /& &2 #¥7 B #2)) by The Society of Publishers
in Asia and the US Telly Awards, an internationally recognised award. In
addition, HKOT won 17 awards in “The Spark Awards” with three large-scale
projects and one special channel.

“Duowei Media” is a news media focused on China and international political
information and commentary and adopts the dual-centre development
strategy of news and operations to implement the concept of “data-driven
operation, operation-driven content”. During the year, Duowei Media's
webpage views reached 300 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
59%. As of the end of December 2018, the number of active members of
"Duowei Media” has reached approximately 70,000, representing an increase of
more than 40% as compared with 2017.

PROSPECTS

"HKO1” strives to establish an internet lifestyle platform for Hong Kong people
and will continue to further develop lifestyle platform functions and focus on
strengthening its e-commerce, tourism services and convenient living services
as well as continue to increase its effort in developing charity platform “01
heart (01/82&.)","01 marathon (01 25 #2)" and "eatojoy (e AL{¥)". In the case of
the news media business, the integration of the content and editing business
of "HKO1” and “Duowei Media” will enhance synergy effect and cost
effectiveness. We will actively develop creative new products, create user value
and establish membership system.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

INNOVATIVE BUSINESS
BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, revenue of innovative business was approximately HK$831.9
million (2017: HK$878.7 million) and loss before income tax was approximately
HK$1,047.8 million (2017: HK$528.6 million). The decrease was due to the
impairment of goodwill and assets arising from the adjustment of business
model, disposal of inventories and closure of stores.

Crabtree & Evelyn, a world-renowned brand, broke its tradition and
encountered new users and markets in 2018. After more than a year of
preparation, we have begun to transform our brand position, product
development, and operation mode etc.

According to our in-depth market exploration, Crabtree & Evelyn is set to target
millennials and has completed the development of 58 new products of 3 series
in 2018. Crabtree & Evelyn also attempted to transform from traditional retail to
OMO operating model and is determined to pursue the OMO development
path starting from e-commerce. As of the end of 2018, Crabtree & Evelyn has
established its online shopping platform in UK, Australia, Singapore, Malaysia
and Hong Kong etc. Thanks to the simple website design and user-friendly
consumer experience, online income in Hong Kong achieved a significant
growth. Moreover, Crabtree & Evelyn has also entered the China market in
March 2018 by way of cross-border e-commerce through Tmall Global. During
the “Double Eleven” shopping festival, Crabtree & Evelyn achieved the first
place in the hand cream category of Tmall Global. On 30 November 2018,
Crabtree & Evelyn opened its first offline experience flagship store in London.
Adhering to the concept of “Growing up in exploration”, Crabtree & Evelyn
attracts users through social media and increases brand loyalty by various
activities. It is expected that Crabtree & Evelyn's offline experience flagship
store will be a place for customers to know each other and learn from each
other through immersive activities.

PROSPECTS

In 2019, Crabtree & Evelyn, our long-established brand, will inject new vitality,
new concept, new product and new model, presenting a new look to our
customers. We strongly believe that Crabtree & Evelyn will attract more users
to become loyal customers along with the transformation of the operating
model.

BEENWNE D

fIEmER
RBEIRA

FA - BIEEMEZIWELSI9EB T (2017 F -
8787 B A TT) - RIS BB EE 10478 B A T
(20174 : 5286 B T) - THRRAZMFEERNA
B EEFEREESIRNHEREERE -

20184F + ZIRMAZR (Crabtree & Evelyn) i& — 2 BKA1
ZmBITHES - BE2FOAP NS EE
M —F KB -—FZNEHR BMNEREE
i EmAE EEEAFTESMBFRGT =M
B o

BBHMERNREARR  BARBEEEFEEM
RFE—& - ER2018F 7K 3E X5 s8TE#HE
RN - RIpBEERBRGEANRERTER
OMOBEBAMER - XEHTETUETHEA

I AOMOE R KT - B E2018FFK © Hid
BRE - RAFCE N BRAEREES

WHEGBYFEaBkE LG  BERBERE
KIMRUhER AT R AT LR B B2 S - BAEEBE KA
BREA M RARBEXRBEEEIUEIRE
BT RN 20183 AEAPRAERS i
[E+—] HEP RS TARBEEKEFRERNSE
— ZEVIFRAE 2 2018F 11 B30 E AR B R &
TERERLEMEAE  FTE[EEERFRE]
HRAEIE S - BPREB AL T BERT I RN
BE DNEEmNIEERMNREEED X
RIMARB T EREESERARFEL TH
HEEE R EBELEE -

R2

20194 - MARE—HE —EESLITUR M@
BMERNED  MES - MEM  FEAF
FIRARAZHNESR 2WEHEEETAT A
BE BEELEANELY  REZKERSIE
ZH AP R RBARE 4 o

| —E-N\FEER a Annual Report 2018 {



Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

The Group continued to adopt prudent funding and treasury policies. As at 31
December 2018, net assets attributable to the owners of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$6,199.8 million (31 December 2017:
approximately HK$6,143.2 million), including cash and bank balances of
approximately HK$8,297.6 million (31 December 2017: approximately
HK$13,069.8 million) which were mainly denominated in US dollars, Renminbi
and Hong Kong dollars. As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s aggregate
borrowings were approximately HK$19,959.8 million (31 December 2017:
approximately HK$24,156.0 million), of which approximately HK$11,759.1
million (31 December 2017: approximately HK$12,705.3 million) were bearing
interest at fixed rates while approximately HK$8,200.7 million (31 December
2017: approximately HK$11,450.7 million) were at floating rates. The Group has
partially managed interest rate risk through interest rate swap.

As at 31 December 2018, the gearing ratio of the Group, which is calculated as
the net debt divided by the adjusted capital plus net debt was approximately
62.64% (31 December 2017: approximately 60.64%).

As at 31 December 2018, the capital commitment of the Group was
approximately HK$263.6 million (31 December 2017: approximately HK$3,104.6
million), of which approximately HK$31.1 million would be used for the
renovation of the headquarters in Beijing, approximately HK$97.5 million
would be used as capital expenditures for the expansion of its cinema business
and approximately HK$135.0 million would be used for property development.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's contingent liabilities were approximately
HK$20.4 million in connection with the guarantees given to secure credit
facilities (31 December 2017: approximately HK$19.5 million).

As at 31 December 2018, certain interests in leasehold land, buildings, other
property, plant and equipment, properties under development and completed
properties held for sale, investment properties and bank deposits with a total
net carrying value of approximately HK$11,997.2 million were pledged to
secure the credit facilities granted to the Group (31 December 2017:
approximately HK$12,025.6 million). In addition, trading securities with a
carrying value of approximately HK$0.2 million and certain shares of several
subsidiaries were pledged and bank accounts were charged for securing the
Group's credit facilities (31 December 2017: approximately HK$0.3 million).

Details of the bank and other borrowings and financing of the Group are set
out in notes 29, 30 and 31 to the financial statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATION IN EXCHANGE RATES

The Group operated mainly in the PRC, and its operating expenses and
revenue were primarily denominated and settled in Renminbi. The Group
adopted Hong Kong dollars as its reporting currency, and the reported assets,
liabilities and results may be affected by Renminbi exchange rate. As the
majority of the Group’s borrowings were primarily denominated in US dollars
and Renminbi, it was exposed to foreign exchange risk. The Group has partially
managed such risk through cross currency swap. The Group will still keep
reviewing and monitoring the fluctuation in exchange rates between relevant
currencies and consider using foreign exchange hedging instruments from
time to time to minimize the risk exposure arising from changes in exchange
rates. The Group will also proactively choose the type of currency for assets and
liabilities based on its prejudgment of currency trend under practicable
circumstances.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company employs and remunerates its employees based on their
qualifications, experience and performance. In addition to basic salary
payments, other benefits include housing, contributions to mandatory
provident fund, group medical insurance, group personal accident insurance
and examination leave. Employees are eligible to be granted share options
under the Company's share option scheme at the discretion of the Board of
the Group. In general, salary review is conducted annually. As at 31 December
2018, the Group had approximately 21,745 employees (2017: 20,813
employees). The salaries of and allowances for employees for the year ended
31 December 2018 were about HK$2,519.8 million (2017: HK$2,042.2 million).
The Group focuses on providing skill and quality training for various levels of
staff, and provides on-the-job capability training to its staff; in respect of staff
quality, corresponding training on personal work attitude and work habits is
also provided.
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Report of the Directors

ESEWME

The Board herein present their report and the audited financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. During the year,
the Group was principally engaged in culture and media services, property
development, enterprise cloud services, and also news media business and
innovative business.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Particulars of the Group's revenue and segment information for the year are set
out in notes 5 and 6 to the financial statements respectively.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The description of principal risks and uncertainties that the Group may be
facing is provided in the Risk Management and Internal Control section on
pages 75 to 80 of this annual report and a fair review of the Group’s business
during the year, and the probable future business development of each
segment of the Company are provided in the Management Discussion and
Analysis section on pages 8 to 27 of this annual report. Also, the financial risk
management objectives and policies of the Group can be found in note 52 to
the consolidated financial statements. Particulars of important events affecting
the Group that have occurred since the end of the financial year ended 31
December 2018 are provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis
section. An analysis of the Group's performance during the year using financial
key performance indicators is provided in the Five-Year Financial Summary on
page 312 of this annual report. In addition, discussions on the Group’s
environmental policies, relationships with its consumers and employees and
compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact
on the Group are all contained in the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report on pages 81 to 105 of this annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income
statement on page 113.

The Board has recommended a final dividend of 0.15 HK cents per ordinary
share for the year ended 31 December 2018 (for the year ended 31 December
2017: 0.23 HK cents per ordinary share). The proposed dividend is subject to
the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 312.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries and associates as at 31
December 2018 are set out in notes 16 and 17 to the financial statements
respectively.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS AND FINANCING

Details of the bank and other borrowings and financing of the Group as at 31
December 2018 are set out in notes 29, 30 and 31 to the financial statements
respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

During the year, details of the movements in share capital and share premium
of the Company are set out in notes 37 and 39 to the financial statements.

Pursuant to the special resolution passed at the Company’s annual general
meeting held on 30 May 2018, the shareholders of the Company resolved to
reduce the amount at the share premium account by HK$965.9 million and the
amount arising from the reduction was transferred to the contributed surplus
account of the Company.

RESERVES

During the year, details of the movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group are set out in note 39 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the amount of the Company'’s reserves available for
distribution was approximately HK$1,383.2 million. In addition, the Company’s
share premium account with a balance of approximately HK$11,000 may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group's sales to the five largest customers and purchases from the five
largest suppliers for the year ended 31 December 2018 accounted for less than
30.00% of the Group's total revenue and purchases respectively.
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Report of the Directors

ESEWME

DONATIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company made charitable
donations and other donations amounting to approximately HK$35,473,000.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of directors’ emoluments are set out in note 45 to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

The director below is deemed to be interested in the business which competes
or is likely to compete either directly or indirectly, with business of the Group
and is required to make disclosure of interests pursuant to Rule 8.10(2) of the
Listing Rules.

Ms. Liu Rong, an executive director of the Company, is a director and ultimate
shareholder of GD Cinema Circuit (& 5 X i & & F HBBEMHDERRDG)
(previously known as & 3 A #h & 52 bt £ B PR 2 &l). GD Cinema Circuit
invests in cinema business and therefore is deemed to compete with the
cinema investment business of the Group. However, the Board believes that
the competition does not pose any material threat to the Group’s business
prospects due to the fact that the cinemas operated by the Group and the
cinemas invested by the above-mentioned director who is interested in the
competing business focus on different market segments.

In 2018, most of the cinemas invested by GD Cinema Circuit are managed by
the cinema management company controlled by the Group by way of
entrusted management. We will make disclosure of such connected
transaction according to the requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules when necessary.

In order to further safeguard the interest of the Group, those directors not
interested in the competing business review on a regular basis the businesses
and operations of the Group to ensure that its businesses are run on the basis
that they are independent of, and at arm’s length from, GD Cinema Circuit.

PENSION SCHEME

Details of retirement benefit plans in respect of the year are set out in note 44
to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report
were as follows:

Mr. Yu Pun Hoi (Chairman)

Ms. Liu Rong (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lam Bing Kwan*

Mr. Lung King Cheong?

Mr. Lau Yip Leung*

Mr. Xiao Sui Ning*

Mr. Ho Yeung Nang*

i Non-executive directors

*

Independent non-executive directors

The Company has received annual confirmation from each of the existing
independent non-executive directors of the Company confirming his
independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and the
Company considers that such directors are independent to the Company.

In accordance with Bye-law 99 of the Company’s Bye-Laws (“Bye- Laws”), Ms.
Liu Rong, Mr. Lau Yip Leung and Mr. Ho Yeung Nang shall retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting ("AGM”"). All of the above retiring
directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with Bye-Law 99 of the Bye-Laws, Mr. Lung King Cheong ("Mr.
Lung”) shall retire by rotation at the AGM. He will not offer himself for re-
election due to his decision to devote more time to his personal endeavours.
Mr. Lung confirmed that he has no disagreement with the Board and there is
no matter that needs to be brought to the attention of the shareholders of the
Company and the Stock Exchange in relation to his retirement from the Board.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of directors and senior management of the Company
as at the date of this report were as follows:

Biographical Details of Directors
Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Pun Hoi, aged 60, holding a degree of Doctor of Philosophy conferred
by Peking University, joined the Board in September 2000. Mr. Yu is the
chairman of the Board, the chairman of executive committee and nomination
committee of the Company, and a controlling shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Yu Pun Hoi is also an executive director and a member of nomination
committee of Sino-i, and a director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company.
He served as the chairman of the board and the chairman of nomination
committee of Sino-i from January 1997 to January 2018 and from March 2012
to January 2018, respectively.

Ms. Liu Rong, aged 47, graduated from the Law School of Anhui University
with a Bachelor degree in Laws, and got a Master of Laws conferred by the Law
Institute of Chinese Academy of Social Science, and is also a qualified lawyer in
the PRC. In addition, Ms. Liu graduated from the International MBA School of
National School of Development of Peking University in 2013. Prior to joining
the Group, Ms. Liu worked in Chinese government departments and law firms.

Ms. Liu joined Sino-i group in April 2002 and has been appointed as an
executive director and a member of executive committee of the Company
since March 2009, a member of nomination committee since March 2017, and
the chief executive officer of the Company in February 2018. Ms. Liu is
responsible for the businesses in culture and media services of the Group.

Ms. Liu is also the chairlady of the board of director, the chairlady of nomination
committee and a director of a number of subsidiaries of Sino-i, and a director
and/or general manager of a number of subsidiaries of the Company.
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Non-executive Director

Mr. Lam Bing Kwan, aged 69, graduated from the University of Oregon in the
United States of America with a Bachelor degree in Business Administration in
1974. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lam had accumulated extensive
experience in industries such as banking, property development and
investment business.

Mr. Lam joined the Board in September 2000, and was re-designated as a non-
executive director in April 2002. Mr. Lam is also a non-executive director of
Sino-i, and an independent non-executive director of Lai Sun Development
Company Limited, Lai Sun Garment (International) Limited and Lai Fung
Holdings Limited. The securities of the above mentioned companies are listed
on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Lung King Cheong, aged 65, joined the Group in 2015 and joined the
Board in September 2016. Mr. Lung was re-designated as a non-executive
director of the Company on 1 April 2018.

Mr. Lung is an active member of the Hong Kong news media and has extensive
publishing and editorial experience. Prior to joining the Group and starting
from the 1980s, Mr. Lung had served as the deputy publisher and general
manager of Hong Kong Daily News, the chief editor and publisher of Hong
Kong Today, the editorial director and member of the executive committee of
One Media Group Limited. Mr. Lung had also been the editor-in-chief of Ming
Pao Weekly for 20 years. Mr. Lung is very familiar with the Hong Kong media
industry and is one of the most experienced media people in Hong Kong.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Yip Leung, aged 58, graduated from the City University of Hong Kong
and awarded an honours degree of Bachelor of Arts in Accountancy in 1991,
and also holds an MBA conferred by the University of Hull, UK. Mr. Lau is a
fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, The
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lau is a certified public accountant
in Hong Kong and started his public practice business in 1998. He is now the
person-in-charge of Messrs. Fung Lau & Company, Certified Public
Accountants.

Mr. Lau joined the Board in May 2006 and is also a member of audit committee
and remuneration committee of the Company. In March 2012, Mr. Lau has
been appointed as a member of nomination committee of the Company. Mr.
Lau is appointed as the chairman of audit committee of the Company in
September 2013.

Mr. Xiao Sui Ning, aged 71, graduated from Yunnan Finance and
Management College (Z &% B IE #3502 Ft) majoring in corporate
management. Mr. Xiao is recognised as a senior economist by Bank of
Communications. Mr. Xiao is currently an independent director of Beijing SPC
Environment Protection Tech Co., Ltd. and an independent non-executive
director of Haitong Securities Co., Ltd..

Mr. Xiao joined the Board in April 2016 and has been appointed as the
chairman of remuneration committee, and a member of audit committee and
nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Xiao is also an independent non-
executive director, the chairman of remuneration committee, and a member of
audit committee and nomination committee of Sino-i.

Mr. Ho Yeung Nang, aged 69, holds a Bachelor's Degree in Arts from The
University of Hong Kong and a Master's Degree in Business Administration
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Ho served in different
managerial positions in banking industry both in Hong Kong and China during
the period from about 1973 to 1988. During the period from about 1989 to
1991, Mr. Ho was in Canada running his own business. In about 1992, Mr. Ho
joined the Group and worked as a general manager of the property division of
the Group, who left the Group in July 2009 and engaged in the position of
chief operating officer of a private company engaged in coal mining and iron
sand mining businesses in Indonesia and the Philippines respectively.

Mr. Ho joined the Board in September 2016 and has been appointed as a
member of audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Senior Management

Mr. Xue Bo Ying (aged 50)
General Manager
Nan Hai Development Limited

General Manager
Y B 3k FB B b = 9 2 B BR A 8] (The Peninsula Shenzhen Property
Development Co., Ltd.)

Mr. Xue graduated from Huazhong University of Science and Technology and
obtained a Master degree in architecture from Tsinghua University, and is a
certified first-level architect and a certified town planner in the PRC. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Xue worked in such senior positions as deputy general
manager, senior architect and architectural design director in a number of
corporations, and also worked in Guangzhou City Construction Commission.

Mr. Xue joined the Group in January 2006 as an architectural design director,
responsible for overall architectural design of various property projects of the
Group in the PRC. In February 2009, Mr. Xue was appointed as an executive deputy
general manager of Nan Hai Development Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, and was promoted to general manager in July 2010 and appointed
as a general manager of 7RI B FBE HEFEE AR A 7 (The Peninsula
Shenzhen Property Development Co,, Ltd).

Mr. Xue is also a member of executive committee of the Company, and a
director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms. Yu Xin (aged 42)

General Manager

BB K% bt & &% B R A 7] (Guangdong Dadi Cinema Construction
Limited)

Ms. Yu has over 10 years' experience in financial management in addition to
her in-depth experience and knowledge in media and culture services sector.
Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Yu was a director of China region of Emile Woolf
International Limited.

Ms. Yu joined the Company in January 2011 in the position of controller in fund
management department. Ms. Yu was appointed as deputy general manager
of ER AP E&R AR AR (Guangdong Dadi Cinema Construction
Limited) ("Dadi Construction”), a subsidiary of the Company, in August 2011,
and was then promoted to executive deputy general manager in December
2013, and further promoted to general manager in February 2015, responsible
for daily operation management of Dadi Construction.

Ms. Yu is also a member of executive committee of the Company, and a
director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company.
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Mr. Chen Ming Fei (aged 42)
General Manager
8 DR IR D B BR 2 7 (CE Dongli Technology Company Limited)

General Manager
db 35 8 8ES {5 B # i B BR 2 & (Beijing Xinnet Cyber Information
Company Limited)

Mr. Chen has more than 10 years' sales, and possesses with acute insight in IT
business, and has extensive and professional experiences in product creation,
business strategy planning and business management. Prior to joining Sino-i
group, Mr. Chen worked in Vorwerk of Co. KG, a German company.

In 2000, Mr. Chen joined CE Dongli, and was appointed as a national
commercial director, sales deputy general manager, executive deputy general
manager and business general manager. In January 2012, Mr. Chen was
promoted to a general manager, responsible for operation management of CE
Dongli. Mr. Chen is also the general manager of Xinnet, responsible for
operation management of Xinnet. Mr. Chen is also an executive director and a
general manager of Sino-i, and a director and/or general manager of a number
of subsidiaries of Sino-i. In January 2018, Mr. Chen was appointed as the chief
executive officer of Sino-i.

Mr. Chen is also a member of executive committee of the Company.

Ms. Zhao Lei (aged 39)

Ms. Zhao, with the bachelor degree in Economics from University of
International Business and Economics, the master degree in Finance from
University of York, and the accountant qualification of Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants (ACCA).

Ms. Zhao had acted as the director of Accounting Department and Financial
Department of the Company since December 2012, and was promoted as vice
general manager in February 2015.

Ms. Zhao is also a member of executive committee of the Company, and a
director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN EENRORIERAEROCE R R
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the directors and R 201812 A31H » AR RIEZERFEBTHA
chief executive of the Company in shares, underlying shares and debentures of ~ EBR ARGl A M BEEE (TE BES LB
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part &gl ([ &% R EBE (&0 ) £ XVER) 2 &% - 48
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ")) as recorded in the  BARMHD REET - HEE BN EEES LS
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise  {§HIE 352K FE 2 S LM sk B1E R E]
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code  Ffi$% 10 FT&E T3 IT ABE EHITELE L HHELE
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as  <FRI([Z%E<F A |) sk A E Ab 75 = A& A N &) R Bt

set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as follows: L7 RERERBENT ¢

The Company NN

Long and short positions in shares in issue REZEITIRG 2 F B RBAKE

Approximate

Capacity/ Number of percentage
Name of Director Nature of interest shares held holding Notes
EEpgg 55, ERtE FrERGEA Aotk ik
Yu Pun Hoi ("Mr. Yu") Corporate interest 40,673,177,261(L) 59.25% 1
T ([ TEED NEIRERE 9,734,516,130(5) 14.18% 2

Notes: Bzt -

1. These 40,673,177,261 shares were collectively held by Rosewood Assets Ltd., Pippen Limited, 1. 2% 4067317726 RIRHB DRI TFEEBREDEHE
Staverley Assets Limited, First Best Assets Limited and Unicorn Assets Group Limited B A Al A2 AR B PR A B il B2 2 & #E B ) Rosewood
companies indirectly wholly owned by Mr. Yu through Dadi Holdings Limited, a company Assets Ltd. * Pippen Limited * Staverley Assets Limited ~ First
wholly owned by Mr. Yu. Best Assets Limited & Unicorn Assets Group Limited & 3£ #5

f e

2. These 9,734,516,130 shares were charged by Pippen Limited, a company indirectly wholly 2. 22%9734516,130 RO B FELEEFBAEZEHEENAD
owned by Mr. Yu through Dadi Holdings Limited, a company wholly owned by Mr. Yu. AR RS A R A BRI 2 & % A MPippen Limited K18 o

3. (L) denotes long position and (S) denotes short position. 3. LIEFA - T (S)IEAA »
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Associated Corporations

As disclosed above, Mr. Yu is entitled to control the exercise of more than one-
third of the voting power at general meetings of the Company. As such, Mr. Yu
is taken to be interested in the shares of the associated corporations of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO. Sino-i is a company whose
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange, and is an associated corporation of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO. As at 31 December 2018,
the interests of the directors of the Company in shares and underlying shares
of Sino-i were as follows:

Sino-i

Long position in shares in issue

L E
TR - TEERARRREARS LAE
FIFTERBBR =D — 2182 - At - TREHR
BRRARNTEEEE(ERREFHZRAEGOE
XVER) 2 B PGB e - B SIS AR (0 OB X
FrEm - BEBEFSHRAEBKROIEXVE - #HR AR
NEZABSAE - R2018F12A31H ° KA A
BERPREEBERES 2D RAEERG 2 =
e 8

BB
REBTTRDZITE

Approximate
Number of percentage
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest shares held holding Notes
BREQ
EEgE B Rty FERGEE Aotk B &
Mr. Yu Corporate interest 12,838,585,316(L) 59.11% 1
T4 NEER
Lung King Cheong Personal interest 150,000(L) 0.00069%
ERE PN 2
Notes: ez -

1. These 12,838,585,316 shares were collectively held by Goalrise Investments Limited, View
Power Investments Limited and Wise Advance Investments Limited, all of which are wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Yu was taken to be interested in these shares by
virtue of his controlling interests in shares of the Company.

2. (L) denotes long position.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the directors nor
chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

} Nan Hai Corporation Limited E FBERERAF

1. %% 12838585316 RN DRI AR R Z 2B KB AR
Goalrise Investments Limited ~ View Power Investments
Limited & Wise Advance Investments Limited & 2£# 48 » F
FERRARBRMIFEEREEMTERNZERN

i o
2. (LIRMGFRE
B EXHTHEEI  R2018F12831H AR

BEERTIZ2TBABMERARRRELME
BoEE (Ex R R s LAEREIE XVER) 2B -
HEBROHESTEEACHENMREEF S
GOIE 3256 FE 2B M - KEREFE ETR
A8 10 Al 2 IR MESF RIRIA B A S KA G AR
A MEG R PT 2 R BOR R




SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 28 May 2012, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”).
Under the Scheme, share options may be granted to directors, employees of
the Group and those who have contributed or will contribute to the Group at
any time within ten years after its adoption at the discretion of the Board.

Since the adoption of the Scheme and during the year ended 31 December
2018, no share options have been granted under the Scheme by the Company.
No share options were granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed by the Company
under the Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2018 and there were
no outstanding share options under the Scheme as at 31 December 2018 and
up to the date of this report.

A summary of the Scheme is as follows:

(1) Purpose

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards to
participants for their contribution or would-be contribution to the Group
and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees
and attract human resources that are valuable to the Group and any
entity in which any member of the Group holds any equity interests (the
“Invested Entity”).

(2) Participants

The participants include:

a. any employee (whether full time or part time employee, including
any executive directors but not any non- executive director) of the
Company, its subsidiaries and any Invested Entity;

b. any non-executive director (including independent non-executive
director) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity;

C any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity;

d. any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;

e. any person or entity that provides research, development or
technological support or other services to the Group or any
Invested Entity;

f. any shareholder or any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity; and

g. any ex-employee who has contributed or may contribute to the
development and growth of the Group and any Invested Entity.
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(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

Maximum number of shares

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
share options to be granted under the Scheme must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the relevant class of shares of the Company in issue as at
the date of approval of the Scheme and the limit on the number of
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other
schemes must not exceed 30% of the relevant class of shares of the
Company in issue from time to time. No share options may be granted
under the Scheme and any other schemes of the Company if this will
result in such limit exceeded. As at the date of this report, the number of
shares available for issue in respect thereof is 6,864,553,579 shares
representing approximately 10% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
share options granted to each participant under the Scheme and any
other schemes (including both exercised and outstanding options) in
any 12-month period must not exceed 1 per cent. of the relevant class of
shares of the Company in issue. Any further grant of share options above
this limit shall be subject to certain requirements as stipulated in the
rules of the Scheme and to the relevant rules under the Listing Rules.

The period within which the shares must be taken up
under a share option

The period within which the shares must be taken up a share option
shall be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion at the time of
grant, but such period must not exceed 10 years from the date of grant
of the relevant share option.

Minimum period for exercising a share option

The Board may at its discretion determine the minimum period for
which a share option must be held before it can be exercised.

Acceptance and payment on acceptance

The share option shall be deemed to have been accepted when the
duplicate letter duly signed by the grantee, together with a remittance
of HK$1.00 in favour of the Company by way of consideration for the
grant thereof, is received by the Company. To the extent that the offer is
not accepted within 28 days in the manner aforesaid, it will be deemed
to have been irrevocable declined and lapsed automatically.

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

Nan Hai Corporation Limited m ABEZERERAR

RAESEE

BRI % AT IR 2 R A AR BT R Al
FEITZRMAE - TEHBBZAEIER
Mz BEARQRBEETHEBERKRSZ
10% &% A B BT E AR B 27T 8 R E A 7T &
ERBERRITEZBREmT FETZ
OB RE  THEEBARNARTREE
TTIRB AR 2 30% » T3 REZTE
RAABMEAHE A EREEIR T AT E
BB SR ERE - RAKRE B
H BRETFEHTZRONBERES A
6,864,553,579 % * HER AR TIBEITRM
LREHI 10% ©

FESRETERER L LR
SH2HEEEM 1218 A NERREZE
B I AF 0 A B AR £ BUS 11  BRAR 4 (2
EEATH RMARITE 2 BARE) T IATTEER
BT RISEIT 2R BB FEBBA
RECBITRBBERIRD 2 1% o FEAHE—
BB R R B AR IS Rt B
23R8 R bR AE T AR RIATET 8 2
ETFREMBIR -

BREERTROSEEMNZHR

BRES RO BEAZKNOHRHES
TERDBEREREZERE  BZHRT
SHEBABBRERE Z AL T4 -

T R 2 R AR HA PR
B B 17 A B AR E AT (R A 4
BB 2 BITHIR -

B4R IR I B AR B T SRR
EARDFEE SRR ARE ORI
P B S R B AR A RIS 1 0078 7T 2 AR (B
% IR B EAE AR -
HE#I3 IA_E T R 28 K PO
REMRBRACTIHEIEEREH
SR3 -




(8) Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price for shares under the Scheme shall be a price
determined by the directors of the Company, but it must not be at least
the higher of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant, which must be a
business day; (i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of
the share.

(9) Remaining life of the scheme

The Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years commencing on
29 May 2012 up to 28 May 2022.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Except for the Scheme disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has entered into any service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation, other than the statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into or
existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the paragraph “Connected Transactions”, “Continuing
Connected Transactions” and “Related Party Transactions” below, no
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation to the Group's
business to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party, and in which
any directors of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-Laws, save and except so far as the provisions
of the Bye-Laws shall be avoided by any provisions of the statutes, the directors,
managing directors, alternate directors, auditors, secretary and other officers
for the time being of the Company and the trustees (if any) for the time being
acting in relation to any of the affairs of the Company, and their respective
executors or administrators, shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of
the assets of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they or any of them, their or any of their
executors or administrators, shall or may incur or sustain by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty or
supposed duty in their respective offices or trusts, except such (if any) as they
shall incur or sustain through their own wilful neglect or default, fraud and
dishonesty respectively, and none of them shall be answerable for the acts,
receipts, neglects or defaults of any other of them, or for joining in any receipt
for the sake of conformity, or for any bankers or other persons with whom any
moneys or effects of the Company shall be lodged or deposited for safe
custody, or for the insufficiency or deficiency of any security upon which any
moneys of the Company shall be placed out or invested, or for any other loss,
misfortune or damage which may happen in the execution of their respective
offices or trusts, or in relation thereto, except as the same shall happen by or
through their own wilful neglect or default, fraud and dishonesty respectively.

The Bermuda Companies Act permits a company to exempt and indemnify its
directors and officers from liability in the following terms:

A company may in its bye-laws or in any contract or arrangement
between the company and any officer, or any person employed by the
company as auditor, exempt such officer or person from, or indemnify
him in respect of, any loss arising or liability attaching to him by virtue of
any rule of law in respect of any negligence, default, breach of any duty
or breach of trust of which the officer or person may be guilty in relation
to the company or any subsidiary thereof.

Any provision, whether contained in the bye-laws of a company or in
any contract or arrangement between the company and any officer, or
any person employed by the company as auditor, exempting such
officer or person from, or indemnifying him against any liability which by
virtue of any rule of law would otherwise attach to him in respect of any
fraud or dishonesty of which he may be guilty in relation to the company
shall be void.

This indemnification may also cover any liabilities which the officer incurs in
defending any proceedings (criminal or civil) where relief is granted to him,
where he is acquitted, or where judgement is given in his favour. A company
may advance money to an officer for the costs of defending proceedings, on
the condition that the advance shall be repaid if any allegation of fraud or
dishonesty is proven.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the directors and officers of the Group.

EFERER

RBARR AR - BRIFER 2 R B IR AR R]
AMUAZHRE BUAARARAREES EFHEL
2 BEEE  RHE - MEREMSABE M
REREARBEMEBZEEAWE) RKE
BN ZBERTANREEEEA  NWRESBEZ
BB EAEAMEATRENEEBERE
H - BRSGERELEMTR  ABIRSEEM—
HREEEERATAREEER AR AAK
EfRFDL - BER WE BX BERRX K
RARPAEEEFLRELEREERE @ #
REBHFEBRBHKLE  FFHRETHERRHL
SIRZFHR - BA - WE - BK BERMEX(N
B)NEUR - BERBAR T ERAEEL :
BEEPEMAFERZITR  HRAZWE - B2
HKE - HERBREMBRLAYE  HBE
FEHREARNEMRIBSE Y 2 SRITEAM
AE  FARBRERKREE A EZERTE
FREZ - REFATE ARG EEREHRA
BB EMEMIER TE=EHRIBENAH
=EEREEREHMTSIMRE D ER A LA
BREBRRBHKE  FFHRTEBZEMIAH
=

BREQRDEIER RN IA T IEREA R LRER
EXkefBE AL

RAAREMAL AR EERSRBE -
HAE XN R E B R EE 2 E M A LR
Y ZEFRENRRYS  BeAHR AR
BAT HWEHEEHEEETARZ - X
B EREMBREXERAE(ERZER
BERALTARSRARREERNHBER
Az F#1T) MBB 2 EHE KA A2
HiEe

EATERTR (A& A B AR # e A~ R B(E
MESEBE XX ABERR/REEN 2 E
MALRI L ZERMEHRLH) B
SRBE R AL KR EEBEMFER R
TEH (BRI R ARz T BAME
MERERMEREZEFNEE  BRE
R o

HEERRE BEEBRIFRABEENZBER
T AWETORERRBENNFHEM AR
(MEFLRF)RBEEZEMET - RAIA IR
AERFZERMERBERNR  RUERMEE
EMRFFRTHE 2 IRE - REERHERK -

ARRERAEEEZNSRBEREERES
KB e s EERR -

| Nan Hai Corporation Limited m ABEZERERAR {




y 4

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no contract of significance to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any
controlling shareholder had a material interest subsisted during the year ended
31 December 2018.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contract of significance has been
entered into among the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling
shareholders or any of their subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December
2018, and no contract of significance for the provision of services to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries has been entered into during the year ended 31 December 2018.

CHANGE IN THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

There was no change in the Board since the date of the Company’s 2018
interim report and up to the date of this report.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF
DIRECTORS

Mr. Xiao Sui Ning, an independent non-executive director of the Company,
resigned as an independent director of Zhongrun Resources Investment
Corporation (listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 000506) in
mid-2018.

Mr. Lam Bing Kwan, a non-executive director of the Company, retired as an
independent non-executive director of eFORCE Holdings Limited (listed on the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 943) in mid-2018.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company remunerates its employees based on their qualifications,
experience and performance. In addition to basic salary payments, other
benefits include housing, contributions to mandatory provident fund, group
medical insurance, group personal accident insurance and examination leave
and etc. Employees are eligible to be granted share options under the
Company'’s share option scheme at the discretion of the Board. In general,
salary review is conducted annually.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules.

Specific enquiries have been made to all the directors and the directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2018.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS

As at 31 December 2018, those persons (other than directors and chief
executive of the Company) who had interests and short positions in shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Name of person holding an interest

FERRZESRKRE

R2018F 12318 REARRIZBES KL
BIEMERBETFE ZERMATREE U TAL

(AATEEREETHABBINREAT SR
A ARBIIR 15 o A S TR

Approximate

in shares which has been disclosed to percentage of

the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 Number of issued share capital

of Part XV of the SFO Nature of interest shares held of the Company

FERBESRMERAIEXVERE 2R 355 EYNCIIRE: S5y
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Dadi Holdings Limited Corporate interest 40,673,177,261 (L) 59.25% 1

R ZER AR AR DA 9,734,516,130 () 14.18% 4

Rosewood Assets Ltd. Beneficial interest 8,041,150,210 (L) 11.71% 1
Bnfgsn

Pippen Limited Beneficial interest 14,830,245,497 (L) 21.60% 1
BaEn 9,734,516,130(S) 14.18%

Staverley Assets Limited Beneficial interest 4,893,197,974 (L) 7.12% 1
Eags

First Best Assets Limited Beneficial interest 9,544,736,998 (L) 13.90% 1
Eangs

Kung Ai Ming Corporate interest 6,530,443,498 (L) 9.51% 28&5

BEH NG 5

Yu Ben Hei Corporate interest 6,461,043,498 (L) 941% 28&5

TR NEER

Macro Resources Ltd. Beneficial interest 4,361,043,498 (L) 6.35% 2&5
Bags

Lim Siew Choon Corporate interest 5,514,986,997 (L) 8.03% 3

NE NG

Empire Gate Industrial Limited Beneficial interest 5,514,986,997 (L) 8.03% 3
BnEs

Central Huijin Investment Ltd. Security interest 7,060,000,000 (L) 10.29% 6
BES
Corporate interest 63,091,482 (L) 0.09% 6
NG

China Construction Bank Corporation Security interest 7,060,000,000 (L) 10.29% 6
BES
Corporate interest 63,091,482 (L) 0.09% 6

NI S
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Notes:

Rosewood Assets Ltd., Pippen Limited, Staverley Assets Limited, First Best Assets Limited and
Unicorn Assets Group Limited are companies indirectly wholly owned by Mr. Yu through Dadi
Holdings Limited, a company wholly owned by Mr. Yu. Their interests in shares are disclosed
as the corporate interests of Mr. Yu above.

Macro Resources Ltd. and K Resources Group Limited are held as to 50% each by Ms. Kung Ai
Ming and Mr. Yu Ben Hei, the son of Mr. Yu. Their respective interest in 4,361,043,498 and
2,100,000,000 shares were included as interest held by Ms. Kung Ai Ming and Mr. Yu Ben Hei.
Ms. Kung Ai Ming owns interest of 69,400,000 shares through Redmap Resources Limited, her
wholly owned company.

Empire Gate Industrial Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Lim Siew Choon. Its interest in shares
was included as interest held by Mr. Lim Siew Choon.

These 9,734,516,130 shares were charged by Pippen Limited, a company indirectly wholly
owned by Mr. Yu through Dadi Holdings Limited, a company wholly owned by Mr. Yu.

Pursuant to Part XV of the SFO, if certain conditions are met, the shareholders of the Company
are required to submit a disclosure of interest notice. In the event of changes in the
shareholding of the shareholders in the Company, the shareholders will not be required to
notify the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange unless certain conditions are met.
Therefore, the latest shareholding of the shareholders in the Company may be different from
the shareholding submitted to the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

These 7,123,091,482 shares were indirectly held by Central Huijin Investment Ltd. through
China Construction Bank Corporation, CCB International Group Holdings Limited, CCB
Financial Holdings Limited, CCB International (Holdings) Limited and CCB International
Overseas Limited.

(L) denotes long position and (S) denotes short position.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, no person (other than
directors and chief executive of the Company) had notified to the Company
any interests or short positions in shares or underlying shares of the Company
which was required to be recorded in the register kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions of the Group are set out in note 50 to the
financial statements.

Save for the transactions mentioned in the below section headed “Connected
Transaction” and the section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions”
which are subject to the disclosure and annual review requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and are subject to all connected transaction
requirements when any of the relevant the agreements is renewed or its terms
are varied pursuant to Rule 14A.60 of the Listing Rules, certain transactions
mentioned under the note also constituted connected transactions or
continuing connecting transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules but are exempt from the reporting, annual review, announcement,
circular and independent shareholders’” approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in relation to
these connected transactions.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 26 February 2018, Nan Hai Zhichen Investment Consultancy (Beijing)
Company Limited (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) as
settlor and beneficiary and Bohai International Trust Company Limited as the
trustee entered into the entrusted fund contract pursuant to which Nan Hai
Zhichen Investment Consultancy (Beijing) Company Limited entrusted Bohai
International Trust Company Limited with the entrusted fund for the purposes
of granting the entrusted loan in the principal amount of RMB148,500,000 to
Beijing Dadi Dreamworks Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) (“Dadi
Dreamworks”), with a term of five years. Bohai International Trust Company
Limited as lending agent and Dadi Dreamworks as borrower, entered into the
entrusted loan contract pursuant to which Bohai International Trust Company
Limited granted the entrusted loan in the principal amount of RMB148,500,000
to Dadi Dreamworks, with a term of five years.

On 26 February 2018, Dadi Dreamworks is owned as to 50% and 50% by Ms. Liu
Rong (an executive director of the Company and the chairlady of Guangdong
Dadi Cinema Construction Limited) and Ms. Yu Xin (a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company and the general manager of Guangdong Dadi
Cinema Construction Limited) respectively. Ms. Liu Rong is the general partner
of Dadi Dreamworks and Ms. Yu Xin is the limited partner of Dadi Dreamworks.
As such, Dadi Dreamworks is an associate of Ms. Liu Rong and Ms. Yu Xin, and
thus a connected person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, and the transactions under the entrusted fund contract and the
entrusted loan contract therefore constitutes connected transactions of the
Company. For details please refer to the announcement dated 26 February
2018 and the circular dated 28 March 2018 of the Company.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the financial year under review, the Company and certain subsidiaries
entered into certain continuing connected transactions. As per the Listing A A
Rules, all such continuing connected transactions are required to be disclosed
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in the annual report of the Company:

1.

On 1 January 2014, Digicine Oristar Technology Development (Beijing)
Company Limited (“Oristar Technology”) entered into the Oristar
Technology Cooperation Agreement with GD Cinema Circuit, pursuant
to which Oristar Technology shall use its reasonable endeavours to sale
the Projection Equipment (or any part of it) (including installation and
training) to GD Cinema Circuit upon fulfillment of certain conditions for
coping with its business development during a fixed term of six (6) years,
from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2019. Particulars of which have
been disclosed in the announcement dated 19 August 2015 issued by
the Company, all capitalized terms used hereinbelow shall have the
same meanings used in such announcement unless otherwise the

contexts hereinbelow specify.

Major terms:

m

Undertakings of Oristar Technology

Oristar Technology shall use its reasonable
endeavours to provide the Projection
Equipment (or any part of it) (including
appropriate installation and training) for GD
Cinema Circuit within a reasonable period of
time for the purpose of coping with GD Cinema
Circuit's business development.

Undertakings of GD Cinema

GD Cinema Circuit shall purchase the Projection
Equipment (or any part of it) from Oristar
Technology on the conditions that (a) the
selling price of the Projection Equipment (or
any part of it) quoted by Oristar Technology
shall not be higher than the selling price of (i)
such Projection Equipment (or any part of it) or
(i) any other compatible equipment, apparatus
or system, quoted by other suppliers obtained
by GD Cinema Circuit; and (b) the quality of the
Projection Equipment (or any part of it)
(including but not limited to functionality and
operation) and after-sales service (including but
not limited to maintenance and repair) quoted
by Oristar Technology shall not be lower and
less than those quoted by other suppliers
obtained by GD Cinema Circuit.
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On 19 August 2015, Ms. Liu, a director of the Company, who is a
connected person of the Company under Rule 14A.07 of the Listing
Rules, (1) acquired 80% of Dadi Century Beijing (the remaining 20% has
been owned by Mr. YCH, an associate of Mr. YPH, who is a connected
person of the Company under Rule 14A.07 of the Listing Rules) which
directly owns 85% equity interest of GD Cinema Circuit; and (2) gained
an effective control of 15% equity interest of GD Cinema Circuit through
I RmE K EFEKE S K1 % (Beijing Dadi Legend Investment
Partnership) (“Dadi Legend”) which is an associate of Ms. Liu. Given the
foregoing, Ms. Liu has gained control in GD Cinema Circuit, and each of
Dadi Century Beijing and GD Cinema Circuit has become an associate of
Ms. Liu pursuant to Rule 14A.12 of the Listing Rules. As a result, the
continuing transactions contemplated under the Oristar Technology
Cooperation Agreement have become continuing connected
transactions effect from 19 August 2015.

The annual cap under Rule 14A.53 shall not be applied for the continuing
connected transactions contemplated under the Oristar Technology
Cooperation Agreement as such transactions have already been taken
place since 1 January 2014 under the Oristar Technology Cooperation
Agreement, i.e. before such transactions become connected transactions
upon the gaining control in GD Cinema Circuit by Ms. Liu on 19 August
2015.

On 30 November 2017, the Company entered into the Business
Cooperation Framework Agreement with GD Cinema Circuit for a fixed
term from 1 December 2017 to 30 November 2020, pursuant to which
GD Cinema Circuit shall supply the Group with motion pictures and
license the Group to project such motion pictures in its cinemas. Upon
commencement of the Term, the Dadi Cinema Cooperation Agreement
(ie. the cooperation agreement entered into between Dadi Cinema and
GD Cinema Circuit on 1 January 2015) and the Dadi Development
Cooperation Agreement (ie. the cooperation agreement entered into
between Dadi Development and GD Cinema Circuit on 1 January 2015)
shall be terminated and cease to take effect. As at the date of the
Business Cooperation Framework Agreement, Ms. Liu Rong, owns 80%
of Dadi Century Beijing, which directly owns 82.49% equity interest of
GD Cinema Circuit. Ms. Liu Rong also has an effective control of 12.95%
equity interest of GD Cinema Circuit through Dadi Legend, which is an
associate of Ms. Liu Rong. In addition, Mr. Yu Cheung Hoi, an associate of
Mr. Yu Pun Hoi (an executive director of the Company), owns 20% of
Dadi Century Beijing. Given the foregoing, GD Cinema Circuit is a
connected person of the Company. Particulars of which have been
disclosed in the announcement dated 30 November 2017 issued by the
Company, all capitalized terms used hereinbelow shall have the same
meanings used in such announcement unless otherwise the contexts
hereinbelow specify.

The fee payable for the motion pictures procured through the GD
Cinema Circuit will either be paid as a Fixed Fee Motion Picture or a Box
Sharing Motion Picture, both of which are explained below.
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(a) Fixed Fee Motion Pictures

The Group shall pay monthly, a fixed licensing fee to the GD
Cinema Circuit for licensing each Fixed Fee Motion Picture from
the GD Cinema Circuit during the motion picture projection
period and such fixed licensing fee shall be in accordance with the
same terms offered by GD Cinema Circuit to its other cinema
operators. GD Cinema Circuit shall not be entitled to sharing of the
Net Box Office of the Fixed Fee Motion Pictures.

(b)

Box Sharing Motion Pictures

The Net Box Office of each Box Sharing Motion Picture shall be
distributed in the following manner:

U]

(i)

(iff)

a sum equivalent to all fees payable to the distributor (from
whom GD Cinema Circuit obtained its right to permit the
Group to project such motion pictures in its cinemas) (the
"Distributor Fees”) shall be paid to the GD Cinema Circuit;

the Group shall, during the Term, pay an amount of not
more than 1% of the Net Box Office of the Box Sharing
Motion Picture to the GD Cinema Circuit and the exact
percentage of such payment shall be agreed upon between
the Group and the GD Cinema Circuit prior to the screening
of the motion picture; and

the remaining portion of the Net Box Office shall belong to
the Group.
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Pursuant to the Business Cooperation Framework Agreement, the
maximum amount of payment to be made by the Group to the GD
Cinema Circuit in relation to the provision of motion pictures, less the
Distributor Fees (the “Annual Caps”) are set out below:

For the eleven
months ended
30 November

REXGAEERWZS  ARERERH
FR R RS N 2 RSB HRIBRET
ABR(FEELERDEIIMT

For the For the For the
year ended yearended month ended

31 December 31 December 31 December

2020 2019 2018 2017
BZE20205F #E2019F #HE2018F  BE2017F
11 HA30H 12A31H 12H31H 12A31H
1E11{EA LFE LFE A
(HK$'000) (HK$'000) (HK$'000) (HK$'000)
(F&T) (FA&mT) (F&T) (FA&T)
Maximum amount REERERET R A 92,000 80,000 50,000 4,000
payable by the Group Kb 4R IET 2
to the GD Cinema =EEREITA
Circuit in relation to = §:3!

provision of motion
pictures, less the
Distributor Fees

All the independent non-executive directors of the Company have reviewed
the above continuing connected transactions, and confirmed that all such
continuing connected transactions were entered into:

(1) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(2)  onnormal commercial terms or better; and
(3)  according to the agreements governing them on terms that are fair and

reasonable and in the interests of the Company’s shareholders as a
whole.
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= :

(1) AEEHER—MREEREF

Q ERHEEEEGRR K

3 RERAEFEXZHHGH REQIATFEE
ANAARBRREBEN RN KA L

Nan Hai Corporation Limited E ABEZERERAR {



In accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company has engaged
its auditors to report on all continuing connected transactions as mentioned
above, and the auditors have issued to the Board a letter confirming that
nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that all such
continuing connected transactions:

(1) have not been approved by the Board;

(2)  were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing the transactions; and

(3)  exceed the proposed annual caps as determined by the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-Laws or the law in
Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

On 17 May 2018, Top Yield Ventures Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) issued the US$120,000,000 guaranteed senior notes that bear
interest at 9.75% per annum due 2019. The notes are listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of its listed securities during the year ended
31 December 2018.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the publicly available information and to the best knowledge of the
directors, the Company has maintained during the year and up to the date of
this report sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Particulars of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
"Corporate Governance Report” on pages 59 to 80.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises all the independent non-executive directors
of the Company, namely Mr. Lau Yip Leung, Mr. Xiao Sui Ning and Mr. Ho
Yeung Nang. The Audit Committee has reviewed with the auditor of the
Company and management the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2018, and discussed the auditing, financial
control, internal control and risk management systems.
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AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 were audited
by BDO Limited (“BDO"). A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM
of the Company to re-appoint BDO as auditor of the Company.

STRUCTURED AGREEMENTS

Reference is made to the joint announcements of the Company and its listed
subsidiary, Sino-i, dated 15 November 2013, 6 December 2013 and 31 July 2015
(collectively, the “Announcements”) in relation to a discloseable transaction
under which Xinnet Technology Information Company Limited (“XWHT"), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Sino-i, by means of the Structured
Agreements, shall be entitled to control over Xinnet's management, businesses
and operations in substance in addition to recognise and receive all economic
benefits of the business of Xinnet. All capitalized terms used hereinbelow shall
have the same meanings as those defined in the Announcements unless
otherwise stated in this annual report.

The Board hereby provides updated information in relation to the business
operations of Xinnet through the Structured Agreements and the implications
thereof as follows:

(a) Particulars and business activities of Xinnet:

Xinnet is a limited liability company established in the PRC and a wholly-
owned subsidiary of ZQHT. Mr. Jiang is a PRC citizen, and an ultimate
beneficial owner of 100% equity interest of ZQHT. Xinnet's main
businesses are provision of virtual server hosting and maintenance
services, provision of email services and registration of domain names in
the PRC, which are all regarded as a kind of internet content services.
Xinnet has obtained a valid licence for providing internet content
services, issued by It RTBEEIER (Beijing Communications
Administration).

(b) Summary of main terms of the Structured Agreement:
(1) Loan Agreement (dated 15 November 2013):
(

) Parties: XWHT as lender; and Mr. Jiang as borrower

(ii) Loan amount: RMB1,500,000

(i) The loan is interest free, and has no maturity date for
repayment. Mr. Jiang shall have no right to effect any early
repayment unless having the written consent from XWHT.
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)

3)

4)

Equity Pledge Agreement (dated 15 November 2013):

i

) Parties: XWHT as pledgee; ZQHT as pledgor; and Xinnet

(i) Assets pledged: 80% equity interest of Xinnet, free from
encumbrance, as first fixed charge to XWHT as security.

(i) ZQHT shall not dispose of the pledged 80% equity interest
to any other party without obtaining the written approval of
XWHT.

Management and Technology Services Agreement (dated 15
November 2013):

(i) Parties: XWHT; and Xinnet

(i) XWHT shall provide certain exclusive management and
technology services to Xinnet.

(i) The Management and Technology Services Agreement is
solely terminable by XWHT but not Xinnet. In return for the
provision of the exclusive services, XWHT shall be entitled to
receive a service fee which is equivalent to the net profit of
Xinnet as per its yearly audited financial statements.

Option Agreement (dated 15 November 2013):

fe=

] Parties: XWHT as grantee; ZQHT as grantor; and Xinnet

(i) ZQHT shall grant an exclusive option to XWHT at an option
price of RMB1.00 to acquire up to 100% equity interest in
the registered capital of Xinnet (no limit on the number of
times the option may be exercised by XWHT). The total
subscription price for 100% equity interest of Xinnet shall be
equivalent to the total loan amount (being RMB1,500,000)
under the Loan Agreement, and the subscription price for
each option exercised shall be paid by direct set off on a
dollar-for-dollar basis against the outstanding loan amount
under the Loan Agreement.
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(c)

(d)

HE

(5)  Power of Attorney (dated 15 November 2013):

(i) Parties: ZQHT; and XWHT

(i) Itis an irrevocable power of attorney under which XWHT
shall be the sole attorney of ZQHT. XWHT shall have full
power, without having to obtain ZQHT's any further consent
or approval, to exercise such rights in Xinnet as (a) all
shareholder’s rights and voting rights in accordance with
the corporate memorandum of Xinnet; and (b) rights of
nomination and appointment of legal representative,
chairman of the board, directors, general manager and
other senior management personnel of Xinnet.

The Loan Agreement, the Equity Pledge Agreement, the
Management and Technology Services Agreement, the Option
Agreement and the Power of Attorney shall be executed
simultaneously with each other.

The significance of business activities of Xinnet to the
Group:

By means of the Structured Agreements, the Group may engage in the
business of virtual server hosting and maintenance in the PRC and such
business may widen the spectrum of services of the Group. The widened
services are expected to lead the Group to having not only a stronger
foothold against its competitors in the PRC but also an achievement of
efficiency and cost-effectiveness in provision of virtual server hosting and
maintenance services to the customers of the Group.

The financial impact of the Structured Agreements on
the Group:

XWHT is a parent company of Xinnet as XWHT has the right to control
Xinnet by virtual of the Structured Agreements. As a result, the financial
position and operating results of Xinnet and its subsidiary shall be
consolidated in the XWHT's financial statements from the date on which
XWHT has gained control in Xinnet in accordance with the HKFRS.

During the year, Xinnet's revenue was approximately HK$136,542,000
(2017: approximately of 117,937,000); loss before income tax was
approximately HK$26,744,000 (2017: approximately HK$44,516,000); and
total assets were approximately HK$145,515,000 (2017: approximately
HK$144,339,000) have been consolidated into the Group's financial
statement.

The loss for the year was mainly because the revenue arising from cloud
business did not meet expectations.

(c)

(d)
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(e) The extent to which the Structured Agreements

(f)

relate to requirement of applicable laws, rules and
regulations other than the foreign ownership
restriction:

In view of the PRC legal opinion, (i) the Structured Agreements have
complied with the laws, rules and regulations in the PRC, and complied
with the respective articles of association of XWHT, ZQHT and Xinnet; (ii)
there is no law, rule or regulation specifically disallows foreign investors
from using any structured agreement to gain control of or operate the
business of Xinnet; and (iii) the Structured Agreements would not be
deemed as concealing illegal intentions with a lawful form and void
under the PRC contract law.

Reasons for using the Structured Agreements and the
risks associated therewith including actions taken to
mitigate such risks:

Xinnet's main businesses are classified as value-added telecommunication
services which is a kind of business restricted to foreign investors in the
PRC. By virtue of /NEIR EBE R EEE T (Provisions on the
Administration of Foreign Investment Telecommunication Enterprises),
foreign investors are not allowed to hold more than 50% in the equity
interest of a PRC enterprise providing value-added telecommunication
services.

The main businesses of Xinnet are considered as value-added businesses
which widen the spectrum of services of the Group for its customers and
in turn enhance the Group's competitiveness in the PRC market. As the
Group faces the aforesaid restriction in equity interest of a PRC company,
the Structured Agreements shall be regarded as a strategic arrangement
by which the Group may fully and effectively control Xinnet, which in
turn enables the Group to achieve the aforesaid purposes. In addition,
the Structured Agreements offer flexibility to the Group in control of
Xinnet — (a) control of its management, businesses and operations; and
(b) owning of its 100% equity interest by exercising the call option under
the Option Agreement when the restriction in having more than 50%
equity interest of a PRC enterprise by foreign investors is removed or
repealed.
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In addition to the foreign ownership restriction under the prevailing
applicable laws and regulations, the Structured Agreements do not
violate any PRC laws, rules and regulations, and the execution of the
Structured Agreements by the parties thereto does not violate any article
in the articles of association of the contracting parties; and such
prevailing provision and notice issued by the PRC authorities as (i) {Zh
EIREEELEEEMRT) (Provisions on the Administration of
Foreign Investment Telecommunication Enterprises) (amended in 2008)
and (HMEIREEFIEE B £%) (Catalogue for Guidance of Foreign
Investment Industries) (@amended in 2015) issued by the State Council of
the PRC, under which foreign investor shall not have more than 50% in a
corporation providing value-added telecommunication services; and (ii)

(AR MBI EREREIEEEEXEHEENBA) (Notice of
Strengthened Administration of Foreign Investment in and Operation of
Value-Added Telecommunication Business) issued by the Ministry of
Industry and Information Technology of the PRC in July 2006 under
which a local PRC company holding an internet content provider licence
shall not lease, transfer or sell the licence to foreign investors in any form,
or provide any assistance to foreign investors to provide internet content
services in the PRC, but such provision and notice are not governing or
restricting the control of a PRC company through structured
agreements.

Given the foregoing, the Structured Agreements shall be regarded as
valid documents binding all parties thereto as at the date of this report.
However, if any new applicable law or regulation were enacted in the
future in the PRC, the validity and enforceability of the Structured
Agreements might have been affected, and as a result, the structured
agreements of controlling Xinnet would have been disruptive which in
turn would have affected the business of the Group.

The Ministry of Commerce of the PRC has issued certain consultation
paper (EZRECKE RHR) in respect of a bill namely (P #E A R L F1E
SNEIHR B %) (Foreign Investment Law of the PRC) (the “Bill") in January
2015, which is to be enacted into an act or statute. As per sections 15
and 18 thereof, foreign investment means foreign investors directly or
indirectly conduct certain investment activities, e.g. through structured
agreements or trust arrangement to control a PRC company or holding
equity interest of a PRC company. Any foreign investment in any
business under the catalogue of restricted investment shall apply for an
access permit from foreign investment authority under the State Council
of the PRC as per section 27 thereof. There is no indication in the Bill that
contracts under the contractual arrangement would be void.
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(9)

Application for an access permit cited in the Bill could be viewed as a
kind of administrative procedure rather than a prohibitive threshold,
therefore, failure in obtaining the permit by fulfilling certain
administrative procedures would not be very high. As Mr. Jiang is not a
connected person of the Group, the risk of direct conflict of interest with
the Group will be very low. It is unlikely for Mr. Jiang setting up another
entity conducting business having a direct competition with Xinnet's,
otherwise, Mr. Jiang would not execute and procure the execution of the
Structured Agreements by which Mr. Jiang has given up the businesses
of Xinnet. As at the date of this report, the Group is not aware that Mr.
Jiang has carried out or is involved in any business having a direct
competition with the businesses of the Group. If Mr. Jiang or ZQHT
breaches any obligations or undertakings under any Structured
Agreements, the operations of Xinnet would not be affected as the
position of the Group in controlling Xinnet has been fully secured by (a)
full control of the board of directors of Xinnet; and (b) obtaining a charge
of 100% equity interest in Xinnet (as per the provision of the Loan
Agreement, the pledgor has further charged the remaining 20% equity
interest in Xinnet as first fixed charge in favour of the pledgee in October
2014).

Since the Bill has yet been enacted into an act or statute, the sections or
provisions thereof might be further modified and amended after the
consultation period, it is uncertain whether there will be any additional
conditions imposed on foreign investors.

(R EE AR HEFE I R & 7K MForeign Investment Law of the PRC)
was promulgated on 15 March 2019 and will be implemented on 1
January 2020. The Foreign Investment Law does not clearly stipulate the
legality or effectiveness of foreign-invested enterprises in adopting
structured agreements to control domestic companies in the PRC, nor
does it require explicit requirements on the specific form of the
structured agreements or the specific content of the structured
agreements legal documentation. Thus, after the Foreign Investment
Law come into force, its provisions shall not affect the effectiveness of
the structured agreements legal documentation. However, there are still
uncertainties in the interpretation and application of the PRC laws and
regulations on the effectiveness of the structured agreements, and the
interpretation of the relevant authorities may be different from the
above. Therefore, we cannot assure that the above structured agreement
will not be adversely affected.

The Structured Agreements might be subject to scrutiny of the tax
authorities in the PRC, and additional tax might be imposed, but the
Group does not expect that such tax risk is high and will lead to any
substantial financial impact on the Group.

Material change in the Structured Agreements:

No Structured Agreement has been supplemented or modified since the
date of execution of all such Structured Agreements.
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(h) Unwinding of the Structured Agreements: (h)

No Structured Agreement has been unwound since the date of
execution all such Structured Agreements. None of the Structured
Agreement is to be unwound until and unless the restriction on
ownership by foreign investors is removed or not in force. In the event of
such restriction in foreign investment is removed or not in force, XHWT
will exercise its option under the Option Agreement to acquire the entire
equity interest in Xinnet. Upon completion of formal acquisition of the
entire equity interest in Xinnet, the Structured Agreements will then be

FERRIR B

RERT B Z B HAK  ZEBERK
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unwound.
On behalf of the Board REEES
Yu Pun Hoi FTmE
Chairman FE
Hong Kong, 28 March 2019 A% 2019F3 A28H
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board is pleased to present the Corporate Governance Report of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The Company is committed to maintain high corporate governance standard
and unambiguous procedures to ensure the integrity, transparency and quality
of disclosure in order to enhance its shareholders’ value.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied with the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code") and Corporate Governance Report as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31
December 2018 and as of the date of this report, except for the deviations
mentioned below:

CG Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer (the “CEQ”") should be separated and should not be performed
by the same individual.

Since 12 February 2018, the Company has rectified the previous deviation
concerning CG Code Provision A.2.1 by the appointment of Ms. Liu Rong as the
CEO with effect from 12 February 2018. Prior to 12 February 2018, the role of
CEO was also performed by Mr. Yu Pun Hoi, the chairman of the Company. The
Board believed that vesting the roles of both chairman and CEO in the same
person provided the Company with strong and consistent leadership, and
allowed for effective and efficient planning and implementation of business
decisions and strategies. By appointing Ms. Liu Rong as the CEO with effect
from 12 February 2018, the Company complied with the requirements under
CG Code Provision A.2.1 since 12 February 2018.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code.

Specific enquiries have been made to all the directors and the directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2018.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less exacting than
the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for securities transactions
by employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside
information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by the
relevant employees was noted by the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this report, the current Board is made up of seven directors
including two executive directors, two non-executive directors and three
independent non-executive directors (the “INEDs”). The directors are,
collectively and individually, aware of their responsibilities to the shareholders.
The directors’ biographical information is set out on pages 32 to 36 under the
heading “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”. During
the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the date of this report, the Board
consisted of the following:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Pun Hoi (Chairman)
Ms. Liu Rong (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Bing Kwan
Mr. Lung King Cheong (re-designated with effect from 1 April 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Yip Leung
Mr. Xiao Sui Ning
Mr. Ho Yeung Nang

The overall management of the Company’s businesses is vested in the Board,
which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of the Company
and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and monitoring its affairs. All directors should take decisions
objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the Company
are delegated to the senior management. The delegated functions and work
tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board
prior to any significant transactions entered into by the abovementioned
senior management of the Company.

The Board has the full support of its board committees and the senior
management of the Company to discharge its responsibilities.

To the best knowledge of the Company, the Board members do not have any
financial, business and family or other material/relevant relationship with each
other. During the year, the Board held 13 meetings.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulated that the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer (the "CEQ") should be separated and should not be performed by the
same individual.

Since 12 February 2018, the Company has rectified the previous deviation
concerning CG Code Provision A.2.1 by the appointment of Ms. Liu Rong as the
CEO with effect from 12 February 2018. Prior to 12 February 2018, the role of
CEO was also performed by Mr. Yu Pun Hoi, the chairman of the Company. The
Board believed that vesting the roles of both chairman and CEO in the same
person provided the Company with strong and consistent leadership, and
allowed for effective and efficient planning and implementation of business
decisions and strategies. By appointing Ms. Liu Rong as the CEO with effect
from 12 February 2018, the Company has complied with the requirements
under CG Code Provision A.2.1 since 12 February 2018.

During the year, the chairman held a meeting with each of the non-executive
directors and independent non-executive directors of the Company and
obtained independent opinions relating to affairs of the Board and the
Company without the presence of other executive directors.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lung King Cheong, an executive director of the Company, has been re-
designated as a non-executive director of the Company with effect from 1 April
2018.

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulated that non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term subject to re-election.

The Company has entered into service contracts with each of its non-executive
directors (including independent non-executive directors) for a term of two
years with effect from the signing date of service contracts.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, during the year ended
31 December 2018, the Company has appointed three INEDs of whom Mr. Lau
Yip Leung is a certified public accountant in Hong Kong.

The Company has received, from each of the INEDs, an annual confirmation of
his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the INEDs are independent.

Notwithstanding that Mr. Lau Yip Leung has served as an independent non-
executive director of the Company for more than nine years, (i) the Board has
assessed and reviewed the annual confirmation of independence based on the
requirement set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and affirmed that Mr. Lau
Yip Leung remains independent; (ii) the Nomination Committee of the
Company has assessed and is satisfied of the independence of Mr. Lau Yip
Leung; and (iii) the Board considers that Mr. Lau Yip Leung remains
independent of management and free of any relationship which could
materially interfere with the exercise of his independent judgement.
Notwithstanding the length of his service, the Company believes that his
valuable knowledge and experience in the Group's business will continue to
benefit the Company and the shareholders as a whole.

Directors’ Training

According to the Code Provision A.6.5, all directors should participate in a
programme of continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. The Company should be responsible for
arranging and funding training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of the directors.

From time to time, directors are provided with written materials to develop
and refresh their professional skills on the latest development of applicable
laws, rules and regulations for the purpose of assisting them in discharging
their duties. The Company had received from each of the directors the
confirmations on taking continuous professional training during the year.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four board committees, namely Executive
Committee, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee, to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and to assist
in the execution of the Board's responsibilities.

Executive Committee

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the Executive
Committee. During the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the date of
this report, the Executive Committee consisted of executive directors and
senior management of the Company as follows:

Mr. Yu Pun Hoi (Chairman of the Executive Committee)
Ms. Liu Rong

Mr. Chen Ming Fei*

Mr. Xue Bo Ying*

Ms. Yu Xin*

Ms. Zhao Lei*

* Senior Management

The primary duties of the Executive Committee are empowered to plan,
determine, approve, implement, handle, arrange, review and amend all
policies, operations, corporate governance functions and internal control of
the Group, ensuring that the delegation of its powers to the senior
management is clearly defined, and that a transparent reporting procedural
system is in place and effectively monitored.

During the year, the Executive Committee held 3 meetings, in particular, to
review the financial performance of the segments in the Group, review the
Company's policies and practices on corporate governance, make decisions on
the strategic layout of the Group.

Audit Committee

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the Audit Committee
in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules. During the year
ended 31 December 2018 and up to the date of this report, the Audit
Committee consisted of all INEDs as follows:

Mr. Lau Yip Leung (Chairman of the Audit Committee)
Mr. Xiao Sui Ning
Mr. Ho Yeung Nang
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The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to ensure the objectivity and
credibility of financial reports and internal control procedures as well as to
maintain an appropriate relationship with the external auditor of the Company.

During the year, the Audit Committee held 2 meetings, in particular, to review
with management the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group, the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017
and the unaudited interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2018, and
discussed the auditing, financial control, internal control and risk management
systems.

Remuneration Committee

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the Remuneration
Committee in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules. During
the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the date of this report, the
Remuneration Committee consisted of all the INEDs as follows:

Mr. Xiao Sui Ning (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Lau Yip Leung
Mr. Ho Yeung Nang

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the second model described in
paragraph B.1.2(c) under the CG Code (i.e. making recommendation to the
Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive director and
senior management member). The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are responsible for making recommendations to the Board on the
establishing of formal and transparent procedures for developing
remuneration policies and the remuneration packages of individual executive
directors and senior management. It takes into consideration on salaries paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held 2 meetings, in particular,
to review and recommend to the Board the remuneration policies and the
remuneration packages of the individual executive directors and senior
management of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the emoluments paid or payable to
members of senior management were within the following band:

Emolument band
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Number of individuals

i <& &5 = A

2018 2017
Nil-HK$ 1,000,000 Z 1,000,000 75 7T 3 3
HK$1,000,001-HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 78 7T —2,000,000 78 7T 1 1
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Nomination Committee

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the Nomination
Committee in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules. During
the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the date of this report, the
Nomination Committee consisted of the directors of the Company as follows:

Mr. Yu Pun Hoi (Chairman of the Nomination Committee)
Ms. Liu Rong

Mr. Lau Yip Leung*

Mr. Xiao Sui Ning*

Mr. Ho Yeung Nang*

* INED

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are responsible for reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, formulating nomination
policies, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become directors, assessing
the independence of INEDs, and making recommendations to the Board on
appointment of directors, and review the board diversity policy annually. The
Nomination Committee has the authority given by the Board to seek external
professional advice in the selection and recommendation for directorship,
when required, fulfilling the requirements for professional knowledge and
industry experience of any proposed candidates.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held 2 meetings, in particular, to
review and assessment of the independence of all INEDs of the Company; to
consider and recommend to the Board for approval the list of retiring directors
for re-election at the annual general meeting held on 30 May 2018 (the “2018
AGM"); to review the structure, size and composition of the Board; and to
appoint the chief executive officer.
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Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee has adopted the nomination policy (the “Policy”)
which sets out the key nomination criteria and nomination procedures for the
nomination of directors of the Company.

Key Nomination criteria

The Nomination Committee shall identify and nominate qualified individuals
for appointment as additional Directors or to fill Board vacancies as and when
they arise. The factors listed below would be used as reference by the
Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate.

Reputation for integrity
Accomplishment and experience in any particular industry
Professional and education background
Commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest
Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service
The Nomination Committee shall make recommendations to the Board on the

appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.
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Nomination Procedures
1.

Appointment of Directors

The Nomination Committee identifies individual(s) suitably qualified to
become Board members, having due regard to the Policy and the
diversity policy of the Board (“Board Diversity Policy”), and assesses the

Corporate Governance Report

TERERBE

EEEF

. EREE
REZEEEBIARENREEEXNES
TEEER  MEABEBERAKAE
FeREBEZ AT WIHEREBIFNIT

independence of the proposed independent non-executive Director(s)
as appropriate.

m

The Nomination Committee makes recommendation(s) to the
Board.

BEZBEIM(WEHE) -

REZBENEFSFLERRSE -

(2)  The Board considers the individual(s) recommended by the Q EEEEBERABRENEEENES
Nomination Committee, having due regard to the Policy and the TALEERE - ZERIBREE GRS
Board Diversity Policy. At e

(3)  The Board confirms the appointment of the individual(s) as B) E=FeHRZTABALETEZESES
Director(s) or recommends the individual(s) to stand for election EEEBAALTRRRERAG L2EE
at a general meeting. Individual(s) appointed by the Board to fill a o BREFLLMEFMHRETREE
casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board will be subject to re- EEMEREML 2 ATARBERARZ
election by shareholders of the Company at the next annual HANRIREmE 2 TERRBEFEX
general meeting after initial appointment in accordance with the AR RRIRREZEET -
Company's Bye-Laws.

Re-appointment of Directors 2. EHZAES

(1) The Nomination Committee considers each retiring Director, () REZESEEBERABERESRTEZK
having due regard to the Policy and the Board Diversity Policy and BETTCHEE ERFREERT
assesses the independence of each retiring independent non- A EREBVIINTES 2B
executive Director. Mo

(20 The Nomination Committee makes recommendation(s) to the Q REZEGRNESGELHEBRES -
Board.

(3)  The Board considers each retiring Director recommended by the B) EECEBRARENEEENES
Nomination Committee having due regard to the Policy and the TR K% - BERIEREZEGMERS
Board Diversity Policy. BRITES -

(4)  The Board recommends the retiring Directors to stand for re- 4 BFRCEZERIEEREBEARGZMA
election at the annual general meeting in accordance with the AIRIRR B FE ARG EEEET -
Company's Bye-Laws.

The Nomination Committee will undertake the review and revision of REZEGBNEZTERRT REIRS

the Policy, as and when needed. SR o
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy in relation to the nomination
and appointment of new directors, which sets out the selection of board
candidates shall be based on a range of diversity perspectives with reference
to the Company’s business model and specific needs, including but not limited
to gender, age, race, language, cultural background, educational background,
industry experience and professional experience. Board appointments will
continue to be made on a merit basis and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board. The Nomination Committee will give consideration to the board
diversity policy when identifying suitably qualified candidates to become
members of the Board, and will review the board diversity policy, so as to
develop and review measurable objectives for the implementing the board
diversity policy and to monitor the progress on achieving these objectives.

The directors’ biographical information as at the date of this report is set out on
page 32 to 36 under the heading “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management”. The Nomination Committee reviewed the board diversity policy
and achievement of objectives and effectiveness of the board diversity policy, and
recommended the Board that the existing Board was appropriately structured and
no change was required.

DIVIDEND POLICY

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining the dividend
amount, the Board of the Company takes into account, inter alia, the Group’s
earnings performance, financial position, general business conditions and
strategies, interests of the shareholders of the Company, the Group's expected
working capital requirements and future expansion plans, business cycle of the
Group's business and other external or internal factors that may have an impact
on the business, investment requirements and future prospects.

The proposed declaration of dividend is subject to the Board's decision and the
declaration of any final dividend for any year is subject to shareholders’
approval. The declaration of dividend is also subject to Bermuda law and the
Company's Bye-laws.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Executive Committee of the Company is responsible for performing the
duties on corporate governance functions set out below:

a. To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

b.  To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

C. To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

d.  To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors; and

e.  Toreview the Company’'s compliance with the code and disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report.
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NUMBER OF MEETINGS AND DIRECTORS’ BRERXBREFHFICH
ATTENDANCE
The attendance record of each director at the Board, Board committee  FRI|RFZEEHFEEHE2018F12A31HIEF
meetings and general meetings of the Company held for the year ended 31 ER{THAARESL SR EEZESER
December 2018 is set out in the table below: REARGHIER
Attendance/Number of Meetings
e/ RN
Executive Audit Remuneration  Nomination  Continuous
Board General  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee  Professional
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Development
8 B i R’e &
Name of Director ESfE R4 BRRAXE ZE88F ZE5883 ZE888% ZEgg3 BERR
Executive Directors BiTEE
Mr. Yu Pun Hoi TomgikE 11 1 3 ONARER  NATER 2 0
Ms Liu Rong ElL e i 1 3 NAMER  NATER 1 0
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mir. Lam Bing Kwan MRELE i 1T NATNER S NAMER NAMER NATER I
Mr. Lung King Cheong (Note 1) ESERE(WH) 8 1T NATER  NATER  NATER  NATER 0
Independent Non-executive BUkHTES
Directors
Mr. Lau Yip Leung AEREE 9 1 NATERA 2 2 2 0
Mr. Xiao Sui Ning BRELE 7 - NATER 2 2 2 0
Mr. Ho Yeung Nang CEE7 % 9 - NATER 2 2 2 0
Nurnber of meetings held ERBERERRE 13 1 3 2 2 2
during the year
Note: et -
m Mr. Lung King Cheong was re-designated as a non-executive director of the Company with (1) ERELELHAETRARAFRITES  A2018F471

effect from 1 April 2018.
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RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of annual and interim reports, inside information announcements
and other disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about its reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” on pages 106 to 112.

The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the Group in respect of audit
service and non-audit services for the year ended 31 December 2018
amounted to approximately HK$16,027,000 and HK$1,828,000, respectively.
The non-audit services include professional advice on transactions as well
broader business advisory and advisory service to assist the Company to
comply with laws and regulations. An analysis of the remuneration paid to the
external auditors of the Group is set out in note 8 to the financial statements.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Jay Shree Aggarwal, who was an employee of the Company and became
the Company Secretary with effect from 1 July 2018, has complied with the
relevant professional training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

| —E-N\FEER m Annual Report 2018
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

1.

Procedures for shareholders to convene an Special
General Meeting (“SGM”)

Pursuant to the Bye-law 62 of the Bye-Laws, the board may, whenever it
thinks fit, convene an SGM, and SGM shall also be convened on
requisition, as provided by the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the
“Companies Act”), or, in default, may be convened by the requisitionists.

Under Section 74 of the Companies Act, the directors of the Company,
notwithstanding anything in its Bye-Laws shall, on the requisition of
shareholders of the Company holding at the date of the deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of such of the paid-up capital of the
Company as at the date of the deposit carries the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company, forthwith proceed duly to convene
an SGM of the Company.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must be
signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered office of the
Company and may consist of several documents in like form each signed
by one or more requisitionists.

If the directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half of the
total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting,
but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of
three months from the said date.

A meeting convened under Section 74 of the Companies Act by the
requisitionists shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly as
possible, as that in which meetings are to be convened by directors.

B RAEF

1.
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Procedures for putting forward proposals at
shareholders’ meeting

Subject to Section 79 of the Companies Act, it shall be the duty of the
Company on the requisition in writing of such number of shareholders
as is hereinafter specified, at the expense of the requisitionists unless the
Company otherwise resolves:

—  to give to the shareholders of the Company entitled to receive
notice of the next AGM notice of any resolution which may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting;

—  to circulate to shareholders entitled to have notice of any general
meeting sent to them any statement of not more than one
thousand words with respect to the matter referred to in any
proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that
meeting.

The number of shareholders necessary for a requisition under Section 79
of the Companies Act shall be:

(@)  either any number of shareholders representing not less than one-
twentieth of the total voting rights of all the shareholders having
at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the meeting to
which the requisition relates; or

(b)  notless than one hundred shareholders.

Notice of any such intended resolution shall be given, and any such
statement shall be circulated, to shareholders of the Company entitled
to have notice of the meeting sent to them by serving a copy of the
resolution or statement on each such shareholder in any manner
permitted for service of notice of the meeting, and notice of any such
resolution shall be given to any other shareholders of the Company by
giving notice of the general effect of the resolution in any manner
permitted for giving him notice of meetings of the Company, provided
that the copy shall be served, or notice of the effect of the resolution
shall be given, as the case may be, in the same manner and, so far as
practicable, at the same time as notice of the meeting and, where it is
not practicable for it to be served or given at that time, it shall be served
or given as soon as practicable thereafter.
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3. Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to
the branch share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong. Shareholders
may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the Board in
writing at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at
12/F., The Octagon, No.6 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories,
Hong Kong, or to the Company by email at info@nanhaicorp.com.
Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the SGM/AGM.

The details of the rights of shareholders of the Company can be found in the
Company's website at www.nanhaicorp.com.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to safeguard shareholders’ interests and believes
that effective communication with shareholders and other stakeholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of the
business performance and strategies of the Group.

The Board adopted a Shareholders Communication Policy which aims to set
out the provisions with the objective of ensuring that the shareholders of the
Company and potential investors are provided with ready, equal and timely
access to balanced and understandable information about the Company, in
order to enable shareholders of the Company to exercise their rights in an
informed manner, and to allow shareholders of the Company and potential
investors to engage actively with the Company.

The Company endeavours to disclose all material information about the Group
to all interested parties on a timely basis. All such publications together with
additional information of the Group are timely updated on the Company's
website at www.nanhaicorp.com.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Pursuant to the special resolutions passed at the Company’s annual general
meeting held on 30 May 2018, the shareholders of the Company resolved to
amend the Bye-laws in order to (i) expressly provide that the Company may by
ordinary resolution make distribution out of the contributed surplus account of
the Company; (ii) allow the Board to resolve to make distribution out of the
contributed surplus account of the Company; (iii) remove the obsolete
requirements for (a) notice of declaration of an interim dividend be given by
advertisement in Hong Kong; and (b) newspaper advertisement for book
closures, given that relevant announcements will be published on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company in accordance with the Listing Rules;
and (iv) effect the corresponding changes to the Bye-laws as a result of (i) and
(i) above.

Save as disclosed above, there is no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the year.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the Group's risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness at
least annually through the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee assists the
Board in monitoring the risk exposures and the operating effectiveness of the
underlying risk management and internal control systems.

The Company assists the management in identifying, assessing, responding,
monitoring and reporting corresponding risks through risk management and
internal control structure. The system aims at managing instead of eliminating
the risks of unfulfilled business goals that reasonably but not absolutely
prevents the impact of material risks.

RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE

The Company has established a sound risk management and internal control
structure, adopting a top-down organizational structure from the Board to the
specific internal control units with well-defined duties. The Group'’s Internal
Audit Department assists the Board and/or the Audit Committee in the
ongoing review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems. The Board, through Audit committee, is at least
annually informed of significant risks that may impact on the Group's
performance.

The Board
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BRI -

Audit C itt
udit Committee Board.
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ensure the maintenance of appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems in order to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and assets of the Group;
formulate a management structure with specific terms of reference; and

determine the nature and extent of significant risk that the Company is willing to take in
achieving the strategic objectives, and formulate the Group's risk management strategies.
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oversee the risk management and internal control systems of the Group;

review and discuss with the management annually to ensure that the management has
performed its duty to maintain effective risk management and internal control systems; and
consider major findings on internal control matters and make recommendations to the
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CONTROL APPROACH AND TOOLS

FERRE

The Management
(including heads of
business units,

departments
and divisions)
EEfE (BFFEKEN -
BRI WBEE)

Internal Audit

Department

W ERE ST ER

design, implement and monitor the risk management and internal control systems properly
and ensure the systems are executed effectively;

monitor risks and take measures to mitigate risks in day-to-day operations;

give prompt responses to, and follow up the findings on, internal control matters raised by
internal or external auditors; and

provide confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems.

HERS BEMEBRRRERERAIEERG WRRZSZREUE BT

EE R BRERE pERE A R 2 E R

HINERSIMEDZ BN EE 1 2 B RN BPER I R B 2 B AR R H) 8 M BRAE [
MEFSERREREIE MANBEERS R -

identify the risks arising from external objectives of the Group’s operation in the audit
process and organize and conclude those risks to develop a systematic risk response
strategies based on professional judgement, thereby reducing risks and facilitating the
successful completion of goals of the Group’s operations;

analyze and independently assess the soundness, applicability, effectiveness and
enforceability of risk management and internal control system; and

make suggestions for the improving the design and implementation of risk management
and internal control system to promote standardization of work.
BBBMADERELT ZIAEEBRERNER  SEER B4 REZEH
BTiR Rt b ey E R B R EE  (E W EREER - REEEKE BIRIERFER
HEBRERERABEERSGZERE  BRAENBERERRTERETON BT
ERERPS

HEe B IR R BB R 2 RET MBI TERPRIR M CE 23 - DMRE B IR TR &ML

ERBERBK

During the year, the management analyzed the control environment and the

risks

identified, and implemented various controls measures.

approach taken: the management conducts interviews with relevant
staff members, reviews relevant documentation of the internal control
system and evaluates findings of any deficiencies in the design of the
Group’s internal control system, provides recommendations for
improvement and assesses the effectiveness of such recommendations,
where appropriate. The scope and findings of review on the risk
management and internal control are reported to and reviewed by the
Audit Committee annually.

management information systems and technologies: such systems
and technologies are employed to keep track of the inputs and outputs
of the Group's operations, such as financial data system and human
resources. They are also employed to track the audit process in the
authorization system, in which permissions and responsibility of
authorisation are clearly identified and adequate records can be
maintained in the system.
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ii.  reports and variance analysis: such reports and analysis of each
segment are conducted on a regular basis such that the performance of
each segment can be easily accessible.

iv.  audit and supervision: during the year, the Group conducts overall
deployment and management of risk management and internal control
according to the “Nan Hai Corporation Limited Internal Audit System (7
BERAER QA E NI EE HE)". According to the internal audit
system, the internal auditors conducts post-event auditing and
verification of the Group’s main business, finance, engineering,
information technology and other fields. In the meantime, thorough
inspection for defects in the internal system of the subsidiaries of the
Group is conducted to ensure the compliance, rationality and risk
controllability in the major business processes of the Company. By
analyzing various internal control points relating to the business
processes, we have a better picture of the current conditions of internal
control, and unearthed and rectify defects and weaknesses of the
internal control system in order to prevent the potential risks of
operation management, and improve corporate governance and cost-
effectiveness.

RISK MANAGEMENT

As an important element of quality corporate governance, the overall risk
management process is overseen by the Board through the Audit Committee.
Rather than a separate and standalone process, risk management is integrated
into the business and decision-making processes, including strategy
formulation, business planning, capital allocation, investment decisions,
internal control and day-to-day operations.

The management is entrusted with duties to identify, analyze, evaluate,
respond, monitor and communicate risks associated with any activity, function
or process within its terms of reference. It endeavours to evaluate the level of
risk and compare it against the predetermined levels of risk acceptable to the
Company. For risk control and monitoring, it involves making decisions
regarding acceptable risks and the ways to address unacceptable risks. The
management will develop contingency plans for possible loss scenarios.
Incidents and other situations incurring actual or potential loss will be
investigated and properly documented as part of the effort to manage risks.
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RISK EXPOSURES

The following illustrates the major risks of the Group. Since the last annual
review, there was no significant change in the nature and extent of risks during
the year.

Risk of China’s policies on real estate — the property development business of
the Company is operated in China. In 2018, adhering to the principle of “no
speculation of residential properties”, the PRC government implemented local
responsibility system, continued to make differentiated adjustments and
established a solid and long term mechanism to promote a stable and healthy
development of the real estate market. Compared to the previous year, the
implementation of policies was relatively stable and is not expected to induce
excessive volatility in the market. The management of the Company will
monitor closely the development of the relevant policies and industry
development trend to mitigate the risk.

Quality risk on property projects — quality of property projects not only affects
the profitability of property developers, but also exerts a considerable impact
on their corporate image and culture, and in turn their core competitiveness.
The Company established a sound project control mechanism in relation to
organizational structure, function division, recruitment and project
management by clearly defining job flows, standards and reward and
punishment system to enhance the implementation of other systems. Hence,
the quality of the projects is guaranteed and improved.

Risks associated with single revenue structure of cinemas — subject to the nature
of industry, box office receipts represent a large part of revenue structure of
cinema business, which means that the revenue of cinemas relies highly on the
films. If the performance of the overall movie market or the quality of movie
content is poor, it will aggravate the Company’s financial performance. To
mitigate such risk, cinema business adopts a strategy to manage the film
sources in a proactive and flexible manner, and also put more efforts into the
introduction of other cultural and entertainment elements into cinemas to
mitigate the risks associated with single revenue source.

Technical risks — the enterprise cloud services business is a technology-
intensive company and its profitability is directly affected by the uncertainty in
the technology landscape due to the rapid development in internet industry
and the more frequent technology updates. If the Group cannot identify its
technical defects in a timely manner in the future or the technicians cannot
solve technical problems under the existing research and development
conditions, the Group will be exposed to declining profitability and
competitiveness, which in return will adversely affect the Company’s operation.
In view of the above risks, the Group will put more efforts in research and
development, recruit high-calibre personnel, optimize the composition of our
research staff, and develop towards technological diversification in respect of
technology research and development, so as to reduce technical risks and
provide technical support for product innovation and business growth of the
Group.
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Exchange risk — the Group is exposed to fluctuation in exchange rates as the
Group's revenue is denominated in Renminbi while Hong Kong dollars are the
reporting currency of the Group. The management will closely monitor the
exchange exposure in order to keep the net exposure at an acceptable level
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arises.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Internal Audit Department is assigned with the task to perform regular
reviews on the Group's internal control systems in respect of operational,
financial and compliance aspects and will report the audit review findings or
irregularities, if any, to the management and advise on the implementation of
steps and actions required to enhance the Group's internal controls. The result
of internal audit reviews and agreed action plans are reported to the Audit
Committee and the Board.

Apart from reviewing the systems, the Audit Committee has also reviewed and
is satisfied with the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experiences of
staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their
training programs and budget. The Board acknowledges that the management
has been progressively implementing an adequate internal control system to
ensure the effective functioning of the Group's operational, financial and
compliance areas, including the following key measures, policies and
procedures:

financial reporting management:

proper controls are in place to ensure the maintenance of a
complete, accurate and timely record of accounting and
management information;

regular reports on revenue and ageing analysis of receivables and
internal financial reports giving a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group's financial performance are prepared for
the management;

quarterly updates on internal financial statements giving a
balanced and understandable assessment of the Group's
performance, financial position and prospects in sufficient details
are provided to all Directors; and

annual audit is carried out by external auditor to ensure that the
consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, the Group's accounting
policies and the applicable laws and regulations.
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EERRE

the mechanism and procedures on disclosure of inside
information to ensure, with the assistance of an internal work team (if
required), that any material information which comes to the knowledge
of any one or more officers should be promptly identified, assessed and
forwarded to the Board (if appropriate);

the policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements which shall be reviewed and monitored
regularly by the Audit Committee designated by the Board;

the Audit Committee designated by the Board to monitor, control and
regularly review continuing connected transactions of the Company
and ensure proper compliance with all relevant laws and regulations, the
Listing Rules and the disclosure requirements; and

a whistle-blowing policy for employees of the Group and those who
deal with the Group (e.g. customers and suppliers) to raise concerns, in
confidence, about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control or other matters. The Group encourages reporting with real
names and implements award policy if the reported suspicion is proved
to be the case. Such arrangement will be reviewed by the Audit
Committee to ensure that proper arrangement is in place for fair and
independent investigation into the matters.

The Board and the Audit Committee have reviewed the Group’s systems for
the year ended 31 December 2018 and are not aware of any significant issues
that would have an adverse impact on the effectiveness and adequacy of the
systems, accordingly consider the systems effective and adequate.

REHEHBRHIRER  UWEANIE
MFR)BHT - EREMN—BHZH
SRANESENERNERERET MEH
A M RER (HER) EEE

FHETEEREERAEZHRERESR
HEFERRCBERZ B EHRN RE

AR .
(=

HEFSZRIERZETER Bl
EHRIARA 2 RERERS @ BERZ
REST—YRBERRER - LRI
RBEBHRE &

RUBBBRAEAEERE R HEMEL
SEBERE(WEP RHEER) BT R
RENBRATRMBER - AFPEENE
EETNAIRENETRIRHET - 2B
BELRE BETEERREK - 2FTH
HhEZZ B SR BRERE T
BRAEEETAT B ZRE -

HE208FNANHIEFRE  EFFREZE
BCEEMALEZ ZG IR0 LA A 58
HALBEZ ZERGENERE R TR IEEETF

=477
=

MBAME  BHR/ZFRREREITR °

Nan Hai Corporation Limited m ABEZERERAR {



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

This Report is prepared in accordance with the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide” set out in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules of the
Stock Exchange. Following the disclosure of information regarding
Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") for the first time in 2016, the
Group issued its ESG report for the third consecutive year, covering the policies,
measures and performance regarding environmental, social and governance
issues of the Group*. During the year, the Group has complied with the
“comply or explain” provisions set out in the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide”.

1. ESG MANAGEMENT

The Group places great emphasis on ESG management. Through
identifying the Group's environmental, social and economic factors in a
systematic manner, the Group establishes an effective management
system and control procedures to achieve sustainable development of
the Group and its stakeholders. In 2018, by continuous improving its
communication methods with stakeholders, and analyzing the
materiality of its ESG issues as required by the Stock Exchange, the Group
strives to enhance the transparency of its operation and the satisfaction
of stakeholders, such as the government, investors, customers,
employees and partners.

The statistic scale of indicators in this report does not include Crabtree & Evelyn, except the
total number of employees, the proportion of female employees, and the total workforce by
gender, age group and geographical region.

R 8 RER/RE

A SRR R P AR I 8% — PRk 3R
5 HERERHERES MR - #H2016FEX
RERE  HEREREQERR  FEBES
FZFHEMESCHE  BEAKBERRE £
EREBTENEE  FEERERER - FA - K
SEEETIRE HEREAWMERS ] AH
B [TEBSTRLERIE ] 53

1. ESGEH

AEBSEERESGEETIE BBRA
BREETERE HEREESHTENY
BBE BUARNEEERREERR
NEIRAEE LT AE AR EER -
2018%F - AEERBETEHNZEEA®
EBEA R WAREE R AT E JOEITESG #
BEAMHTE  BAOREABELERE -
RERFE - - &EE TP - BIMAEK
HEMNEEEFOREE -

* ARERTHERES A TS THEURERE
A FERAERNRBREDNESAE  HMIERAE
BT ERAR -

| —E-N\FEER m Annual Report 2018 %



w S

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - #HBRERBRE

1.1 ESG ITE/h4

AEEEEEE L BEPRKEREN
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Communication level Execution level
BEE HiTE

1.1 ESG working group

The Group always insists on strengthening the management of
the environmental, social and governance matters in the course of
its development and operation, and establishes various
environmental, social and governance related systems and an ESG
working group to effectively manage the organization and
planning, indicator management and performance evaluation of
the Group's ESG matters.

Decision-making level

REE

« Establish at the board of directors of
the Group

+ To be responsible for decision-
making and leading the Group’s ESG
planning and annual work reporting

« To deploy the Group’s ESG works

+ To delegate ESG duties to various
functions and subsidiaries of the
Group
é“%%l%%‘%

ORRWEEEBESGHEIRFEL
eSS

- BERESEEESGIE
AiEEEBAEHPIMEHBAR
ESGT{ERE

- Establish at the securities

department of the Group

- To execute and report the ESG works
« To form an ESG working group

consisted of personnel from various
functions and subsidiaries

- To manage ESG related policies and

systems

- To prepare the Group's ESG annual

report

« To continuously strengthen the

communication with stakeholders

- To manage other matters relating to

the Group’s ESG
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« Establish at all departments and
subsidiaries of the Group

« To define and fulfill the respective
ESG work responsibilities

« To comply with various ESG related
systems

« To assist in the completion of ESG
information collection, report
disclosure and etc.

- To execute other matters required

relating to the Group’s ESG works
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1.2 Communication with stakeholders

1.2 FIFEHERELTBE
BRED TEMNSEEFEAEET

In order to fully understand the needs and expectations of

stakeholders regarding the Group's economic, environmental and W IRIE  HenEBERRENEkE
social sustainable development, the Group has identified its key HASE  AREEHRHEENFSAER
stakeholders, established various communication methods to 7 Igiyﬁ,ﬁ;@gﬁ;L EEE R
listen to feedbacks from stakeholders, and continued to improve B NESEEF MR 2 M
the stakeholder engagement mechanism so as to strengthen the &) negasE fux/ﬁf 0

communication and interaction with stakeholders.
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Stakeholders Requirements and expectations

MEAERET FRERE
Government — to comply with the laws and regulations
BUTF — BFRRER

— to pay taxes in accordance with the laws
— AR

— support for economic development

— XFEBEER

Investors — returns and growth

BEE — B R BRI R

— to enhance profitability

— RABFE

— stable operation

—RfEre

— information disclosure

— ERRE

Customers — provision of high-quality products and services
BE — Rtm R E N ERMRS

— to meet various needs of customers
—MREFZITHER

— to create value for customers

— REPEEERE

Employees — to protect employees' interests
BT — KRB TR
— established career path
—EEERBE
— to protect occupational health
— RIS 2R
— work-life balance
— FEITIEEE
Partners — open, fair and equal procurement
afERH — R - AF - RIEKE
— fulfillment of contracts
—FFA4
— sharing of experience
—RBmo=E

Environment — energy conservation and emission reduction
R — BRI

— tackling climate change

— EHRIEE L

— conservation of ecology

— IR

Society and general public
HEMAR — 2HEMRER

— contribution to public welfare
— X RmEHE

— environmental protection

— REEE

— participation in community development
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Methods of communication and responses

BENEES X

— compliance management

—AREE

— proactive tax payment

— XA

— to implement national policies

L ENE

— timely information disclosure on operation

— ERRBLEER

— general meetings

—BRERE

— continuous growth

— R R

— to guarantee shareholders' return

— REBRR O

— innovative products

— BIFTEm

— to guarantee quality of products

—RIEERES

— provision of diversified services

— R Z TR

— customer satisfaction survey

—EPmEEAE

— remuneration payment in full and on time

— RRERERITE

— to pay social insurances

— Bt iR

— establishment of occupational health
and safety management system

— BUREERLZE2ERER

— career development

—BEEREE

— staff training

— BT

— performance of contracts in accordance
with the laws

— KERITAR

— open tender

— RFHEER

— to commence cooperation on projects

—FARERAE

— management of emission

— BERHRY

— enhancement of efficiency of resources and
energy utilization

— RAB IR LR AR

— participation in environment protection and
public welfare activities

— 2HRRNEH®

— public welfare and charities

— DEmBEEE

— volunteer services

— EREE R

— health and culture

—fEx
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1.3 Materiality analysis

5D ¢ e e 2| R o 2

To further determine the key areas of corporate environmental,
social and governance practices and information disclosure and to
enhance the relevance and responsiveness of the report, the
Group identified ESG issues and performed materiality analysis
according to the requirements of the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide” of the Stock Exchange so as to
ensure that the information disclosed in this report fully covered
the key issues of concern to the development of the Group as well
as the stakeholders.

1.3

BEAMREHE
RE—SREELERY  HERER
ERREEHENERAN  3BAR

2 B ST B O] I - RS B IR B
RACERE - tagk ‘*i&ij‘%%w
TR BRIESGERBIW EITE R MEH

o ERARERE E’JE,UEEEE
ARER BB R AN a5 AE R T R X E R

2
FERE ©

Advice from management of the Group
SEERERS
Analysis and advice from internal and external experts
WINBER D=

Multimedia information analysis
SIRBERDN
Case studies conducted by domestic and foreign
industry peers

DEINBESE 2R e
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide” of the Stock Exchange

BERPTCORE - (g REVAMEIES)D
Guidelines on standards of social responsibilities

SRIEFEEER

Requirements under the “Environmental, Social

and Governance Reporting Guide” of
the Stock Exchange

BRACRE e RERAMEHES)EX

Contribution to sustainable development

HAHERRNOER

General concerns of stakeholders
MeEiEREH TR

To be in line with the strategic
development of the Group

A SEERERR

Customer / consumer services

BF/ HBERE

Customer information and privacy protection

EFEERELRE
Protection of employee’s interest + Health of staff
BT RE BIfE
Care for staff
BIRE

Utilization of resources
HREA

Management of suppliers

HEEER
Building a harmonious community Managemem of emissions
HENEE HRNE
Innovation
= i
Community activities
DEEH

Protection of intellectual property
REMEER

>< Employee training and development
BIEIRRE

Stable operation

BieaRme

Utilization of land resources

The importance to the sustainable development of Nan Hai

HEBTHERRNERY

Nan Hai Corporation Limited m ABEZERERAR

¢ Stableoperation
BpiREs

m Utilization of resources
HERER

A Management of emissions
BEER

w Employee training and development
BITHEIEER

 Community activities
DEEE

@ Management of suppliers
HERmEE

4 Protection of employee’s interest
BT RE

- Innovation

Customer / consumer services

BF/ HBERY
Customer information and privacy protection
EFERRELRE
@ Utilization of land resources
T ERER
A Health of staff
BTRE
Care for staff
BTHE
Protection of intellectual property

Building a harmonious community
BENETE
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STABLE OPERATION

The Group principally engages in culture and media services, property
development and enterprise cloud services, and develops news media
business and innovative business steadily. The Group adheres to
sustainable operation in compliance with laws and regulations,
continuously improves its internal control and supervision and
management systems, resolutely eliminates corruption, adopts effective
measures to protect intellectual property, and improves customer
service quality and supplier management.

The Group’s awards in 2018:

Dadi Cinema won the “Mall China New Value Award for Cross-
industry Integration of Commercial Brands” from Mall China
Golden Mall Development Committee

CE Dongli won the “2017-2018 First Place in Market Share in the
Enterprise Website Service Market in China” from ccidnet.com

CE Dongli won the “Best IT Service SaaS Provider” from China SaaS
Application Conference

CE Dongli won the “2018 China Network Information Security Best
Product Award” from China Network Information Security Summit

CE Dongli won the “Best Presentation Award” from the 21st China
Beijing International High-Tech Expo

CE Dongli won the “Most Influential Network Marketing Service
Provider” from the 4th Global Cross-border E-commerce
Conference

In 2018, HKO1 won 34 news awards, including the “Awards for
Editorial Excellence” from The Society of Publishers in Asia and
Telly Awards in the USA and etc.

2.
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2.1

2.2

- HERERRE

Integrity and compliance in operation

The Group abides by the Company Law of the People’s Republic
of China (2 AR B2 R)E), the Listing Rules of the Stock
Exchange and the local laws and regulations in which the Group
operates, and requires all staff to strictly comply with relevant laws
and regulations and achieve integrity and compliance in
operation. The Group established a comprehensive internal
control and management system and an internal audit system to
define the responsibilities from the board of directors to specific
internal control positions, developed an internal control and
supervision mechanism from corporate level to various business
process levels with a view to safeguard the lawful rights and
interests of the Group and all shareholders, ensure compliance
with laws and regulations when conducting operating activities,
minimize the operational and management risks and effectively
achieve the goals of the group companies.

The Group complies with the Law of the People’s Republic of China
Against Unfair Competition (FEEA R EMBIRTIEE B F%) to
eliminate corruption such as bribery, extortion and money laundering.
All subsidiaries strictly prohibit all kinds of corruption in its Staff
Manual (& TFf) and set up a complaint and whistle-blowing
mechanism. In addition to regulating its employees’ behavior, each
subsidiary regularly organizes internal review, self-examination and
self-correction works, conducts honesty and integrity education and
training, and continuously enhances employees’ awareness of anti-
corruption to resist any form of corruptions such as commercial
bribery and unfair competition.

In 2018, the Group had no corruption lawsuit.

Protection of intellectual property

The Group continuously strengthens the protection of intellectual
property and respects others’ intellectual property including
patents, copyrights and trademarks. The Group strictly abides by
the Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China (R 2E A R £ A1
Bl E F|;X) and standardizes the management of intellectual
property protection, so as to prevent the loss, improper use,
unauthorized disclosure and misappropriation of intellectual
property in an effective manner.

As for culture and media services segment, all subsidiaries
clearly delegate the intellectual property protection and
coordination works to functions and departments in charge
and standardize the management of patents. Dadi Cinema
developed the Regulations on the Management of Non-
litigation Affairs of the Legal Department under Dadi
Cinema (Kb 2 BT /AR BFFE R AR FTEE IR E), which
regulated the registration of trademarks, domain names and
general-purpose websites and patent applications.

Nan Hai Corporation Limited E ABEZERERAR
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As for property development segment, Nan Hai
Development included specific terms in its contracts to
clarify the ownership of intellectual property.

As for enterprise cloud services segment, CE Dongli
formulated the Intellectual Property Management System
(FIEREE IR HE), which strictly requlated the registration
of patents, copyrights, trademarks and domain names, and
protected its intellectual property through various measures
including monitoring, complaints and suggestions and
litigations. CE Dongli also had a reward system in place to
provide rewards to the research and development (R&D)
team for active innovation and obtaining patents, which
also became an important basis for promotion.

In 2018, the Group applied for 20 patents and was granted 11
patents.

Enhancement of customer services 2.3

By continuously implementing its business diversification strategy,
each business segment is committed to improve service quality
based on the characteristics of its own customers. Meanwhile,
each business segment also actively provides various customized
services, improves the after-sales service system; takes effective
measures to protect customer information and privacy, and
prevents illegal use, disclosure and abuse of information. In 2018,
the number of complaints from the Group’s customers was 3,414.
The percentage of customer complaints addressed was 98% and
the customer service satisfaction was 98%.

As for culture and media services segment, the Group's
cinemas provided membership services for its consumers,
and set up customer service hotlines to collect feedbacks
from customers and address their complaints. In addition, in
2018, the Group's cinemas gradually replaced its ordinary
projectors with laser projectors to improve the overall
quality of the projected image and significantly enhance
the consumer’s viewing experience.

As for property development segment, the subsidiaries
engaging in property development established a standard
property service system, provided 24-hour housekeeping
services for its customers, formulated the Property
Housekeeping Service Standard (B EE R RIGIZAE)
and achieved a percentage of 100% for customer
complaints addressed. It also put great emphasis on
protecting customer privacy and strictly controlled the
management and use of customers’ information.

—E-)\FEFR m Annual Report 2018
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As for enterprise cloud services segment, CE Dongli
launched an online membership system to improve its
service efficiency. In order to assist its customers in adapting
to the new online system, CE Dongli set up a housekeeping
department and assigned one-to-one exclusive
housekeeper for each customer.

As for news media business segment, in 2018, HKO1, as an
internet new media enterprise, added various functions to
provide practical information such as weather,
transportation and food delivery platform, which offers
convenience for its users daily life. In addition, HKO1
assigned designated personnel to review all comments
updated on its platform and filter illegal information and
spams to provide a healthy network environment.

2.4 Strengthening supply chain management

The Group strictly complies with the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Bid Invitation and Bidding (#F # A R AN
B HRIZIEAZE), Implementing Regulations on the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Bid Invitation and Bidding (F £ A
REFIBERIZFAZE JE150) and the local laws and regulations
in which the Group operates, and continues to strengthen supply
chain management. Each business segment strictly manages its
own suppliers and communicates with them on a regular basis,
monitors their product and service quality, as well as identify,
monitor and manage risks and opportunities in the supply chain.

As for culture and media services segment, our suppliers
include projector, server, screen and food and beverage
providers. The Group’s cinemas formulated relevant
procurement systems, such as the Tendering and
Procurement Management System (FR1ZEREEE I 4II[E),
which regulated the procedures of tendering and
procurement, the departments in charge, supplier
qualification review and procurement management to
ensure open, fair and equal tendering and procurement.
Oristar developed the Supplier Management Handbook (f
JfE 7 B 32 1), which requlated the procedures of supplier
management, established a list of qualified suppliers and
evaluated its suppliers on a regular basis to reduce the risks
in the supply chain.

Nan Hai Corporation Limited ABEZERERAR
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As for property development segment, our suppliers include
construction engineering, equipment installation and
decoration design service providers. Nan Hai Development
formulated its own supplier management policies and
supplier assessment procedures to ensure product and
service quality. It also required its suppliers to sign honesty
and integrity agreements to ensure compliance with laws
and regulations and to eliminate any form of corruptions
during the procurement process.

As for enterprise cloud services segment, our suppliers
include server, network equipment and spare part as well as
computer providers. CE Dongli developed the Procurement
Management System ((REEE I HI/E) based on the
principle of centralized management and planning, which
clearly defined the responsibilities of each relevant
department, stipulated the form, method and scope of
procurement, clarified the development and evaluation
procedures of suppliers, and established a list of qualified
suppliers to ensure the procurement quality as well as
improve procurement efficiency.
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NURTURING TALENTS 3.

Regarding its employees as the major driving forces for sustainable
development of the Company, the Group upholds the people-oriented
principle, protects the lawful rights and interests of employees, focuses
on the development of employees by broadening their career
development and building a talent pool, and cares about employees’
lives by creating a good working environment, promoting work-life
balance and fostering employee motivation.

3.1 Protecting the lawful rights and interests of
employees

The Group strictly complies with the national laws and regulations,
such as the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China (R A
R MBI & &)%) and Labour Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China (P ARXMBIL B4 [F)%), and signs
labour contracts with all employees to avoid child and forced
labour. The Group formulated and executed the Human Resources
Planning and Recruitment Management Regulations (A J1& RHR
LB EEE IR AR E) with an aim to prevent any form of
discrimination against any employee on their gender, ethnicity,
religion and age during recruitment, compensation, training and
promotion. As of 31 December 2018, the Group had 21,745
employees, of which female employees accounted for 51.33%.

Each subsidiary of the Group formulated its Staff Manual (8 TF
fit), Performance Management System (&% E 1), Human
Resources System (A ZEl/E) and Evaluation Management
System (EHEEH/E) based on their own business
characteristics, which stipulated the requirements on employee
management, compensation, rest periods and welfare,
performance and promotion, incentive schemes, dismissal,
working hours and diversity to protect employees’ rights and
interests and create an equal and harmonious working
environment. Furthermore, the Group had a well-established
compliant and communication channel for its employees and
established a mailbox to collect and respond to feedbacks and
suggestions from its employees in a timely manner.

Nan Hai Corporation Limited m ABEZERERAR
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Number of employees by gender

(Unit: person)

EMRIBITNET AR

(B A)

11,161 - %

B Male employees
E =

W Female employees
ZET

Number of employees by age
(Unit: person)
BEREINETAH
(BB @ A)

..~. 2,568
4‘r;q5ﬂ
Y 17650

M Below 35 yearsold M 35-45 years old
35BRAT 35-455%

m 45 years old or above

455504 F

.~ 10584

Number of employees by geographical region
(Unit: person)

BiER I NE T AR
(B A)

.~ 2,180

.~ 19,565

B Overseas, Hong Kong, Macau and
Taiwan employees

BINERAEE T
M Mainland China employees
REIAEET
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3.2 Attracting talents

The Group attaches great importance to attracting talents and is
committed to recruiting employees in a lawful and efficient
manner. Adhering to the principles of openness, equality and anti-
discrimination, the Group requires employing new employees
who are above the minimum legal working age. At the same time,
the Group adopt diversified recruitment methods including
recruitment of management trainees, internal referral, campus
recruitment and general recruitment to attract professionals and
talents in various fields.

ce Report
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Case: Recruitment of management trainees under the “Dolphin Trainees Program” (& & 51 &)

=6 : [BHEtE | EXERE

In 2018, the Group launched the “Dolphin Trainees Program” to recruit
management trainees, aiming to select self-motivated talents with
innovative thinking and development and leadership potentials among
fresh graduates in accordance with its talent selection standards and strict
recruitment process, and nurture them as core members for all business
segments of the Company. By organizing different activities such as
learning through educational games, meetings with senior management
and sharing from professionals, the “Dolphin Trainees Program” managed
to find the strengths of candidates in a relaxing and entertaining
atmosphere, identify suitable positions for them and recruit high caliber
talents. The “Dolphin Trainees Program” also provided customized training
programs for management trainees, thereby allowing the management
trainees to adjust their career path any time based on their own
professional development. By participating in the job rotation programs
throughout the Group, the management trainees not only had the chances
to acquire knowledge and skills in their original departments, but also get
familiar with the duties of each segment of the Group and have
opportunities to join overseas training programs.

In 2018, the Group held 12 presentations and interviews in various
universities and colleges in Beijing, Xi'an, Wuhan, Shanghai, Chengdu and
Shenzhen, which successfully attracted a number of students and received
favorable comments.

=1 e p

Dolphin Trainees Program
@NAN HAI
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3.3 Promoting employees’ career development

Each subsidiary of the Group emphasizes on employees’ career
development and provides diversified career development
platform. By developing the Human Resources Planning and
Recruitment Management Regulations (A 71 & R iR S LR B IEE
HE8 ), Human Resources Management System (A &R E I
#ll/) and General Promotion and Approval Reference Documents
(FFRABBHFEHILZE ), the Group established an
advanced and rational human resources management system and
provided clear promotion paths for its employees. The Group
regularly evaluate and promote our employees based on their
positions, performance appraisal results and recommendations
from their supervisors.

With a well-established training system in place, each subsidiary of
the Group developed and implemented the Management System
on Trainings (3 FIEIEHIE) to standardize the process of
training and management. Covering all aspects and emphasizing
on key areas, such system provided comprehensive or professional
trainings for employees of different positions and levels to achieve
self-development.

By organizing induction trainings for new employees and trainings
for executives and the management, the Group's headquarters
provided specific training programs for employees of different
levels, invited industry professionals to share up-to-date
knowledge and helped employees to achieve personal growth.
Meanwhile, the subsidiaries under each business segment
launched training programs based on their own business
characteristics. For instance, as for enterprise cloud services
segment, CE Dongli provided trainings for its sales team, back
office and headquarters construction team to strengthen their
business capabilities. CE Dongli also provided management
training programs for middle-level staff in the R&D team and
management skill training programs for business managers to
strengthen their business capabilities and lay a solid foundation
for their future development.
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Case: Nan Hai organized industry professionals sharihg_ lectures

RB - FEERA R AT 3 AR

In 2018, the Group organized a series of sharing lectures from professionals
by inviting internal and external industry elites to share the industry
knowledge and up-to-date developments so as to promote information
exchange within and outside the Group and expand the strategic horizons
of its employees. Li Huailiang, the head of Humanities and Social Sciences
Department (A X422 EEBEK) and Dean of the School of Political
Science and Law (BUEZFEPr &) of the Communication University of
China, shared his views on the development trends in international film
market. Yu Pun Hoi, the chairman of Nan Hai, gave a talk on the
“Relationships between Different Times and Enterprises” (X 2% f EL {3
HRRIR).

Case: Nan Hai organized Mentorship Program ({kﬁi?l"’_;'l)
R0 : FRAS KR ED

To help new employees quickly adapt to the working environment, the
Group’s headquarters launched a Mentorship Program by assigning
suitable experienced employees to act as the mentors of new employees
at induction based on their job duties. The Mentorship Program effectively
assisted new employees to quickly adapt to the Company’s atmosphere
and get familiar with their jobs, thereby creating a warm and respectful
working environment for sharing and growing together.
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3.4 Maintaining employees’ health

3.5

The Group places great emphasis on employees’ occupational
health and safety and complies with the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Work Safety (%2 &4 EE)%) and the Law of
the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of
Occupational Diseases (i3 mP7787%). In addition to paying
social insurances in a timely manner, the Group offers
supplemental medical insurance and arranges health checkups for
its employees every year. As for culture and media services
segment, the cinemas under each subsidiary provided its staff
with insurance and each department established its own safety
management system and required its staff to strictly abide by the
staff operation manual. Furthermore, each cinema holds a
scheduled firefighting conference every month and organizes fire
drills and safety tests every year to avoid any incident such as fire
accident. As for property development segment, each subsidiary
formulated and adhered to its Staff Manual, which stipulated that
all employees must observe the labour disciplines during their
work, implement safety production systems and follow operation
regulations, obey the orders from management, properly wear
and use personal protective equipment, and promptly stop any
non-compliance event, so as to achieve safe operation and
production.

The Group values the rights and health of female employees by
providing maternity leaves and breastfeeding leaves and
distributing gifts and cash to female employees on Women's Day
to show concern and care for them.

In 2018, there were no work-related fatalities and the number of
lost days due to work injury was 381 days.

Caring about employees’ life

The Group pays attention to the physical and mental health of
employees and promotes work-life balance. The Group also
organizes various cultural and recreational activities to encourage
healthy work-life balance for employees.

The Group's headquarters organized spring trips, outreach
trainings, annual dinners and special festive events on a
regular basis.

As for culture and media services segment, the Group's
cinemas established a badminton team and provided sports
ground for employees. Each cinema also conducted
outreach trainings to encourage employees to do exercises
and build a strong team spirit.

34 FTEETIRE
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As for property development segment, each subsidiary held . EREMEREEE  SHEA
athletic games to encourage employees to do exercises and AIEGRRBINVES S - B
enhance team cohesion. 8T N8R - JEBEIFRrth B

ReEBEBRED -

As for enterprise cloud services segment, CE Dongli . ELEERBEE - R8N
organized various festive events, such as the Mother's Day HEZ R EES - flnE
Essay Competition (BHRENH REXEH), 1024 ME AR OEE - [102472
Programmer's Day (1024325 B £fi), to enrich employees’ FEE]E BF8T4E
life and create a good working atmosphere. EHER T TERE -

Flower arrangement course for Chung Yeung Festival held
at the Group’s headquarters

SEAREGHRIEHBRED

Nan Hai Corporation Limited m ABEZERERAR {
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Case: Nan Hai Development held the 5th Nan Hai Cup Group Badminton Game (Free and Fun Game)

RO BERRENFLEFEF | BEPERRE(GRB | EHE

In December 2018, Nan Hai Development under the Group’s property 20184 12 A » N B E T 5 b A= B 9 F /8 2 R 22 3
development segment held the 5th Nan Hai Cup Group Badminton Game 7 # A& /B | BN EXRELE ahEE g
(Free and Fun Game). The employees of the property development FEHERIESTAREIEERSHE S ELX BB A
segment actively participated in such event. Promoting the spirit of ~ HZHEAER  TEBEGKGIE - BESHEEMTK
competition and teamwork, each participating team shows their &5 R L BHEBSNEERE -

enthusiasm and youthfulness with their wisdom and sweat.

Free and Fun Games

HRBESS

| —E-N\FEER ﬂ Annual Report 2018 %
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4. PRACTICING ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Adhering to the concept of sustainable business development, the
Group pays attention to green development, environmental protection
and energy conservation practices, and actively seeks for environmental
protection and energy conservation measures for its construction
projects. While promoting green development in the industry, the Group
also strictly abides by the relevant environmental laws and regulations,

4, BITEREF
AEBBRTURENCLERES I8
BEME BEGENER BERRE
SUEEMBRHEINE  ERDTEEE
BROAE - RRETREEREEAE -
(B EEL  BITHERE ARES
BEY  BITREEAL -

advocates green operations, focuses on energy conservation and
emissions reduction, carries out waste disposal in compliance with laws

and regulations and fulfills its environmental responsibilities.

4.1 Actively promoting the development of green
buildings

As one of the core business segments of the Group, the
subsidiaries engaging in property development continued to
explore the green building sector, design and develop green
building products, and share its green building experiences with
industry peers, so as to create a harmonious living environment

for both people and nature.

41 BEHBHZECERERERE
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Case: Nan Hai Development designed and developed “Free Man Garden” eco-community project

RO BERRRAMARABALE] TERKBLERIE

il —ie

In 2018, Nan Hai Development completed the construction of “Free Man
Garden” with an aim to achieve low-carbon greening as well as energy
conservation and environmental protection. The greatest features of the
project include following the biological organization in nature, achieving
organic integration of space through multi-level network design,
maximizing the rational use of space, meeting the needs of occupants in
terms of living, work, leisure and learning, and reducing the use of
resources. The project has various advantages in terms of design,
construction technology, irrigation technology, safety and sustainability. By
adopting water-saving passive irrigation technology, coupled with drip
irrigation and rainwater harvesting, the project conserves water sources
through green plants and completes the ecological cycle of water, thereby
saving 60% of water as compared to the traditional drip irrigation method.
The buildings are all equipped with wall insulation materials and provide
environmentally-friendly residential flats. As one of the major features, the
vertical greening facade of the buildings not only beautifies the
environment, but also contributes to noise reduction, dust removal, energy
saving and cooling, thus creating a livable, beautiful and comfortable living
environment for the residents.

In 2018, the stereoscopic greening project of “Free Man Garden” was
awarded the “Stereoscopic Greening Demonstration Project in China and
Singapore” (Ff B - T N4 37 B2 4% (b & {E S € I8 B ) by China Green
Building Council, Singapore Green Building Council and Singapore Building
& Construction Authority at the Stereoscopic Greening Conference for
Tropical and Subtropical Regions (SGC), with a view to effectively promote
green building industry development.

} Nan Hai Corporation Limited E FBERARDE
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Case: Nan Hai Development designed and developed “Free Man Garden” eco-community project

RO BERRRAMBRABATLE] TEKBLERIE
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4.2 Improving energy efficiency and resource
utilization

The Group attaches great importance to energy and resource
conservation, promotes green office, and continuously
strengthens its control over the use of energy such as electricity,
gasoline and natural gas as well as other resources such as water
and paper. As a result, the Group achieved remarkable results in
reducing energy and resources consumption and improving
utilization. In 2018, the Group’s comprehensive energy
consumption was 28,536.79 tonnes of standard coal; the
comprehensive energy consumption intensity was 0.018 tonnes
of standard coal per HK$10,000; the greenhouse gas emissions
was 150,737.88 tonnes of CO,e; and the greenhouse gas emission
intensity was 0.094 tonnes of CO,e per HK$10,000.

In 2018, Sino-i Campus, in which the Group’s office in Beijing
operates, added frequency converters to its central air
conditioners to improve the efficiency and reduce power
consumption. Meanwhile, it also monitored the water
resources on a daily basis to address leakage issues in a
timely manner. In addition, in 2018, the Group's
headquarters carried out overall maintenance on the facade
of its buildings, and used high-quality exterior wall
insulation materials to enhance facade insulation and
reduce energy waste.

As for culture and media services segment, the Group's
cinemas actively promote the use of e-tickets and no
printed ticket is required for audience admission. In daily
work, it requires its staff to set black and white as default on
all printers and encourages them to print in double-sided.
Human Resources related works such as attendance, leave
application and overtime work are all processed through
mobile app. The use of video conferencing to reduce
unnecessary travels are also encouraged. Furthermore, the
Group's cinemas offer shuttle buses for their headquarters
staff and provides transportation subsidies for their staff to
encourage the use of public transport to and from work.

Nan Hai Corporation Limited @ ABEZERERAR

42 RBAEERERFERANE

REBMEREFRMNEREL - BITHK
BHN - NETINSEEE R FRA
KRELERARK - HORRSEERE
ARERE  EREEREREEME
= F AR EES B AR © 2018
F O OAEEREEREREE AR
28536 79MEIE - IREBERBRERE
BOOISMIZE ‘BT AERE
B8 515073788 — A LI E B -
BEREBHENEREAB00ME R
LEE, /BB -

2018 FF &£ B 4L i 2 35 P 8085
HFEAREZE=FRNEZ AN
RE=FAFARBE - #mEE
REE RNHKERETE
HEZ  REBRAREBRE
o AN 2018 F EE 4B IR
MAEIMNEEITREBHE - 2
B2 SN AR OB AT DAE 38 BF
NEBBRAMRE  RIER
RE o

XL R EEREED - A%
BERERHETEFE  BR
BEREEITHMAEZANE
Yo BERAP  EXRPEAQ
SITENE B R B AITE - iR
BRFAE®ITH®: BT
EE - BHRE - MKSEAST
e BB FHAPPELR  &F
ERREEEEZH P TY
THYEDR o BEO - NEBFP
AETIREREIE  WIAX
BB E TR
AARR@MIA-




N

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

As for property development segment, Nan Hai
Development obtained 1SO14001:2004 environmental
management system certification, established a sound
environmental management system and energy
management system, and formed a standardized and
integrated energy and resources management system, so as
to strictly control the use of water, electricity, gasoline and
materials. Nan Hai Development formulated the 2018 Office
Resources Management Initiatives and Measures (20184 #
NEREBEETERIEE), which required adopting
paperless office, regular inspection of the operation of water
and electricity equipment in the office, making full use of
natural lighting and reducing power consumption. Nan Hai
Development introduced new technologies to reduce
energy and resources consumption. For example, its
properties in Shenzhen introduced a drip irrigation control
system to save water. Its properties in Guangzhou installed
a power carrier lighting control system for its underground
garages which automatically adjusted the brightness of the
lightings according to motions and reduced the brightness
when idle, thus effectively saving electricity consumed by
garages.

As for enterprise cloud services segment, in 2018, CE Dongli
relocated its server room from Guangzhou to Beijing. The
new server room is equipped with cloud servers, which
greatly reduces the number of the servers as compared to
traditional datacenters and significantly reduces energy
consumption.

RE - HERERRS
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Case: Sino-i Campus introduced air energy equipment to reduce steam consumption

RO BWHEESIAZRERE - BOBRSEAE

In 2018, Sino-i Campus installed air energy equipment in the bathroom of
its fitness center to provide steam during non-central heating period from
March to November. The air energy equipment converts the heat energy
in the air to heat up tap water. The heated hot water stored in the water
tank of the bathroom is available for use around the clock. This air energy
equipment with remarkable energy conservation effects consumes only

electricity without using a large amount of purchased steam.

} —E-N\EEER m Annual Report 2018

2018 BIBTEE B S LA TR RE AR
RS A —11 A MR (LA 5558 SR (4R
T o 2 R R BB A 2 R MR B ST
AEERIAIIE + AR ) RUK BT ROK A R BUA E
BRUNEER  ERERBELEEL BT
RESMBIITEOGER - At B H B AR -




Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R - g RERRE

The Group’s energy and resources consumption in 2018

2018 FAKERFRNEREREE

Indicators Consumption

BE HIEER

Total electricity consumption kWh 226,395,818.09
BAEE TR

Total electricity consumption intensity KWh/HKS$10,000 141.85

RABEERE TRE BET

Municipal water consumption tonnes 1,272,941.09

MEAKE U

Municipal water consumption intensity tonnes/HK$10,000 0.798

MRAKERE Wa, BB

Reclaimed water consumption tonnes 20,199

FKERE i

Gasoline consumption tonnes 89.53

R AE i

Natural gas consumption cubic meters 4,709.20

AAREAE SR

Outsourcing heat consumption tonnes 4,469.31

SNBFOAUERE 7]

The Group Cinemas’ packaging material purchase volume in 2018

2018 EXREEE R EBEMBIKEE

Purchase volume

Indicators (piece)
tit: PR E (f8)
Food packaging box! 340,927
EIEI @%m

Drink cup? 591,297
HORHF

Drink cup lid? 396,958
HRHIRE

Packaging Bag* 18516
TER:

1 Food packaging boxes include popcorn boxes.

EmPRIENEARR -

2 Drink cups include coke cups, hot drink cups, clear plastic cups and etc. 2 R B IR - 2RI - BEANE -

3 Drink cup lids include clear plastic lids with a straw slot, hot drink lids, clear plastic lids with 3 FRNERIEEERE B8N E  THEZHES
stoppers and etc.
Packaging bags include packaging bags for dual compartment combo meal (15 &%), 4 TERNERERTER

As the Group does not produce any products, the indicator of total packaging materials used *
for finished products and its intensity (i.e. per unit produced) are not applicable.

Nan Hai Corporation Limited m EEERERATE
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4.3 Disposal of solid wastes and emissions

legitimately

The Group strictly complies with the Environmental Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of China (FF % A R A MBIIRIF (R
%) and the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste
(P AR A B E R R Y5 2R BB JA0%) and disposes its
wastes and emissions properly according to the laws and
regulations. At the same time, the Group cleans the grease traps
and flue pipes of the staff canteen kitchens on a regular basis to
reduce emissions, and strictly separates the domestic wastes and
office wastes for further collection and handling by recognised
municipal companies. The Group also implements a sorting
management system for recyclable and non-recyclable wastes to
facilitate secondary degradation of recyclable wastes. Used
furniture, equipment, computers and waste paper products are
sorted and collected. After selling all valuable wastes, the
remaining solid wastes are handled by external service providers
on a regular basis. Hazardous wastes such as used toner cartridges
and used light tubes are handled by qualified external service
providers in a timely manner.

No industrial sewage is generated by the Group. All domestic
sewage generated is connected to the urban municipal sewage
pipeline network for treatment and discharge by urban sewage
treatment plants according to the required standards.

Waste generation of the Group in 2018

018 FAKEBEREYELS
Indicators Unit
BE B
Obsolete assets generation pieces
BEAEELE f
Used toner cartridges generation tonnes
EEMSELS 143
Used light tubes generation tonnes
REREELS Mg
Waste paper products generation tonnes
FERERELS L7
Waste paper products generation intensity kg/HK$10,000
BEGERELEETE T/ 8ET
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PUBLIC WELFARE

The Group not only strives for own business development, but also
actively participates in public welfare activities. Together with its
partners, the Group participates in targeted poverty alleviation, and
various charity activities to improve local residents life quality.

In 2018, the staff of the Group’s headquarters joined caring visit for primary
school students in Huairou Mountain Area, Beijing. Sino-i Campus
supported local communities by organizing sports competitions, free film-
watching and chorus performances. As for property development
segment, Nan Hai Development actively participated in community
activities to show its care for the elderly and needy families, encouraged its
staff to join volunteer services, and made donations and provided
personnel support for the cultural and recreational activities of local
communities. As for enterprise cloud services segment, CE Dongli
participated in China Philanthropy (Az " Bd) and some other charity
events. It also established a charity fund to help employees to solve
medical cost incurred by major disease. As for news media business
segment, HKO1, together with local communities, organized football game
watching events for people with visual impairment with an aim to improve
the quality of lives of disadvantaged groups.

In 2018, the Group made charitable donation of approximately
HK$35,473,000.

5. ERoR
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Case: Walking Carnival in Huadu District jointly organized by Nan Hai Development

0

MERRGEGRIEHBEESEFETD

In May 2018, Huadu Furong Tourist Resort, Guangzhou organized Walking 2018 F 5 A+ EIMNEEE X B IR E R @ LB WE L5+
Carnival. Nan Hai Development supported this event by providing useful ~ FZEES) - B ER AZIBEHDREE INERE
resources. The event was designed to link up all tourism resources of the i ° AEBNARIK R T REE T LR RIREER -
whole Huadu District and offered routes with different difficulty levels for RE T ZBHEFNELFE TEREZE - 52
children, teenagers, middle-aged and elderly people and professionals. This 4 * RFEFUARBEEZATHERELFZFE - KRE
event attracted a large number of participants, drove public fitness  BIRSITTRERSHE - T THRILEEIREG - B
activities and promoted community harmonious development. TR T H AL AL R -

Edklﬁlﬂﬁimﬁﬁﬁiﬁiﬂ#
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Case: CE Dongli cooperated with Bank of China to help targeted poverty alleviation by joining China Philanthropy

B B OBFRREBRTMATAEFE ] BHEREERE

In 2018, CE Dongli signed an Alliance of Charities Strategic Cooperation
Agreement (2 zx B B2 B A% & E 15 &) with Beijing Branch of Bank of
China and became an official member of China Philanthropy in China. As a
“hematopoiesis” type of targeted poverty alleviation platform in China,
China Philanthropy in China is a well-known of adopting “Internet +
Charity” model. After joining China Philanthropy in China, CE Dongli
focused on poverty alleviation, assumed its social responsibilities and
promoted public welfare.

Through its platforms including Daai Supermarket (X & #81), Shanyuan
Shopping Mall (Z /R #3) and Shanyuan Charity Program (Z/R AzaT &),
the company transformed consumption into charity and facilitated
industrial development in poverty areas. Daai Supermarket (X & 8 ™),
established a fast-track sales channel for special local products from the
poverty areas and sold the agricultural byproducts produced by poor
families all over the country by using its platform. Charity points will be
awarded by purchasing agricultural byproducts from the poor families on
the platform. As for Shanyuan Shopping Mall (& JR&%5), consumers can
purchase the products provided by other members of the alliance at
guaranteed lowest price by using their charity points. At the same time, the
platform collected information from the poor families and helped them
with donations, donating goods and crowdfunding to achieve targeted
poverty alleviation. The platform also established a giving back mechanism,
allowing consumers to purchase goods and services provided by other
members of the alliance at a discounted price through “Shanyuan
Shopping Mall (£ J& 7 #5)" on the platform. As such, other members of
the alliance can establish more sales channels and value-added branding
channels, thus attracting more volunteers to join. After joining China
Philanthropy, CE Dongli successfully helped tens of thousands of poor
people and achieved good social benefits, thereby demonstrating the
social value of the company.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NAN HAI CORPORATION LIMITED
RBZERERAF

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Nan Hai Corporation
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (herein referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 113 to 310, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”") and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants”
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25 Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Impairment assessment of goodwill and other assets
attributable to the cash generating units (“CGUs")

(Refer to note 21 to the consolidated financial statements and the Group’s
critical accounting estimates and assumptions set out in note 4.1)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had goodwill of HK$5,337,967,000
which is allocated to the CGUs of cinema operation, innovative business,
enterprise cloud services and property development segments for annual
impairment testing.

The Company’s directors have concluded that there was an impairment
loss on goodwill amounted to HK$157,480,000 and HK$23,356,000 for the
CGUs of innovative business and cinema operation segment respectively.
This conclusion was based on the impairment testing carried out by the
management for these CGUs in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy in note 2.23 which is set out in detail in note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements, which involved significant judgement and
assumptions with respect to the determination of the pre-tax discount
rates and the estimation of the underlying future cash flows.

We identified the impairment testing of goodwill and other assets of the
relevant CGUs as a key audit matter because of its significance to the
consolidated financial statements and because the impairment testing
involved significant management judgement and estimates as explained
above.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Our response

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment assessment above
included:

—  Evaluating the models used by management in the value in use
calculations for impairment testing;

—  Assessing the reasonableness of discount rates and growth rates applied
to the impairment testing;

—  Challenging the reasonableness of other key assumptions based on our
knowledge of the business and industry;

—  Checking input data to supporting evidence, such as approved budget
and considering the reasonableness of the budget;

—  Checking the value in use calculations mathematically;

—  Comparing the actual performance in 2018 with the forecast in 2017;
and

—  Performing sensitivity analysis including assessing the effect of a change
in the key assumptions to the recoverable amounts of the CGUs.

Identification of assets and liabilities for newly acquired
business

(Refer to note 43(a) to the consolidated financial statements and the Group’s
accounting policy set out in note 2.2)

In July 2018, the Group completed the acquisition of /T3 1B & E AR A A
("L 42 18"), which the purchase price allocation (“PPA”) involved significant
judgement and assumptions.

Management has engaged independent valuer to assist management to
determine the fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed at the completion date. Fair value and corresponding deferred tax
adjustments were made based on the PPA exercise, and goodwill has been
recognised for the difference being the fair value of the purchase
considerations in excess of the fair value of identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed in each case.

We consider this as a key audit matter because of its significance to the
consolidated financial statements and because the fair value determination of
items in the PPA involved significant management judgement and estimates.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Our response

Our procedures in relation to the management’s PPA above included:

—  Testing the mathematical accuracy of the calculations which we
considered necessary;

—  Checking the purchase consideration amounts against relevant
supporting information;

—  Considering and evaluating the reasonableness of the identification of
assets acquired and liabilities assumed;

—  Evaluating the PPA and fair value determination of the assets acquired
and liabilities assumed by reference to independent valuer's reports
obtained by the management; and

—  Assessing the reasonableness of assumptions and inputs adopted in the
fair value determination.

Impairment of trade receivables and deposits and other
receivables

(Refer to note 3.1(ii), 20, 24 and 52.4 to the consolidated financial statements and
the Group’s accounting policy set out in note 2.12)

As at 1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018, the gross balances of trade
receivables of the Group were HK$709,731,000 and HK$621,031,000
respectively and the gross balances of deposits and other receivables of the
Group were HK$2,072,634,000 and HK$2,310,087,000 respectively. The Group
recognises an impairment provision based on the expected credit loss (“ECL")
approach under HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”. We consider this as a key
audit matter because the measurement of ECL requires the application of
significant judgement and estimate, such as expected future cash flows and
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Our response

Our procedures in relation to the management’s assessment on impairment
provision included:

—  Considering key internal controls which govern credit control, debt
collection and estimate of expected credit losses;

— Assessing reasonableness of management’s expected credit loss
allowance by examining the information used by management to form
such judgement and estimate, including relevant historical information;

—  Checking the arithmetic calculation of the expected credit loss
allowance; and

—  Evaluating the reasonableness of the Group's provision for trade
receivables and other receivables by reference to the Group's
subsequent collection of the trade receivables and other receivables.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does
not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Act 1981, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control.

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chiu Wing Cheung Ringo
Practising Certificate Number P04434

Hong Kong, 28 March 2019
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Consolidated Income Statement
mEeElE R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #(Z 2018 12 A31 HILFE

2018 2017
Notes HK$'000 HKS$'000
ik FHET FHET
(Re-presented)
(F&&E751)
Revenue gz 5@) 16,789,451 15,900,885
Cost of sales and services provided SHE AR RS 2 B 8 (6,062,856) (5,763,012)
Gross profit EF 10,726,595 10,137,873
Other operating income E b & U A 5(b) 678,316 586,911
Selling and marketing expenses HEMTIGHEREMAY (3,776,421) (3,021,316)
Administrative expenses THRAX (1,332,717) (1,083,184)
Other operating expenses HAgEmx (2,145,993) (1,615,535)
Finance costs A KA 7 (1,095,940) (823,731)
Expected credit loss on financial assets/ CRMEEZEREERBE
Impairment loss on trade receivables, JEWB ZFIE e K
deposits and other receivables H fth FEUGRIB R BB 2K (37,415) (6,490)
Fair value change on financial liabilities BARBEREREEREY
at fair value through profit or loss SHEEAAEBEEY 32 59,997 26,809
Loss on deemed disposal of an associate BIEH & — BB N T ZEE - (162)
Share of results of associates JEEEE AR HEE 12,273 12,913
Share of results of joint ventures BIEEEREER 466 165
Gain on disposal of non-current assets RERELNEZIERDEE
held-for-sale ) 19 19,649 -
Gain on fair value change on investment REMEAABEEH 2 W
properties 14 315,371 2,137
Profit before income tax FR8 B ATEF 8 3,424,181 4,216,390
Income tax expense FRAS 35 2 9 (2,449,836) (2,613,955)
Profit for the year F A=A 974,345 1,602,435
Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to: LA T A +FEWGF AT, () :
Owners of the Company PA/NEIE 2SN 1,140,854 1,708,027
Non-controlling interests JEFERR R S (166,509) (105,592)
974,345 1,602,435
HK cent HK cent
AL AL
Earnings per share for profit FRARATHEE AEMEF
attributable to the owners of the ZEBREF
Company during the year 11
— Basic — EK 1.66 249
— Diluted — 8 1.63 249
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

meEEzHEBREHRE

For the year ended 31 December 2018  #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHAT
Profit for the year FEREF 974,345 1,602,435
Other comprehensive income, including Htt2mEWs  BEEHIEAE
reclassification adjustments
Item that will not be reclassified subsequently to HREBTSENSEE
profit or loss: BamfRZIHE -
Fair value change on financial assets at fair value ~ Z A BENEM 2 EWESEIE 2
through other comprehensive income, CRIEEZ ARBEZD
net of tax (FOBRFRIE) 4,836 =
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to HEnpeE 2 Bmk 2 HE -
profit or loss:
Exchange (loss)/gain on translation of financial MEGINES SRR ZER
statements of foreign operations (E18) Wz (645,711) 511,812
Exchange (loss)/gain on translation of financial PG YN & R BB TS SRR 2 B K
statements of foreign associates (E18) Wz (5,139) 6,266
Exchange (loss)/gain on translation of financial BEFINEEEYTEHRRZER
statements of foreign joint ventures (E18) Wz (94) 187
Exchange differences reclassified on deemed RIEL & —AEE A RREFN»HE
disposal of an associate, net of tax b 5, =58 (FNBRFHIR) - 359
Other comprehensive income for the year, FREMEEKE -
including reclassification adjustments BIEEFIERE (646,108) 518,624
Total comprehensive income for the year FAREKRERE 328,237 2,121,059
Total comprehensive income attributableto: LT A +EE2EINFALE :
Owners of the Company PiN/NETE 2 =N 507,150 2,228,829
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR RE RS (178,913) (107,770)
328,237 2,121,059
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
I E B IS AR R 3R 3R

As at 31 December 2018 120184412 A 31 H

2018 2017
Notes HK$'000 HKS$'000
B 5E FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERERE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENERE 13 5,217,394 5,863,807
Investment properties B 14 757,669 112,448
Prepaid land lease payments under KEHE TN 28R
operating leases tTHEESE 15 22,860 24,606
Interests in associates N /N o 17 134,326 145,593
Interests in joint ventures REeLhEZRER 18 30,688 5413
Amounts due from related parties FEUR R E T 5RIE 50 430,711 254,324
Available-for-sale financial assets AIHEEEZERmEE - 135,915
Financial assets at fair value through BAnRBENEMEER
other comprehensive income WaREs eREE 23 192,436 =
Financial assets at fair value through BARBERERRER
profit or loss L EREE 112 -
Long term trade receivables REEWE 5 FIE 24 764 2,370
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables %4 ~ TB15 3R I8 Kz H b fE U 7k 18 20 770,140 901,850
Intangible assets B EE 2] 6,516,732 6,438,083
Deferred tax assets EERIEE = 36 930,791 596,985
Pledged and restricted bank deposits BRI R PR BRI T T 25 3,755,612 3,591,605
18,760,235 18,072,999
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 22 14,359,683 15,319,232
Financial assets at fair value through BAREEREERER
profit or loss ZEMEE 82,481 199,474
Held-to-maturity investment REZIEEE - 120,106
Trade receivables FEWE 5 kI8 24 538,800 677,298
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables %4 ~ B 3R I8 Kz H b fE U 7k 18 20 2,923,593 2,992,945
Amounts due from associates JE U & N B RUIR 28(b) 15,129 11,238
Amounts due from joint ventures B A & EFRIE 28(c) 2,327 2,491
Amounts due from related parties FEUR BRI 75 5108 50 2,004 4,064
Pledged and restricted bank deposits B KRR HRITIER 25 3,207,363 5080474
Cash and cash equivalents ReRERRELIAE 25 1,334,598 4,397,710
22,465,978 28,805,032
Non-current assets held-for-sale BEELEZIFRBERE 19 - 15,018
22,465,978 28:820,050
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Consolldated Statement of Financial Position (Contmued

e R Rk ()

As at 31 December 2018 72018412 A 31 H

2018 2017
Notes HK$’000 HKS'000
M5 FHET FET
Current liabilities ﬁ@)ﬁﬁ
Trade payables ERES 26 1,894,306 2,137,185
Other payables and accruals ﬁﬂ)"&“ﬁ IE)SQJA@c & A 27 2,123,644 1,439,633
Contract liabilities AHEE 5(a) 4,337,189 =
Receipt in advance and deferred revenue iﬁuﬁl KIE IR a2 - 6,851,766
Provision for tax TRIE R 4,844,022 3,823,364
Amount due to a director R—ZEERIE 28(a) 65,132 9,878
Amounts due to associates REGE N R FRIE 28(b) 5,492 5492
Amounts due to related parties R B8 T A 50 178,959 135,669
Other employee benefits EiE ERF 33 16,923 -
Bank and other borrowings fEﬁ&,ﬁ\Wﬁ* 29 6,805,091 9,653,920
Finance lease liabilities mEHESRE 30 42,078 59,189
Convertible and exchangeable bonds AJARS K A] R E A 31 1,150,721 1,172,381
Financial liability at fair value through BARBENESREE
profit or loss ZEmBas 32 21,476 86,908
21,485,033 25,375,385
Net current assets REBEEFE 980,945 3,444,665
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBERS 19,741,180 21,517,664
Non-current liabilities kRBES
Long term trade payables REERE S IR 26 409 7,757
Other employee benefits Hit g BRI 33 27,260 2,064
Bank and other borrowings RITREAMEE 29 11,913,914 13,242,534
Finance lease liabilities BEHSEAE 30 48,012 27,984
Provision for warranty RIEEE 35 3,886 3,917
Financial liability at fair value through BEANBENEREREE
profit or loss ZEmAatsE 32 5,435 =
Deferred tax liabilities FEIERIAEE 36 786,925 1,038,158
12,785,841 14,322,414
Net assets EERE 6,955,339 7,195,250
EQUITY s
Share capital i 37 686,455 686,455
Reserves i 39 5,513,308 5,456,775
Equity attributable to the AABEE AEEER
Company’s owners 6,199,763 6,143,230
Non-controlling interests By £ 41 755,576 1,052,020
Total equity EEEEE 6,955,339 7,195,250
On behalf of the Board REREES
Yu Pun Hoi Liu Rong
T&E 2%
Director Director
EFE =
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
n‘/-_r\/\IE M7 /)|b§$&’%§

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #(Z 2018 12 A31 HILFE

2018 2017
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FAT
(Re-presented)
(F&E51)
Cash flows from operating activities RETB2EERE
Profit before income tax P S 25 B4 A 3,424,181 4,216,390
Adjustments for: B TZNIEE FHE
Interest income F SR A (231,917) (241,316)
Finance costs [ELE= VDN 1,095,940 823,731
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BENMRETE 1,094,751 912,603
Amortisation of intangible assets other TEFBEE B AERH
than goodwill 150,953 67,049
Write-off of property, plant and equipment M - BB KRR E M 61,012 142,574
Write-off of intangible assets other than goodwill ~ T B ERE ~ & & B # 5 70,327 670
Write-off of inventories FEME 81,318 -
Write-off of deposits, prepayments and e - BAFIEREA
other receivables JE W R TE 4 - 15,707
Loss on deemed disposal of an associate RIELE— B E AR Z A - 162
Operating lease charges on prepaid land leases AT HHE 2 L HEKRIE 524 513
Expected credit loss on financial assets/ CREEZERERER
Impairment loss on trade receivables, W E 5518 ~ 12 &
deposits and other receivables HAth fEGRIBREIBR 37,415 6,490
Reversal of impairment loss on trade receivables  FEUE 5 518 K H 8 Yk 3518
and other receivables BB E RO (4,250) (21,142)
Provision for impairment of property, ME - BRE MR ERERE
plant and equipment 43,185 125,762
Provision for impairment of intangible assets PREE B AERBERE
other than goodwill 25,938 5,707
Provision for impairment of goodwiill EEREEE 180,836 79,612
Provision for warranty IRIERE G 401 639
Loss on disposal of property, HEDE  BEMRBZFER
plant and equipment, net 9,634 182
Fair value change on financial assets at fair value ~ Z AR EERIERERE 2 S RMEE
through profit or loss ZAREEEY 34,058 (13,834)
Fair value change on financial liabilities at fair BARBERERERRIEZC/MEE
value through profit or loss ZAREEEY (59,997) (26,809)
Gain on fair value change on investment SEWENAABELZE NS
properties (315,371) (2,137)
Gain on trading of financial assets at fair value BRARBERERREE @ REE
through profit or loss 2 BEW= (21,895) (34,192)
Gain on disposal of non-current assets BEFHEHEZIERBEE 2 Wk
held-for-sale (19,649) -
Dividend income AR EMA (5,731) (6,464)
Share of results of associates FEAGEE DRI ZEAR (12,273) (12,913)
Share of results of joint ventures IR E DR (466) (165)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

meaRETnEmk (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018  #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

2018 2017
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FHIT
Operating profit before working capital changes &8 & & & 8hAT 7 L& % 5,638,924 6,038,819
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories FEERL,/(18) 562,304 (622,569)
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables, deposits, [EUE HFIE « 24 - FANNFIE LK EA
prepayments and other receivables FE Uzl (3% hn), > (55,050) 185,581
Increase in trade payables, other payables B E S508 - Bt RIE R ER
and accruals and other employee benefits &R NEMESBFIEIN 396,361 113,001
Decrease in contract liabilities/receipt in advance & #) B &K TE 718 RIELE S
and deferred revenue DA (2,694,954) (606,260)
Decrease in amounts due from related parties JE Uit 858 Ty SR IE R A 1,919 35,703
Decrease/(Increase) in amounts FEUE & EEFRIBER D (380)
due from joint ventures 36 (212)
Decrease in amounts due to associates RE &R R FRIE R - (230)
Increase in amounts due to related parties R385 SRIAIE N 54,344 25,934
Cash generated from operating activities AL B TR T 3,903,884 5,169,767
Income taxes paid B EH (1,641,926) (810,454)
Net cash generated from operating activities AT B TR SRR 2,261,958 4,359,313
Cash flows from investing activities REZHZEHERE
Payments to acquire intangible assets BERTEE 2N (231,232) (93,527)
Payments to acquire property, plant and equipment BEEY % « BB K& < 3K (674,530) (1,071,146)
Proceeds from financial assets at amortised costs  IREESHAK AT BR 2 & RA B EFTS A 130,024 -
Net cash outflow arising from acquisition of BENBARERSELE 2R R L F5E
interest in subsidiaries (333,891) (4,133,019)
Increase in long term deposits, other receivables — RHIRS « H fh FE YIS & fE IR — 4
and amount due from a related party A& 77 IR 1N (175,532) (376,231)
Decrease/(Increase) in pledged and IR R 2RISR ROR L (35 0)
restricted bank deposits 1,321,796 (1,328,827)
Interest received 2 2 178,527 129,746
Decrease/(Increase) in guarantee deposits RO (E)RBES 69,418 (269,248)
Decrease/(Increase) in financial assets at fair value X AR BENREBREREZ S REE
through profit or loss () 98,419 (127,337)
Increase in financial assets at fair value BRARBEREMEEWEREE S/
through other comprehensive income/ BEXAMHESSREEEM
available-for-sale financial assets (53,087) (135,591)
Proceeds from disposal of non-current assets REFBERE ZIERSEEMSIHIAE
held-for-sale 34,667 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWME - BB RREEHRE
plant and equipment 326 459
Proceeds from disposal of partial interests in HEHE ARz B ERATERIE
subsidiaries - 175,968
Dividend received from an associate Bl —HEEARRE - 11,067
Dividend received from financial assets BlemEERE 5,731 6,464
Payments for setting up and acquisition S R W BB B 2 N Bl 2 PR
of associates (11,229) (56,142)
Payments for setting up a joint venture B —E &R E 2R (24,903) -
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities 18 & E B FTE (BT fH) 3 < F 58 334,504 (7,267,364)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
an\AIE S7 /)Ib%i&%‘% (IIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #(Z 2018 12 A31 HILFE

2018 2017
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FAT
Cash flows from financing activities AMETECRERE
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings IRITREAMEEMSRIE 5,366,418 12,722,113
Repayments of bank and other borrowings BRRITREMES (9,147,899) (5,206,663)
Repayments of capital element of finance BEREHEABELESID
lease liabilities (56,584) (43,760)
Interest paid 2RFE (1,479,630) (1,241,634)
Repayments of interest element of finance EErREREaEN S
lease liabilities (8,529) (7,974)
Advance from/(Repayment to) a director RE—ZBEEZ2BH
(M—REFER) 53,215 (21,664)
Payments to acquire non-controlling FLUE T A Al FEIE AR M R 15 3K
interests of subsidiaries (4,652) (12,717)
Capital contribution by non-controlling —EM B A A FEIERER A TR
equity holder of a subsidiary - 3,715
Dividend paid to non-controlling equity m— B AREERESEEA
holder of a subsidiary SRRE (198,118) =
Dividend paid BERRE (157,885) (137,291)
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities g8 & & &) (FTFH ), Frif3E < F58 (5,633,664) 6,054,125
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and RekERELER
cash equivalents CRD) /% (3,037,202) 3,146,074
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January MITATBZ2RERERRESIEER 4,397,710 1,172,620
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, INETER B ENEPTIIIR S 2 &
on cash held (25,910) 79,016
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R12B31AZBERERAELER 1,334,598 4,397,710
Analysis of the balances of cash and REeRZEERESEEFERDN
cash equivalents
Cash at banks and in hand RITREFRES 1,334,598 4,397,710
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in EqUty

mEERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2018  #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

Equity attributable to the Company's owners

AOTEEAELES
Share-based Non-
Share Share Capital General Fvocl payments Exchange Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
BRALEE
30
2EME RO
Rk RGEE  EARE  -BEE  REER Bk EXRE  REE BF JEREE  REE4E
(note37) (note 39) (note 39) (note39) (note39) (note39) (note39) (note41)
(H337) (H3E39) (H3E39) (H3E39) (Hzt39) (Hzt39) (Hzt39) (Hztar)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn
At 1 January 2017 RO7E1A18 086455 95911 1564656 181722 = = 235866 471% 4051766 1154233 520599
ProftLoss) fortheyear Efighl/(58) - - - - - - - IR0 180 (105590 160243
Other comprehensive income E2EkE - - - - - - 520802 - 520802 179 518624
Total comprehensive income or the year FRAENREE - = = = = = 510802 1708007 22889 (07770~ 2121059
Transferto general eserve BA-RiR - - - 31 - - - (2312 - - -
Acaquiston of non-controling nterests WENBAR RS
in subsiciaries - - (3952 - - - - - (3952) (8765) (171
Acquisition of subsiciaries WEHBAR - - - - - - - - - 1208 1208
Capital contrbution by a non-controling —THB AR
shareholder of a subsidiary iz - - - - - - - - - 3715 3715
Disposal of partil nterestin a subsiiary HAMER-RRBAFZ
withoutlossofcontrol BRMREXELHE - - 3% - - - - - 3% (142) 2457
Dividends relating to 2016 MeERBRE - - - - - - - (137291) (137291) = (137291)
At31December 2017 and R0E12A318R
at1January 2018 0185151A 686,455 965911 1,564,582* 184,034* -+ -+ 756,668 1985580* 6,143,230 1,052,020 7,195,250
Fffecton adoption of HKFRS 15 (note 31) R RRE RN 5%
LHE 3 - - - - - - - (04337 (104537) - (104537)
Fffecton adoption of HFRS9 rote 31) ROEAIBREEZ0R
7R3 - - - - (1,580) - - (loa3ss) (105935) - (10593
At1January 2018 (restated) 201851518 (£557) 686,455 965,911 1,564,582 184,034 (1,580) - 756,668 1,776,688 5,932,758 1,052,020 6,984,778
Profit{Loss) for the year ERiEfl/ (58 - - - - - - - 1040854 1140854 (16,509) 974,345
Other comprehensive income Eh2E%E - - - - 4,83 - (638,540) - (633,704) (12404 (646,108)
Total comprehensive income for the year ER2EbEEE - - - - 4836 - (6385400 1,140,854 507,150 (178,913) 328,37
Transferto general resene BA-HER - - - 18420 - - - (18,420) - - -
Reduction of share premium HORNERE - (965,900) 965,900 - - - - - - - -
Isue of new shares under the rstited RERSRA LR SR
share award scheme - - (82,103) - - - - - (82,103) 82,103 -
Share based payment expenses note 34 MBS 2 s At ) - - - - - 178 - - 178 - 178
Acquistion ofnon-<ontrlling nterests WENERT HARES
in subsidiaries - - (335) - - - - - (335) (4317) (4652)
Acquistion ofa nor-shollyowned WE-RH2EHEAA
subsidiary - - - - - - - - - 2801 2801
Dividends tonon-contrling interest H-EHEA T RER
ofasubsidiary S - - - - - - - - - (198,118)  (198,118)
Divdends relating to 2017 note 10) 017 1B (W 10) - - - - - - - (1sness) (157,885 BN ]
At31 December 2018 HagE1ANE 686,455 M omMeM A 356 U MBS 2IMBF 6198 TS 6955339
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$5,513,308,000 * HEHEBEREBRGCAMBRIABEZEARE

(2017: HK$5,456,775,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Nan Hai Corporation Limited m MEERERATE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 R 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Nan Hai Corporation Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The address of the Company's
registered office is Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 12,
Bermuda, and its principal place of business is 12/F., The Octagon, No. 6
Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong. The Company’s
shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”).

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally engaged
in culture and media services, property development, enterprise cloud
services, news media business and innovative business. Details of the
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 16.

As at 31 December 2018, the directors of the Company consider the
ultimate holding company to be Dadi Holdings Limited, a limited liability
company incorporated in Hong Kong.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 were
approved for issue by the board of directors (the “Board”) on 28 March
2019.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements on pages 113 to 310 have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") which collective term includes all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
The financial statements also include the applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on Hong
Kong Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the
preparation of these financial statements are summarised below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented unless otherwise stated. The adoption of new or
amended HKFRSs and the impacts on the Group's financial
statements, if any, are disclosed in note 3.

1.
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Nan Hai Corporation Limited ( 78 /& 2 i% A& IR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 SR AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis except for investment properties and financial instruments,
which are measured at fair values as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and assumptions are
used in preparation of the financial statements. Although these
estimates are based on management’s best knowledge and
judgement of current events and actions, actual results may
ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are
disclosed in note 4.

Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries. Inter-company
transactions and balances between group companies together
with unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
impairment on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the effective dates of acquisition or up to the
effective dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries
to bring their accounting policies in line with those used by other
members of the Group.

2.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 R 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHBERME(E)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Business combination and basis of consolidation 22 ¥BEAHEGESRBEE

(Continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for using the
acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the Group, as the
acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
are principally measured at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains or losses are
recognised in profit or loss. The Group may elect, on a transaction-
by-transaction basis, to measure the non-controlling interests that
represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary either at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value unless another measurement basis is
required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs incurred are
expensed unless they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in
which case the costs are deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent adjustments
to consideration are recognised against goodwill only to the
extent that they arise from new information obtained within the
measurement period (@ maximum of 12 months from the
acquisition date) about the fair value at the acquisition date. All
other subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the Group's interest in subsidiaries that do not result in
a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group's interest and the non-controlling
interest are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on
disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are accounted
for in the same manner as would be required if the relevant assets
or liabilities were disposed of.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.2

23

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership interests in
the subsidiary is the amount of those interests at initial recognition
plus such non-controlling interest’s share of subsequent changes
in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed to such non-
controlling interests even if this results in those non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Group is able to exercise
control. The Group controls an investee if all three of the following
elements are present: power over the investee; exposure, or rights,
to variable returns from the investee; and the ability to use its
power to affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed
whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there may be a
change in any of these elements of control.

De-facto control exists in situations where the Company has the
practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee
without holding the majority of the voting rights. In determining
whether de-facto control exists the Company considers all
relevant facts and circumstances, including:

The size of the Company’s voting rights relative to both the
size and dispersion of other parties who hold voting rights;

Substantive potential voting rights held by the Company
and other parties who hold voting rights;

Other contractual arrangements; and
Historic patterns in voting attendance.

In the Company's statement of financial position, interests in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment loss unless the
subsidiary is held for sale or included in a disposal group. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividend received and receivable at the reporting date. All
dividends whether received out of the investee's pre or post-
acquisition profits are recognised in the Company'’s profit or loss.

2.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FTESTHEBE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Associates 2.4 BENF

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor a joint arrangement.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee but not control or
joint control over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method whereby
they are initially recognised at cost and thereafter, their carrying
amount are adjusted for the Group's share of the post-acquisition
change in the associates’ net assets except that losses in excess of
the Group's interest in the associate are not recognised unless
there is an obligation to make good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the Group and
its associates are recognised only to the extent of unrelated
investors' interests in the associate. The investor's share in the
associate’s profits and losses resulting from these transactions is
eliminated against the carrying value of the associate. Where
unrealised losses provide evidence of impairment of the asset
transferred they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of the
Group's share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired is capitalised and included in the carrying
amount of the associate. Where there is objective evidence that
the investment in an associate has been impaired, the carrying
amount of the investment is tested for impairment in the same
way as other non-financial assets.

In the Company'’s statement of financial position, investments in
associates are carried at cost less impairment losses, if any. The
results of associates are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable during the year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Joint arrangements

The Group is a party to a joint arrangement where there is a
contractual arrangement that confers joint control over the
relevant activities of the arrangement to the Group and at least
one other party. Joint control is assessed under the same
principles as control over subsidiaries.

The Group classifies its interests in joint arrangements as either:
Joint ventures: where the Group has rights to only the net
assets of the joint arrangement; or
Joint operations: where the Group has both the rights to
assets and obligations for the liabilities of the joint

arrangement.

In assessing the classification of interests in joint arrangements,
the Group considers:

The structure of the joint arrangement;

The legal form of joint arrangements structured through a
separate vehicle;

The contractual terms of the joint arrangement agreement;
and

Any other facts and circumstances (including any other
contractual arrangements).

The Group accounts for its interests in joint ventures in the same
manner as investments in associates (i.e. using the equity method
— see note 2.4).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 R 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

25

2.6

Joint arrangements (Continued)

Any premium paid for an investment in a joint venture above the
fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and included in
the carrying amount of the investment in joint venture. Where
there is objective evidence that the investment in a joint venture
has been impaired the carrying amount of the investment is
tested for impairment in the same way as other non-financial
assets.

The Group accounts for its interests joint operations by
recognising its share of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses in
accordance with its contractually conferred rights and obligations.

In the Company's statement of financial position, investment in
joint ventures are stated at cost less impairment losses, if any.
Results of joint ventures are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable during the year.

Foreign currency translation

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HKS$"), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

Transactions entered into by the group entities in currencies other
than the currency of the primary economic environment in which
they operate (the “functional currency”) are recorded at the rates
ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary
assets and liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the end of
reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair
value are included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income, in which case, the exchange differences
are also recognised in other comprehensive income.

2. FEETBREE(E)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
Hong Kong dollars) at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in
which case, the rates approximating to those ruling when the
transactions took place are used. All assets and liabilities of foreign
operations are translated at the rate ruling at the end of reporting
period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as exchange
reserve (attributed to minority interests as appropriate). Exchange
differences recognised in profit or loss of group entities’ separate
financial statements on the translation of long term monetary
items forming part of the Group’s net investment in the foreign
operation concerned are reclassified to other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity as exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange
differences recognised in the exchange reserve relating to that
operation up to the date of disposal are reclassified to profit or loss
as part of the profit or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on or after 1
January 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign
operation and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in the exchange reserve.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B A% R R M 5L
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHBERME(E)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment 2.7 Y% BRERRE

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at acquisition cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The cost of an
asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line method,
at the following rates per annum:

Buildings 5%
Leasehold improvements, 2.5% to 33-1/3%
furniture, fixtures and over lease terms
equipment whichever involves

shorter period
Motor vehicles and yachts 6-2/3% to 33-1/3%
Freehold land No depreciation

The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods and useful lives
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if
its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s estimated
recoverable amount.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets, or where
shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sale proceeds and its
carrying amount, and is recognised in profit or loss on disposal.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 SR AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

2.8

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction in progress represents assets under construction and
is stated at cost less impairment losses. Cost comprises direct costs
of construction as well as borrowing costs capitalised during the
periods of construction and installation. Capitalisation of these
costs ceases and the construction in progress is transferred to the
appropriate class of property, plant and equipment when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the assets for
their intended use are completed. No depreciation is provided for
in respect of construction in progress until it is completed and
ready for its intended use.

The buildings comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals and
the other portion that is held for administrative purpose. As the
portion held to earn rentals cannot be sold separately and is
insignificant, the building is classified as owner-occupied property
rather than investment property.

Investment properties

Investment property is property held either to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation or for both, but not held for sale in the
ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes. Investment
property is measured at cost on initial recognition and
subsequently at fair value with any change therein recognised in
profit or loss.

Properties under construction or development for future use as
investment properties are classified as investment properties
under construction. If the fair value cannot be reliably determined,
the investment properties under construction will be measured at
cost until such time as fair value can be determined or
construction is completed.

2.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 R 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

29

Investment properties (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in profit or loss in the year in
which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in profit or loss in the year of the
retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from inventories to investment properties, any
difference between the fair value of the property at that date and
its previous carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Operating lease prepayments and land use right

Upfront payments made to acquire land held under an operating
lease are stated at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. The determination if an
arrangement is or contains a lease and the lease is an operating
lease is detailed in note 2.17. Amortisation is calculated on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease/right of use except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the time
pattern of benefits to be derived by the Group from use of the
land.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 SR AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Goodwill

Set out below are the accounting policies on goodwill arising on
acquisition of a subsidiary. Accounting for goodwill arising on
acquisition of investment in an associate is set out in note 2.4.

Goodwill represents the excess of the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration transferred and the amount recognised for
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree over the net fair value
of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities exceed the
aggregate of the fair value of consideration paid, the amount of
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition
date fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in
the acquiree, the excess is recognised in profit or loss on the
acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an
acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating
units (“CGUs") that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the acquisition. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable
group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of
assets. A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, by comparing its carrying amount with its
recoverable amount (see note 2.23), and whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that financial year. When the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis
of the carrying amount to each asset in the unit. However, the loss
allocated to each asset will not reduce the individual asset’s
carrying amount to below its fair value less cost of disposal (if
measurable) or its value in use (if determinable), whichever is the
higher. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or
loss and is not reversed in subsequent periods.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 R 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Goodwill (Continued)

2.11

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount
of goodwill capitalised is included in the determination of the
amount of gain or loss on disposal.

Other intangible assets and research and
development activities

Other intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised at
cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is fair value at the date of acquisition. After initial
recognition, intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite
useful lives is provided on straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. Amortisation commences when the intangible assets
are available for use. The following useful lives are applied:

Computer software 4 years
Customer relationships 2 years
Development cost 2-4 years
Licenses, brand names

and franchise right 8-10 years
Distribution channel 6.5 years

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the
future economic benefits embodied in the computer software to
which it relates. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less
any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets, with finite and indefinite useful lives, are tested
for impairment as described below in note 2.23.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESTHHERMEGE)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.11 Other intangible assets and research and QN HMBREEERAE TR

development activities (Continued) (&)
g R B3 AN
LA IE R ENARRE 2 AR E A RN E

Research and development costs

Costs associated with research activities are expensed in profit or

loss as they occur. Costs that are directly attributable to the MRS - FIEER EE I 2R
development activities are recognised as intangible assets REA U T ERERFERAELE
provided they meet the following recognition requirements: B

()  demonstration of technical feasibility of the prospective () BRTEHHEABERAIEEZ
product for internal use or sale; BEmERMT EATAT

(i) there is intention to complete the intangible asset and use (i) SR EFLEE - WANLAE
orsell it; AsktE

(i) the Group's ability to use or sell the intangible asset is (i) BTAEBBRENFERAILE
demonstrated; ZEPEE

(iv) the intangible asset will generate probable economic vy EFEEATEEBAIER
benefits through internal use or sale; g BB A R 2=

(v)  sufficient technical, financial and other resources are v BEERAEMN - M REME

available for completion; and TRTERE &
(vi)  the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset can be Vi) PERSEtEEFEERMLZH
reliably measured. X °

Direct costs include employee costs incurred on development
along with an appropriate portion of relevant overheads. The costs
of internally generated developments are recognised as intangible
assets. They are subject to the same subsequent measurement

HEERABEREBRETELZES
A AREER D 2 HARKE
P o FABEMELZ ARRARTIHER
REVEE - 2BEHERZAES

method as externally acquired intangible assets.

All other development costs are expensed as incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 R 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018)

I,

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a
significant financing component) is initially measured at fair
value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at the transaction
price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered
in their entirely when determining whether their cash flows
are solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on
the Group's business model for managing the asset and the
cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group classifies its
debt instruments:

—E-)\FEFR E Annual Report 2018

2. FEETBREE(E)

212 m T E(H20185F1 A1

1.

AR ZEBER)

EREE(LESARE N
Z W E B FORRIN) R
RABEISMRLIFRAR
BERNBRREEEEMmMS)
WERETEREERGZE
BEXSRAE - WEERRH
BRI E ZREBET R
RPEREE -

FIAENERTABERKEE
EREERXZB(AAEE
AHEBEAHLEEEER)®E
R BREFBHERER —KRA
35 53 01 218 ) RS2 AR A 2
NEEZEREERS -

EREAARATETAZS
MEEZRERELMARAR
ERMEMFKE  FREHE
EZERER -

BB ITA
B TAEZZEFEIURARA
EEEBEEZEBBEARZ
SEEZHSRERE - A%
BEEKTASEA=E
B85




Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 SR AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

I,

Financial assets (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Financial assets at amortised cost are
subsequently measured using the effective interest rate
method. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI"):
Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows
and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest,
are measured at FVOCI. Debt investments at FVOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income
calculated using the effective interest rate method, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised
in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in
other comprehensive income. On derecognition, gains and
losses accumulated in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 R 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

I,

Financial assets (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"): Financial assets at
FVTPL include financial assets held for trading, financial
assets designated upon initial recognition at FVTPL, or
financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair
value. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in
the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they
are designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of
principal and interest are classified and measured at FVTPL,
irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding the
criteria for debt instruments to be classified at amortised
cost or at FVOC], as described above, debt instruments may
be designated at FVTPL on initial recognition if doing so
eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting
mismatch.

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not
held for trading, the Group could irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value
in other comprehensive income. This election is made on
an investment-by-investment basis. Equity investments at
FVOCI are measured at fair value. Dividend income are
recognised in profit or loss unless the dividend income
clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the
investments. Other net gains and losses are recognised in
other comprehensive income and are not reclassified to
profit or loss. All other equity instruments are classified as
FVTPL, whereby changes in fair value, dividends and interest
income are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 SR AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

1.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses (“ECLs") on trade receivables, financial assets
measured at amortised cost and debt investments
measured at FVOCI. The ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases: (1) 12 months ECLs: these are the ECLs that
result from possible default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date; and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs
that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The maximum period
considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at
an approximation to the assets’ original effective interest
rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for trade
receivables and contract assets using HKFRS 9 simplified
approach and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based
on the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based on the
12-months ECLs. However, when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since origination, the
allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 R 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

1.

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and
when estimating ECLs, the Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative
and qualitative information analysis, based on the Group's
historical experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset
has increased significantly if it is more than 90 days past
due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-impaired
when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or
(2) the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset.
For non credit-impaired financial assets interest income is
calculated based on the gross carrying amount.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 SR AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending on the
purpose for which the liabilities were incurred. Financial
liabilities at FVTPL are initially measured at fair value and
financial liabilities at amortised cost are initially measured at
fair value, net of directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held
for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are
also classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on
liabilities held for trading are recognised in profit or loss.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be designated as
a financial liability at FVTPL, except where the embedded
derivative does not significantly modify the cash flows or it
is clear that separation of the embedded derivative is
prohibited.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 R 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

.

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial
recognition as at FVTPL if the following criteria are met: (i)
the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the
inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from
measuring the liabilities or recognising gains or losses on
them on a different basis; (ii) the liabilities are part of a
group of financial liabilities which are managed and their
performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with a documented risk management strategy; or (iii) the
financial liability contains an embedded derivative that
would need to be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at FVTPL
are measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for the gains and losses arising from the Group's
own credit risk which are presented in other comprehensive
income with no subsequent reclassification to the
statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the statement of profit or loss does not
include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade and
other payables, borrowings, certain preference shares and
the debt element of convertible and exchangeable bonds
issued by the Group are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method. The
related interest expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 SR AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

V.

Convertible and exchangeable bonds

Convertible and exchangeable bonds issued by the Group
that contain both the liability and conversion option
components are classified separately into their respective
items on initial recognition. Conversion option that will be
settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s
own equity instruments is classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing market
interest of similar non-convertible debts. The difference
between the proceeds of the issue of the convertible loan
notes and the fair value assigned to the liability component,
representing the conversion option for the holder to
convert the bonds into equity, is included in equity
(convertible and exchangeable bonds equity reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible and exchangeable bonds is carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. The equity
component, represented by the option to convert the
liability component into ordinary shares, will remain in
convertible and exchangeable bonds equity reserve until
the embedded option is exercised (in which case the
balance stated in convertible and exchangeable bonds
equity reserve will be transferred to share capital and share
premium. Where the option remains unexercised at the
expiry dates, the balance stated in convertible and
exchangeable bonds equity reserve will be released to the
retained earnings. No gain or loss is recognised upon
conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
and exchangeable bonds are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation of the
proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity
component are charged directly to equity. Transaction costs
relating to the liability component are included in the
carrying amount of the liability portion and amortised over
the period of the convertible and exchangeable bonds
using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 R 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

V.

Vi,

ViI.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial asset or
liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the original or
modified terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract issued by the Group and not designated as at
FVTPL is recognised initially at its fair value less transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issue of the
financial guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee
contact at the higher of: (i) the amount of the loss
allowance, being the ECLs provision measured in
accordance with principles of the accounting policy set out
in note 2.12(1l); and (ii) the amount initially recognised less,
when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 SR AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Viil.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation to the
financial asset expiration or when the financial asset has
been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for
derecognition in accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments to a
creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or in part as a
result of renegotiating the terms of that liability, the equity
instruments issued are the consideration paid and are
recognised initially and measured at their fair value on the
date the financial liability or part thereof is extinguished. If
the fair value of the equity instruments issued cannot be
reliably measured, the equity instruments are measured to
reflect the fair value of the financial liability extinguished.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability or part thereof extinguished and the consideration
paid is recognised in profit or loss for the year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 R 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESTTHEBE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.13 Financial instruments (accounting policies 213 T A(BZ2017F12A

applied until 31 December 2017)

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively, but has elected
not to restate comparative information. Accordingly, the
comparative financial information provided continues to be
accounted for in accordance with the Group’s previous
accounting policy.

/. Financial assets
The Group's accounting policies for financial assets other
than investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures are set out below.

Financial assets are classified into the following categories:

financial assets at FVTPL

loans and receivables
held-to-maturity investments
available-for-sale financial assets

Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition depending on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired and where allowed
and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at every
reporting date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 SR AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied until 31 December 2017) (Continued)

I,

Financial assets (Continued)

All financial assets are recognised when, and only when, the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Regular way purchases of financial assets are
recognised on trade date. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in
the case of investments not at FVTPL, directly attributable
transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets expire or are
transferred and substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred.

At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed to
assess whether there is objective evidence of impairment. If
any such evidence exists, impairment loss is determined
and recognised based on the classification of the financial
asset.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets held
for trading and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at FVTPL.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near
term, or it is part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that are managed together and for
which there is evidence of a recent pattern of short-
term profit-making. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments or financial guarantee contracts.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2,

Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 R 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Financial instruments (accounting policies

applied until 31 December 2017) (Continued)

I. Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial asset at FVTPL, except where
the embedded derivative does not significantly
modify the cash flows or it is clear that separation of
the embedded derivative is prohibited.

Financial assets may be designated upon initial
recognition as at FVTPL if the following criteria are
met:

— the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the assets or
recognising gains or losses on them on a
different basis; or

—  the assets are part of a group of financial assets
which are managed and their performance
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with a documented risk management strategy
and information about the group of financial
assets is provided internally on that basis to the
key management personnel; or

— the financial asset contains an embedded
derivative that would need to be separately
recorded.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 SR AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied until 31 December 2017) (Continued)

I. Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial assets
included in this category are measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Fair value is determined by reference to active market
transactions or using a valuation technique where no
active market exists. Fair value gain or loss does not
include any dividend or interest earned on these
financial assets. Dividend and interest income is
recognised in accordance with the Group's policies in
note 2.20 to these financial statements.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any impairment
losses. Amortised cost is calculated taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate and transaction cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the profit or loss when the loans and
receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as
through the amortisation process.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 R 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied until 31 December 2017) (Continued)

I. Financial assets (Continued)

(iif)

(iv)

Available-for-sale investments

Non-derivative financial assets that do not qualify for
inclusion in any of the other categories of financial
assets are classified as available-for-sale financial
assets.

All financial assets within this category are
subsequently measured at fair value. Gain or loss
arising from a change in the fair value excluding any
dividend and interest income is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in the available-for-sale financial assets revaluation
reserve in equity, except for impairment losses (see
the policy below) and foreign exchange gains and
losses on monetary assets, until the financial asset is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or
loss is reclassified from equity to profit or loss. Interest
calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in profit or loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such unquoted equity instruments, they
are measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses.

Held-to-maturity investments

These assets are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities
that the Group’s management has the positive
intention and ability to hold to maturity. Subsequent
to initial recognition, held-to-maturity investments
are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment
losses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 SR AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied until 31 December 2017) (Continued)

1.

Impairment loss on financial assets

At each reporting date, financial assets other than at FVTPL
are reviewed to determine whether there is any objective
evidence of impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual financial
assets includes observable data that comes to the attention
of the Group about one or more of the following loss
events:

—  significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; and

— asignificant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
an investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets include
observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from the group
of financial assets. Such observable data includes but not
limited to adverse changes in the payment status of debtors
in the group, national or local economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on the assets in the group, and the
failure to renegotiate the repayment terms of loan and
receivables that would otherwise be past due or impaired.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 R 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied until 31 December 2017) (Continued)

1.

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is measured
and recognised as follows:

(i)

(i)

Financial assets at amortised costs

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). The amount of the
loss is recognised in profit or loss of the period in
which the impairment occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed to the extent
that it does not result in a carrying amount of the
financial asset exceeding what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been
recognised at the date the impairment is reversed.
The amount of the reversal is recognised in profit or
loss of the period in which the reversal occurs.

Available-for-sale financial assets

When a decline in the fair value of an available-for-
sale financial asset has been recognised directly in
equity and there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired, an amount is removed from equity and
recognised in the profit or loss as impairment loss.
That amount is measured as the difference between
the asset’s acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in the profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 SR AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied until 31 December 2017) (Continued)

1. Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
(i) Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

Reversals in respect of investment in equity
instruments classified as available-for-sale are not
recognised in the profit or loss. The subsequent
increase in fair value is recognised directly in other
comprehensive income. Impairment losses in respect
of debt securities are reversed if the subsequent
increase in fair value can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised. Reversal of impairment losses in such
circumstances are recognised in the profit of loss.

Financial assets other than financial assets at FVTPL, loans
and receivables and held-to-maturity investments that are
stated at amortised cost, impairment losses are written off
against the corresponding assets directly. Where the
recovery of loans and receivables is considered doubtful but
not remote, the impairment losses for doubtful receivables
are recorded using an allowance account. When the Group
is satisfied that recovery of loans and receivables is remote,
the amount considered irrecoverable is written off against
loans and receivables directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account in respect of that receivable are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 R 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied until 31 December 2017) (Continued)

.

Financial liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities include bank and other
borrowings, trade and other payables, convertible and
exchangeable bonds and finance lease liabilities. They are
included in line items in the statement of financial position
as bank and other borrowings, finance lease liabilities, trade
payables, other payables and accruals, amount due to a
director, amounts due to associates, amounts due to
subsidiaries, amounts due to related parties, convertible and
exchangeable bonds and financial liabilities at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All
related finance costs are recognised in accordance with the
Group's accounting policy for finance costs (see note 2.25).

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amount is
recognised in profit or loss.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 SR AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied until 31 December 2017) (Continued)

.

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

Convertible and exchangeable bonds

Convertible and exchangeable bonds with conversion
options which are not settled by exchanging a fixed amount
of cash for a fixed number of shares comprise a derivative
component and a liability component.

At initial recognition, the derivative component of the
convertible and exchangeable bonds is measured at fair
value. Any excess of the proceeds over the amount initially
recognised as the derivative component is recognised as
the liability component. Transaction costs relating to the
issue of the convertible and exchangeable bonds are
allocated to the liability and derivative components in
proportion to the allocation of proceeds. The portion of the
transaction costs relating to the liability component is
recognised initially as part of the liability component. The
portion relating to the derivative component is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The derivative component is subsequently remeasured at
fair value, with changes in fair value recognised immediately
in profit or loss. The liability component is subsequently
measured at amortised cost. The interest expense
recognised in profit or loss on the liability component is
calculated using the effective interest method.

Finance lease liabilities

Finance lease liabilities are measured at initial value less the
capital element of lease repayments (see note 2.17).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 R 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied until 31 December 2017) (Continued)

V.

Financial guarantees issued

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer (or guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified
debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with
the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value
of the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred income
within other payables. Where consideration is received or
receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with the Group's
policies applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition
of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred
revenue is amortised in profit or loss over the term of the
guarantee as income from financial guarantees issued. In
addition, provisions are recognised if and when it becomes
probable that the holder of the guarantee will call upon the
Group under the guarantee and the amount of that claim
on the Group is expected to exceed the current carrying
amount, i.e. the amount initially recognised less
accumulated amortisation, where appropriate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R MY AT
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FTESHHEHME(E)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.14 Inventories 21478

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated cost of completion and
applicable selling expenses.

(i) Properties under development

The cost of properties under development for sale
comprises the acquisition cost of land, materials, labour and
other direct expenses and an appropriate proportion of
overheads, and capitalised finance cost (see note 2.25).

(i) Completed properties held-for-sale

Cost is determined by apportionment of the total land and
development costs for that development project
attributable to the unsold properties.

(i) Food, beverages and merchandise goods

Cost comprises the cost of purchased goods calculated
using first-in, first-out (“FIFO") method.

(iv)  Projection equipment

Cost comprises the manufacturing cost of product and the
cost of purchased raw materials calculated using FIFO
method.

(v)  Botanic-based personal care and fragrance products

Cost comprises the manufacturing cost of product and the
cost of purchased raw materials calculated using FIFO
method.

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in hand,
demand deposits with banks or other financial institutions, and
short-terms highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value. For the purpose of cash flow statement
presentation, cash and cash equivalents include bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group's cash management.

Nan Hai Corporation Limited @ ABEZERERAR

TFEIERA R A #HFED 2 RIEH
AR - ATERFETAR BEB 2
HEERMA T TR R ERHER
XS EUER ©

) BRREFY=E

BRPGEVEZRABREL
2 WHERA ~ W1k BT R
HMBEZRER  AREELH
ZEEERREENMEZRE
PR (BRI 225) °

(i) BERFEYF
XA TR AR & W) R (G 7% 3
REBZ LR ERKAEE
ZLLBIETE °

(i)  Rap - AB R ES
KA (BRI ABYRA) B 5
MW (TR E ) AR E -

(iv)  HBRER 1
RA(BREEEEMRKARE
AR R AR ) VA Fe 3 5 DO

e
FTE o

()  BEZREAEEREKEDR
A (BIEREE KA R B
ANRF R ) VA FE 5 5 DO

S o

215 REREFRSEH

RehkFERASAAERTRER
ERRE  ROIEMSBEE
X UERRIIMBER=E AN
TRERBRACNBER e AEE
2PRBBIZERASERDIER
B-pRERERER2ZMME - RE
RERB SRR BRRELEENE
AEERSEBEIEHD Z|RTE
% o




Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 R 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FTESHHEHE(H)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.16 Non-current assets held for sale and disposal Q16 FEHEZERBEER H
groups E4 5!
Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for MHIEBEBATNER  ERBEENTEE
sale when: BRI EARELE ¢

they are available for immediate sale;
management is committed a plan to sell;

it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan will be
made or that the plan will be withdrawn;

an active programme to locate a buyer has been initiated;

the asset or disposal group is being marketed at a
reasonable price in relation to its fair value; and

a sale is expected to complete within 12 months from the
date of clarification.

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale
are measured at the lower of:

their carrying amount immediately prior to being classified
as held for sale in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy; and

fair value less costs to sell.

Following their classification as held for sale, non-current assets
(including those in a disposal group) are not depreciated.

The results of operations disposed of during the year are included
in profit or loss up to the date of disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
2.17 Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that the
arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for an
agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether

the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

() Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as

operating leases.

(i) Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance
leases, the amounts representing the fair value of the leased
asset, or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease
payments of such assets, are included in property, plant and
equipment and the corresponding liabilities, net of finance
charges, are recorded as obligation under finance leases.

Subsequent accounting for assets held under finance lease
agreements corresponds to those applied to comparable
acquired assets. The corresponding finance lease liability is

reduced by lease payments less finance charges.

Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are charged

to profit or loss over the period of the leases so as to
produce an approximately constant periodic rate of charge
on the remaining balance of the obligations for each
accounting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 R 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #(Z 2018 12 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Leases (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
except where an alternative basis is more representative of
the time pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
assets. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or
loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rental are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

Assets leased out under operating leases as the lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases are measured and
presented according to the nature of the assets. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised as an expense over the lease term on the
same basis as the rental income.

Rental income receivable from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the time pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 SR AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, and it
is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of
the obligation can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote.

Contingent liabilities are recognised in the course of the allocation
of purchase price to the assets and liabilities acquired in a business
combination. They are initially measured at fair value at the date of
acquisition, unless the fair value cannot be measured reliably, and
subsequently measured at the higher of the amount that would
be recognised in a comparable provision as described above and
the amount initially recognised less any accumulated amortisation,
if appropriate.

2.19 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is determined
using the nominal value of shares that have been issued. Any
transaction costs associated with the issuing of shares are
deducted from share premium (net of any related income tax
benefit) to the extent they are incremental costs directly
attributable to the equity transaction.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 R 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FTESTHEBE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Revenue recognition

2.20 s R R

Revenue recognition (accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that apply
to the contract, control of the goods or service may be transferred
over time or at a point in time. Control of the goods or service is
transferred over time if the Group's performance:

— provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

—  creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as
the Group performs; or

— does not create an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time, revenue is
recognised over the period of the contract by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the goods or service.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amounts
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. Where the contract
contains a financing component which provides a significant
financing benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under that
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For contracts where
the period between the payment and the transfer of the promised
goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price is not
adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component,
using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 SR AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.20 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue recognition (accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018) (Continued)

(i)

Sale of properties

Revenue arising from the sale of properties developed for
sale in the ordinary course of business is recognised when
legal assignment is completed, which is the point in time
when the customer has the ability to direct the use of the
property and obtain substantially all of the remaining
benefits of the property. Deposits and instalments received
on properties sold prior to the date of revenue recognition
are included in the statement of financial position under
contract liabilities defined below.

When residential properties are marketed by the Group
while the property is still under construction, the Group may
offer a discount compared to the listed sales price, provided
the customer agrees to pay the balance of the consideration
early. In such cases, if the advance payments are regarded
as providing a significant financing benefit to the Group,
interest expense arising from the adjustment of time value
of money will be accrued by the Group during the period
between the payment date and the completion date of
legal assignment. This accrual increases the balance of the
contract liability during the period of construction, and
therefore increases the amount of revenue recognised
when control of the completed property is transferred to
the customer. The interest is expensed as accrued unless it
is eligible to be capitalised under HKAS 23, Borrowing costs,
in accordance with the policies set out in note 2.25.

In the comparative period, revenue from sales of properties
was recognised upon the later of the signing of the sale and
purchase agreement and the completion of the properties,
which was taken to be the point in time when the risks and
rewards of ownership of the property had passed to the
buyer. Deposits and instalments received on properties sold
prior to the date of revenue recognition were included in
the statement of financial position under receipt in advance
and deferred revenue and no interest expense was accrued
on payments received in advance. As a result of the change
in accounting policy for accruing interest on payments in
advance, adjustments have been made to opening balances
asat 1 January 2018 (see note 3.1).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 R 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue recognition (accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018) (Continued)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

Cinema ticketing income

Ticket income from the sale of tickets owned and controlled
by the Group is recognised over the period when the
corresponding movie presented to the ticket holders. No
adjustment has been made to opening balances as a result
of the adoption of new HKFRS 15

Advertising revenue

Advertising revenue are recognised in the accounting
period in which the services are rendered, by reference to
completion of the specific transaction assessed on the basis
of the actual service provided as a proportion of the total
services to be provided. When services are performed by an
indeterminate number of acts over a specified period of
time, revenue is recognised over the specified period of
time unless there is evidence that some other method
better represents the stage of completion.

Sales of personal care and fragrance products

The Group sells personal care and fragrance products
through chain of retail stores and e-commerce platforms.
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when a group
entity sells and has delivered a product to the customer and
the Group received sales and acceptance confirmations,
and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
customer’s acceptance of the products. Payment of the
transaction price is due immediately when the customer
purchases the goods.

Cloud service revenue

Revenue from cloud services are recognised in the
accounting period in which the services are rendered, by
reference to completion of the specific transaction assessed
on the basis of the actual service provided as a proportion
of the total services to be provided. When services are
performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a
specified period of time, revenue is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the specified period of time unless
there is evidence that some other method better represents
the stage of completion.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 SR AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue recognition (accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018) (Continued)

(vi)  Otherrevenue
Sales of food and beverages, merchandise and souvenir are
recognised when goods are delivered. Interest income is
recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective
interest method. Dividend income is recognised when the
right to receive payment is established.

Revenue recognition (accounting policies applied until 31 December
2017)

Revenue arising from the sale of properties held for sale is
recognised when the risks and rewards of the properties are
transferred to the purchasers, which is when the construction of
relevant properties has been completed and the properties have
been delivered to the purchasers pursuant to the sales agreement
and collectability of related receivables is reasonably assured.
Deposits and instalments received on properties sold prior to the
date of revenue recognition are included in the statement of
financial position under receipt in advance and deferred revenue.

Sales of goods are recognised upon transfer of the significant risks
and rewards of ownership to the customer. This is usually taken as
the time when the goods are delivered and the customer has
accepted the goods.

Sales of services are recognised in the accounting period in which
the services are rendered, by reference to completion of the
specific transaction assessed on the basis of the actual service
provided as a proportion of the total services to be provided.

Cinema ticketing income from the sale of tickets owned and
controlled by the Group is recognised as income when the ticket
is issued.

Sales of food and beverages, merchandise and souvenir are
recognised when goods are delivered.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the
effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment
is established.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 R 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Contract assets and liabilities (accounting policies applied from 1
January 2018)

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration in
exchange for services that the Group has transferred to a customer
that is not yet unconditional. In contrast, a receivable represents
the Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the
passage of time is required before payment of that consideration
is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.

Any amount previously recognised as a contract asset is
reclassified to trade receivables at the point at which it is invoiced
to the customer. If the considerations (including advances
received from customers) exceeds the revenue recognised to date
under the output method then the Group recognises a contract
liability for the difference.

Contract costs (Accounting policies applied from 1 January 2018)

The Group recognises an asset from the costs incurred to fulfil a
contract when those costs meet all of the following criteria:

(@)  the costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the entity can specifically identify;

(b)  the costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that
will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy)
performance obligations in the future; and

(c)  the costs are expected to be recovered.

The asset recognised is subsequently amortised to profit or loss on
a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to the
customer of the goods or services to which the cost relate. The
asset is subject to impairment review.
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BF 755 SR AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

2'

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Receipt in advance and deferred revenue

(accounting policies applied until 31 December
2017)

Receipt in advance and deferred revenue consists primarily of
deposits and instalments received on properties sold prior to the
date of revenue recognition, deferred revenue from prepaid
service fees received from customers and fair value of bonus
liabilities granted to customers in accordance with the announced
bonus point scheme and the Group's past experience on the level
of redemption of points. Revenue from deposits and instalments
received on properties sold is recognised when the properties
have been delivered to the purchasers pursuant to the sales
agreement and collectability of related receivables is reasonably
assured. Revenue from prepaid service fees and bonus liabilities
are recognised when the relevant services are rendered.

2.22 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.
Government grants are deferred and recognised in profit or loss
over the period necessary to match them with the costs that the
grants are intended to compensate. Government grants relating
to the purchase of assets are included in liabilities as deferred
government grants in the statement of financial position and are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
expected lives of the related assets.

Government grants relating to income is presented in gross under
"Other operating income” in profit or loss.

2.23 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of subsidiary, other intangible
assets, property, plant and equipment, prepaid land lease
payments under operating leases, non-current portion of deposits
and, interests in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are
subject to impairment testing.

Goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite useful life or
those not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least
annually, irrespective of whether there is any indication that they
are impaired. All other assets are tested for impairment whenever
there are indications that the asset’s carrying amount may not be
recoverable.
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BF 755 R 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FTESTHEBE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

223 FEemEERE(HE)

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value, reflecting market conditions less costs to sell, and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessment of time value of money
and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent from those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generate cash inflows independently
(i.e. a CGU). As a result, some assets are tested individually for
impairment and some are tested at CGU level. Goodwill in
particular is allocated to those CGUs that are expected to benefit
from synergies of the related business combination and represent
the lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purpose.

Impairment losses recognised for CGUs, to which goodwill has
been allocated, are credited initially to the carrying amount of
goodwill. Any remaining impairment loss is charged pro rata to
the other assets in the CGU, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value less cost to
sell, or value in use, if determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods. In respect of other assets, an impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the asset's recoverable amount and only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 SR AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Employee benefits

(i

(if)

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick
leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.

Retirement benefits

The Group operates several staff retirement schemes for
employees in Hong Kong and Mainland China, the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"), comprising defined
contribution pension schemes and a Mandatory Provident
Fund (“MPF") scheme. The assets of these schemes are held
separately from those of the Group in independently
administered funds. The retirement schemes are generally
funded by payments from employees and by the relevant
subsidiaries of the Group.

The subsidiaries operating in Mainland China are required
to participate in the defined contribution retirement
scheme for their employees, organised by the relevant local
government authorities. They are required to make
contributions to the retirement schemes at a rate of 10% to
22% (depending on the locations of the subsidiaries) of
basic salaries of their employees and there are no other
further obligations to the Group.

Before 1 December 2000, the Group operated a defined
contribution retirement scheme (the “ORSO Scheme”) in
Hong Kong for all qualified employees. The rate of
contribution payable by the Group was 5% of the individual
employees’ monthly basic salaries. The Group’s
contributions under the ORSO Scheme were reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who left the
scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions. There are
no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions after payment of the fixed contribution.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 R 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Employee benefits (Continued)

(if)

(iii)

Retirement benefits (Continued)

The Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority has
approved the ORSO Scheme as a Mandatory Provident
Fund Exempted Occupational Retirement Scheme under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (the
“MPF Schemes Ordinance”). With effect from 1 December
2000, the MPF Scheme was also set up under the MPF
Schemes Ordinance for existing staff who opt for this
scheme and eligible staff recruited on or after that date.
When the underlying staff elects the MPF Scheme, pension
scheme benefits attributed to the staff under the ORSO
Scheme remain unchanged in the MPF Scheme. Under the
MPF Scheme, eligible employees are required to contribute
5% of their monthly basic salaries whereas the Group's
monthly contribution will be 5% of the relevant employee’s
basic salaries with a maximum monthly contribution of
HK$1,500 (2017: HK$1,500). There are no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions after
payment of the fixed contribution.

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss when the services
are rendered by the employees. Liabilities and assets may
be recognised if underpayment or prepayment has
occurred and are included in current liabilities or current
assets as they are normally of a short term nature.

Share-based employee compensation
Share option

The Group operates equity-settled share-based
compensation plans for remuneration of its employees.

Where share options are awarded to employees and others
providing similar services, the fair value of the services
received is measured by reference to the fair value of the
options at the date of grant. Such fair value is recognised in
profit or loss over the vesting period with a corresponding
increase in the share option reserve within equity. Non-
market vesting conditions are taken into account by
adjusting the number of equity instruments expected to
vest at the end of each reporting period so that, ultimately,
the cumulative amount recognised over the vesting period
is based on the number of options that eventually vest.
Market vesting conditions are factored into the fair value of
the options granted. As long as all non-market vesting
conditions are satisfied, a charge is made irrespective of
whether the market vesting conditions are satisfied. The
cumulative expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve a
market vesting condition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 SR AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Employee benefits (Continued)
(i) Share-based employee compensation (Continued)
Share option (Continued)

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified
before they vest, the increase in the fair value of the options,
measured immediately before and after the modification, is
also recognised in profit or loss over the remaining vesting
period.

Restricted Share Award Scheme

The Group operates a restricted share award scheme (the
“Restricted Share Award Scheme”) and restricted shares may
be granted under the Restricted Share Award Scheme for
remuneration of its employees and directors (“Restricted
Shares”).

All services received in exchange for the grant of any
Restricted Shares are measured at fair value. These are
indirectly determined by reference to the fair value of the
Restricted Shares granted. Its value is appraised at the grant
date and excludes the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting condition (for example,
profitability and sales growth targets, if any).

All services received is ultimately recognised as an expense
in profit or loss over the vesting period if vesting conditions
apply, or recognised as an expense in full at the grant date
when Restricted Shares granted vest immediately unless the
expense qualifies for the recognition as asset, with a
corresponding increase in “Share-based Payments Reserve”
within equity. If service or non-market performance
conditions apply, the expense is recognised over the vesting
period, based on the best available estimate of the number
of Restricted Shares expected to vest. Non-market
performance and service conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of Restricted Shares that are
expected to vest. Estimates are subsequently revised, if
there is any indication that the number of Restricted Shares
expected to vest differs from previous estimates. The impact
of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects
the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
share-based payments reserve.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FTESTHEBE(E)

POLICIES (Continued)

224 EEERI (&)

2.24 Employee benefits (Continued)

(i) Share-based employee compensation (Continued)
Restricted Share Award Scheme (Continued)

Where a grant of Restricted Shares is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the grant is recognised
immediately. This includes any grant where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or the
employee are not met.

The Restricted Shares awarded under the Restricted Share
Award Scheme are issued by a subsidiary of the Company
to custodian at nil consideration. When the Restricted
Shares are transferred to the awardees upon vesting, the
related service costs of Restricted Shares vested are debited
to the “Share-based Payments Reserve” and credit to “Share
Capital”. Where the Restricted Shares held for employee
share-based payments reserve are revoked and the revoked
shares are disposed of, the related proceed is transferred to
“Share Capital”.

2.25 Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying asset which require a substantial period
of time to be ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. Income earned on temporary
investments of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
those assets is deducted from borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

2.26 Accounting for income taxes

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those
obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities relating to the
current or prior reporting period, that are unpaid at the reporting
date. They are calculated according to the tax rates and tax laws
applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the
taxable profit for the year. All changes to current tax assets or
liabilities are recognised as a component of income tax expense in
profit or loss.
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BF 755 SR AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

2'

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.26 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for tax
purposes. Except for goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax
liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither taxable nor
accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period the liability is settled or the
asset realised, provided they are enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised in profit
or loss, or in other comprehensive income or directly in equity if
they relate to items that are charged or credited to other
comprehensive income or directly to equity.

2.27 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepare segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the executive directors for their decisions about
resources allocation to the Group's business components and for
their review of the performance of those components. The
business components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined following the
Group's major product and service lines.

2.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 R 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #(Z 2018 12 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FTESTHEBE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.27 Segment reporting (Continued)

The Group has identified the following reportable segments:
(@)  Enterprise cloud services**

(b)  Property development

() Culture and media services

(d)  News media business*

(e)  Innovative business

* Despite operating in the novel form of internet, the core value of this
segment is news media communication. Therefore, the name of the segment
is amended from “Internet lifestyle platform” to “News media business” to
reflect its commercial substance.

** By virtue of the all-rounded internet-based services, e-commerce and total
Internet+ resolutions offered for small and medium-sized enterprises and
clients in the PRC, the Group remained adamant about the provision of cloud
service for the development of digitalisation and smart operation, and has
successfully launched a series of leading to enable cloud services corporate
digitalisation and smart operation in the industry after prolonged exploration
and unremitting efforts. Therefore, the segment and its revenue has changed
its name from “Corporate IT application services” to “Enterprise cloud
services” as cloud service has been becoming core of the business.

Information about other business activities and operating
segments that are not reportable are combined and disclosed in
“all other segments”. All other segments included trading of
securities and property management.

Each of these operating segments is managed separately as each
of the product and service lines requires different resources as well
as marketing approaches.

Inter-segment transactions are priced with reference to prices
charged to external parties for similar order. Certain corporate
income and expenses are not allocated to the operating segments
as they are not included in the measure of segment’s profit or loss
that is used by the chief operating decision maker for assessment
of segment performance.
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BF 755 R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

2.27 Segment reporting (Continued)

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting segment
results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those used in its financial
statements prepared under HKFRSs, except that:

Certain depreciation and amortisation
Certain bank and other interest income
Certain finance costs

Income tax expense

Corporate income and expenses which are not directly
attributable to the business activities or any operating
segment

are not included in arriving at the operating results of the
operating segment.

Segment assets include all assets directly attributable to the
operating segments. Financial assets at FVOCI (2017: available-for-
sale financial assets), amounts due from related parties, pledged
and restricted bank deposits and other corporate assets are not
allocated to any operating segment.

Segment liabilities exclude corporate liabilities which are not
directly attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment and are not allocated to a segment. These include
provision for tax, bank and other borrowings and amount due to a
director.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to reportable
segments.

2.28 Related parties

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family is related
to the Group if that person:

(M) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Company's parent.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #(Z 2018 12 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.28 Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

0)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the Group's parent.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.FESTTHEME (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.28 Related parties (Continued) 2.28BAEA L ()

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

3. ADOPTION OF NEW/AMENDED HKFRSs 3.

3.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
January 2018

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the
following new/amended HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, which are
relevant to and effective for the Group’s financial statements for
the annual period beginning on 1 January 2018:
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Amendments to HKAS 28,
Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions

Financial Instruments

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle
Amendments to HKFRS 2
HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers
Amendments to HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Clarifications to
HKFRS 15)
Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property
HK(FRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW/AMENDED HKFRSs 3. BR&NEE] RIEFTEAMBER
(Continued) EXRR|(E])

3.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1 3.1 HAIET RIS EBMK

January 2018 (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle — Amendments to
HKAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendments issued under the annual improvements process
make small, non-urgent changes to standards where they are
currently unclear. They include amendments to HKAS 28,
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, clarifying that a
venture capital organisation’s permissible election to measure its
associates or joint ventures at fair value is made separately for
each associate or joint venture.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 — Classification and Measurement of Share-
based Payment Transactions

The amendments provide requirements on the accounting for the
effects of vesting and non-vesting conditions on the
measurement of cash-settled share-based payments; share-based
payment transactions with a net settlement feature for
withholding tax obligations; and a modification to the terms and
conditions of a share-based payment that changes the
classification of the transaction from cash-settled to equity-settled.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact on these
financial statements as the Group does not have any cash-settled
share-based payment transaction and has no share-based
payment transaction with net settlement features for withholding
tax obligations.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW/AMENDED HKFRSS
(Continued)

3.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1

January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”)

(0

Classification and measurement of financial instruments (i)

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018, bringing together all
three aspects of the accounting for financial instruments: (1)
classification and measurement; (2) impairment; and (3)
hedge accounting. The adoption of HKFRS 9 from 1 January
2018 has resulted in changes in accounting policies of the
Group and the amounts recognised in the consolidated

financial statements.

The following tables summarise the impact, net of tax, of
transition to HKFRS 9 on the opening balance of retained
earnings and FVOCI reserve as of 1 January 2018 as follows

(increase/(decrease)):

3. % EF%T!.@%%TE%E?H’%%

S£XER| (]

3.1 M RETEBMK
HREER — 52018F 1 A1
HEEEM (&)

BB BEHREEREN — 2@ T
A (BB BHREERZ %))

SRTACZHERIE

BB WA AR 95K 2018

F1 51 B bA&RA 2 FEH

MR BB ERIE RS

BMITHE: BRAKE ' &66d

BMITAESHZHAE=@EF@E :

MPFERETE: QBME: kRO)

Homeste B2018F1 818

BERME BT IS RELERE

SR EBANE RS BUOR IR

AU BREAMERSHBELES

@J °

TREMAREEEETHHRE
AR F SR E B E 201851 A1
B2 RBBFBNE R RIER
REEREMEERSEEZ
EEEWN T ENRBE) (3

m/Crd))
HK$’000
FET
Retained earnings REZF
Retained earnings as at 31 December 2017 2017512 A 31 B2 {REB & 1,985,580
Increase in ECLs in trade receivables and JEWE 55078 MR e K H Ath fE WG TE
deposits and other receivables Z TBEME B R R N
(note (ii) below) (T 3B & (i) (139,139)
Increase in deferred tax assets relating to B RARERE CRER IR & EE N
impairment provisions 34,784
Restated retained earnings as at 1 January 2018 201841 A1 B 2 & E5(REE & F| 1,881,225
FVOCI reserve RARBEREMZEKREE 2 @G
Reserve balance at 31 December 2017 201712 B 31 B2 [EEHE#H -
Restated reserve balance as at 1 January 2018 201841 A1 B2 R EYEEEH (1,580)
FVOCI reserve as at 1 January 2018 R20185F1 A1 BZ2EAREBE
READ R E R R IR 2 R (1,580)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 R 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW/AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

3.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) (Continued)

()

Classification and measurement of financial instruments
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification and
measurement requirements for financial liabilities from
HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities designated at FVTPL,
where the amount of change in fair value attributable to
change in credit risk of the liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income unless that would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9 retains the
requirements in HKAS 39 for derecognition of financial
assets and financial liabilities. However, it eliminates the
previous HKAS 39 categories for financial assets of held to
maturity financial assets, loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets. The adoption of HKFRS 9
has no material impact on the Group’s accounting policies
related to financial liabilities and derivative financial
instruments. The impact of HKFRS 9 on the Group's
classification and measurement of financial assets is set out
below.

ERENETE] RAERT B B B 3R

HEA ()
3.1 RANFE]REITERBK

WREER — H2018F1 A1
BB (&)
EAUBREEBES — 2BT
A ([BHEUBHRELRE %)) ()
() SBMIAZHEREE)

TRV BRELERNFEIRRE
FREGFTEAF R ERT A
BEZER  DBEKFEZR
E o EEERARBEERES
FREIEZSBBERN  EE
BEEERREZEFMSIBZA
AEBEEHEENEMEER
mRER BEEEmRes
BB KEAS A A(ER]
oo Mo - BAM B oG ER
FORRE BB G EAIE 39
BARKLEREREERS
BMEBEZHE - A KK
BEFEEFTEAFE9RERE
REINHEREE  BERRE
WHRBBARAHHESREE
ZERMEERR - AT EY
BRELEREIFHAERR
MEeRAERITESRTAZ
S RRLBERTE - BE
BB ELANFORHAEE
EMEENBRAEZHEH
RTX -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 SR AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW/AMENDED HKFRSs 3. RWEE] BT EBHKR
(Continued) HER(8)
3.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1 3.1 AW RIETEBME
January 2018 (Continued) HEZEA — BH2018F1 A1
HEB4E M (&)
HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9") (Continued) BB BHMEERFEIN — /T
A ([BEYBHREERFE %) (&)
(i)  Classification and measurement of financial instruments () S@MIAEZoHfERt=E &)
(Continued)
Under HKFRS 9, except for certain trade receivables (that the RIE BB ISR 22 BI Z5 055 -
trade receivables do not contain a significant financing GETEKESZEBE(RES
component in accordance with HKFRS 15), an entity shall, at B IS IRE RIS 1557 - UL
initial recognition, measures a financial asset at its fair value B HIETEBEERNTE I
plus, in the case of a financial asset not at FVTPL, transaction D) BENY S HERE
costs. A financial asset is classified as: (i) financial assets at BERARBEFESHEE -
amortised cost; (i) financial assets at FVOCI; or (iii) financial MW IEIZ AR BENERERE
assets at FVTPL (as defined above). The classification of Brz&mEE RSN 5K
financial assets under HKFRS 9 is generally based on two Ko RMEEDHER  ()IRE
criteria: (i) the business model under which the financial HRAYER 2 SREE  (N1&R
asset is managed and (ii) its contractual cash flow AREBEREMEZEBNSRIE
characteristics (the “solely payments of principal and CEMEE  KGNVEALBE
interest” criterion, also known as “SPPI criterion”). Under REZFEEEZSRMEE(TE
HKFRS 9, embedded derivatives is no longer required to be EH EX) - BREFBVBRS
separated from a host financial asset. Instead, the hybrid ERFIF 2 EMEEDFE—
financial instrument is assessed as a whole for the MERRMEZE: (BEESR
classification. EEMEBEHBEARMHES

HwHReRERB(EAXAR
& RS LR - JRiE & [SPPI
£8)) o RIBEBIM KRS ZER
Fok MARTETIETFH
BARTBEMEESFAITR -
Bz BEEREMIASD
KBRS AR RERT(Y o

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets ECRMEERKFE N TE
both of the following conditions and it has not been % BV EETRAABER
designated as at FVTPL: BanREE  AZemEER
L DN
It is held within a business model whose objective is c EEEREERMAEMN
to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual WEEHNRSREZE
cash flows; and BEATHE &
The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise : REBMEEZ B NIRK
on specified dates to cash flows that meet the SPPI ¥ E B BREL R A SPPI
criterion. EBIZIRERE °
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 R 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW/AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

3.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) (Continued)

()

Classification and measurement of financial instruments
(Continued)

A debt investment is measured at FVOC!I if it meets both of
the following conditions and it has not been designated as
at FVTPL:

It is held within a business model whose objective is
to be achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets; and

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that meet the SPPI
criterion.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not
held for trading, the Group could irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value
in other comprehensive income. This election is made on
an investment-by-investment basis. All other financial assets
not classified at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above
are classified as FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial
assets. On initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortised cost or FVOC! or
FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

—E-)\FEFR @ Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 SR AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW/AMENDED HKFRSs

(Continued)

3.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) (Continued)

()

Classification and measurement of financial instruments

(Continued)

The following accounting policies would be applied to the
Group's financial assets as follows:

FVTPL

Amortised cost

FVOCI
(debt
investments)

FVOCI
(equity
investments)

FVTPL is subsequently measured at fair
value. Changes in fair value, dividends
and interest income are recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost are
subsequently measured using the
effective interest rate method. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in
profit or loss. Any gain on derecognition
is recognised in profit or loss.

Debt investments at FVOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value.
Interest income calculated using the
effective interest rate method, foreign
exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or
loss. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive
income. On derecognition, gains and
losses accumulated in other
comprehensive income are reclassified
to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI are
measured at fair value. Dividend income
are recognised in profit or loss unless
the dividend income clearly represents
a recovery of part of the cost of the
investments. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive
income and are not reclassified to profit
or loss.

Nan Hai Corporation Limited m ABEZERERAR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 R 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW/AMENDED HKFRSs

(Continued)

3.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) (Continued)

()

Classification and measurement of financial instruments
(Continued)

(a)

As of 1 January 2018, certain investment in unlisted
equity investments were reclassified from available-
for-sale financial assets to FVOCI. The Group intends
to hold these equity investments for long term
strategic purposes. Under HKFRS 9, the Group has
designated these equity investments at the date of
initial application (the “DIA") as measured at FVOCI. As
a result, financial assets with a carrying value of
HK$135,591,000 were reclassified from available-for-
sale financial assets at cost to FVOCI and fair value loss
of HKS$1,580,000 were recognised to the FVOCI
reserve on 1 January 2018.

In addition to (a) above, listed debt investments were
reclassified from held-to-maturity investment to
financial assets at amortised cost, as the Group's
business model is to collect contractual cash flow
from these financial assets. These listed debt
investments meet the SPPI criterion. As such, listed
debt investments with a fair value of HK$120,106,000
were reclassified from held-to-maturity investment to
financial assets at amortised cost and there was no
impact on the statement of financial position on 1
January 2018.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

T

3. ADOPTION OF NEW/AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

3.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1

January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) (Continued)

()

Classification and measurement of financial instruments

(Continued)

3.

The following table summarises the original measurement
categories under HKAS 39 and the new measurement
categories under HKFRS 9 for each class of the Group's
financial assets as at 1 January 2018:

P CHES L £

A

3.1 RANFE]REITERBK

—

Al (&

HREER — 52018F 1 A1
HABEM (&)
EHSRELAE R — BT
B ([EAHHRELRZ %) (&)
() SBIAZHERIHEE)

TREMASEER2018F 1 A1
ASESREERBEE B S
ERIZE0RR BT 2R RIR
BEBUBREENFEIRZ
FtEER

Carrying Carrying
amount as at amount as at
Original classification New classification 1January 2018 1 January 2018
Financial assets under HKAS 39 under HKFRS 9 under HKAS 39 under HKFRS 9
BEEE BREEBE: BRESBUY
gt BRIZE395 BEERF R
BEFEST ZRE 9 R2018F1HA18 M2018F181A
tRIEE ZHE39HREER 2R ZIREE ZIEHE
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TERT
Listed equity investments Held-for-trading FVTPL 199,474 199,474
ETRARE HEBEE RAABENEREREE
Unlisted debt investments Available-for-sale financial assets FvOC! 324 324
(at fair value)
I EmEBRE AHHESREE BRAABEREMEZE
(BAAEBETIR) LGl
Listed debt investments Held-to-maturity investment Amortised cost 120,106 120,106
(note (i)(b))
EMEBEE FEZIERE (b)) BHAA
Unlisted equity investments Available-for-sale financial assets FvoCI 135,591 134,011
(at cost) (note (i)(a))
FETRAKE AfthEeREE BARBEREMZE
(FRECARFIBR ) (HIEE G)(a)) LGl
Trade receivables, depositsand Loans and receivables Amortised cost 2,724,822 2,585,683
other receivables
ERESHHIE  Bek ERRENE BHEAA
H it e
Other loans and receivables Loans and receivables Amortised cost 272,117 272,117
HiEHRERRE ERREWHIE 3 [HFIN
Pledged and restricted Loans and receivables Amortised cost 8,672,079 8,672,079
bank deposits
BEARZBRERITER  ERRERFE B
Cash and cash equivalents Loans and receivables Amortised cost 4,397,710 4,397,710
RekERBLHER R KR BN
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 R 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW/AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

3.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has changed the Group’s
impairment model by replacing the HKAS 39 “incurred loss
model” to the “ECL model”. HKFRS 9 requires the Group to
recognise ECLs for trade receivables, financial assets at
amortised cost and debt investment at FVOCI earlier than
HKAS 39. Cash and cash equivalents are subject to ECL
model but the impairment is immaterial for the current year.

Under HKFRS 9, the losses allowances are measured on
either of the following bases: (1) 12 months ECLs: these are
the ECLs that result from possible default events within the
12 months after the reporting date; and (2) lifetime ECLs:
these are ECLs that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is
then discounted at an approximation to the assets’ original
effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for trade
receivables using HKFRS 9 simplified approach and has
calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.
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BF 755 SR AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW/AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

3.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based on the
12-month ECLs. The 12-month ECLs is the portion of the
lifetime ECLs that results from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. However, when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since origination, the allowance will be
based on the lifetime ECLs. When determining whether the
credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the
Group considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort.
This includes both quantitative and qualitative information
and analysis, based on the Group's historical experience and
informed credit assessment and including forward-looking
information. The Group'’s debt investment at FVOCI are
considered to have low credit risk since the issuers’ credit
rating are high.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset
has increased significantly if it is more than 90 days past
due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when:
(1) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to
the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to actions
such as realising security (if any is held); or (2) the financial
asset is more than 360 days past due.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is
the maximum contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #(Z 2018 12 A31 HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW/AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

3.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Presentation of ECLs

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised
cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the
assets. For debt investment at FVOCI, the loss allowance is
recognised in other comprehensive income, instead of
reducing the carrying amount of the assets.

Impact of the ECL model

(@)  Impairment of trade receivables

As mentioned above, the Group applies the HKFRS 9
simplified approach to measure ECLs which adopts a
lifetime ECLs for all trade receivables. To measure the
ECLs, trade receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past
due. The loss allowance as at 1 January 2018 was
determined for trade receivables as follows:

3.

ﬂ%ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬂ{%&?ﬂ%ﬂé%ﬂﬁ%ﬁ

H2EH (4F)

3.1 RFR] BT E BB
WREER — H2018F1 A1
BB (&)
EAUBREEBES — 2BT
A ([BHEUBHREERE 5 )) ()

(i)

CREEZREE)
2y EREEER

BEHRAGNEZSBMEEL
EBREREREEREAETN
B iR BEREMEE
WeHREZBEBREMS B
BEERN R 2R ERER
m3E 8 & EREER IR °

BHEEBIERACEE

@) EREZHREZRE
B E SRR - AEE
FE A & 7 B 75 3R = 2E Rl
BB AT 2TEHE
BEEE 2BEKRES
REHAE2HEHEE
BB AfERSEEER
B BRESHHEE
RIFEGEERRKR R
RSB REDE - Bl
B S IBR2018F 1 A1

Bz ERBEETNT
Overdue for
0-90days 91-180days 181-270days 271-360days  more than
past due past due past due past due 360 days Total
1January 2018 2018F1A81A 0-90H 91-180H 181-270 8 271-360A 360 AU £ gt
Gross carrying amount (HKS000)  BRAVAR(E (TATT) 379,390 223,654 31,496 26,653 48,538 709,731
Less: Individually assessed A RERE R - (52,043) - - (19,977) (72,020)
(HKS'000) (Fi&m)
Carrying amount under collective 1R £ 831 8 2 REME 379,390 171,611 31,496 26,653 28,561 637,711
measurement (HK$'000) (F71)
Expected credit loss rate (%) BHEERRX ) 0.1% 1.0% 3.0% 5.0% 20.0%
ECLIoss allowance for collective ~ FhERH E 7 BHIEE (379) (1,716) (945) (1,334) (5712) (10,086)
measurement (HKS'000) BRBRER(TAT)
Individually assessed loss allowance & {ARIE R4 2 BiE - (52,043) - - (19,977) (72,020)
(HK000) BE(TET)
Total loss allowance (HKS'000)  ESB&RBESE(TAT) (379) (53,759) (945) (1334) (25,689) (82,106)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW/AMENDED HKFRSs

(Continued)

3.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) (Continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Impact of the ECL model (Continued)

(a)

Impairment of trade receivables (Continued)

The increase in loss allowance for trade receivables
upon the transition to HKFRS 9 as of 1 January 2018
were HK$52,043,000. The loss allowances further
increased by HK$4,303,000 during the year ended 31
December 2018.

Impairment of debt investments

All of the Group’s debt investments at amortised cost
and FVOCI are considered to have low credit risk, and
the loss allowance recognised during the year was
therefore limited to 12 months ECLs. The directors
considered that the loss allowance for the Group's
debt investments under 12 months ECLs are
insignificant and no provision is made.

Nan Hai Corporation Limited ABEZERERAR
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW/AMENDED HKFRSs 3.
(Continued)

3.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
January 2018 (Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 R 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #(Z 2018 12 A31 HILFE

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Impact of the ECL model (Continued)

(@]

Impairment of deposits and other receivables

As mentioned above, the Group applies the HKFRS 9
general approach to measure ECLs which adopts a
12-month ECLs for deposits and other receivables. To
measure the ECLs, deposits and other receivables
have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. The loss
allowance as at 1 January 2018 was determined for
deposits and other receivables as follows:

H%%T/&WTE%X&E

E\U ( IIE.

&1%%%%/@%%?%%&

HREER — 52018F 1 A1
HABEM (&)
EASRE LA LR — BT
B ([EAHHRELRZ %)) (&)
i) SMEEZRMEGE)
EHEEERER Y P E(E)

© BehHEMEKFIAZ
B
B LA NEE

FEA BB KRS A
Fos— A ETERE
BB mekHEME
WHEFER2EREE
BB BstEEHEE
i Ee REAMEIR
FECREEEEER
B a B A -
12 & & H A FE R SR E R
20184F 1 A1 B 7 518 #

BEFENT
Overdue for
0-90days 91-180days 181-270days 271-360days  more than
past due past due past due past due 360 days Total
1January 2018 2018F1A1A 0-90F  91-1808  181-2708  271-360B 360 AL L szt
Gross carrying amount (HKS000)  BRATA(E (THTT) 625,569 162,598 136,476 213,084 934,907 2,072,634
Less: Individually assessed B ZERBRE (244,413)  (111,570) (53,322) (83253)  (399,653)  (892.211)
(HKS'000) (F#1)
Carrying amount under collective 1R £ 8318 2 REfE 381,156 51,028 83,154 129,831 535254 1,180,423
measurement (HK$'000) (F&T)
Expected credit loss rate (%) BHEERRX ) 0.1% 1.0% 3.0% 5.0% 10.0%
ECLlossallowance for collective ~ FLER:HE v BHEE (381) (510) (2,495) (6,492) (53,525) (63,403)
measurement (HK5000) BREzEERE(TEL)
Individually assessed loss allowance & {ARIE R4 2 B5iE . - - . (51,173) (51,173)
(HKS'000) R (TAT)
Total lossallowance (HKS000) iR A% (T T) (381) (510) (2,495) (6492  (104,698)  (114576)

The increase in loss allowance for deposits and other
receivables upon the transition to HKFRS 9 as of 1
January 2018 were HK$87,096,000. The loss
allowances further increased by HK$33,112,000
during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW/AMENDED HKFRSs

(Continued)

3.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1

January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) (Continued)

(i)

(iif)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Impact of the ECL model (Continued)

3. &
Hl

A

N

T/ BT ERIEBE

| (48

3.1 RANFE]REITERBK

WEER — H2018F1 A1
BB (&)

EAUBREEBES — 2BT
A ([BHEUBHRELRE %)) ()

(i)

As a result of the above changes, the impact of the new
HKFRS 9 impairment model results in additional impairment

allowance as follows:

CREEZREE)
BEREEEEEA LT E(E)

MR L EE - HETREMHB
BERAEISRBEREAZF
BEYBINBERBLT

HK$’000
FET
Loss allowance as at 1 January 2018 under RBREBGFTERE 395
HKAS 39 M2018451 A1 HZ EHEEE 57,543
Additional impairment recognised B E 5 RIAR 2 BINRE
for trade receivables 52,043
Additional impairment recognised i e K E At B GRIBTER 2
for deposits and other receivables HINBIE 87,096
Loss allowance as at 1 January 2018 under RIFEBYEXER|ZE 955
HKFRS 9 201841 A1 B ZEBEE 196,682

Hedge accounting

(ifi)

Hedge accounting under HKFRS 9 has no impact on the
Group as the Group does not apply hedge accounting in its

hedging relationships.

Nan Hai Corporation Limited @ ABEZERERAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW/AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

3.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) (Continued)

(iv)

Transition

The Group has applied the transitional provision in HKFRS 9
such that HKFRS 9 was generally adopted without restating
comparative information. The reclassifications and the
adjustments arising from the new ECLs rules are therefore
not reflected in the statement of financial position as at 31
December 2017, but are recognised in the statement of
financial position on 1 January 2018. This means that
differences in the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities resulting from the adoption of HKFRS 9
are recognised in retained earnings and reserves as at 1
January 2018. Accordingly, the information presented for
2017 does not reflect the requirements of HKFRS 9 but
rather those of HKAS 39.

The following assessments have been made on the basis of
the facts and circumstances that existed at the DIA of HKFRS
9:

The determination of the business model within
which a financial asset is held;

The designation and revocation of previous
designations of certain financial assets and financial
liabilities as measured at FVTPL; and

The designation of certain investments in equity
investments not held for trading as at FVOCI.

If an investment in a debt investment had low credit risk at
the DIA, then the Group has assumed that the credit risk on
the asset had not increased significantly since its initial
recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

ADOPTION OF NEW/AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

3.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1

January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“HKFRS 15”)

HKFRS 15 supersedes HKAS 11 Construction Contracts, HKAS 18
Revenue and related interpretations. HKFRS 15 has established a
five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at the amount
that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a
customer.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the cumulative effect
method without practical expedients. The Group has recognised
the cumulative effect of initially applying HKFRS 15 as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings at the
DIA (that is, 1 January 2018). As a result, the financial information
presented for 2017 has not been restated.

The following tables summarised the impact, net of tax, of
transition to HKFRS 15 on the opening balances of retained
earnings (increase/(decrease)):

HE

b

Nan Hai Corporation Limited m ABEZERERAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #(Z 2018 12 A31 HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW/AMENDED HKFRSs 3. h%%ﬁ 'T/ RIET B BB RH
(Continued) 2R (%)
3.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1 3.1 JRAWERIETEBME
January 2018 (Continued) HMEZER — BH2018F1 A1
HE LN (&)
HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers (‘HKFRS 15”) BB BHEERE 155 — KAES
(Continued) AH S (B HHREEAE 15%))
(%)
HK$’000
FET
Retained earnings REEF
Increase in contract liabilities (note (a)(b)) SRR EEM (M @)b) (136,929)
Increase in deferred tax assets EEFITRE N 32,392
Impact at 1 January 2018 R2018F1 A1 BZE (104,537)
The following tables summarised the impact of adopting HKFRS TRBAMRANBD B ISR EERIZE 15
15 on the Group's consolidated statement of financial position as SR ARERE N 2018F12 A31 H Z 47
at 31 December 2018 and its consolidated income statement and BB SR E R EHE = 2018%F12
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year A3BLEEYcAKSERES
ended 31 December 2018. There was no material impact on the PEURRETSE . AEEHE
;ro[t;p s cobnsozll(ia;ed statement of cash flows for the year ended 0IBE AN AL EE S B AES
ecember B
MEBRRWEEATE :
Amount
without
application
As reported Adjustments of HKFRS 15
I e A
ERB®
HEEL
FE155%
WMEHK FE ZEHE

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TET TET

Assets BE
Deferred tax assets FEER B E E 930,791 (50,494) 880,297
Equity s
Retained earnings RE B 2,741,237 165,134 2,906,371
Liabilities =L
Contract liabilities araR 4,337,189  (4,337,189) -
Receipt in advance and deferred TE WK IE S R ST a

revenue - 4,121,561 4,121,561

| —E-N\FEER @ Annual Report 2018 %
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW/AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

3.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“HKFRS 15”)

3o *%l

3.1

glﬁﬂ/ﬁéﬁ%ﬂéiﬁﬂtﬁiﬁ

=R (&)

ﬂ@ﬁﬂ/%@ﬂé%%ﬁ
iﬁ%ﬁgﬂ — H2018%F 181
BN (E)

BB R R 155 — KEES
BT ([ BB SRR 155 )

(Continued)
(&)
Amount
without
application
As reported Adjustments of HKFRS 15
b $5% P& A
BRI
HEEA
E155
mE R ik 228
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FTHET
Revenue g 16,789,451 (127,750) 16,661,701
Finance costs A R A (1,095,940) 206,448 (889,492)
Profit before income tax TS Al 7l 3,424,181 78,698 3,502,879
Income tax expense FrsFif X (2,449,836) (18,101) (2,467,937)
Profit for the year FRER 974,345 60,597 1,034,942
Total comprehensive income FR2HEWzEELE
for the year 328,237 60,597 388,834

Nan Hai Corporation Limited @ EEERERATE




3. ADOPTION OF NEW/AMENDED HKFRSs 3.
(Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #(Z 2018 12 A31 HILFE

BREVETR] RIEFT BB BR

HER (&)

3.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1 3.1
January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“HKFRS 15”)

(Continued)

Details of the new significant accounting policies and the nature
of the changes to previous accounting policies in relation to the
Group's various goods and services are set out below:

ﬁ%ﬁﬂ/@%ﬂé%%ﬁ
ﬁ%ﬁgﬁ:ﬁzme$1ﬁ1
BieEM (&)

BB LAE 5% — KHE
FAt s ([ BB HRELAE
1552 ) (4&)
HAEBSEEQSBEEE T
B R R AT S B
MG HEHIET

Nature of change in

Product/ Nature of the goods or services, satisfaction of accounting policy and impact
Note Service performance obligations and payment terms  on 1 January 2018
HEBRAERS 2 ME
Mtz Em/ /R EXIBRBEEE- TREIZHERLRER kR2018F1A1HZHE
(a Property Customers obtain control of the property units As of 1 January 2018, an increase in
development  when the properties were delivered to and have contract liabilities of HK$129,558,000,
been accepted by them. Revenue is thus recognised and a decrease in retained earnings of
upon when the customers accept the property HK$97,166,000 were recognised for the
units so delivered. In addition, it is the Group’s financing components of the contracts,
practice to provide standard decoration to net of tax.
customers to maintain the properties’ quality,
therefore, decoration provision is also considered as
a performance obligation by practice.
Right of return
No right of return is noted from the Group's contract
with customers.
@ FEHERE BERYEEIMRERSIGYEEMZTHE - BZ208F 1818 20 &EEMN

FE Ut Wm0 PR R YR B R RER o 1t
N REBEZ BERMETD REFPIRHEELERE
NEREMELER At BEKETFEE L
BB —BEOERS

REREF

AREBRESZ QMW ETEREETN -
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3.

ADOPTION OF NEW/AMENDED HKFRSs 3. R4
(Continued) HAE
3.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1 3.1

January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“HKFRS 15”)

¥r5] RS STE BB R
Al (&
RNFR] BB TE BB
WEER — H2018F1 A1
BB (&)

BB AR 155 — REE

(Continued) Fa#iles ([EEMFHEERE
1555 1) (&)
Nature of change in
Product/ Nature of the goods or services, satisfaction of accounting policy and impact

Note Service performance obligations and payment terms  on 1 January 2018
HETBRRAEZB2HE

B = Em/ /R ESXSBRENE- TREISHERSRER kR2018F1A1HZHE

(a) Property Financing component

(@)

development
(Continued)

iR
(#8)

Nan Hai Corporation Limited @ ABEZERERAR

Should the contract contain a significant financing
component, the transaction price should reflect the
time value of money.

The Group is not required to consider the time value
of money if the period between payment and the
transfer of the property unit is one year or less, as a
practical expedient. In assessing whether a contract
contains a significant financing component, the
Group considers various factors, including the
length of time between when the Group expected
to transfer the property unit to the customer and
when the customer pays for them, and the interest
rate in the contract and prevailing interest rates in
the relevant market.

Revenue is discounted when the inflow of cash or
cash equivalents is deferred. Interest is calculated
and recognised using the effective interest method.

BMEBD

WEHNBEEARESY  AIRZERERRE
HEREIEE

WYEBLZNAEERRR R —FHAT - B
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3‘

BREVETR] RIEFT BB BR

HER (&)

3.1

January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“HKFRS 15”)

RNFR] BB TE BB
WREER — H2018F1 A1
BB (&)

BHB R RBE 155 — KAE

(Continued) Fa#tiles ([EEFHEERE
1558 1) (4&)
Nature of change in
Product/ Nature of the goods or services, satisfaction of accounting policy and impact

Note Service performance obligations and payment terms  on 1 January 2018
HETBRAESE 2 ME

Mt =E Em/IRE ESSBREME TREISERARGER KkR2018F1A1822E

(b) Enterprise The Group provides a one-stop service from domain As of 1 January 2018, an increase in

cloud service

name registration, website design services to
website constructions with specific add-on features
to the website to small and medium enterprise
("SME") customers. The Group accounts for these
contracts as a bundle of goods and services and
such bundled services as a whole is considered as a
single performance obligation. Revenue from such
bundled services is recognised over time by
reference to the Group's inputs to the satisfaction of
the performance obligation relative to the total
expected input. Payment received in advance that
are related to the provision of such bundled services
not yet delivered to customers are deferred and
recognised as contract liabilities.

The Group provides various corporate cloud
products to SME customers. Revenue from the
corporate cloud services is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the contract period. Payment
received in advance that are related to the provision
of corporate cloud products not yet delivered to
customers are deferred and recognised as contract
liabilities.

The Group also renders various internet-based
services without further bundled services and
maintenance service to customers. Revenue from
provision of services is recognised when the services
are rendered according to the terms of the
agreements.

—E-)\FEFR @ Annual Report 2018

contract liabilities of HK$7,371,000, and
a decrease in retained earnings of
HK$7,371,000 were recognised for the
change in the estimate stage of
completion of performance
obligations.
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3.
(Continued)

3.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1

ADOPTION OF NEW/AMENDED HKFRSs

3. BRHE] RIETERBMBR
HER (&

3.1

January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“HKFRS 15”)

(Continued)

Note

B &

Product/
Service

Em/ R

Nature of the goods or services, satisfaction of
performance obligations and payment terms

ERTBRBEMLE - TRENRHERAREK

RNFR] BB TE BB
WEER — H2018F1 A1
HiEEEN(E)
BAERELBE 155 — KEE
Fatlss([EENBREERE
1555 ) (4&)

Nature of change in
accounting policy and impact
on 1January 2018
HEFBRERE 2 ME
kN2018F1 A1 HZEE

EEER

Nan Hai Corporation Limited @ EEERERATE
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3.

BREVETR] RIEFT BB BR

HER (&)

3.1

January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“HKFRS 15”)

(Continued)

Note

B

Product/
Service

Em/ R

Nature of the goods or services, satisfaction of
performance obligations and payment terms

EmBBEBEE  TREORE RS RIER

RNFR] BB TE BB
WREER — H2018F1 A1
HiEEEN(E)
BAMBRELAE 155 — FKAEE
Fatzs([EHENBREERE
1555 ) (4&)

Nature of change in
accounting policy and impact
on 1 January 2018
HETERRESB 2 ME
KR2018F1A1HZRE

Cinema
ticketing
income

EEEA

The Group has determined that for contracts with
customers under cinema ticketing income, there is
only one performance obligation, which is the
provision of movie services in the Group's cinema.
The Group has determined that the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
of the Group’s performance and thus the Group
concludes that the service should be recognised
over time.

Tickets are issued according to contractual terms to
individual customers which payment is made
immediately. For tickets sell through agents,
payment is usually payable within 30 days.
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There is no impact on the adoption of
HKFRS 15 for ticketing income as the
revenue recognised for the ticketing
income has been the same under HKAS
18 and HKFRS 15.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW/AMENDED HKFRSs 3. BRENEE] RIEFTEAMBER
(Continued) EXR|(E])

3.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1 3.1 HAIET RIS EBHMK

January 2018 (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Clarifications to HKFRS 15)

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included clarifications on
identification of performance obligations; application of principal
versus agent; licenses of intellectual property; and transition
requirements.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact on these
financial statements as the Group had not previously adopted
HKFRS 15 and took up the clarifications in this, its first year.

Amendments to HKAS 40 — Transfers of Investment Property

The amendments clarify that to transfer to or from investment
properties there must be a change in use and provides guidance
on making this determination. The clarification states that a
change of use will occur when a property meets, or ceases to
meet, the definition of investment property and there is
supporting evidence that a change has occurred.

The amendments also re-characterise the list of evidence in the
standard as a non-exhaustive list, thereby allowing for other forms
of evidence to support a transfer.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact on these
financial statements as the clarified treatment is consistent with
the manner in which the Group has previously assessed transfers.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 — Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration

The interpretation provides guidance on determining the date of
the transaction for determining an exchange rate to use for
transactions that involve advance consideration paid or received
in a foreign currency and the recognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability. The interpretations specifies that the
date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the
exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income (or part thereof) is the date on which the entity
initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability arising from the payment or receipt of advance
consideration.

The adoption of this interpretation has no impact on these
financial statements as the Group has not paid or received
advance consideration in a foreign currency.
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3.2 Impact of new/amended HKFRSs which are

ADOPTION OF NEW/AMENDED HKFRSs 3.
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BREVETR] RIEFT BB BR

HER (&)

issued but not yet effective

The following new/amended HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the
Group's financial statements, have been issued, but are not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by the Group. The
Group's current intention is to apply these changes on the date

they become effective.

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Business
Combinations'

Amendments to HKFRS 11, Joint
Arrangements'

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income
Taxes!

Amendments to HKAS 23, Borrowing
Costs'

Definition of a Business?

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation'

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to HKAS 1 and Definition of Material?

HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 28

HKFRS 16

HK(FRIC)-Int 23

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures'
Leases'

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

3 The amendments were originally intended to be effective for periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2017. The effective date has now been

deferred/removed. Early application of the amendments continue to be

permitted.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW/AMENDED HKFRSs 3.
(Continued)

3.2 Impact of new/amended HKFRSs which are
issued but not yet effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle — Amendments to
HKFRS 3, Business Combinations

The amendments issued under the annual improvements process
make small, non-urgent changes to standards where they are
currently unclear. They include amendments to HKFRS 3 which
clarifies that when a joint operator of a business obtains control
over a joint operation, this is a business combination achieved in
stages and the previously held equity interest should therefore be
remeasured to its acquisition date fair value.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle — Amendments to
HKFRS 11, Joint Arrangements

The amendments issued under the annual improvements process
make small, non-urgent changes to standards where they are
currently unclear. They include amendments to HKFRS 11 which
clarify that when a party that participates in, but does not have
joint control of, a joint operation which is a business and
subsequently obtains joint control of the joint operation, the
previously held equity interest should not be remeasured to its
acquisition date fair value.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle — Amendments to
HKAS 12, Income Taxes

The amendments issued under the annual improvements process
make small, non-urgent changes to standards where they are
currently unclear. They include amendments to HKAS 12 which
clarify that all income tax consequences of dividends are
recognised consistently with the transactions that generated the
distributable profits, either in profit or loss, other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

Nan Hai Corporation Limited @ ABEZERERAR
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW/AMENDED HKFRSs 3. BR&NEE] RIEFTEAMBER
(Continued) EXRR|(E])

3.2 Impact of new/amended HKFRSs which are 32 EEMEEMRERZH

issued but not yet effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle — Amendments to
HKAS 23, Borrowing Costs

The amendments issued under the annual improvements process
make small, non-urgent changes to standards where they are
currently unclear. They include amendments to HKAS 23 which
clarifies that a borrowing made specifically to obtain a qualifying
asset which remains outstanding after the related qualifying asset
is ready for its intended use or sale would become part of the
funds an entity borrows generally and therefore included in the
general pool.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 — Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance
on the definition of a business. The amendments clarify that for an
integrated set of activities and assets to be considered a business,
it must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability to create
output. A business can exist without including all of the inputs
and processes needed to create outputs. The amendments
remove the assessment of whether market participants are
capable of acquiring the business and continue to produce
outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired inputs and
acquired substantive processes together significantly contribute
to the ability to create outputs. The amendments have also
narrowed the definition of outputs to focus on goods or services
provided to customers, investment income or other income from
ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments provide
guidance to assess whether an acquired process is substantive
and introduce an optional fair value concentration test to permit a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and
assets is not a business.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW/AMENDED HKFRSs 3.
(Continued)

3.2 Impact of new/amended HKFRSs which are
issued but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9 — Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial assets with
negative compensation can be measured at amortised cost or at
FVOCI if specified conditions are met — instead of at FVTPL.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses to be
recognised when an entity sells or contributes assets to its
associate or joint venture. When the transaction involves a
business the gain or loss is recognised in full, conversely when the
transaction involves assets that do not constitute a business the
gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of the unrelated
investors' interests in the joint venture or associate.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 — Definition of Material

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new definition of
material. The new definition states that information is material if
omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements. The amendments clarify that materiality will depend
on the nature or magnitude of information. A misstatement of
information is material if it could reasonably be expected to
influence decisions made by the primary users.

Amendments to HKAS 28 — Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures

The amendments clarify that HKFRS 9 applies to long-term
interests (“LTI") in associates or joint ventures which form part of
the net investment in the associates or joint ventures and stipulate
that HKFRS 9 is applied to these LTI before the impairment losses
guidance within HKAS 28.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW/AMENDED HKFRSs 3. BR&NEE] RIEFTEAMBER
(Continued) EXRR|(E])

3.2 Impact of new/amended HKFRSs which are 32 EEMEEMRERZH

issued but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede HKAS 17
“Leases” and related interpretations, introduces a single lessee
accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and
liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless
the underlying asset is of low value. Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a
lessee is required to recognise a right-of-use asset representing its
right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments. Accordingly, a
lessee should recognise depreciation of the right-of-use asset and
interest on the lease liability, and also classifies cash repayments of
the lease liability into a principal portion and an interest portion
and presents them in the statement of cash flows. Also, the right-
of-use asset and the lease liability are initially measured on a
present value basis. The measurement includes non-cancellable
lease payments and also includes payments to be made in
optional periods if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an
option to extend the lease, or to exercise an option to terminate
the lease. This accounting treatment is significantly different from
the lessee accounting for leases that are classified as operating
leases under the predecessor standard, HKAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17.
Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as operating
leases or finance leases, and to account for those two types of
leases differently.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of HK$13,363,397,000. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet the
definition of a lease. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the Group will
recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability in
respect of all these leases unless they qualify for low value or
short-term leases.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW/AMENDED HKFRSs 3.
(Continued)

3.2 Impact of new/amended HKFRSs which are
issued but not yet effective (Continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 — Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The interpretation supports the requirements of HKAS 12, Income
Taxes, by providing guidance over how to reflect the effects of
uncertainty in accounting for income taxes. Under the
interpretation, the entity shall determine whether to consider
each uncertain tax treatment separately or together based on
which approach better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty.
The entity shall also assume the tax authority will examine
amounts that it has a right to examine and have full knowledge of
all related information when making those examinations. If the
entity determines it is probable that the tax authority will accept
an uncertain tax treatment, then the entity should measure
current and deferred tax in line with its tax filings. If the entity
determines it is not probable, then the uncertainty in the
determination of tax is reflected using either the “most likely
amount” or the “expected value” approach, whichever better
predicts the resolution of the uncertainty.

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the impact
of adopting the above standards and amendments to existing
standards to the Group. Except as described above, the directors
anticipate that the application of other new and amendments to
HKFRSs and an interpretation will have no material impact on the
Group's consolidated financial performance and positions and/or
the disclosures to the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4, BEESTHEFT R HE
JUDGEMENTS
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on et A BREEAREBREMAE(E
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future ARSI REASBEZ ARKEMTE)
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. B W e E T -
4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions 41 EEGTETRER

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below:

Depreciation and amortisation

The Group depreciates and amortises property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets other than goodwill on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life, and after taking
into account their estimated residual values, 2.5% to 33-1/3% per
annum and 10% to 50% per annum, respectively, commencing
from the date on which the assets are available for use. The
estimated useful life reflects the directors’ estimate of the periods
that the Group intend to derive future economic benefits from the
use of the Group's property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets other than goodwvill.

Impairment of trade receivables, deposits and other receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables based on assumptions about risk of
default and expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement in
making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation, based on the Group's historical default
information, existing market conditions as well as forward-looking
estimates at the end of reporting period.

As at 31 December 2018, accumulated impairment loss of trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables amounted to
approximately HK$81,467,000 and HK$141,886,000 respectively
(2017: HK$30,063,000 and HK$27,480,000 respectively).
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(Continued)

Net realisable value of completed properties held for sale and
properties under development

Management determines the net realisable value of completed
properties held for sale and properties under development by
using prevailing market data such as most recent sale transactions,
anticipated costs to completion and valuation reports provided by
independent qualified professional valuers.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment in accordance with the accounting policy stated in
note 2.23. The recoverable amounts of CGUs have been
determined based on value in use calculations. These calculations
require the use of estimates about future cash flows and discount
rates. In the process of estimating expected future cash flows
management makes assumptions about future revenues and
profits. These assumptions relate to future events and
circumstances. The actual results may vary and may cause a
material adjustment to the carrying amount of goodwill within the
next financial year. Determining the appropriate discount rate
involves estimating the appropriate adjustment for market risk
and for asset specific risk factors. Details of the estimates of the
recoverable amounts of CGUs containing goodwill are disclosed in
note 21.

Impairment of assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at each reporting date.
Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for impairment annually
and at other times when such indicator exists. Other non-financial
assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. When value in use
calculations are undertaken, management must estimate the
expected future cash flows from the asset or CGU and choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows.

4.
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4, CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4, EESTHESTRHE (E)
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions 41 EEETHEFREBE (&)

(Continued)
Impairment of interests in associates

Management assesses impairment of interests in associates at
each reporting date by evaluating conditions specific to the Group
that may lead to impairment of assets. Where an impairment
trigger exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is determined.
Business value calculations performed in assessing recoverable
amounts incorporate a number of key estimates and assumptions
about future events, which are subject to uncertainty and might
materially differ from the actual results. In making these key
estimates and judgements, the management takes into
consideration assumptions that are mainly based on market
condition existing at the reporting dates and appropriate market
and discount rates. These estimates are regularly compared to
actual market data and actual transactions entered into by the
Group.

Current tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC. Significant
judgement is required in determining the amount of the provision
for taxation and the timing of payment of the related taxations.
There are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. The Group recognises taxes based on estimates of the
likely outcome with reference to current tax laws and practices.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences and
tax losses will be recognised when management considers it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such differences
will impact the recognition of deferred tax assets and taxation in
the periods in which such estimate is changed.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4,
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.2 Critical judgements in applying the Group’s
accounting policies

Current tax and deferred tax (Continued)

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax (“LAT") in the PRC.
However, the implementation and settlement of this tax varies
among various tax jurisdictions in cities of the PRC, and the Group
has not finalised its LAT calculation and payments with any local
tax authorities in the PRC. Accordingly, significant judgement is
required in determining the amount of the land appreciation and
its related LAT. The Group recognised LAT based on
management’s best estimates according to their understanding
on the tax rules.

Going concern

The Group's financial statements are prepared using the going
concern basis which assumes the Group will be able to realise
their assets and discharge their liabilities in the normal course of
business. The application of the going concern basis requires the
Company's directors making judgements in estimating future
cashflows of the Group and likelihood of outcomes of contingent
matters.

The operating and capital expenditure of the Group is funded by
cash flow from operations, internal liquidity and financing by
banks and other parties. The Group maintains a sufficient liquidity
comprises cash and cash equivalents and other liquid assets.
Taking into account of available banking facilities obtained during
the year, the directors consider that all contractual and estimated
obligations and operational requirements would be met.
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4, CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. EESTHETTRAE (&)
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.2 Critical judgements in applying the Group'’s 42 ERAXSEEESTERRIBEDR

accounting policies (Continued)
Research and development activities

Careful judgement by the Group’s management is applied when
deciding whether the recognition requirements for development
costs have been met. This is necessary as the economic success of
any product development is uncertain and may be subject to
future technical problems at the time of recognition. Judgements
are based on the best information available at each reporting date.
In addition, all internal activities related to the research and
development of new software products are continuously
monitored by the Group’s management.

Control through contractual arrangement

Notwithstanding the lack of equity ownership in 1t 5 #7489 275
= B Ui A R A 8 (Beijing Xinnet Cyber Information Company
Limited) (“Xinnet") and its existing subsidiaries (collectively as
"Xinnet Group”), the Group is able to control, recognise and
receive all the economic benefits of the business of Xinnet Group
as the Group (1) shall have all requisite power and unrestricted
rights, acting as a principal, to control and manage all aspects, at
its sole decision and its own benefit, over Xinnet Group by virtue
of the power of attorney; and (2) shall have right to assume all
profits of Xinnet Group under the management and technology
services agreement. In view of the foregoing reasons, the Group
has determined that it has the practical ability to unilaterally direct
the relevant activities of Xinnet Group and significant benefits
derived from Xinnet Group and therefore has consolidated the
Xinnet Group as wholly-owned subsidiaries.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

5. REVENUE AND OTHER OPERATING INCOME 5.

(a) Revenue

The Group's revenue represents revenue from its principal

Wi B K E YA

(a) Wz
AEBZWRIEREEFEEBHBZT

activities as set out below:

5| &R

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Sales of properties and car parks MERBEMNIEE 9,818,655 9,866,583
Enterprise cloud services 1 HEERS 997,865 829,346
Property management services Y% E IR 65,546 63,343
Sales of decoration materials HEMEHEE 89,672 91,483
Film distribution services BREITRS 12,106 80,382
Cinema ticketing income FREREBA 3,785,438 3,117,471
Sales of food and beverages B REREHHE 524,272 493,048
Cinema advertising income T BESEIRA 302,332 220,223
Sales and leases of projection equipment  FBR R E M THE 18,773 12,796
Digital media technology services SRS I B R AR TS 288,582 226,223
Publication of magazines AR e B B S U A
and advertising income 54,321 21,299
Sales of botanic-based personal care EREAAEEREKEREE
and fragrance products 829,533 874,472
Innovative catering services BT B R AR 2,356 4216
16,789,451 15,900,885

All the Group's revenue is derived from contracts with customers.

The following table provides information about trade receivables

AEBFRARSEREEFAL

TREIAHEKEEFPANNEREHK

and contract liabilities from contracts with customers: BRAENEENER :
31 December 1 January
2018 2018
2018 R 2018 4F
12A31H 1TH1H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT TET
(Restated)
(#EE3m)
Trade receivables J& W 5 5RIR 539,564 627,625
Contract liabilities =X ON=NE 4,337,189 6,988,695
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REVENUE AND OTHER OPERATING INCOME 5. Wk HEMEEWA ()
(Continued)
(a) Revenue (Continued) (a) Wz (&)
The contract liabilities mainly relate to the advance consideration SRNEEETZEFEN A TP KEZ AN
received from customers. Approximately HK$4,548,681,000 of the RE - ARETENEETREEET
contract liabilities as of 1 January 2018 has been recognised as PEERBEFTEE - R2018F1H18 -
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018 from performance A #) B B #94,548,681,000 7% 7T B FE R
obligations satisfied in the current year due to the changes in the REVE2018F 12 A3 BIEFFE 2K
estimate stage of completion of some contract obligations. BARFEENEBABEZ WE -
(b) Other operating income: (b) HMEKEWA :
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Bank interest income RITHBHA 168,308 217,224
Other interest income HAbF S WA 63,609 24,092
Interest income on financial assets not WIERA A BENERREE
at FVTPL ZEBEENSKA 231,917 241316
Gain on fair value change on financial BARBEERIERRER
assets at FVTPL ZeMEEAABEZH NS - 13,834
Gain on trading of financial assets at FVTPL B &EIRAR B ENBERERIE
ZEMEENR 21,895 34,192
Exchange gain FE 5 U 25 36,297 -
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE  BERRE 2B
plant and equipment 326 32
Rental income HE WA 31,706 24,820
Government grants* B AR 117,602 111,772
Dividend income =NION 5,731 6,464
Sundry income HMETEULA 232,842 154,481
678,316 586,911
* Government grants have been received from the PRC governmental bodies = Z 8 B BUT# B IR 2 BUR 8RS

in the form of the subsidies to cinema operations and subsidies to the

development of IT business in the PRC. The purpose of the subsidy is to

encourage innovation by granting financial assistance to commercial entities
who operate cinemas and have research and development projects that
meet certain criteria. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies

attaching to these grants.
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. ZEHEH
The executive directors have identified the Group's five (2017: five) HITEECO MBI AEEFIE(20174F : HIA)
product and service lines as operating segments as further described in EREREAKEESE WK aE2275F
note 2.27. it o
These operating segments are monitored and strategic decisions are IS AR S R B BE 4 L T IR AR AR R 45 0
made on the basis of adjusted segment operating results. GRS AE SRR B IORTE ©
The segment results for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 HZE2018FEN2017F12 A3 HIEEEYZ D
are as follows: SREELEINT
2018
Enterprise Culture News
cloud Property  and media media  Innovative All other
services development services business business segments Total
XE  HREE g}
TEERE EHEERE  BERE £% HEEE  Hitod @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEr Thn TEx FET ThEx FEr FER
Revenue 2s
From external custorers REHNEF 997,865 9,908,327 4,931,503 54,321 831,889 65546 16,789,451
From inter-segments RE D LB 14,585 - 57,503 167,707 - 42,503 282,298
Reportableand all other segments T 2R R A M S Bk
revenue 1,012,450 9,908,327 4,989,006 222,028 831,889 108,049 17,071,749
Reportable and all other segments A 2HRFEE M
(loss)/profit before income tax FrEHA (B8) /%R (125,085 6,018,298 (660,407)  (385939)  (1,047,753) (65,396) 3,733,718
Bank interest income FATFIERA 361 110,009 3,969 1 348 4,074 118,772
Other interestincome HiFlEMA 293 1,041 18,083 - - - 19,417
Interestincome on financial assetsnot ~ W3ERAR BERERREE
atfair value through profit o loss ZEREEFSMA 654 111,050 22,052 1" 348 4,074 138,189
Finance costs BERAR (1,370) (628,837) (268,041) - (21,109) (3,712) (923,069)
Depreciation and amortisation FEREH (57,448) (30,500)  (1,036,057) (16,099) (99,418) (1,706)  (1,241,228)
Gain on disposal of non-curentassets  HEBEHEFRDEE 2 s
held-for-sale - - - - 19,649 - 19,649
Gain/(Loss) on disposal of property, HENE  BRERR
plant and equipment 2/ (Bi8) 14 (37) (556) - (9,072) - (9,651)
Share of results of associates ) NG E S (6,815) (859) 19,947 - - - 12,273
Share of results of joint ventures LA bEEE - - 466 - - - 466
Fair value change on financial liability ~ 1RAR EERNBEREE
at fair value through profit or loss ZEMEELNBEEY - - 65,432 - - - 65,432
Provision for impairment of goodwill BENERE - - (23,356) - (157,480 - (180,836)
Provision for impairment o intangible ~~ NBIERE 7 EFEERERE
assets other than goodwill (3,620) - (2,460) - (19,858) - (25,938)
Write-off of intangible assets other ToREEE BV EERH
than goodwil (1,356) - - - (68,971) - (70,327)
Income tax (expenses)/credit e (%) /8% (3648)  (24413,120) (24,595) - 5,439 (246)  (2,436,170)
Reportableand all other segments W 2R R FIAEML BEE
assets 502,754 25,408,671 10,970,795 80,277 1,523,799 355,114 38,841,410
Interests in associates REE AT R 35,002 43911 55,413 - - - 134,326
Interests in joint ventures RABPE R - - 30,688 - - - 30,688
Additions to non-current segment assets  FRREFERB D HEE
during the year 57,574 55,068 644,048 8,921 128,039 5,499 899,149
Reportableand all other segments ~ T2HRFIEEML BEE
liabilities (352,225)  (14,765,569)  (6,203,916) (22,539) (909,853) (99,264)  (22,353,366)
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEBEHE(I8)
2017
Enterprise Culture News
cloud Property and media media Innovative All other
services  development services business business segments Total
XhE  HEER A
T5ZRE  EHERE  EERS % BEEE  AtHH &t
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TR Thx TAL TR T TAL
Revenue Wz
From external customers REHNER 829346 9,958,066 4150143 21299 878688 63343 15900885
From inter-segments REAHE 3899 - 54563 24951 17818 7287 308518
Reportableand all other segments T 2B R i E b5 ki
revenue 833,45 9,958,066 4,204,706 246,250 896,506 70630 16,209,403
Reportableand all other segments T 2R FiEEA 2 W ATEHA
(loss)/profit before income tax (E8),/ 55 (66363) 5820449 (600,860) (322491) (528,570) 23092 4325257
Bank interest income RITHEMA 1,152 105972 6,544 13 663 15,674 130018
Otherinterest income EtFISIMA 591 - 1 - - 15327 15919
Interestincome on financial assetsnot Y IHEAL BEMERERE
atfair value through profit or loss LEBEEFSMA 1743 105972 6,545 13 663 31,001 145937
Finance costs RENA (6339 (439,109) (227,554) - (11,049) (2480) (686,530)
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH (65415) (8651) (829880) (16021) (54218) (1122) 975,307)
Loss on deemed disposal RiEE—RBLNRZER
of an associate (162) - - - - - (162)
(Loss)/Gain on disposal of property, HEWE  BERE
plant and equipment 2 (B1B)/ a5 (52) (160) 33 = @) = (182)
Share of results of associates YN (1,040) (307) 14260 = = = 12913
Share of results of joint ventures EhaetEEE - - 165 - - - 165
Fair value change on financial lability ~ &AR EERNERRER
at fair value through profit or loss ZERABALEBEEY - - 26,809 - - = 26,809
Provision for impairment of goodwill BERNERE - - - - (79612) - (79612)
Provision for mpaiment of intangible ~~ AREHE BV AERERE
assets other than goodwill (5,530) - (177) - - - (5,707)
Wiite-off of intangible assets other than MRS 2 & BEMSH
goodwil - - - - (670) - (670)
Income tax credit/(expenses) FrEkES/(R%) 95 (261325) 18673 = (366) (660)  (2594696)
Reportable and all other TERRMERES HEE
segments assets 1187978 26,853,288 11,014,755 76,538 1,987,794 1,960,132 43,080,485
Interests in associates i ONGPR 41,28 35767 68,698 = - = 145,593
Interests in joint ventures RNEBE 7S - - 5413 - - - 5413
Additions to non-current segment FRREFRBNHEE
assets during the year 71485 2190 915467 8,552 171,130 4326 1173150
Reportable and all other TERRFMERES HEE
segments liabilities (502,157) (16,883,989) (5977,926) (16,195) (833,685) (154906) (24,3683858)
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.

The totals presented for the Group's operating segments are reconciled
to the Group’s key financial figures as presented in the financial

statements as follows:

SR (18)

AEBEREDMEMZ LREARNEE R
BHRR2IN 2 T2HBHEFHEROT

2018 2017
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FH&T
Reportable segments revenue BT e 16,963,700 16,138,773
All other segments revenue A B fh o 2P s 108,049 70,630
Elimination of inter-segment revenue 53 20 ] Y 25 6 4 (282,298) (308,518)
Group revenue REE Wz 16,789,451 15,900,885
Reportable segments results before income tax P15 Al Al 2 5 5 %4 3,799,114 4,302,165
All other segments results before income tax S84 Al P EL fh 5 EP 2 4E (65,396) 23,092
Bank interest income RITH BWA 49,536 87,206
Other interest income H ) B 44,192 8,173
Interest income on financial assets not W AR BERIERREIE
at FVTPL Z R EVEERNSHA 93,728 95,379
Finance costs A& AL AN (172,871) (137,201)
Depreciation and amortisation T Rk (5,000) (4,858)
Unallocated corporate expenses APBETERK (225,394) (62,187)
Profit before income tax T8 ANER 3,424,181 4,216,390
2018 2017
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FHET
Reportable segments assets AIE|MDITEE 38,486,296 41,120,353
All other segments assets FrEHEMm D IEE 355,114 1,960,132
Amounts due from related parties FEUG B8 5 I8 430,711 =
Available-for-sale financial assets AItHEZEmEE - 131,558
Financial assets at FVOCI RAnBEREMEEEERE
Z R REE 186,742 =
Pledged and restricted bank deposits B R R RITIER 759,386 2,063,134
Other financial and corporate assets HEhemNErEEE 1,007,964 1,617,872
Group assets rEEEE 41,226,213 46,893,049
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. HEBEH ()
2018 2017
HK$'000 HKS'000
FET T
Reportable segments liabilities AE2RDIMAEE 22,254,102 24,213,952
All other segments liabilities FrEEMmDHEaE 99,264 154,906
Amount due to a director R—ZERBRIA 65,132 9,878
Provision for tax TR IE B 161,585 148,618
Bank and other borrowings RITREHMEE 11,609,529 15,088,724
Other corporate liabilities HitpEBEE 81,262 81,721
Group liabilities rEEEE 34,270,874 39,697,799
Revenue is disaggregated by primary geographical markets and timing W TR B e RIS RS2
of revenue recognition as follows: ST :

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BZ2018F12 A3 ALEE
Enterprise Culture News
cloud Property  and media media  Innovative All other
services development services business business segments Total
YR HEEE &
LXERY EHEME  EEEH B AEHE Ht9E At

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TR FER TR TR TER TR

Primary geographical markets TEETS

Mainland China HER 997,764 9,908,327 4,931,503 - 21,182 65546 15,924,322
Hong Kong £k 101 - - 54,071 90,941 - 145,113
North America SIS - - - 250 425,534 - 425,784
Europe B - - - - 120,860 - 120,860
Australia B - - - - 73,356 - 73,356
Others Hth - - - - 100,016 - 100,016
Total by 997,865 9,908,327 4,931,503 54,321 831,889 65546 16,789,451
Timing of revenue recognition KRR

Ata pointin time RE—BRE 38495 9,908,327 543,045 1,827 831,889 - 11323583
Transferred over time R E 959,370 - 4,388,458 52,494 - 65,546 5,465,868
Total #x 997,865 9,908,327 4,931,503 54,321 831,889 65546 16,789,451
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

6.

SEWMEH (18)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZ0UENRNABLEE

Enterprise Culture News

cloud Property and media media Innovative All other
services  development services business business segments Total

XeE  HEEE FA
CXERE  EHERE  GERE B HEEE Eb5E &t
HK$000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS000
TAT TAL TAR TART TAL TAR TEL

Primary geographical markets FEEHS

Meinland China PERL 826878 9,958,066 4150143 - 1461 63343 14999891
Hong Kong B 2468 - - 20229 152,053 - 174750
North America Bl - - - 1,070 385,658 = 386,728
Europe B - - = - 147,684 = 147684
Australia AN - - - - 93,625 - 93,625
Others Ao = - - - 98207 - 98,207
Total 5 829,346 9,958,066 4150143 21299 878,688 63343 15,900,885

Non-current assets (other than deferred tax assets, financial instruments,
amounts due from related parties and pledged and restricted bank
deposits) are divided into the following geographical areas:

FRBEEFRETHBAEE  RTA -
FEMREE T IR R EARIR R R R AIIRITE
BN RAT IR

2018 2017

HK$'000 HKS$'000

FET FAxT

Mainland China SlENpzi) 11,688,168 11,314,670
Hong Kong s> 154,545 169,103
North America it 522,569 746,521
Europe BN 133,627 125,659
Australia SEM 50,805 89,337
Others Hit 179,812 202,341
Total 4a=t 12,729,526 12,647,631

The geographical location of customers is based on the location at
which the services were provided or the goods were delivered. The
geographical location of the non-current assets is based on the physical
and operating location of the assets. The Company is an investment
holding company incorporated in Bermuda where the Group does not
have any activities, the Group has the majority of its operations and
workforce in Mainland China, and therefore, Mainland China is
considered as the Group’s country of domicile for the purpose of the
disclosures as required by HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”.

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group did not
derive more than 10% of the Group’s total revenue from any single
customer.

Nan Hai Corporation Limited m EEERERATE
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #(Z 2018 12 A31 HILFE

FINANCE COSTS 7. MERE
2018 2017
HK$'000 HKS'000
FHET FHET
Interest on bank and other borrowings RITREMEEZFE 1,466,564 1,253,594
Interest on convertible and AR R A RIEFH 2 F B
exchangeable bonds 65,361 104,549
Interest on finance leases REREZF B 8,529 7,974
Interest on financing component in HEESHREENK B 2 F 8
contracts with customers 206,448 -
Total finance costs on financial liabilities WIER AR BEREREREE
not at FVTPL ZEmBEmERABE 1,746,902 1,366,117
Less: Amount capitalised to properties W RERPYEENM 2 SR
under development* (650,962) (542,386)
1,095,940 823,731

* The finance costs have been capitalised at a rate of 4.99% to 7.13% (2017: 5.04% to *

7.35%) per annum.

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

BYVE PR TR F R 4.99% 2 7.13% (2017 4F : 5.04%
F735%) EARAL o

8. FifsiRAIAF

2018 2017
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FAxT
Profit before income tax is arrived FrS B ATEFI B0k (RFA)
at after charging/(crediting): IATREIR -
Amortisation of intangible assets other TEREEE B AERE
than goodwill* 150,953 67,049
Auditors’ remuneration 1% 25 A 5 B
— Audit service — Bz 16,027 14,385
— Other service — HAb AR 1,828 2,633
Cost of sales of properties and car parks JEYNERIVEi-k=—3'%iN 3,138,198 3,306,215
Cost of provision of enterprise cloud services 2P ZEERIEK A 158,095 154,847
Cost of provision of property management IR E 1 RIS AR A
services 69,354 50,960
Cost of sales of decoration materials BT RIS E R A 76,812 81,524
Cost of provision of film distribution services 124t % 82317 RFS K 2 14,441 112,259
Cost of cinema ticketing EEA 1,577,852 1,330,723
Cost of sales of food and beverages B R E R AR 155,893 142,149
Cost of cinema advertising BT EE A 4,572 1,764
Cost of sales and leases of projection equipment H{ it 25 48 $4 €& & 1 &K 4 15,950 14,099
Cost of digital media technology services IS R AR RIS A A 58,438 13,904
Cost of publication of magazine and advertising  Hi e 56 M B &5 A AR 303,253 227,254
Cost of sales of botanic-based personal care EREAEE R EKERIEERK A
and fragrance products 488,955 325,268
Cost of innovative catering services BIFTE R ARIE A A 1,043 2,046
Cost of sales and services provided $HE MR ARG 2 B A 6,062,856 5,763,012

—E-)\FEFR m Annual Report 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX (Continued) 8. FriRIRAIEF (#8)
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET AT
Loss/(Gain) on fair value change on financial RARBERIERREEIE Y
assets at FVTPL ERMEEAABEEHZ
&8, ()
— Listed equity investments — ERARE 34,170 (13,834)
— Derivatives —PTETIA (112)
Gain on fair value change on financial liabilities & A R EBENIEHIREIE 2
at FVTPL CRAEANBEED 2K
— Derivatives —PTETIA (59,997) (26,809)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  BELRBEZEE
plant and equipment 9,960 214
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #1% - B M R BT E
— owned assets* — BHERE" 1,072,679 901,155
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #% - E M & EITE
— leased assets* — HEEE" 22,072 11,448
Write-off of deposits, prepayments and Be - AR FRIE R E A RE UK
other receivables* s * - 15,707
Write-off of property, plant and equipment* ME - BB R R e * 61,012 142,574
Write-off of intangible assets other TEEEEBZEREEME
than goodwill* 70,327 670
Write-off of inventories* FEMss~ 81,318 =
Minimum lease payments XEBERRK 999,260 763,997
Contingent rentals S AES 20,826 20,574
Operating lease recognised as expenses BT EmR AR 1,020,086 784,571
Operating lease charges on prepaid land lease* Faf} T & 7 & 70 & & F * 524 513
Direct operating expenses arising from FRAEEHSWAZKEDE
investment properties that generated EECEEREERY
rental income during the year 3,676 3,106
Provision for impairment of trade receivables’  FEURE 5 FRIB R {E B ¢ 4,303 2,920
Provision for impairment of deposits, ®Be - B FIEREAMERTRIA
prepayments and other receivables® DENIEEC N 33,112 3,570
Provision for impairment of intangible assets T ERE 2 S & E R EEE*
other than goodwil* 25,938 5,707
Provision for impairment of property, M - BB MR ERERE
plant and equipment* 43,185 125,762
Provision for impairment of goodwill* PR E R 180,836 79,612
Research and development expenses* o R A 84,495 63,592
* included in other operating expenses © AR KBRS
E included in ECLs on financial assets # STARREEZ EHERER

Nan Hai Corporation Limited @ EEERERATE
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #(Z 2018 12 A31 HILFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FREMAX
2018 2017
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FAT
The income tax expense comprises: FriSHiFA 2 81
Current tax BIVERTRIE
— Hong Kong Profits Tax — BANEH
Tax charge for the year FRFHIEX H 10,532 11,192
Under-provision in respect of prior years LAFERETR - 1,040
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") — B EMER ([REMEH])
Tax charge for the year FAFIEXZ H 1,362,498 1,492,792
(Over)/Under-provision in respect LA E (RBEEEE),
of prior years BETR (243) 1,116
— Taxation for other jurisdictions — B mAfER 2 FIE
Tax charge for the year FARBELZ T 423 366
— PRC LAT — B AT
Tax charge for the year FAFIEZ H 1,608,312 1,578,909
2,981,522 3,085,415
Deferred tax RIEFIIE
— Credit for the year (note 36) — RERNFA (M3 36) (531,686) (471,460)
2,449,836 2,613,955

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2017:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year.

PRC EIT has been provided on the estimated assessable profits of
subsidiaries operating in Mainland China at 25% (2017: 25%), unless
preferential rates are applicable in the cities where the subsidiaries are
located.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing
in the relevant jurisdictions.

PRC LAT is levied at progressive rates from 30% to 60% (2017: 30% to
60%) on the estimated appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of
sales of properties less deductible expenditure including cost of land use
rights and development and construction expenditure.

—E-)\FEFR @ Annual Report 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

9.

10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 9.

Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting profit at
applicable tax rates is as follows:

FRGIRBAST (18)

RERREFSE 2B RAT B 5T
ZEARMOT ¢

2018 2017
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FAT
Profit before income tax Fri5 %5 Bil & A 3,424,181 4,216,390
Tax on profit before taxation, calculated at LBEBHB AR RFER 2
the rates applicable to profits in the EAE 7 A 2 fm8m
tax jurisdictions concerned 1,085,100 1,175,546
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses PRI A 2 B ?« = 362,522 190,440
Tax effect of non-taxable income BARBGIA 2 RIF 2 (234,247) (91,352)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERTEEIE 7 IS & 417,647 218,071
Utilisation of tax loss previously not recognised & A LA AR SRR 75 BT 18 2 B 7%
=/ @ (28,863) (10822)
Tax effect of PRC LAT B+ I (E B 2 FRAS ?, 2 (402,078) (394,727)
Tax effect of temporary differences not AERELRFETE RIS E
recognised (358,314) (54,266)
PRC LAT A B b3 (E R 1,608,312 1,578,909
(Oven)/Under-provision in respect of prior years 4t A4 E (FBEERME) BB 2 (243) 2,156
Income tax expense FrS %t = 2,449,836 2,613,955
DIVIDEND 10. IR

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2018 of 0.15 HK cents per
ordinary share (2017: 0.23 HK cents per ordinary share), in an aggregate
amount of approximately HK$102,968,000 (2017: HK$157,885,000), has
been proposed by the directors of the Company and is subject to
approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

Nan Hai Corporation Limited @ EEERERATE
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #(Z 2018 12 A31 HILFE

11. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to the owners of the Company of HK$1,140,854,000 (2017:
HK$1,708,027,000) and on 68,645,535,794 (2017: 68,645,535,794) ordinary
shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the profit for
the year attributable to the owners of the Company adjusted for the
effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares arising from adjustment to the
share of loss of a subsidiary based on dilution of its loss per share. The
weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation is
the number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, which is the same
as the basic earnings per share calculation.

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share are based on:

11. SEEF

BRERREFTHEAR R RHEF A F)
1,140,854,000 78 7T (2017 £ : 1,708,027,000 7
T0) RERE 1T 8 % 68,645,535,794 %
(2017 4 : 68,645,535,794 0% ) 51 & o

BREERNDIZARREBE ARIEFA
mAMEE - WREE SREREEHEM
DME—RFRARZEBERELEZEES B
e - StEMAERRINEFEEA
REAtEEREABAN CFRAERTER
REA -

SRR R TRIBA T AR

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET AT
Earnings B F
Profit attributable to owners of the Company, — ANA BI#E B A B %7
used in the basic earnings per share (BARETEEREARF])
calculation 1,140,854 1,708,027
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares BIEH SR EERE S A
arising from adjustment to the share of G —FH B AR 2 EE
loss of a subsidiary based on dilution of EEZBELBREETE
its loss per share* (19,454) -
Earnings for the purpose of diluted earnings ~ BETESREBERF TS 2 & F
per share 1,121,400 1,708,027
3 Amount represented the increase in the Group’s proportionate interest in the loss of * HRZ—HFARMAEREREERONFINRL

a subsidiary of HK$19,454,000 (2017: Nil) assuming all dilutive outstanding shares of a
subsidiary were converted for ordinary shares at the beginning of the year.

Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2017 was
the same as the basic earnings per share as the convertible and
exchangeable bonds outstanding during the year had an anti-dilutive
effect on the basic earnings per share.

—E-)\FEFR @ Annual Report 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

12. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING

13.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

12. BREFIAZ (EEEEHE)

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Directors’ fee (note 45(a)) EEME (M5E45@0)) 732 675
Wages and salaries TERF S 2,166,884 1,787,714
Pension costs — defined contribution plans RIREKAN — EREHHETE 139,502 135,278
Staff welfare 8 T&EH 172,203 119,168
Other employee benefits (note 33) H e 848 H (f5E33) 41,193 -
Total employee benefit expenses EERENFZERE 2,520,514 2,042,835
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% - BERRE
Leasehold
improvements,
furniture, Motor
fixtures and vehicles Freehold
Buildings equipment and yachts land Total
HENE
®15  HH
BT HERRE REREER KAEELH @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT TER TER TER TER
Year ended 31 December 2018 HZ2018512A31RLEE
Opening net carrying amount HREFE 919,01 4,876,117 19,212 49,467 5,863,807
Additions NE 35,580 722,100 3,396 - 761,076
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 43)  WEEMB AR (5t 43) - 80,435 - - 80,435
Disposal & - (9,960) - - (9,960)
Write-off G| - (61,004) (8) - (61,012)
Depreciation ik (55,924)  (1,033,153) (5,674) - (1,094,751)
Provision for impairment ERE - (43,011) (174) - (43,185)
Exchange differences EHESE (47,171) (229,960) (1,024) (861) (279,016)
Closing net carrying amount HAREFE 851,496 4,301,564 15,728 48,606 5,217,394
At31December 2018 R20186 124310
Cost B 1,063,990 7,464,525 49,175 48,606 8,626,296
Accumulated depreciation Z2:E (212,494)  (2,997,727) (33,279) - (3,243,500)
Accumulated impairment 2:RE - (165,234) (168) - (165,402)
Net carrying amount REFE 851,496 4,301,564 15,728 48,606 5,217,394

Nan Hai Corporation Limited m MEERERATE




Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 R 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #(Z 2018 12 A31 HILFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 13. Y% - BER &% (&)

Leasehold
improvements,
fumiture, Motor
fixtures and vehicles Freehold
Buildings equipment and yachts land Total
HENZ
R R
BF KERR RERER KAKELH @it
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000

TET TR TET TET TR

At 1 January 2017 R201781 418

Cost AR 690,268 5,001,961 44513 48671 5785413
Accumulated depreciation Z:nE (116,442) (1,570.872) (22,009) - (1,709323)
Net carrying amount FHFE 573,826 3431,089 22,504 48671 4076090
Year ended 31 December 2017 HE017F12 A3 BILFE

Opening net carrying amount R FE 573826 3431,089 22,504 48671 4,076,000
Additions NE 104,126 1,055,588 1,927 = 1,161,641

Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 43)  WREEHIB A A (MizE43) 98,288 1272914 - - 1,371,202
Transfer from investment properties B & WIEE R (3 14)

(note 14) 137,361 = = = 137,361
Disposal HE - (157) (484) - (641)
Write-off HsH = (142,574) - - (142574)
Depreciation ik (43,088) (863,559) (5,956) - (912603)
Provision for impairment RERE - (125,762) = = (125,762)
Exchange differences ERER 48498 248578 1221 796 299,093
Closing net carrying amount HREmFE 919,011 4876117 19,212 49467 5,863,807
At 31 December 2017 and R2017F12A31BR

1 January 2018 018F1A1R
Cost A 1,088420 7,346,928 48329 49467 8,533,144
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (169,409) (2,340,231) (29117) = (2538757)
Accumulated impairment 2ETRE - (130,580) - - (130,580)
Net carrying amount REFE 919011 4876117 19212 49467 5,863,807
At the end of the year, the Group reassessed retailing stores and cinemas RER  REBEHMTHEERVBERR
with poor operating and financial performance, and made a provision RIEEZTEER - W HERET
for impairment of approximately HK$43,185,000 (2017: HK$125,762,000) ME- BERKBELERERED
for certain property, plant and equipment after the assessment. 43,185,000/ 70 (20174F © 125,762,000/ 7T) °
The net carrying amount of the Group's property, plant and equipment REEYE BELRREZEDFERE
includes an amount of HK$141,189,000 (2017: HK$118,604,000) in respect BEHEE NEA 2 & E 141,189,000/ 7T
of assets held under finance leases. (2017 4 : 118,604,000/ 7T) °

—E-N\FEFH E Annual Report 2018 |
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

'\

14. HEME

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Fair value AREE
At 1 January ®m1A1H 112,448 230,394
Transfer from completed properties BRI EMERAIREYHE

held for sale to investment properties 335,736 -
Transfer to property, plant and equipment BB R MRS (B 13)

(note 13) - (137,361)
Fair value change NAEEE 315,371 2,137
Exchange differences & H =%8 (5,886) 17,278
At 31 December ®12A31H 757,669 112,448

The fair value of the Group's investment properties at 31 December 2018
and 2017 have been arrived at on market value basis carried out by &3l
Tt B £ 2h 55t EE TS A PR A b 5 2 &), an independent valuer
who holds a recognised and relevant professional qualification and has
recent experience in the location and category of the investment
property being valued.

Management has reviewed the independent property valuation and
compared it with its own assumptions, with reference to comparable
sales transaction data where such information is available, and has
concluded that the independent property valuation of the Group's
investment property portfolio is reasonable.

Fair value hierarchy

The Group's investment properties are measured at fair value. These
investment properties are completed commercial properties in Mainland
China. In 2018 and 2017, there were no transfers between different levels
within the fair value hierarchy:

NEFIREYEN 20184 K 2017412 A 31
A2 AR EE T BB ER YT 5
TiEETEER AR RS QA RIET
BEEERET ZBYGEMBERUERS
BEER RN GEREMEMTL
IR 55 -

EEECEMNBUMEMLE U cR2E
BABRRIELE  EFE2EAELRH
EXZGEBE(HAUESERER)  BAK
SEREMFEAS ZBIMEMESE

AREERER
AEEBZRENERLAABENE - %F
HREYMEEPBRANBZEEZXKEPEDE -
R2018F K 2017F - AABEERTRE
oz A e

2018 2017
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FAT
Fair value hierarchy AREBEER
Level 3 E3E 757,669 112,448

Nan Hai Corporation Limited @ ABEZERERAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

14. BEYME (IR)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued) NREBEREBR(E)
2018 2017
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FHAT
Fair value — level 3 AREBE—%3E
At 1 January M1 A1H 112,448 230,394
Transfer from completed properties EERAFEMERAIREYE
held for sale to investment properties 335,736 -

Transfer to property, plant and equipment

WEEYE - BB R&E(MEE13)

(note 13) - (137,361)
Fair value change DA EEEE 315,371 2,137
Exchange differences B 7 Z= 58 (5,886) 17,278
At 31 December MW12A831H 757,669 112,448

Valuation processes and techniques underlying
management’s estimate of fair value:

The valuation of the Group's completed investment property portfolio is
derived by capitalising the rental income derived from existing tenancies
with due provision for reversionary income potential and by making
reference to recent comparable sales transactions available in the
relevant property market.

The fair values of the Group's investment properties are sensitive to
changes in both observable and unobservable inputs. If estimated rental
income increase, the fair values increase. If the expected vacancy rates
increase, the fair values decreased. The opposite is true for decreases in
these inputs.

The Group reviews the valuations performed by the independent valuer
for financial reporting purposes. Discussions of valuation processes and
results are held between management and the independent valuer at
least once every half year, in line with the Group's half year reporting
dates.

—E-)\FEFR m Annual Report 2018
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 14. REME ()
Information about fair value measurements using ERERAEERTBREG AZE
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3): (B3 ETAREETEZE
Bl
Valuation technique(s) Significant unobservable inputs Range
REFE EETTBEBARE BE
At 31 December 2018
2018512 A31H
Commercial properties in PRC  Direct comparison approach  Estimated market price RMB107,000
(per square meter) to RMB145,000
hEEEYE BELBUE fstmE (8FK) AR%107,000 T
Z AR 145,000 7T
Income approach Estimated rental income RMB420
(per square meter per month) to RMB465
WAE mErESBA(BAEFHK) AR 4207 E
AR¥ 465
Expected vacancy rate 4%
TREZEE X 4%
Rental growth rate 3%
HeigRx 3%
Discount rate 6%
BRI R 6%

Nan Hai Corporation Limited @ ABEZERERAR |
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

14. BRME ()
BREAEETTBEHARE
(#3862 REEH B2

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3): (Continued)

Valuation technique(s) Significant unobservable inputs Range
HERE BEZTABRBARE &=

At 31 December 2017
2017912 A31 8

Commercial properties in PRC  Direct comparison approach  Estimated market price RMB100,000
(per square meter) to RMB140,000
REREEYE BEBUE stmE (8FK) AR5 100,000 7T
z AR® 140,000 7T
Income approach Estimated rental income RMB420
(per square meter per month)
WAL et WA (B AEFK) AR 4207
Expected vacancy rate 5%
FEHEEX 5%
Rental growth rate 3%
HeigRx 3%
Discount rate 6%
LIBE RS 6%

Fair value is determined by a weighted average result of the direct
comparison approach and the income approach. Under the direct
comparison approach, fair value is estimated with reference to the
recent transactions for similar commercial units in the proximity with
adjustments for the differences in transaction dates, building age, floor
area etc. Under the income approach, fair value is estimated by the
discounted cash flow method, based on the estimated rental value of
the commercial units. The valuation takes account of expected vacancy
rates and rental growth rates of the commercial units. The discount rates
have been adjusted for the condition and location of the buildings.

The fair value measurement is based on the above properties’ highest
and best use, which does not differ from their actual use.

Investment property is pledged to a bank to secure a mortgage loan and
general banking facilities granted to the Group (note 48(c)).

—E-)\FEFR @ Annual Report 2018
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15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS UNDER
OPERATING LEASES

16.

The Group's interests in leasehold land/land use rights represent prepaid
operating lease payments and their carrying amounts are analysed as

15. EEHRTZH

fTrmEas

ARERBEL T AR
BNEEHER  HERmEITOT

follows:
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FET
At 1 January K1A1H 24,606 23,429
Amortisation (524) (513)
Exchange differences & H =%8 (1,222) 1,690
At 31 December ®12A31H 22,860 24,606
INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16. RIBATZiES
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2018 are as R2018F 12 831 B2 TEWBARHRBM
follows: T
Country/Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and Percentage of
establishment paid-up share capital/ equity interest held
Name and operations registered capital by the Company  Principal activities
HMRL/ ALK BRIRAR
£ BEAR/HH R /EAE RAAFEREESL TEXEB
Directly Indirectly
Ei &
China Enterprise ASP Limited ('CE ASP") Hong Kong Paid-up share capital of - 59.11%  Investment holding
HK$14,037,400
MECKEERERAR ((HELER]) &3 B2 IR 7K 14037400 REER
BT
Dadi Cinema (HK) Limited Hong Kong Paid-up share capital of - 100%  Investment holding,
HKS7,500 film distribution
and production
R (B BR AR i BRBRATS0ET RESR  EFE
REiHE
Dadi Media Limited Hong Kong Paid-up share capital of - 59.11%  Investment holding
HKS2
RERERAR Bl BRRA2ET REER
Dadi Media (HK) Limited Hong Kong Paid-up share capital of 100% - Investment holding
HKS1
RiERE (BB BRAA A BRRAR VAT RARR
Dadi News Media(HK) Limited Hong Kong Paid-up share capital of 100% - Investment holding
HKS1
RER(EE)BRAA A BRRERET RARR
Duowei Media(HK) Limited Hong Kong Paid-up share capital of = 100%  News media
HKS1
SRER(FE)ERRA A BRRAR BT HEER

Nan Hai Corporation Limited @ EEERERATE




Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 R 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #(Z 2018 12 A31 HILFE

16. RIMB AR Z R (18)

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Country/Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and Percentage of
establishment paid-up share capital/ equity interest held
Name and operations registered capital bythe Company  Principal activities
EMAL/HLK BRIRAR
£ BEAR/ MY R /REAE RAAMEREESL TEXEB
Directly Indirectly
B &
Goalrise Investments Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of 100% - Trading of securities
("BVI") US$1 each
Goalrise Investments Limited KBERREE 1REREREET EHEE
(RBgAREE]) BRI
Hongkong New Media Interactive Hong Kong Paid-up share capital of - 59.11%  Investment holding
Advertising Co, Limited HK$100 and information
technology business
BENABLHESERAA i BRRA100%TT REERRERRRES
Liu Wan Development (BVI) BVI 215,000,000 ordinary - 100%  Investment holding
Company Limited shares of US$1 each
NEREGNERAF ERERRES 215000000 XX E REER
1272 £
Liu Wan Investment Hong Kong Paid-up share capital of - 100%  Investment holding
Company Limited USs2
NERERRAT %% garBRIER BAAR
Nan Hai Development Limited Hong Kong Paid-up share capital of 100% - Investment holding
HK$3,000,000,002
HEERERAR A SR 7K 3,000000,002 REER
A7
Robina Profits Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of - 59.11%  Investment holding
USS1 each
Robina Profits Limited EBRBRES IRERER £ RERR
A yF AL
55
Sino- Technology Limited (‘Sino-1") Hong Kong Paid-up share capital of = 59.11%  Investment holding
HK$240,596,986
PEERESERAR(TRAE) AR 18 R IR 2K 240,596,986 REER
AT
View Power Investments Limited BVI T ordinary share of 100% - Investmentholding
US§1 each
View Power Investments Limited EBHRREE IREREEIETZ REER
Rk
HKO1 Company Limited Hong Kong Paid-up share capital of - 100%  Newsmedia
HKS1
BENERARA i BRBRA1ET HEER
Wise Advance Investments Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of 100% - Investment holding
USS1 each
Wise Advance Investments Limited REAARNS IRERER 1 ET2 RERR
My A
EREl
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 16. RMB AT (1)
Country/Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and Percentage of
establishment paid-up share capital/ equity interest held
Name and operations registered capital bythe Company  Principal activities
FRAL/ RIR BEARAR
£ BEER/ Y RE/EMEREE FARFERERSL  TEEHR
Directly Indirectly
HE &
RRE R ERHERAT PRC RMB242,369,720 - 5911%  Information technology
(CE Dongli") (note a) business
BB NRRRHBRAR i AR 2423697207 RAMRER
(T 287 ) (i)
ﬁﬁ%%@ﬁ%ﬁ@ﬂxﬁﬁ N (oted)  PRC RMB689,171,334 - 9236%  Property development
BESABEEERNARAA () H AR 689171334 T FHERE
IR KEEEBRAF (hoteb) PRC RMB21,000,000 - 5326% Information technology
business
SERFREESERAR (Hzb) i ARE 210000007 EAMERER
Xinnet* (note b) PRC RMB45,000,000 - N/A*  Information technology
business
a8+ (M) i AR 450000007 PER*  AARBER
FmEEnBNEERER AT (hoteb) PRC RMB10,000,000 = 100%  Property management
AT+ EARYEERERLA () PHE ARH 1000000070 NEER
MFENAEEERAR PRC RMB18,000,000 = 100%  Property development
(formerly known as &3 T & 2
HEXERERLF) (noteb)
R FEHABEERAR i AR 1800000070 BIERE
(IR RBEERR
ARAR)(HEb)
AFENAFHEREERAT (hoted PRC RMB110,000000 - 100%  Investment holding and
property development
AEERARNEFEFRAT (k) =E AR 1100000007 RABRREHERE
AR IEERAR (noeb)  PRC RMB10,000,000 = 100%  Decoration service
RTEENEHTRERAR (D) F AR 1000000070 F AR
REEEBRE ZERLF (oteb) PRC RMB25,000,000 = 100%  Sales of decoration materials
REEEHREHERAR (HEb) il AR 250000007 SRS
BERAMFREZERAF (noteb) PRC RMB1,146,427.999 = 90.10%  Operation of digital cinemas
BRAMERERERAR (Mib) i AR 11464279997 BEYRAe
EREMATHERBRAT (oteb)  PRC RMB10,000,000 = 90.10%  Operation of digital cinemas
BREmATHERERAR (HWEb)  HE AR 1000000070 FEYR L
* controlled through contractual arrangement with effective interests of 59.11%.

} Nan Hai Corporation Limited @ FEERBRAT



Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 R 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #(Z 2018 12 A31 HILFE

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 16. RMB AT Z S (1)
Country/Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and Percentage of
establishment paid-up share capital/ equity interest held
Name and operations registered capital bythe Company  Principal activities
HMRL/RLK BETRARE
£ BEER/ Y R /E A E KAAMEREESL TEXEB
Directly Indirectly
HE 58
AE R ERBRAA (hote b) PRC RMB214,000,000 - 90.10%  Operation of digital cinemas
K@ BRERAR (Hzb) el AR 2140000007C FEYhge
RAXEEREREBR A (hote b) PRC RMB30,000,000 - 90.10%  Operation of digital cinemas
AR AR AR (Fzb) el AR 300000007 gEThEe
AERER XCER(LR) PRC RMB40,000,000 - 100%  Investmentholding
BRAT (note b)
RUBREFLER (7) i B 400000007 REER
AR (Htitb)
RUBREFETOLR)ERAR (oteb) PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100%  Film distribution
RUBREFET IR BRAF (HEb) P ARE1,0000007T ERET
RRES GLR)BRAA (hoteb) PRC RMB10,000000 - 90.10%  Providing advertising services
BRES (LR BRAR (Hitb) i ARE100000007T RAESERE
HERENHERE (XR)ERAR PRC RMB150,000,000 = 100%  Trading of movie projectors
(note b) and providing digital
media technology services
PBREMRER (LK) BRAT] M AR 1500000007 BEESTNBHR
i) RAEABRER RS
EEALYIRERER AR (hoteb) PRC RMB19,000,000 - 90.10%  Operation of digital cinemas
ERNBF R ERERAR (Fzb) el AR 190000007 YEThae
ERERYREEARAR hoteh) PRC RMB21,000,000 - 90.10%  Operation of digital cinemas
ERSHTRERERAR (Fzb) i AR 210000007 YEThae
EEEHYRARLF hoteb) PRC RVB18,000,000 - 90.10%  Operation of digital cinemas
EREHFRERAR (M) i AR 180000007 gEThaE
BEFRREEREMAR (oeb)  PRC RMB30,000,000 - 90.10% Investment holding
BRPRREEREEAR (fith) HHE AR 300000007 RERR
RERPREEZRER AR hoteh) PRC RMB30,000,000 - 90.10%  Investment holding and
operation of digital cinemas
BRPRERTZRERAR (Fib) el AR 300000007 REBRREEZ s
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

16. RIFB LTIz R (18)

Country/Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and Percentage of
establishment paid-up share capital/ equity interest held
Name and operations registered capital bythe Company  Principal activities
HMRL/RLK BRIRAR
£ BEER/ Y R /E A E FRARFERERSL  TEER
Directly Indirectly
EH 58
MIREYEBRAR(HIRE PRC RMB100,000,000 - 90.10%  Investment holding and
(note b) operation of digital cinemas
MIRBYXERAR(DIIRE)  PHE B 1000000007 REERREBZ L
(HfZb)
Listar Properties Limited BvI 20,000,000 ordinary - 100%  Investment holding
shares of US$1 each
Listar Properties Limited RBARARES 20000000 R BREE REER
[E3pra:iil
ENREFREERRAR PRC US542,000,000 - 100%  Property development
("B3E") (note
BNREHHEHEERAR i 4200000057 AR
(TR& (W)
CE Holdings Limited (‘Crabtree & Evelyn’) BVI 114,249,495 ordinary - 70%  Investment holding
shares of US$1 each
CE Holdings Limited ([ Crabtree & Evelyn]) ~ EBRBRES 114249495 &Mk REER
HE1ETZEBR
Crabtree & Evelyn, Ltd. United States of 494,068 shares of - 70%  Manufacturing, retailing
America common stock and distribution of toiletries
420677 shares of
preferred stock of
US$100 each issued
and fully paid, respectively
Crabtree & Evelyn, Ltd. ZHRAT 494068 R LB 2t TERNH
00677 RBREE BERm
100XTZEETR
BRELR

Nan Hai Corporation Limited @ EEERERATE




Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 R 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #(Z 2018 12 A31 HILFE

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 16. RIBBATZIER (18)
Country/Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and Percentage of
establishment paid-up share capital/ equity interest held
Name and operations registered capital bythe Company  Principal activities
EMAL/HLK BEARAR
£ BEER/ Y R /REAE RAAMEREESL TEXEB
Directly Indirectly
B &
Crabtree & Evelyn (Overseas) Limited The United Kingdom 100,000 ordinary - 70% Retailing and distribution
shares of £1 each of toiletries
4,707,500 redeemable
preference shares of
£0.10 each
19,000,000 redeemable
preference shares of £1 each
Crabtree & Evelyn (Overseas) Limited 5 100000 R G REE ZERAHK A m
1558 7 BBk
4,707 500 R B AR
HE0I0EE ZAER
B 5R% 19000000
S CIENES 74
TRBESR
Crabtree & Evelyn (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Paid-up share capital of - 70%  Retailing and distribution
HK$1,000,000 of toiletries
Crabtree & Evelyn (Hong Kong) Limited B AR ARZR1,000000 7 ZERSEE AR
Crabtree & Evelyn Australia, Pty Ltd Australia 300,000 ordinary = 70%  Retailing and distribution
shares of AUDT each of toiletries
Crabtree & Evelyn, Australia, Pty Ltd A 300000 REREE TERSEE AR
DRI B
C&F Canada Inc. (anada Class B: 200 shares - 70%  Retailing and distribution
(lass C: 895 shares of toiletries
(lass D:4,380 shares
(&F Canadalnc. ngx L8 2008 ZERDHEAR R
R © 895 0%
TH 43800k
City Entertainment Corporation Limited Hong Kong Paid up share capital of = 100%  Investment holding
HK$1,170,000,000
BREAZHARAR A SR IR7 1170000000 REER
AT
Ak (£8) BRAF PRC RMIBE48,000,000 - 9927%  Investment holding and
(formerly known as ﬁ REA operation of
0 (P EL) BB AF]) (hote o) digital cinemas
Kﬁt/ b (R B) ERAR (1 i AR 6480000007 REZRR AR L
BRERY (EFI)E A7)
(MizEc)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 16. RIBATIZIER (i8)

Country/Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and Percentage of
establishment paid-up share capital/ equity interest held
Name and operations registered capital bythe Company  Principal activities
EMAL/HLK BRIRAR
£ BEER/ Y R /REAE RAAMEREESL TEXEB
Directly Indirectly
B &
LBERTHBERAF hoteb) PRC RMB15,000,000 - 9927%  Operation of
digital cinemas
LBERFHAERAR (i) el ARE150000007T BEY R Ee
I REREREEE N ERERAF PRC RMB1,000,000 - 9927%  Investment holding and
(note b) operation of
digital cinemas
IRBREARZZHERERAR  HE ARH 100000070 RERR RS
(HfzEb) FhgE
Amber Treasure Ventures Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of 100% - Debtissue
USS1 each
Amber Treasure Ventures Limited HB#ERES IRERER 1 ET2 BT
EER
Top Yield Ventures Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of 100% - Debtissue
USS1 each
EREIRBRA ERERRES | REREE T2 EHET
TRk

t%ﬂﬁ$”2wvm8¢uﬁh1azwg
NAEl MEBEERAZSHBRARHAEER
AEEEEEBREEZERNBRNALEE

The above table lists out the subsidiaries of the Company as at 31
December 2018 which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the Group's results for the year or formed a substantial portion

of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, EFEZERISD EZRE REEAM

in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length. MEARZ FIESEHERBRILE °

Notes: F&E -

@  These subsidiaries are registered as joint stock limited company under the law of PRC. @ ZEMBARREHELREMABRONERA
5.

(b)  These subsidiaries are registered as limited liability company under the law of PRC. (b) ZEMBARRETELREMAAREMLR
5.

(©  These subsidiaries are registered as Sino-foreign co-operative joint venture under the © ZEWE D AR EDAEER ATIIEEEE

law of PRC. bE-

BAR BT RE 31 BT 8 AT 460 AR R T SR 48 B 25 A R

Except for the convertible and exchangeable bonds set out in note 31

and two credit enhanced notes and a senior note as set out in note 29(c)
and 29(d), the subsidiaries had not issued any debt securities at the end
of the year.

Nan Hai Corporation Limited @ ABEZERERAR
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BF 755 R 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #(Z 2018 12 A31 HILFE

17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

17. REiEATRIZCHEG

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET AT

Share of net assets other than goodwiill FEETBERE 2 EEEE 106,171 115,895

Goodwill Gk 28,155 29,698

Balance at 31 December K12 A31 Bz &% 134,326 145,593
Particulars of the associates at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2018412 318 &2017F 128318 2

2017 are as follows: BAA N FIEEBT

Particular of issued
and paid-up share
capital/registered

Country/Place of
incorporation/
establishment

Percentage of

and operations capital equity interest held
Name HEMRYL/ B ERTRAR by the Company  Principal activities
L BEER Y BA/EMERFHE ARRFERERSE EEXH
2018 2017
Genius Reward Company Limited * ~ Hong Kong Paid-up capital of 29.56% 322%  Inactive
HK$200
Genius Reward Company Limited* &8 BRI 200% T EER
EMEFBEITERRAF (Wuzhou')* PRC RMB50,000,000 22.5% 225%  Film distribution
IMERETERARTIMI) & AR 500000007 BRI
EREARUTRREER PRC RMB5,000,000 47.5% 475%  Investment holding and
BRAR* management
ERRAAMTRREER h AR 50000007 REZRRER
BRAA*
FREFAMCELZEDL  PRC RMB180,000,000 40.36% 4036%  Consultation,
(BRA%) (‘Dongfangdadi) film production and
project management
ERRAMIEEERT L PE AR 180,000,000 70 BR - ERRIER
(BREX)([RARM]) HEER
Emperor Dadi Film Distribution Hong Kong Paid-up capital of 50% 50%  Film distribution
Limited * HKS2
RERMEYETERAR B BRBAR2BT BYRT

—E-)\FEFR @ Annual Report 2018
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BF 755 R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

'J.

17. RBIERTFIZER (1)

Country/Place of Particular of issued
incorporation/ and paid-up share
establishment capital/registered Percentage of
and operations capital equity interest held
Name EMBL B K ERTRAR by the Company  Principal activities
A BEAR W% B/ EMERFE ARRFERERSE EERXHK
2018 2017
RINKRESHEMAEZL LR PRC RMB 500,000,000 33% 33%  Inactive
BRAR*
RYREARMRERER h AR 500,0000007C EEXG
BRAR*
EYRT(RR)ERET PRC RMB100,000,000 12% 12%  Film distribution
BB ELAA* (note a)
EYXT(RR)EFENT h AR 100,0000007C BYET
BREEAR* (FEa)
EMARBRAEATZHMERRE* PRC RMB1,000,000 39.71% 3971%  Operating of
digital cinemas
BEMARBEREAZHERAR HE AR 1,0000007C YiEEhise
PR {5 BRI A R A B PRC RMB1,977,429 17.73% 193%  Information technology
(note a) business
KA EERMAR AR HE AR#19774297C EARRES
(Ftzta)
SRR (D) 15 B R ATAR 17 PRC RMB5,000,000 5.91% 645%  Information technology
BR2AHE* (note a) business
i A8 (R 20) 15 BB AR 0 h AR 50000007 ERRRER
ARAA*(fiza)
TRHBEREBRAR PRC RMBU3,255 29.56% 322%  Information technology
business
RS CERRERAR I AR 932557 ERRREB
& unlisted limited liability company u FEMAREEDR]
Note: P
(@ The Group's equity interest in these companies are less than 20%. However, articles of @ ARERZL T AR Z LT 20% o AT - AR

association allow the Group to appoint directors to the board. The directors of the
Company therefore consider they have power to exercise significant influence. As
such, the Group has accounted for these companies as interests in associates.

Nan Hai Corporation Limited @ ABEZERERAR
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BF 755 R 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #(Z 2018 12 A31 HILFE

17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 17. RBAELTRZHEE (]|)
The summarised financial information of the Group’s material associates BREAREEF BEE N At W R P 1E
extracted from their management accounts, adjusted for fair value ANABEARLSTHEZEmMEL AR
adjustments made at the time of acquisition and for differences in % (B W HERME (Bika EEIER
accounting policies, if any, are as follows: B)amR :
Dongfangdadi Wuzhou
RE Rt M
2018 2017 2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHL FERT FAT
Summarised statement of MR RBRGE
financial position:
Non-current assets FEREBEE - - 798 1,484
Current assets MENEE 128,853 139411 578,594 604,458
Current liabilities mEEE - (12) (481,666) (444,772)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE - - - -
Summarised statement of 2HBEHRRBE
comprehensive income:
Revenue Wz - - 1,720,675 751,570
(Loss)/Profit for the year ER(EE), T (3,434) (3,532) 63,487 69,311
Other comprehensive income FREMEERE
for the year (7,112) 9,885 (13,004) 22,714
Total comprehensive income FAEHENRETE
for the year (10,546) 6,353 50,483 92,025
Dividends payable/paid to e/ BARRERE
shareholders - - (113,927) (45,141)
Dividend receivable/ e, B —
received from an associate AARE - - 29,631 11,067
Reconciled to the Group's AEBRBEDATZ
interests in the associates: RS ZHER
Gross amounts of net assets BE DR EEFE
of the associates e 128,853 139,399 97,726 161,170
Group's effective interest KREBERRER 40.36% 40.36% 22.5% 22.5%
Group's share of net assets of REEEGHERA
the associates BETE 52,005 56,261 21,988 36,263
Carrying amount in the REFERBREZ
consolidated financial EREE
statements 52,005 56,261 21,988 36,263

—E-N\FEFH @ Annual Report 2018 |
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BF 755 R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

18.

The summarised financial information of the Group's immaterial
associates (in aggregate) extracted from their management accounts,
adjusted for fair value adjustments made at the time of acquisition and
for differences in accounting policies, are as follows:

17. RBBELARZES (18)

ERAAKEEEIERENR (ALK
BEMEAREBEABRREHERREREN
EHABRRZMBERBE (BERaREE

BRE)MAT :

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET AT

Summarised statement of 2HNERRBEE

comprehensive income:

Loss for the year FAEE (2,557) (6,659)
Other comprehensive income for the year FREMEEUES (484) 3,784
Total comprehensive income for the year FATEW R AR (3,041) (2,875)

Notes:

The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of losses of four (2017: four) associates.
The amount of unrecognised share of losses of the associates for the year and accumulated
unrecognised share of losses of the associates amounted to HK$333,000 (2017: HK$296,000)
and HK$5,232,000 (2017: HK$4,899,000) respectively.

B -

AEB R R E RGO (2017 F ¢ HRE) & QRS

18- FRAREREEBEATBBZ AR KEREN
Bt N B R 2 25T 85 Bl A 333,000 7T (2017 F -
296,000 %57 ) B 5,232,000 7T (2017 5 © 4,899,000/ 7T) ©

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 18. REBLEZESR
2018 2017
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHx Tt
Share of net assets other than goodwill EIETBEEmEBzEEFE 30,688 5413

In July 2017, the Group completed the acquisition of City Entertainment
Corporation Limited, which holds 49% equity interest and voting right in
EMNEREFRREATHBERDT (CEMER"). EMERis a
separate structured vehicle incorporated and operating in PRC. The
primary activity of the joint venture is cinema operation.

In August 2018, the Group set up SC Dadi Entertainment Corporation
("SC Dadi"), with a third party. The Group holds 50% equity interest and
voting right in SC Dadi, which is a separate structured vehicle
incorporated and operating in Japan. The primary activity of the joint
venture is animation production.

Nan Hai Corporation Limited @ EEERERATE
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BF 755 R 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #(Z 2018 12 A31 HILFE

18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 18. REBLRZHER (IR)
The summarised financial information of the Group's joint ventures BN EESE XTI EAHRREEM
extracted from their management accounts, adjusted for differences in EH ARG 2T HBERE (e HERE
accounting policies, are as follows: BRE)WAT :
EMER SC Dadi

2018 2017 2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT FHET FET

Summarised statementof BB THMRMUE :
financial position:

Non-current assets FERBEE 5,403 7,087 - -

Current assets mENEE 17,453 15,853 49,551 -

Current liabilities mENEE (10,663) (11,689) - -

Non-current liabilities ERBARG (128) (204) - -
Included in the above FFALMRIES

amounts are:

Cash and cash equivalents RekERBELIEAER 14,118 12,565 49,551 -

Summarised statement of 2EKFEBFREPE :
comprehensive income:

Revenue Wzt 23,859 9,812 - =
Profit/(Loss) for the year FERNEF,(ER) 1,652 329 (687) =
Other comprehensive income &R H ith 2 &Iz

for the year (634) 389 434 -
Total comprehensive income  FRZE W25

for the year 1,018 718 (253) -

Included in the above STALMEIES

amounts are:
Depreciation and YrEE Ry

amortisation (1,283) (1,061) - -
Administrative expenses THRAX (736) (289) (689) -
Interest income FLEWA 85 37 - -
Income tax (expense)/credit  FREH (FIs), &% (777) 122 - =

Reconciled to the Group’s HEREFERESEHES
interests in the SR
joint ventures:
Gross amounts of net assets A& EEEFE

of the joint ventures s 12,065 11,047 49,551 -
Group's effective interest AEBEETHR#EZ 49% 49% 50% -
Group's share of net assets of AEEEES &
the joint ventures rEEEFE 5,912 5413 24,776 =
Carrying amount in RESHHERRZ
the consolidated BREE
financial statements 5,912 5413 24,776 -
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BF 755 R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

19. NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD-FOR-SALE

In November 2016, the Group decided to cease the running of a
warehouse of the Group's botanic-based personal care and fragrance
product business located in Wales due to geographical relocation. The
Group has actively marketed the freehold land and premises of the
warehouse which meets the classification definition of HKFRS 5 as held-
for-sale. The operation of the warehouse was ceased on 31 March 2017
and the Group sold the freehold land and premises of the warehouse on
29 March 2018 at a cash consideration of HK$34,667,000 and a gain of
approximately HK$19,649,000 is recognised in profit or loss for the year.

20. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

19. HEHEZFRDERE

2016511 A - BRMIELE - AEER
R IEEEREEMA BB LT 2 EAREA
EERBKEREBZRE - AEBER
HHBEME KA EE T R - W/
ERABUBRMELERNESKR2HEER 7
DEBEELE - BER2017F3A31H
miEEE BASEEMN2018F3H29H
LAIR & {8 34,667,000 7 T H & B B AT FE 5K
AFERE T R - S IR ER 49 19,649,000
PEIT AN 2 B BRTERR ©

20. & ARIARH MERXK

RECEIVABLES L]
2018 2017
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FAT
Deposits and prepayments e MIEN I8 2,366,424 2,535,754
Other receivables H {th fE Y Fh I8 1,469,195 1,386,521
3,835,619 3,922,275
Less: Provision for impairment of B EA R UGORR B R
other receivables (141,886) (27,480)
3,693,733 3,894,795
Less: Non-current portion B ERBE S
Long term rental deposits REAE S (385,936) (381,430)
Guarantee deposits and REFBIR S K H M YR
other receivables (334,347) (462,739)
Deposits for purchase of property, BEME  BELRREBZFT®
plant and equipment (49,857) (57,681)
(770,140) (901,850)
2,923,593 2,992,945

The Group recognised impairment loss based on the accounting policy
stated in note 2.12. Further details on the Group's credit policy and credit
risk arising from deposits and other receivables are set out in note 52.4.

HRHTTES24 ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 R 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #(Z 2018 12 A31 HILFE

21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

21. P EE

Licenses,
brand names
Computer Development and franchise
software cost Goodwill right Others Total
R - mAE
AZB/R
£ EG RERA BE  RAREE Hte @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TER TER TEx TEn TEr
Yearended 31 December2018 £ Z2018F 12 318
JI2:355
Opening netcaryingamount ~ EA¥IEREE(E 89,773 71,761 5,200,337 982,861 93,351 6,438,083
Additions RE 17,577 27,086 - 24,995 161,574 231,232
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 43) Uk EaHTE 22 &) (Pt 43) - - 485,400 2,359 2,371 490,130
Provision for impairment RERE - (3,620) (180,836) (17,821) (4,497) (206,774)
Amortisation charge for the year  FREE$E S ] (23,257) (17,801) - (83,109) (26,786) (150,953)
Write-off G| (110) (1,246) - (4,389) (64,582) (70,327)
Exchange differences ERER (2,209) (3,887) (166,934) (33,255) (8,374) (214,659)
Closing net carryingamount 742018512 311
at 31 December 2018 ZHRREFE 81,774 72293 5,337,967 871,641 153,057 6,516,732
At 31 December 2018 M2018%12A31H
Cost AR 139,602 117,637 5634472 1,028,187 252,350 7,172,248
Accumulated depreciation Z:E (57,644) (36,413) - (139,378) (94,961) (328,396)
Accumulated impairment 2EHRE (184) (8,931) (296,505) (17,168) (4,332) (327,120)
Net carrying amount REEE 81,774 72,293 5,337,967 871,641 153,057 6,516,732
At 1 January 2017 201751 A 1R
Cost AR 344452 167913 2,496,706 454122 18378 3481571
Accumulated depreciation Z:E (298,702) (104,026) = (16,944) (225) (419,897)
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE - - (36914) - - (36914)
Net carrying amount FHFE 45,750 63,887 2459792 437178 18153 3,024,760
Yearended 31 December 2017 #Z2017E 12831 R
ItEE
Opening netcaryingamount ¥R S 45750 63,887 2459792 437,178 18153 3024,760
Additions RE 47185 21877 - 7808 16657 93527
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 43) Uk E&HTE 2 &) (FffE43) 4130 = 2,712,754 538,160 58,853 3313897
Provision for impairment R ERE (177) (5530) (79612) - - (85,319)
Amortisation charge for the year  FREE S H (10,308) (13,389) = (40,446) (2,906) (67,049)
Write-off iz = = - - (670) (670)
Exchange differences ERES 3,193 4916 107403 40,161 3,264 158937
Closing net carrying amount R2017F12A3182
at 31 December 2017 HREmFE 89,773 71,761 5200337 982,861 93,351 6,438,083
At 31 December 2017 and R2017F12A31B R
1 January 2018 2018F1A1H
Cost A 401459 192653 5316,862 1,039,187 97,192 7,047,353
Accumulated depreciation 2irE (311,502) (115,150) - (56,326) (3,841) (486,819)
Accumulated impairment Z:HRE (184) (5742) (116,525) = = (122451)
Net carrying amount FETE 89,773 71,761 5200337 982,861 93,351 6438083
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BF 755 R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

'\
. .‘__ !

21. | RE (8])

For the purpose of the annual impairment test, the carrying amount of

goodwill is allocated to the following CGUs:

REERENATE - B8

E MRS ELE :

2018 2017

HK$'000 HKS'000

FHET T

Property development EhE R 1,529,887 1,526,825

Innovative business — Retailing BEmE —TE 520,767 676,698

Enterprise cloud services TEZRS 76,883 83,320
Culture and media services AL B {ERE RS

— Cinema business — P EE 3,210,430 2,913,494

Net carrying amount at 31 December M®12A31 AZREFE 5,337,967 5,200,337

The recoverable amounts for the CGUs of “Enterprise cloud services” and
“Culture and media services” were determined based on value in use
calculations, covering a detailed five-year financial budgets which was
approved by management, cash flows for certain CGUs are extrapolated
using an estimated weighted average growth rate stated below, which

[EEERS] K IcREERSE] 2HE
EABEM AR E S ERBEREERTE
AHE ETREREEEMEZAFFA
PRRE ETHEELABUZRERE
Ty AT 5 fE 5 I g R R HE - W

does not exceed the long-term growth rate for the business in which the

CGU operates.

The key assumptions used for value in use calculations for the year are as

EHEARCEEEMM

£ o

ey

Xz KR

AR EZFECABEZEIERERNT ¢

follows:
Culture and
Enterprise media services -
cloud services cinema business
LEERK XA EREREIRTE — BT T
2018 2017 2018 2017
Revenue growth rates Uy 2538 & R 8%-12% 8%-11% 3%-70% 3%-32%
Growth rates used to extrapolate B {EHE i 78 & HA 5 LA b
cashflows beyond the RenarErk
budgeted years 0% 0%-3% 3% 3%
Pre-tax discount rates B % BT BH EE = 12%-18% 13%-18% 13%-17% 13%

The budgeted gross margin and net profit margin were determined by
the management for each individual CGU based on past performance
and its expectations for market development.

The growth rate used for each of the above CGU is determined by
reference to the average growth rate for the corresponding industry to
which the CGU belongs.

Nan Hai Corporation Limited @ ABEZERERAR
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BF 755 R 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #(Z 2018 12 A31 HILFE

21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to
the relevant CGU.

Based on the assessment, impairment loss on goodwill from the CGU of
culture and media services amounted to HK$23,356,000 was recognised
during the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

The recoverable amounts for the CGU of “Property development” of 5
#% was determined based on value in use calculations, covering a
detailed five-year financial budgets which was approved by
management, cash flows for CGU are extrapolated using projection of
future cash flows generated from the sales of properties less cost to
completion prepared from the financial budgets.

Below are the key assumptions used for the discounted cash flow
calculation:

1. |\ R E (])

Pt FRRRIR = 73 BR 75 AT X S Bk B AR 3R &
EENAE S ERR

ERNEBTE - BE20185F 12 A31BHILE
B Bt EEERB RS EEENE
P B R (B B 18 23,356,000 78 7T (2017 4F ¢
) o

Rz [FHEME | REEEEM Z AT
ESEBEFEREERATE  EFRE
KERBHEZ AFHEVBESE  Be
EXBUZASRENERBAHEES
FTB IR & 7 255 3 X T8 & AT 47 8455 Al AR
T -

THRARAEMRASREZ T ERR ¢

Property development
B ERR
2018 2017
Estimated market price (per square meter) B (EEAXK) RMB20,000 RMB16,000

AR¥20,000T | AR¥16,0007T

BRI ARG

Pre-tax discount rate

26% 59%

The estimated market price was determined by the management based
on the market information at location nearby the construction project.

The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect the cost of capital of the
property development segment.

Based on the assessment, no impairment loss on goodwill was
recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31 December 2018
and 2017.

The recoverable amounts for the CGU of “Innovative business —
Retailing” were determined based on value in use calculation, covering a
detailed eight-year financial budgets which was approved by
management, cash flows for geographical location within the CGU are
extrapolated using an estimated weighted average growth rate stated
below, which does not exceed the long-term growth rate for the
business in which the CGU operates.

—E-)\FEFR @ Annual Report 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

21.

22.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 21. |LHRE (])
The key assumptions used for value in use calculations for the year are as AR EZEECAEECEERRAT :
follows:
Innovative business
AEEE
2018 2017
Revenue growth rate g 2518 &R 2%-73% 3%-43%
Growth rate used to extrapolate cashflows REEEBEEEEUINASRE L
beyond the budgeted years R & 2% 3%
Pre-tax discount rate R A5 AT AL 3R 2R 16%-26% 15%-23%
Based on the assessment, an impairment loss on goodwill of EREBFE  FARBEERERZER
HK$ 157,480,000 (2017: HK$79,612,000) was recognised to profit or loss B &8 157,480,000 % 7T (2017 5 : 79,612,000
during the year. BT e
Apart from the considerations described in determining the value in use B EXHFAEReEESEMEREAEML
calculation of the CGUs above, the Group’s management is not currently ZRRAEN  AEBEEIRE R AL A
aware of any other probable changes that would necessitate changes in BEMEMAIERER 2 #BUBAE RE
its key estimates. EEAET o
INVENTORIES 22. R
2018 2017
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET T
Property development: EERMR
Properties under development BRAYE 11,873,023 10,510,757
Completed properties held for sale BEARASEME 2,060,481 4,467,482
13,933,504 14,978,239
Other operations: HiH ¢
Food and beverages B Mk 57,230 39,885
Botanic-based personal care EAREAEREREKER
and fragrance products 123,178 218,579
Projection equipment R 116,088 73,584
Others Hi 129,683 8,945
14,359,683 15,319,232
All the above inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net A EFEFEESRK AR FRFENE
realisable value. P ZBIEETER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #(Z 2018 12 A31 HILFE

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

These financial assets are equity investments which were irrevocably
designated at FVOCI as the Group considers these investments to be

24.

strategic in nature.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Based on the invoice dates, the aging analysis of the trade receivables is

23. BARREREMEZERRE
BzamAE

ZETBMEER T REMIEE /RAR
BEREBEENKEEE ZBRAEE R
REASERRZETREBREIES -

BB 3R % IR
FENE 5 SRR E B B AR 2 PR I

as follows: mE
2018 2017
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FAT
0-90 days 02 90H 331,166 379,390
91-180 days 91&180H 110,863 223,654
181-270 days 1812270 H 26,088 31,496
271-360 days 2712360 H 22,884 26,653
Over 360 days i@ 360 H 130,030 48,538
Trade receivables, gross FEWE 5 2hIEERE 621,031 709,731
Less: Provision for impairment of receivables & : FEU R IE R B £ (81,467) (30,063)
Trade receivables, net FEWE 5 5K IH 5 539,564 679,668
Less: Long term trade receivables L REAFEWE 55018 (764) (2,370)
Current portion of trade receivables FEUWE 55818 2 BIEREE 5 538,800 677,298

Trade receivables are due on presentation of invoices.

The long term trade receivables represent the outstanding balances
receivable from customers who have granted a settlement schedule of
36 months from the Group. The current portion and non-current portion
of the receivables were HK$1,855,000 and HK$764,000 respectively (2017:
HK$2,319,000 and HK$2,370,000 respectively). All the remaining amounts
are short term and hence the carrying values of the Group's trade
receivables are considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair

value.

The Group recognised impairment loss based on the accounting policy
stated in note 2.12. Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit
risk arising from trade receivables are set out in note 52.4.

FEW B B AN R E R EH -

REEWE FFHIBIEEBERNERE T 36
BAZEFRRBERZEPZREELH -
ERAEUEIE 2 BNEAE D RIERNEAZ 5 5
Al & 1,855,000 7 T K 764,000 7 7T (2017 £F -
2 Al 52,319,000/ T K% 2,370,000 7T ) ° FT
ERERARENRE S5IE  WAEEE
WBSFIE FEERGEEAEARE
BEfRSE -

REFERBEW 212 @EHBRERDR
WEEE AEBZEERRERERES
REEEZEERR ZE—PFHBIHNMN
FF524 0
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 24.

25.

The aging analysis of trade receivables (net of impairment) that are not
considered to be impaired is as follows:

FEN 5 5 "R IR (§)

WAR B ERE 2 FEWE 53R B(HRRE)
BRER DT T -

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET T

0-90 days past due wmHI0Z= 90 H 330,835 379,390
91-180 days past due BHA91 % 180 B 109,754 222,997
181-270 days past due #HR181 2270 H 25,305 30,603
271-360 days past due B 271 =360 B 21,740 26,641
Overdue for more than 360 days 60 BA 838 360 B 51,930 20,037
539,564 679,668

The directors of the Company consider that the fair value of trade
receivables which are expected to be recovered within one year are not
materially different from their carrying amounts because these balances
have short maturity periods on their inception.

ARBPEERR  BHR—FAKE 2 E
WESHRBRZARNBERAERAELES
RER RARZEHEBEBELRAAR
e

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, PLEDGEDAND 25. i@ RERB®IHE - BiEH
RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS R ZREIERITHER
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cash and bank balances B METTERE 8,297,573 13,069,789
Less: Pledged and restricted bank deposits A FIEIERB B E 2 BT
presented as non-current assets R BRI ERIT I 3K (3,755,612) (3,591,605)
Less: Pledged and restricted bank deposits W BIERENEE 2 B R
presented as current assets PR HERITIF X (3,207,363) (5,080,474)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in BISARR BRI R 2 RS &
the statement of financial position ERIREIER 1,334,598 4,397,710

Nan Hai Corporation Limited @ EEERERATE
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BF 755 R 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #(Z 2018 12 A31 HILFE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, PLEDGED AND
RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS (Continued)

Included in bank and cash balance of the Group is an aggregate amount
of approximately HK$7,529,467,000 (2017: HK$11,753,713,000), which
represented Renminbi (“RMB”) deposits placed with banks in Mainland
China.

RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies. Under the PRC's
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sales and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for foreign currencies through banks which
are authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Pledged and restricted bank deposits earn interests at floating rates
based on daily bank deposit rates or fixed-rates ranging from 2.10% to
3.30% per annum (2017: 1.50% to 3.30% per annum).

Restricted bank deposits represented the pre-sales proceeds received by
the Group relating to the property development business. The restricted
deposits are monitored by local government. The restriction will be
released upon the completion of the related pre-sale properties.

TRADE PAYABLES

Based on the invoice dates, the aging analysis of the trade payables is as
follows:

25.

26.

HakERBE®RE - CEH
RZMAEIRITHER ()

AEEBRTRERBASEGTEELEYD
7,529,467,0007 7T (20174 : 11,753,713,000
BIT) ZRIE - AAEBEFNHE AR IRTT
ZARE([TAREDFR -

ARMTE & bR BINE - R E 2
SHETHERAREE  SERFETS
ST - AR B R B R THNE
B2 RATBARKLBBINE -

EEARZRETERRBEESBRERT
TFRFIE 2 2 8 F = ol 4% [E 72 1) & B
BN TEFER20EE330E (20174 ¢
FREIS0EZE330E) -

R BIERITIF I AR BRI 2
WA Z FRE S HIE - XRHFH b
TBRREE - BRARGKRAEEEME
B TR RRRR ©

R AHREA

FEN R 5 HIEIRE R B HE 2 R AT
T -

2018 2017

HK$'000 HKS$'000

FET FET

0-90 days 02 90H 1,636,391 1,944,465
91-180 days 91&180H 89,254 84,741
181-270 days 181 & 270 H 51,998 21,826
271-360 days 2712360 H 26,970 20,733
Over 360 days 8@ 360 H 90,102 73,177
Trade payables FENE 5518 1,894,715 2,144,942

Less: Long term trade payables B REENE S5E (409) (7,757)
Current portion of trade payables FEf B 55k IE 2 BNEAES 75 1,894,306 2,137,185
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

26. TRADE PAYABLES (Continued)

The long term trade payable represents the outstanding balance payable
to a supplier who has granted a settlement schedule of 36 months to
the Group. The current portion and long term portion of this payable
were HK$10,607,000 and HK$409,000 respectively (2017: HK$34,944,000
and HK$7,757,000 respectively). All the remaining amounts are short
term and hence the carrying values of the Group’s trade payables are

considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair value.

27. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

All amounts are short term and hence the carrying values of the Group’s
other payables and accruals are considered to be a reasonable

approximation of fair value.

28. AMOUNT(S) DUE FROM/(TO) A DIRECTOR/
ASSOCIATES/JOINT VENTURES

(a) Amount due to a director

The amount due to a director is unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

(b) Amounts due from/(to) associates

The amounts due from/(to) associates are unsecured, interest-free

and repayable on demand.

(c) Amounts due from joint ventures

The amounts due from joint ventures are unsecured, interest-free

and repayable on demand.

} Nan Hai Corporation Limited @ FBERERAF
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FE{T 5 B ™R IR (48)

RHEMNZESREERN —BHERZ R
EiEES  ZAERERRTASEE36EA
ZAEEH o iR IR IE 2 BN R K AR
285 9 Bl A10,607,00078 7T & 409,00078 JT
(2017 £ : 93 31| 434,944,000 7 7T & 7,757,000
BIL) - FTAERBEHYBESME - Fit - K
SEyENESHREREERRAARE
B ABHE -

HAFE T RIA R E R
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ENFALEFERREERAAAE
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29. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 29. RITREMES

2018 2017
Notes HK$’000 HKS'000
ihE=s FHET T
Bank loans IRITER
— Secured — B (@) 9,793,929 14,092,224
— Unsecured — KR (@) 294,560 697,014
Other borrowings HithfgE
— Secured — B @),0),0) 7,689,558 8,107,216
— Unsecured — I (@)(d) 940,958 =
18,719,005 22,896,454
At 31 December 2018, the bank and other borrowings of the Group are 2018512 431 B - AEEZRITREAM
repayable as follows: FEEARAT 4 HIEIE -
2018 2017
HK$'000 HKS'000
FET T
On demand or within one year BER—FA 6,805,091 9,653,920
In the second year F—F 8,195,413 3,373,093
In the third to fifth years E=FhE 3,718,501 9,869,441
Wholly repayable within five years RERNEBHEER 18,719,005 22,896,454
Less: Portion due on demand or within B ETARBAERERSE—FR
one year under current liabilities E|HR 2 EB 5 (6,805,091) (9,653,920)
Portion due over one year under SFAERBEERNBBE—FRH
non-current liabilities 28 11,913,914 13,242,534
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

29. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

At 31 December 2018, the carrying amounts of the borrowings are

29. RITRHEMBE ()
R2018F 12 A31 B » (BB ZEREEIE 7

denominated in the following currencies: EMEE -

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT

RMB AR® 5,722,351 10,572,939

usb ETT 10,592,662 10,696,960

HKS BT 2,403,787 1,626,159

AUD JEIT 205 396

18,719,005 22,896,454

Notes: PHRE -

(a) At 31 December 2018, bank and other borrowings amounted to HK$8,200,718,000 (@ 72018412 A31 8 + A#£8,200,718,000747T(2017
(2017: HK$11,450,731,000) carry interest at floating rates ranging from 3.32% to 7.13% £ 1 11450,731,0008 7T ) Z R1T R E M & EIRZF
per annum (2017: 2.09% to 9.50% per annum). The remaining balances carry interest BEFRNF330EE713E (20175 : 200EFE
at fixed rates ranging from 3.00% to 9.75% per annum (2017: 2.40% to 9.50% per 9502 ) 5t B - ABIRETEFMEN F30EE
annum). The carrying amounts of bank and other borrowings approximate their fair 9752 (20174 : 240/ E 9502 ) 5t B o RIT K
values. HifEE 2 REERE QA BEME -

(b) Included in other borrowings of HK$650,738,000 (2017: HK$1,013,186,000) is amount (b) HithfEEReER =18 Q017F : +=H)F
due to financial institutions regarding thirteen (2017: thirteen) sales and leaseback A% BERRFH 2 ERBERZHRABHEE
arrangements for property, plant and equipment. The transactions are classified as A#1650,738,0004 7T (20174F : 1,013,186,0007 7T.)
loan financing and corresponding property, plant and equipment of HK$778,128,000 ZHE ZERFGEERXBES A BE
(2017: HK$1,113,338,000) are pledged under this arrangement. 778,128,000 7T (2017 4F : 1,113338000/8 7T ) 2

TEREME - BE KR EARIR I IE R HEE A o

© On 25 May 2017, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company issued a three- © R2017F5 4250 ARRZERZAMBE AR
year credit enhanced notes of US$500,000,000 (equivalent to approximately E£7500,000,0003% 7T (#8E 7 493,885,350,0007 7T )
HK$3,885,350,000) at par with a coupon rate of 3.00% per annum. The effective REFFIE300% 2 ZFHERLRRE - BR
interest rate is 3.41% per annum. FHEE341% °
On 21 July 2017, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company issued a three- R201757A218 - ARAZEEEZEWRBE QAR
year credit enhanced notes of US$400,000,000 (equivalent to approximately E£1T7400,000,0003 7T (FH & 7493,124,121,0007 7T)
HK$3,124,121,000) at par with a coupon rate of 3.15% per annum. The effective SEFFE3% 2 ZFHERLERRER - BR
interest rate is 3.54% per annum. FRE354% ©

(d  On 17 May 2018, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company issued a one-year () R20185F5 8170 ARBZEEZEMNBARR

senior note of US$120,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$941,676,000) with a
coupon rate of 9.75% per annum. The effective interest rate is 12.12% per annum.

Nan Hai Corporation Limited @ EEERERATE
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30. FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES

(a)

Total minimum lease payments is as follows:

30. MEHE AR

(a)

REHEMNREHEMAT

2018 2017
HK$'000 HKS'000
FHET FAT
Due within one year — & A 3|5 45,960 63,098
Due in the second year F_FRNEHA 28,245 24,594
Due in the third to fifth years E=FERFANFNH 22,972 4,332
97,177 92,024
Future finance charges on finance leases @t &THE 7 KR KEF 752 (7,087) (4,851)
Present value of finance lease liabilities mEHEaBERE 90,090 87,173
The present value of finance lease liabilities is as follows: b REHEEBSFEBEET
2018 2017
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FAxT
Due within one year, included —FARRE  FtARSAEE
under current liabilities 42,078 59,189
Due within second year, included under £ - R2H - st AERTEE
non-current liabilities 25,892 23,738
Due in the third to fifth years, included FE=ZNFRNINEH - ;T AERY
under non-current liabilities aE 22,120 4,246
90,090 87,173

The Group has entered into finance leases for certain items of
cinema equipment, office equipment and motor vehicles with
remaining lease terms of one to three years (2017: one to three
years). Interest rate under the leases is fixed at 3.3% to 10.7% (2017:
2.0% to 7.1%) per annum. The leases do not have options to renew
or any contingent rental provisions. Under the lease terms, the
Group has the option to purchase the leased asset at a price that
is expected to be significantly or substantially lower than the fair
value of the leased asset at the end of the leases.

Finance lease liabilities are secured by the underlying assets where
the lessor has the rights to revert in event of default. The carrying
amount of the finance lease liabilities are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars and approximates their fair values.

—E-)\FEFR @ Annual
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31. CONVERTIBLE AND EXCHANGEABLE BONDS

On 15 June 2016 (“Issue Date”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company (the “Issuer”), issued an aggregate of RMB1,000,000,000
convertible and exchangeable bonds (the “Bonds”) which carry interest
at 1.95% per annum with a maturity date of two years from the Issue
Date (“Maturity Date"). Interest rate will be adjusted to 5.5% per annum
upon redemption of the Bonds and the adjusted interests rate applied
retrospectively for the whole life of the Bonds.

The conversion price is initially RMB266,667 per share, subject to
adjustments for certain specified dilutive and other events, including the
adjustment by reference to the box office revenue. The Bonds are
secured by the shares of the Issuer and the Bond holder can convert the
Bonds into Issuer’s shares representing approximately 4.76% of the
enlarged issued share capital of the Issuer or exchanged into 100% of a
direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Issuer.

Unless previously redeemed, converted or exchanged, the Issuer will
redeem all the Bonds at the principal amount together with any accrued
but unpaid interest on such principal amount on the third anniversary of
the Issue Date.

Immediately prior to the closing of a fully underwritten registered public
offering by an Issuer group company on an internationally recognised
stock exchange (the “Qualified IPO") in respect of the Issuer, unless
previously converted, exchanged or redeemed, the outstanding Bonds
shall be automatically exchanged into 100% of the issued share capital
of a subsidiary of the Issuer credited as fully paid, at any time between
the Issue Date up to the close of business on the date falling on the third
anniversary of the Issue Date (the “Exchange Period”).

The holder of the Bonds shall have the right at its sole option to require
the Issuer to redeem all of its Bonds outstanding at an amount which
yields an internal rate of return of 5.50% per annum on the subscription
amount paid by the holder following the Maturity Date, or in case of
certain early redemption events happened.

The holder of the Bonds was granted an put option to request the
Company to purchase the Bonds at a price that will yield an internal rate
of return of 5.50% per annum on the subscription amount paid by the
holder for the Bonds for a period of 90 days after the occurrence of an
event of default or other events related to the application of a Qualified
IPO (details of the Bonds are disclosed in the announcement dated 22
June 2016 issued by the Company).

Nan Hai Corporation Limited @ ABEZERERAR
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31. CONVERTIBLE AND EXCHANGEABLE BONDS
(Continued)

The related interest expense of the liability component of the Bonds for
the year ended 31 December 2018 amounted to HK$65,361,000 (2017:
HK$104,549,000), which was calculated using the effective interest
method with an effective interest rate of 10.23% per annum.

The movements in the components of the Bonds during the year ended
31 December 2018 are set out below:

31. AR AIZWES (1)

HE2018F12A31BIEFE  EHFEES
7 2 FE A B B X 565,361,000 7T (2017
F £ 104,549,000/ 7T )  ThER A BB F &%
BREBRFFEI1023E1E -

HZE2018F12A31BIEFE  B5ZHH
Z#EBEHOT

Liability Embedded
component derivatives Total
E8E8Hy BARNTETA st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FH&xT FET
At 1 January 2017 201791 A1 H 1,010,036 113,717 1,123,753
Change in fair value of BRAXTETAAREE
embedded derivatives EE = (26,309) (26,309)
Interest expense FER% 104,549 = 104,549
Interest paid BAFIE (21,989) = (21,989)
Exchange differences E H =58 79,785 = 79,785
At 31 December 2017 and M2017F12 A31 B K&
1 January 2018 20181 A1H 1,172,381 86,908 1,259,289
Change in fair value of BAXITETAAREE
embedded derivatives ) - (65,432) (65,432)
Interest expense B 65,361 - 65,361
Interest paid ERFE (24,375) - (24,375)
Exchange differences b H =& (62,646) - (62,646)
At 31 December 2018 7201812 A31H 1,150,721 21,476 1,172,197
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32. FINANCIAL LIABILITY AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

32. BARRERRZEEEZ &
AR

PROFIT ORLOSS
Embedded
derivatives Others
(note (a)) (note (b)) Total
BmARX
TETA Hith
(M= @) (Bt £ (b)) st
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
THERT FET FET
At 1 January 2017 RK2017F1 818 113,717 = 113,717
Change in fair value N BEEZE) (26,809) - (26,809)
At 31 December 2017 and R2017F 12 A31B X
1 January 2018 201841 A1 H 86,908 - 86,908
Change in fair value ARBEES (65,432) 5,435 (59,997)
At 31 December 2018 74201812 831 H 21,476 5,435 26,911
Notes: BE
(a) Embedded derivatives (a) BARPTETA

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the amounts represent the fair value of the
conversion option embedded in the convertible and exchangeable bonds as
disclosed in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

The gain on fair value change of the embedded derivatives of the Bonds for the year
ended 31 December 2018 of HK$65,432,000 (2017: HK$26,809,000) was recognised as
“fair value change of financial liabilities at FVTPL" in the consolidated income
statement.

Others

The amount represents the fair value of liability component of a foreign currency and
interest rate swap contract. The asset component of the swap contract was
recognised as “Financial assets at FVTPL" in the consolidated financial statements.

The fair value of interest rate swap is calculated as the present value of the estimated
future cash flows based on deserved yield curve.

The fair value of forward exchange contract is determined based on the forward
exchange rate at reporting date.

Nan Hai Corporation Limited @ EEERERATE

R2018F K 20174612 A31 B - EBLBEEERE
B RS RR M 3 FTR B AR IR R A R IR EH 2
BMAR S IREAEZ DA BE -

HZE2018F12A3HILFE - EBHZRARDT
4 T AR A EE %8I #65432,0007%8 7T (2017
£ 1 26,809,000 7T ) KR A& Wam R R R [RA
ABENEZREEZ CRABEARBEEZD] -

Hoth

BRFRIEINE R RS NARSI Z AR
BE - REANZAEBONGA P IRRER
RIBAAEBENBRRREZEREE]

ARt 82 N A EE T ARIE AT BREE A 3R i AR A TE
EEARRREREZHE -

EHERAKN AR EETRE®RE B2 EH
ERETE




Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 R 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

33. OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

In December 2017, CE Dongli, an indirectly subsidiary of the Company,
implemented a scheme (the “Scheme”) to incentivise the senior
management personnel of CE Dongli (the “CE Senior Management”). The
Scheme lasts for a period of 5 years up to 31 December 2021. Pursuant
to the Scheme, the Group will effectively grant a total of 15,996,402 units
of right to receive profit-share and bonus reward (the “Bonus Reward”) to
CE Senior Management. The recipients of such Bonus Reward have the
rights to exercise at the price of RMB1 for each unit of Bonus Reward in
return for one unit of equity interest in CE Dongli (the “CE interests”).
Upon the exercising of all units of Bonus Reward, the CE Senior
Management will in substance indirectly holding a total of
approximately 6.6% of the CE Interests. Within one year after the expiry
date of the Scheme (i.e. 31 December 2022), it is mandatory for the
Group to buy back all of the CE Interests from the CE Senior
Management (the “Buy-back”) and there is no choice for the Group or
the CE Senior Management to opt for alternative equity settlement. The
Buy-back will be made at the pre-determined prices, depending on
various performance conditions including CE Dongli’s audited and
approved revenue and net profit margin.

As at 31 December 2018, a total of 9,716,300 (2017: 3,436,220) units of
Bonus Reward were granted to the CE Senior Management and
3,951,800 (2017: 1,718,110) units of the Bonus Reward were exercised.
With reference to the probability of meeting the performance conditions
set out in the Scheme, the Group estimated a provision for the Buy-back
amounting to approximately RMB34,850,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$41,193,000) (2017: Nil) for the year ended 31
December 2018.

As at 31 December 2018, a total provision of approximately
RMB14,862,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$16,923,000) (2017: Nil)
and RMB23,940,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$27,260,000) (2017:
approximately RMB1,718,000 (equivalent to approximately
HKS$2,064,000)) was recognised under the current liabilities and non-
current liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position
respectively.

33. Hth{E Rig#

201712 A AR RIEEN B QR HR D
g BB & ([3%ar8)) LUK B+ &
PHZEBEBRAB(PLEaRERREA
B)  ZiBEE2021512A31BAILA
H5F - REZGTE  AEBBRREER
BEIEAB BB A £15,996,402 (B W EUG
Pl = RACAT 48R ([fEAT 58/ |) 2 #EfL B8
i - BRZEAREATEREARE
AT S LA BB BB AR E P b8 ) —
Bz ([ ]) - RETEEAER
BiTEE  PraATREERED FHE
BEAENeonP h#Em - NEFEIEM B
BR(BP2022F 12 A31H)B—F A A&EH
ARFTEREEASBOMEPOER
([EE]) BAEESFESREREAS
HNSREEMEZEE RN - BE K%
TERRERET  BUARSBERIGHRIE
B ) 2 SR i R A B e OF AR

R2018F 128318 FEEREEASE
% & ££9,716,300 18 (2017 £F : 3,436,220 18 )
EATHEE B {7 - H 13,951,800 1& (2017 £F :
1,718,110 &) TEAT S22 B BE 1 B JETT(E © 2%
FER AT BT BB RUR 2 AT REME - A&
BEETEZE2018F 12 A31 BIEFE 2R
BE N A AR #348500007T (B E R4
41,193,000 7C) (20174 + &) »

7K2018F 12 A31 H » RérA MK Rk
AZnBBERIERBBED BIEREHE
ME N AR 8148620007 ( 8 B R 4
16,923,000 70 ) (2017F : ) R AR #&
23,940,0007T (A& F 4927,260,0007 7T ) (2017
£ AR 1718000t ( B R4
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34. RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 9 October 2018, Sino-i, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, adopted the Restricted Share Award Scheme to recognise the
contributions by Sino-i group’s personnel and to provide them with
incentives in order to retain them for the continual operation and

development of the Sino-i group.

On 19 December 2018, a total of 1,806,000,000 Restricted Shares were
approved to issue to the custodian and held for selected participants.
The Restricted Shares of Sino-i will be vested only after satisfactory
completion of performance-based targets. The Restricted Share Award
Scheme is subject to the administration of the board of Sino-i in
accordance with the Restricted Share Award Scheme. As of 31 December
2018, 1,806,000,000 shares were held by the custodian for the Restricted

Share Award Scheme.

The board of Sino-i shall not make any further grant of restricted shares
which will result in the total number of shares granted by the board of
Sino-i under the Restricted Share Award Scheme to exceed 2,462,000,000

shares.

Unless terminated earlier by the board of Sino-i, the Restricted Share
Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of 10 years from the

date of its adoption.

} Nan Hai Corporation Limited @ FBERERAF
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34. RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

34. PR B 7 32 W&+ B (%)

(Continued)
Movements in the number of share held for the Restricted Share Award ISR BT 25 H 2 IR m &+ B
Scheme and the Restricted Shares of Sino-i are as follows: W2 BRFIRMEE ZEaT
Number of
shares held
for Restricted Number of
Share Award Restricted
Scheme Shares
o PR i A% 17
REETEEE PR i
ZBRHBEE BAEE
‘000 ‘000
Fi T
At the beginning of the year FH4] - -
Granted (note (a)) B (KfsE @) - 1,806,000
Allotted to custodian (note (b)) fid % e A (BI5E b)) 1,806,000 -
At the end of the year F& 1,806,000 1,806,000
Notes: P -

(a) On 19 December 2018, the grant of 1,806,000,000 shares of Sino-i to be awarded to
selected participants under the Restricted Share Award Scheme was approved by the
independent shareholders of Sino-i and the shares would be transferred to the
selected participants by the custodian at nil consideration upon satisfaction of its
respective vesting conditions. As at the grant date, the fair value of each of the
restricted share was HK$0.055.

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2018, 1,806,000,000 shares of Sino-i were
allotted to the custodian of the Restricted Share Award Scheme at nil consideration.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, approximately HK$178,000
was recognised as share-based compensation expense included in the
profit or loss.

—E-)\FEFR @ Annual Report 2018
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35. PROVISION FOR WARRANTY 35. RERR
2018 2017
HK$'000 HKS'000
FET T
At 1 January M1 A1H 3,917 4,296
Additional provision FBONEE 401 639
Utilisation during the year FAEA (222) (1,315)
Exchange differences & H =%8 (210) 297
At 31 December M®12A31H 3,886 3917

The Group provides one to three years warranty for its movie projection
equipment, under which faulty products are repaired or replaced. The
amount of the provision for the warranties is estimated based on sales
volumes and past experience of the level of repairs and returns. The
estimation basis is reviewed on an ongoing basis and revised where
appropriate.

f Nan Hai Corporation Limited @ BSERERAE
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36. ;EEIRIE
ERELFIBEERABEHNT :

36. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are

as follows:
Deferred tax assets EEMEEE
Provision of Financing
Tax loss PRCLAT ECLs component Others Total
HE i B
BEFE EEHRE FEF#E MEHD Hith @it
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THER TET TET THET TET
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1 818 2,164 153473 = = 5811 161,448
Acquisition of subsidiaries WM B A A
(note 43) (M5t 43) - - - - 1581 1,581
Deferred tax credited to the N EE LN 1S
income statement (note 9) i3 (ko) - 338,779 = - 85,371 424,150
Exchange differences T (1617) 14,486 = - (3063) 9,806
At31 December 2017 and 20176128318 K
1 January 2018 20181 A1A 547 506,738 - - 89,700 596,985
Effect on adoption of HKFRS 9 SR B BB IS R
(note 3.1) ERIFF 2T E
(PEE3) - - 34,784 - - 34,784
Effect on adoption of HKFRS 15 BN BB BTG R
(note 3.1) ERE 15 e
(Bt5E3.) - - - 32,392 - 32,392
At 1 January 2018 (restated) R20181 A 1H
(&E7) 547 506,738 34,784 32,392 89,700 664,161
Deferred tax (charged)/ REER (F18%),/
credited to the income FTABRERIE
statement (note 9) (Fizt9) (547) 330,196 4,778 18,102 (61,051) 291,478
Exchange differences [ =% - (31,491) - - 6,643 (24,848)
Gross deferred tax assetsat 742018 12 31 H
31 December 2018 ZEEHBEEE
EE - 805,443 39,562 50,494 35,292 930,791

201812 A31 B » RNERE F SRR
FHERBEEHBEEZ ABBRIEEIE

At 31 December 2018, the amount of unused tax losses for which no
deferred tax assets is recognised in the consolidated statement of

financial position is as follows: SR :
2018 2017
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FTHET T
Temporary differences attributable to: ATIEB B2 ERERE
— unused tax losses — ABAHEZEIE 3,746,107 2,476,956

| —E-N\FEER @ Annual Report 2018 %
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36. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax asset in respect of these tax losses has not been recognised
in the financial statements due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams against which the tax losses can be utilised. The tax losses of the
subsidiaries operating in Mainland China amounted to HK$1,777,561,000
(2017: HK$1,208,595,000) can be carried forward for five years while tax
losses of the subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong and certain
jurisdictions amounted to HK$992,803,000 (2017: HK$602,340,000) can
be carried forward indefinitely under the current tax legislation. Tax
losses of the subsidiaries operated in other jurisdictions amounted to
HK$975,743,000 (2017: HK$666,021,000) can be carried forward up to

twenty years.

36. EIERIA (#§)

EETET Al AR EBIE 2 B8R
FHOR - MBI SRR PERZER
BB ZREEHBEE - NP ERNMEE
2 Mt B A &) B 18 &5 18.1,777,561,000 & TC
(2017 4F : 1,208,595,000 % JT ) A] 44 %8 71 4F -
MRERITRE  REBRE T AR
& 1E 2 MY B~ R) B 18 5 18 992,803,000 75 7T
(20174F : 602,340,000 7T ) A] 4 [R B 42 o
REAM AR EE 2 B A RTIBEEIS
75975,743,00078 7T (2017 4F : 666,021,00078
L) A EERS 1 F

Deferred tax liabilities EEHIREE
Fair value
adjustments Fair value
arising  adjustments Temporary Temporary
from on difference difference
acquisition of investment  onreceiptin on contract
subsidiaries properties advance liabilities Total
g
WEAREE:  REWE:  BRREz  ANERER
MEEER ALEESR URER ERER At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THET THR THT THER
At 1 January 2017 R017E1 18 841241 45800 19,849 - 906,890
Acquisition of subsidiaries KN E A (Fi43)
(note 43) 169,351 = = = 169,351
Deferred tax (credited)/charged to IR GEA) /405
the income statement (note 9) BRI (it 9) (47,844) 534 = - (47.310)
Exchange differences X ES 7735 - 1492 - 9227
At 31 December 2017 and R07E12A31AR
1 January 2018 01851418 970,483 46,334 21,341 - 1,038,158
Effect on adoption of HKFRS 15 (note 3.1)  SRENEBBI IS 3R % 2 RI% 1557
278 (Hz30) - - (21,341) 21,34 -
At 1 January 2018 (restated) R018%1 A 1R (EE5) 970,483 46,334 - 21,341 1,038,158
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 43) WEEMB AR (HiEa) 625 - - - 625
Deferred tax (credited)/charged to RUER GIA) /B
the income statement (note 9) ERERE (7E9) (316,677) 76,469 - - (240,208)
Exchange differences B E (10,542) - - (1,108) (11,650)
Gross deferred tax liabilities at R2018E 1283102
31 December 2018 BEEHEAEER 643,889 122,803 - 20,233 786,925

The Group is also subject to withholding tax at the rate of 5% (2017: 5%)
and 10% (2017: 10%) on the distributions of profits generated from the
Group's major PRC subsidiaries which are directly owned by the Group’s

subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong and BVI respectively.

Nan Hai Corporation Limited @ ABEZERERAR
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SHARE CAPITAL 37. BE&E
Number of
ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each HK$'000
HFREE .01 T
ZBEREE FET
Authorised: VERE ¢
At 1 January 2017, 2017118 -
31 December 2017 201712831 H
and 31 December 2018 201812 A 31 H 500,000,000,000 5,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITNEUR
At 1 January 2017, R2017FE1A1H -
31 December 2017 2017412 A31 H
and 31 December 2018 201812 831 H 68,645,535,794 686,455
SHARE OPTION SCHEME 38. fEARIERTRY

The Company operates a share option scheme.

Under the ordinary resolution passed at the annual general meeting on
28 May 2012, the Board of the Company adopted a new share option
scheme and simultaneously terminated the share option scheme
adopted on 29 August 2002. Under the new scheme, share options may
be granted to directors, employees of the Group and those who have
contributed or will contribute to the Group at any time within ten years
after its adoption at the discretion of the Board of the Company.

There are no outstanding share options at 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

—E-)\FEFR @ Annual Report 2018
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39. RESERVES
Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the
current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 120 of the financial statements.

Notes:

(@)

(@

(e)

Share premium is the excess of the proceeds received over the nominal value of the
shares of the Company issued at a premium, less the amount of expenses incurred in
connection with the issue of the shares. According to the annual general meeting
held on 30 May 2018, the Company has decided to reduce the share premium
account amounting to approximately HK$965,900,000, and the amount arising from
the reduction has been transferred to the contributed surplus account.

Capital reserve of the Group mainly represented the reserves arising from capital
reduction pursuant to a special resolution passed on 30 April 2002 and the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve arising from the exercise of share
options and capital reserve arising from acquisition of subsidiaries.

General reserve of the Group mainly represented statutory reserves of subsidiaries
established in Mainland China. These subsidiaries are required to transfer 10% of their
profit after tax calculated in accordance with the PRC accounting regulations to the
statutory reserve until the reserve reaches 50% of their respective capital upon which
any further appropriation will be at the directors’ recommendation. Such reserve may
be used to reduce any losses incurred by the subsidiaries or be capitalised as paid-up
capital of the subsidiaries.

FVOCI reserve represents fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net charge in
the fair value of equity investment designated at FVOCI under HKFRS 9 that are held
at the end of the reporting period.

Share-based payments reserve represents cumulative expenses recognised on the
granting of Restricted Share Award Scheme to the employees over the vesting
period.

Exchange differences arising from the translation of the net assets of the Group's
foreign operations from their functional currencies to the Group's presentation
currency (i.e. HKS) are recognised directly in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the exchange reserve. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policy of foreign currencies set out in note 2.6.
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39. RESERVES (Continued)

39. W (#8)

Company N
Share  Contributed Capital FVOCI
premium surplus reserve reserve Accumulated
(note a) (note b) (note c) (note d) losses Total
BOAEE
REM2H
RDEE PNz BXfE KEEEZ 25t
(MizEa) (MzEb) (Fite) fiE (HiaEd) g st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TR TR TR TR TR TR
At 1 January 2017 R2017%1 818 965911 1,971,857 7480 = (1,655,049) 1,290,199
Profit for the year R - - - - 107,360 107,360
Dividend relating t0 2016 2016 S fARAL & = = = = (137,291) (137,291)
At 31 December 2017 2017612431 H
and 1 January 2018 K 20181818 965,911 1,971,857 7,480 - (1,684,980) 1,260,268
Effect on adoption of RNE BT
HKFRS 9 (note 3.1) WEERE
278 (fi:k3.) - - - (1,580) - (1,580)
At 1 January 2018 201851 A 18
(restated) (&=5) 965,911 1,971,857 7,480 (1,580) (1,684,980) 1,258,688
Profit for the year ERF - - - - 288,274 288,274
Other comprehensive HiemEbe
income - - - 4,950 - 4,950
Reduction of share premium j& DB (7 (B (965,900) 965,900 - - - -
Dividend relating t0 2017 2017 & 18RAR% & - - - - (157,885) (157,885)
At31December2018  R2018%512831 A 11 2,937,757 7,480 3,370  (1,554,591) 1,394,027
Notes: P%E -
@) Share premium is the excess of the proceeds received over the nominal value of the @) R& 17 5 (B A B WS RIBB AR AR BT

shares of the Company issued at a premium, less the amount of expenses incurred in
connection with the issue of the shares.

Contributed surplus of the Company includes the difference between the aggregate
net asset value of the subsidiaries acquired and the nominal amount of the
Company'’s shares issued for the acquisition and the reserves arising from capital
reduction pursuant to a special resolution passed on 30 April 2002. Under the
Bermuda Companies Act, the contributed surplus is distributable to the shareholders
under certain circumstances. According to the annual general meeting held on 30
May 2018, the Company has decided to reduce the share premium account
amounting to approximately HK$965,900,000, and the amount arising from the
reduction has been transferred to the contributed surplus account.

Capital reserve of the Company represents the amount of equity-settled share-based
compensation previously recognised transferred from the share options reserve
when the share options are exercised.

FVOCI reserve represents fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in
the fair value of equity investment designated at FVOCI under HKFRS 9 that are held
at the end of the reporting period.
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40. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 40. R AT HER LB E

POSITION
2018 2017
Notes HK$’000 HKS$'000
= FHBT FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NI NG el 16 3,000,000 3,000,000
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHEEmMEE - 131,234
Financial assets at fair value through BEARBEREMEEKE
other comprehensive income BEZ Rl EE 186,418 =
Financial assets at fair value through BEARBEREEREE Y
profit or loss EREE 112 =
3,186,530 3,131,234
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries e N NS B 6,938,348 7,094,885
Deposits, prepayments and & - ANRIEREA
other receivables Jﬁg\qﬁl%’\% 95,898 6,298
Pledged and restricted bank deposits 2 K & & [R #l| SR 1717 2K 57,009 =
Cash and cash equivalents REMERRSER 73,024 356,895
7,164,279 7,458,078
Current liabilities REERE
Other payables and accruals E At T FRIE R BT E 14,936 37,702
Provision for tax IR 594 130
Loan from subsidiaries KEMBARIZER 1,127,112 -
Amount due to a director R—BEERIE 76,993 11,315
Amounts due to subsidiaries U IEENGIE 3,756,910 4,190,379
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 3,288,347 1,804,037
8,264,892 6,043,563
Net current (liabilities)/assets RE(EE) EEFE (1,100,613) 1,414,515
Total assets less current liabilities #EEERATEE 2,085,917 4,545,749
Non-current liabilities FRBER ]
Loan from subsidiaries KEMBLRZER - 1,046,644
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE - 1,552,382
Financial liability at fair value through AR BENIERERIE Y
profit or loss TRAEE 5,435 -
5,435 2,599,026
Net assets BEEFE 2,080,482 1,946,723
EQUITY R
Share capital A&z 37 686,455 686,455
Reserves e 39 1,394,027 1,260,268
Total equity fERBEE 2,080,482 1,946,723
On behalf of the Board REEEFS
Yu Pun Hoi Liu Rong
THE 2
Director Director
BF 2

Nan Hai Corporation Limited @ ABEZERERAR
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41. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Sino-i, @ 59.11% (2017: 64.45%) owned subsidiary of the Company, and
Crabtree & Evelyn, a 70% owned subsidiary of the Company, has material
non-controlling interests (“NCI"). The NCI of all other subsidiaries that are
not 100% owned by the Group are considered to be immaterial.

Summarised financial information in relation to the NCI| of Sino-i, before
intra-group eliminations, is presented below:

4. ERKRER

"

AR EHE B 59.11% (2017 6 ¢ 6445%) HE 25
2 B A B BEES R AR B HEA 70% 4
28 2 MJ B A &) Crabtree & Evelyn # 5 E A JIF
TR ([SEIERERE ) - AEBIEEE
BAE 2 FTE M B A R 2 JEE R RS
AW TERK °

#ETT S BRI 55 A1 A B B SRS SR A
mZ MEERBEZ5T

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET T

Non-current assets IERFEE 624,680 1,906,539
Current assets TRENEE 1,468,180 600,163
Current liabilities TENAE (529,357) (675,556)
Non-current liabilities IERHEE (31,735) (7,758)
Net assets BEFE 1,531,768 1,823,388
Accumulated NCI RETIFER S 622,001 659,433
Revenue Wz 1,012,450 833,245
Profit for the year FE s 375,812 10,022
Total comprehensive income for the year FRNEEREREE 296,146 18,839
Profit allocated to NCI DT IR AE R 2 A 152,700 2,684
Dividend paid to NCI B IR R S (198,118) -
Cash flows generated from operating activities & 2 HEIFFSIR SR E 62,599 13,902
Cash flows generated from investing activities & & REIFFSIR SRS 510,557 312,289
Cash flows used in financing activities MEETHTARESRE (701,172) (117,627)
Net cash (outflows)/inflows B (ORl),/ RAFRE (128,016) 208,564

—E-)\FEFR @ Annual Report 2018
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41. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

Summarised financial information in relation to the NCI of Crabtree &
Evelyn, before intra-group eliminations, is presented below:

41. FEVEBRIES (48)

HE1T 5 B N K $H Bl A 8 Crabtree & Evelyn 3F
TS MBS ERIEZ50T

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR T
Non-current assets EREEE 572,440 705,497
Current assets MBNEE 388,812 940,897
Current liabilities BB E (1,683,450) (1,573,813)
Non-current liabilities JEmEAE (5,578) (11,440)
Net assets BEFE (727,776) 61,141
Accumulated NCI EE IR E R (12,293) 238,840
Revenue Wz 829,533 874,472
Loss for the year FREE (833,267) (406,707)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREMMW LA (788,917) (407,110)
Loss allocated to NCI BT IR I R 2 1R (251,132) (123,240)
Dividend paid to NCl B IR SR S - -
Cash flows generated from operating activities & 2 R EIFFSIR SRS 58,275 124,875
Cash flows used in investing activities HEETHMARESRE (110,317) (146,664)
Cash flows generated from financing activities & )EENFTSIRERE 4,832 39
Net cash outflows & HER (47,210) (21,750)

Nan Hai Corporation Limited @ MEERERATE
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41. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s material
acquisition of non-controlling interests is set out as follows:

On 14 March 2018, X b 5 Bt 2 & %5 BR /2 &), an indirect 90.1%-owned
subsidiary of the Company, acquired the remaining 20% equity interest in
NS AR IR AR A 7] at a cash consideration of RMB2,010,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,513,000). N5 &y AR BB AR A 7
was an indirect 72.08%-owned subsidiary of the Company right before the
completion of the transaction and became an indirect 90.1%-owned
subsidiary of the Company upon completion of the transaction.

The following summarised the effect of the changes in the Group's
ownership interest in A1 5 & A M52t B 22 B IR A 7] on the equity
attributable to owners of the Company:

41. FEVEBRIER (48)

HZE218F 12 A3 BILFEE » KEBZIE
RS E AW BE AT

7201843 B 148 » AR AR 90.1%
ZEENBRR K ERER A FW
BRASHAMEREEARARGT
20%[% 1 - WERERARE20100007T (48
ER%2,51300087T) - AR B A& E
BERARARR S XA EAARES
7208% w2 MK B AR - KRR HTK
B BIRK A7 A TR 90.1% 125 2 IE T

NI

REBRASHAMERERERATZ
FRARESUARBIHE ABIGERZY
Zraan T

2018

HK$’000

FET

Carrying amount of non-controlling interests acquired P iE S IR a5 2 AR TED (B 2,424
Consideration paid to non-controlling interests B TR s e R E (2,513)
Excess of consideration paid recognised within equity RERPERBOENRE R (89)
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41. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s material
acquisition of non-controlling interests is set out as follows:

41.

On 27 February 2017, A5/ Fe 25 R AR 2 A, an indirect 90%-owned
subsidiary of the Company, acquired the remaining 30% equity interest
in PR A8 K #b % Bt 2 & A PR 2 7 at a cash consideration of
RMB11,010,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$12,415,000). B 7 A 3
% Bt 2 &% A BR 2 Al was an indirect 63%-owned subsidiary of the
Company right before the completion of the transaction and became an
indirect 90%-owned subsidiary of the Company upon completion of the
transaction.

In June 2017, the Group further acquired 0.1% of & 5 A 2Bt 12 5%
R /A @], the immediate holding company of A F/ B2 R AR A 7.
After the completion of transfer, A th 828% 2 & B R A &) and BEFE A
L FZ B 2 R A BR A A became 90.1% owned subsidiaries of the Group.

The following summarised the effect of the changes in the Group's

FiRERER ()

HE2017F12A3BILFEE  KEBZIE
RS EAWBE EEEH AT

7201742 B 278 ¢ AR A A 0% =%
ZREENBRR K ERER A FW
BEPRPE KRB 32 SR B BR A R8RS 30% AR
- BEENREAEAR11,0100007T (HE
R #712,4150008 7T ) © BR7E AR b 52 B 3 5%
BRRRINR S SEKAT AR A B A 63%
s HENRBAR  TRRSTMERK
BN ENER 90% s 2 BB AR -

M2017F6 A AEBEE-FRBEERK
W ERER AR (AR RERBR
REZEREBAE])0.1% 25 ° NEHET
Roig - KiE b ZRBR AR RRE KM
TR AR AR AR EE R 90.1% 42
smZMBAE -

REERRA R R AR D E 2

ownership interest in Bt 78 K t#h 52 Bt 2 3% B R 2 8 on the equity EREHUANDTIES AEEERS 22
attributable to owners of the Company: B

2017

HK$'000

FHBIT

Carrying amount of non-controlling interests acquired BT U B FEFE B #E 25 2 BREI (A 9,276
Consideration paid to non-controlling interests BT IR e < (B (12,415)
Excess of consideration paid recognised within equity RERPERBEOCNRE RS (3,139)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

(@) Major non-cash transactions
During the year ended 31 December 2018, certain non-current
deposits and other receivables of the Group amounting to
approximately HK$22,226,000 (2017: HK$90,495,000) were
transferred to property, plant and equipment.

42' 420

The Group entered into finance lease arrangements in respect of
certain assets with a total capital value of approximately
HK$64,320,000 (2017: Nil) at the inception of the lease.

} Nan Hai Corporation Limited m FBERERAF
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HE208F12A31BILEFEE A&
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42, NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTOF 42. SR & R BRERMEE (H)

CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

b) REEBRELERBEZY

activities: BR :
Convertible
Bank and Finance and Amount
other lease exchangeable due to
borrowings liabilities bonds a director
(note 29) (note 30) (note31)  (note 28(a)) Total
/IR mE BE:J95 R—-%
Hitifd & HERE URBRES EEZHE
(HiaE29) (KrzE30) (BaE31)  (KiEz2s)) @t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TET THET TEx THT THET
At1 January 2018 R2018%E1 A 1H 22,896,454 87,173 1,172,381 9,878 24,165,886
Changes from financing MERSRERE
cash flows:
Proceeds from bank and RITREM
other borrowings fEEMEHIE 5,366,418 - - - 5366418
Repayment of bank and EBERTRAMEE
other borrowings (9,147,899) - - - (9,147,899)
Repayment of capital element  EEFEHEAE
of finance lease liabilities A&HBD - (56,584) - - (56,584)
Repayment of interestelement  EEREHEEE
of finance lease liabilities FE S - (8,529) - - (8,529)
Advance from a director RE—BEZ 225 - - - 53,215 53,215
Interest paid BRI (1,455,255) - (24,375) - (1,479,630)
Total changes from RERSHELE
financing cash flows: @5 (5,236,736) (65,113) (24,375) 53,215  (5,273,009)
Exchange differences: EHRZEH: (407,277) (4,819) (62,646) 2,039 (472,703)
Other changes: Hitn#5
Interest expenses FERE 815,602 - 65,361 - 880,963
Capitalised borrowing costs BRERZESHAK 650,962 - - - 650,962
New finance leases MERANE - 64,320 - - 64,320
Finance charges on obligations BlETAEBE NEEZ
under finance lease MERT - 8,529 - - 8,529
Total other changes Hih# 5@ 1,466,564 72,849 65,361 - 1,604,774
At 31 December 2018 20185 12A31H 18,719,005 90,090 1,150,721 65,132 20,024,948
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42. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

42. REBRKNBWMRME(E)
b) REETHRELEEGBZY

activities: (Continued) iR : (4&)
Convertible
Bank and Finance and Amount
other lease  exchangeable dueto
borrowings liabilities bonds a director
(note 29) (note 30) (note 31) (note 28(a)) Total
RITK A AR R R—%
Hibfe & MEAR AxMBES BEE5UE
(P 29) (P3E30) GEZENGEYER) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT T THET THT
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1 818 14,381,866 75,501 1,010,036 30,108 15497511
Changes from financing REHERER
cash flows:
Proceeds from bank and RITRAMEE
other borrowings PR 12,722,113 - - - 12,722,113
Repayment of bank and BERTRAMEE
other borrowings (5,206,663) - - - (5,206,663)
Repayment of capital element  EEREHEARE
of finance lease liabilities re#n = (43,760) - - (43,760)
Repayment of interest element  EEREREAE
of finance lease liabilities FEHD - (7.974) - - (7.974)
Repayment to a director EBE—RESHA - - - (21,664) (21,664)
Interest paid BIFIE (1,219,645) = (21989) = (1,241,634)
Total changes from MERERER
financing cash flows: 8% 6,295,805 (51,734) (21,989) (21,664) 6,200,418
Exchange differences: ME 25 775713 7,704 79,785 1434 864,636
Acquisition of subsidiaries e 1N
(note 43) GEZS) 189476 47728 - - 237,04
Other changes: Hip &)
Interest expenses FIEHS 711,208 = 104,549 - 815,757
Capitalised borrowing costs BRERZEERAK 542386 - - - 542,386
Finance charges on obligations BiEHEE FETZ
under finance lease RMERX - 7974 - - 7,974
Total other changes HivZ3ms 1,253,594 7974 104,549 - 1,366,117
At 31 December 2017 R2017%12A318 22,896,454 87,173 1,172,381 9878 24,165,886
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43. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

(a)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group acquired
equity interest of certain companies owned by independent third
parties.

The Group'’s material business combination is detailed as follows:

During the year ended 31 December 2018, B 5 B B A &/ & 12
BPBRAF], an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
acquired 100% equity interest in #7 /T 218, which is a company
incorporated in the PRC. )T % 1& and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in cinema operation in Zhejiang. The Group aims to
expand its presence in Zhejiang through this acquisition. The
acquisition was completed on 9 July 2018 (the “#T T 4R 18 Acquisition
Date”).

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of 3T 4% &
as at the VT AR 18 Acquisition Date were as follows:

(a)

43. EHSH

HE2018F12ANBHILFEE K&
BWEZMBBYIE = A2 T
ZRRHE o

AEBTEXBAHZFBWT

HZE2018F12A31HIEFE AR
Az EEFEEENBARIERAHA
FWERERABKENTGIE
100% A% 1 « — IR AR B S 2
DA ZEBREHE - AT RIBREMBEA
RIEBEEMINEZRES - A5H
B BB TEK BRI TS
D& - IWEEHER2018F7H9R
(CIRBUEE BRI K -

POTAR YRS B - DT RIS E &
MEERBBEZRABENT

Fair value
AREE
HK$’000
FET
Property, plant and equipment mE - BEKREE 80,430
Intangible assets By AE 2,229
Inventories FE 15,553
Trade receivables (note (b)) FEUE 5 7IE (M 5E (b)) 10,062
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables (note (b)) &< - T8~ 58 N H 4th FE Uk 7138 (B (b)) 5,819
Cash and cash equivalents RekFERRELER 18,693
Trade payables ERTE S RIE (5,623)
Other payables and accruals HuhE AR EAE R (8,242)
Contract liabilities AHAE (19,250)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BRAnBEERHSIEEFE 2 EE 99,671
Goodwill (note (a)) 2 (3T a) 472,367
Fair value of consideration REZzAREE 572,038
Purchase consideration BERE (572,038)
Less: Consideration payables o ENRE (223,845)
Add: cash and cash equivalents in subsidiaries acquired il : WEEKIB AR ZIR& MERIIREIEE 18,693
Net cash outflows in acquisition Wz RS R F58E (329,500)
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43. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

Notes:
@

The goodwill of HK$472,367,000 arising from the acquisition of 7 ST 18 18,
which is not deductible for tax purposes, represents the synergistic effect by
enabling the Group to expand its cinema coverage in a more efficient and
cost-effective manner by taking the advantages of 7 /T & f&'s existing
customer network in Zhejiang.

The fair value and the gross amount of trade receivables and other
receivables amounted to HK$10,062,000 and HK$5,819,000 respectively.
None of these receivables was impaired and it was expected that the full
contractual amounts could be collected.

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$286,000 for the acquisition which
have been expensed and recognised as administrative expense in profit or
loss for the year.

W T 48 18 contributed revenue of HK$57,003,000 and net loss of
HK$7,011,000 to the Group since the 7 JT % 18 Acquisition Date to 31
December 2018. Had the acquisition occurred on 1 January 2018,
consolidated revenue and consolidated profit for the year would have been
HK$16,864,039,000 and HK$969,131,000 respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group acquired
equity interest of certain companies owned by independent third
parties.

The Group’s material business combinations are detailed as
follows:

()

On 25 January 2017, True Vision Limited, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale and
purchase agreement to acquire Orange Sky Golden Harvest
Cinemas (China) Company Limited through the acquisition
of the total issued share capital of City Entertainment
Corporation Limited (“OSGH"), which is a company
incorporated in Hong Kong. OSGH and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in cinema operation in Mainland China.
Through the acquisition, the Group is able to increase the
number of cinemas and screens significantly that the Group
operates and manages in the PRC and strengthen its
position in the PRC cinema industry. The acquisition was
completed on 28 July 2017 (the “OSGH Acquisition Date”).

43. EH S (&)

(a)

Nan Hai Corporation Limited @ ABEZERERAR

(%)
GEE

@

L2 i 4T VT AR 1 AE 2 7 472,367,000 78
TR0 - AR EE BT RS
ENIZBAERME  NEARER
B AR 2 T = A R b S H E T
EEZ R

EWE SHRBEREMERKIBZ ARE
B & #5859 5 5100620007 T &
5,819,000/ 7T © 7% %5 FE WG IBRE A RE -
TEHIE A& RS A 28Uk -

AEERKRBFEELEZRHKAE
286000 B TLE X8 - WREIEARFEZ
BREERR/ITEAY -

BHIAR EUE B i E 20185F 12 A31H
1E - ST RIS AR EE SRS kR
F 589 Bl £ 57,003,000 7% 7T K& 7,011,000 7
TC © BB =AM 20181 B1 BEA »
FEHRAaRERESRMND B A
16,846,039,000 78 7T & 969,131,000 A TT °

HE2017F12831BIEFE A&
BUWEZEHBIE=HEE 2 T
ZHRHE o

AEBZEREBAG ZFFENT

R2017%F1 8258 ZXARZ
HEE2EMNBARERARR
RAEEFI BB W - BB E
NEBFEMK L 2 ARIEXRE

TWAERAR([EXEAR])
ZERBEFEITRARBRE RS
RegW () BRAR - XK
EAREMBAREERFE
At EHREE - NEESE
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43. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

(b)

(i)

.:h.\-'

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Continued)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of

BF 755 R 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #(Z 2018 12 A31 HILFE

43. RIS it (8])
® O (8

BEREAABNEENRBER

OSGH as at the OSGH Acquisition Date were as follows: BRAEAMEBHZ AREBE
PUNNE
Fair value
NAEE
HK$'000
FAET
Property, plant and equipment I ER 1,244,282
Interests in associates NN 1,285
Interest in a joint venture R—EEEEE s 5,061
Intangible assets EmEE 571,146
Inventories 2= 12,813
Trade receivables (note (b)) FEUE 55578 (M5 (b)) 195,085
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables =@~ TANFRIE KA fh R IE
(note (b)) (FH3E (b)) 228,636
Cash and cash equivalents RekFERRLER 178,729
Trade payables FERTE 5 RIE (75,394)
Other payables and accruals T RRIE K e s T B (375,816)
Receipt in advance and deferred revenue TR UK IE RRIEIE W 2 (175,531)
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE (169,006)
Finance lease liabilities RMEHESE (47,728)
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIEAE (158,178)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BARBEFERHSANEE SR AE 1,435,384
Non-controlling interests (note (c)) FEPE AR i A (M3 () (10,467)
Goodwill (note (a)) 5 2 (F3E (a) 2,291,084
Fair value of consideration REZAAEBE 3,716,001
Purchase consideration BERE (3,716,001)
Add: cash and cash equivalents in e WERBA AR RS R
subsidiaries acquired ZRIREIEE 178,729
Net cash outflows in acquisition Wi 2R Em TR (3537,272)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

43. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

(b)

(i)

(Continued)

Notes:

(@) The goodwill of HK$2,291,084,000 arising from the acquisition of
OSGH, which is not deductible for tax purposes, represents the
synergistic effect by enabling the Group to expand its cinema
coverage in a more efficient and cost-effective manner by taking the
advantages of OSGH's existing customer network in Mainland China.
The cinemas and screens that the Group operates and manages in
the PRC increase significantly in number as well as geographical
coverage.

(b) The fair value and the gross amount of trade receivables and other
receivables amounted to HK$195,085,000 and HK$228,636,000
respectively. None of these receivables was impaired and it was
expected that the full contractual amounts could be collected.

(@] The non-controlling interests recognised at the acquisition date were
measured by reference to the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the recognised amount of the net assets of
these companies and amounted to HK$10,467,000.

(d) The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$6,746,000 for the
acquisition which have been expensed and recognised as
administrative expense in profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2017.

(e) OSGH contributed revenue of HK$453,994,000 and net loss of
HK$303,432,000 to the Group since the OSGH Acquisition Date to 31
December 2017. Had the acquisition occurred on 1 January 2017,
consolidated revenue and consolidated profit for the year ended 31
December 2017 would have been HK$16,531,704,000 and
HK$1,508,157,000 respectively.

On 13 July 2017, K3 sZbe B IR AR 2 A, an indirect non-
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
sale and purchase agreement in respect of the acquisition
of 100% equity interest in TBEFIHILIREFREER
A (“f8 B I "), which is a company incorporated in the
PRC. f@#9 ¥ and its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in cinema operation in Fujian. The Group aims to expand its
presence in Fujian through this acquisition. The acquisition
was completed on 9 August 2017 (the ‘48 & & If
Acquisition Date").

43. R a0t (3])

(b)

Nan Hai Corporation Limited @ ABEZERERAR

(i)

(if)

(%)
GEE

@) K ERERXERzH &
2,291,084,0007% 7T T~ AN FE + 18
AL E B BIER AR T BEA
MZBRBEFEMEE  UEAME
REABEZ hRAERERE
EBEMESZBRBG - A%
B4 B 4 % B IR ) OB R R
HEHARBEHETEEAR
b)Y

(b) PR 5 38 J H Ath FE W IE 2
AABEEREZRED AR
195,085,000 7 7T & 228,636,000 78
TC o ZERUGRIEMERE - B
HENSEG R 2 EUKE -

© WS B B R 2 FEIE AR 2 TD
2EIFERERIZL O EZE
AREHREEFELETE
710,467,000 7T ©

(d) AEBHRBBEEELEZRSHK
76,746,000 LB X 8  WHE
E2017F12A3BILEEEZIE
HIRERATTHHX -

(e BREXEAKEBEREE2017F
RANBILESEE BRXEAR
) 7K &% [ 5 8k Uk 75 453,994,000 7
T N 5 18 7% 58 303,432,000 B 7T
fis e B BIER 2017 F 1 A1 B i
T BE017F12A3BLEF
B 2 iRA W kR A = A gD Bl
£16,531,704,000% T K
1,508,157,000 87T ©

R2017%F78138 * ZXARZ
R EMB R RN
ERERATERBERFEH
HEMAS 2 ARIEER IR E
KEBRETAR(RESP
) 228 IREET B B W
HoBETmAKEMBARE
ERRERETRLE - A%
BEEEAEBILIBEWEERE
BAMRE - WHEEIER 2017 F
8RR ([BEFHmKEBED
FERK ©




43. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

(b)

(if)

.:h.\-'

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Continued)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of &

BF 755 R 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #(Z 2018 12 A31 HILFE

43, XSO (48)
by ) (&)

wBERmABNEENRBE

# B Igasatthe @ & A i Acquisition Date were as N ER Y ARE
follows: BT :
Fair value
AREE
HK$'000
FAET
Property, plant and equipment I ER 126,807
Intangible assets EmEE 29,997
Deferred tax assets RIEFIEEE 1,581
Inventories FE 822
Trade receivables (note (b)) FEUE 55578 (M5 (b)) 10,566
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables =@~ TANFRIE KA fh R IE
(note (b)) (FH3E (b)) 57,780
Cash and cash equivalents RekFERRLER 4461
Trade payables FERTE 5 RIE 2 763)
Other payables and accruals LT RRIE K e R B 93)
Receipt in advance and deferred revenue TR IE RRIE T Y 2 (1 009)
Amount due to a related party FES — R BEE R RIE 2,791)
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 20 470)
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIEAE 73)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BARBEFERHSANEE SR AE 135,615
Non-controlling interests (note (c)) PR (FIFE () (1,572)
Goodwill (note (a)) BECIEIC)) 380,302
Fair value of consideration REZAAEBE 514,345
Purchase consideration BERE (514,345)
Add: cash and cash equivalents in e WERBA AR RS R
subsidiaries acquired ZRIREIEE 4,461
Net cash outflows in acquisition Wi 2R Em TR (509,884)
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43. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

(b)

(if)

(i)

(Continued)

Notes:

(@)

(b)

(e)

The goodwill of HK$380,302,000 arising from the acquisition of £& &
I, which is not deductible for tax purposes, represents the
synergistic effect by enabling the Group to expand its cinema
coverage in a more efficient and cost-effective manner by taking the

advantages of @32 i s existing customer network in Fujian.

The fair value and the gross amount of trade receivables and other
receivables amounted to HK$10,566,000 and HK$57,780,000
respectively. None of these receivables was impaired and it was
expected that the full contractual amounts could be collected.

The non-controlling interests recognised at the acquisition date were
measured by reference to the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the recognised amount of the net assets of
these companies and amounted to HK$1,572,000.

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$556,000 for the
acquisition which have been expensed and recognised as
administrative expense in profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2017.

& 32 % B contributed revenue of HK$56,067,000 and net profit of
HK$4,646,000 to the Group since the 4@ ¥/ ¥ Acquisition Date to
31 December 2017. Had the acquisition occurred on 1 January 2017,
consolidated revenue and consolidated profit for the year ended 31
December 2017 would have been HK$15,992,864,000 and
HK$1,603,668,000 respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, J& I3 B35k 8
R AR A ], an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement in respect of the acquisition of entire equity
interestin Jt MBI BBEXBAR AR (REKER),
which is a company incorporated in the PRC. B8 % 2 &
aims to engage in property development in Beijing. The
Group aims to expand its property development business
through this acquisition. The acquisition was completed on
17 July 2017 (the “ER 3£ 38 Acquisition Date”).

43. R a0t (3])

(b)

Nan Hai Corporation Limited @ ABEZERERAR

(if)

(%)
GEX

@) LK B 48 52 P B 2 73 2 380,302,000
BRI - IEEAREEE)
BRETImNEEZEEEFA
i AE AR RKA RS2 T
RNARRERBEZGEMEEY
3R ©

(b) FEUE SR8 K E A FRUGRIE 2
AREERETED 510,566,000
75 70 ] 57,780,000 TT © % &
W ER R (A - BEA NS E
R 2 EU[E o

© YRS B HiRER 2 R AR 2 T)
2EIFERERIZL B IEZE
ARIEEREEFESEE -
71,572,000/87C °

(d) AEBHRBBEHEELEZRSHK
ZK556,00078 7L B X 88 - WRE
E2017FN2ANBILEEEZIE
mRERATTHRAY -

(e BT i s B R E 2017 F
12A31 B ILHIME - BEPRHE
) 7N £= [ & Bk UL 25 56,067,000 7
T 254 FI| 7 58 4,646,000 7T © fif
BB E TR 201741 A1 BT
HE017F12ANBIEEEZ
RAE W REERENED B A
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43. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

(b)

(iii)

(Continued) (b) (i)

Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 R 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #(Z 2018 12 A31 HILFE

43. EH S (&)

(&)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of &
F & B asatthe B 3 2 3 Acquisition Date were as

REBBZABNEENRBE
REFBBRUEBRMZARE

follows: BT :
Fair value
NAEE
HK$'000
FETT
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB M 39
Inventories 78 3,522
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables e~ AN FRIE R H b W IE
(note (b)) (3% (b)) 84,069
Cash and cash equivalents RERERHRELIAEE 5834
Trade payables JEfTE 5 5IE (70)
Other payables and accruals Hih e RIBREGEA (42,450)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BAREBEAENZREETFE 2 BE 50,944
Goodwill (note (a)) 2 (3t @) 40,421
Fair value of consideration REZAREE 91,365
Purchase consideration BERE (91,365)
Add: cash and cash equivalents in a o WEHRBARZES R
subsidiary acquired ZRIIEIEF 5834
Net cash outflows in acquisition Wi 2R Em TR (85,531)
Notes: PEE
(a) The goodwill of HK$40,421,000 arising from the acquisition of 58 & @) Ut B B8 % 8 4 2 7 8 40,421,000
= #8, which is not deductible for tax purposes, represents the BT - ERAEEIER
synergistic effect by enabling the Group to expand its resource on HEMERZER HRBGE
property development.
(b) The fair value and the gross amount of trade receivables and other (b) FEUE 5508 R E A fE W GRIB 2

receivables amounted to nil and HK$84,069,000 respectively. None of
these receivables was impaired and it was expected that the full
contractual amounts could be collected.

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$104,000 for the
acquisition which have been expensed and recognised as
administrative expense in profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2017.

BLHEEM has contributed revenue of nil and net loss of HK$76,000
to the Group since the B #&E 38 Acquisition Date to 31 December
2017. Had the acquisition occurred on 1 January 2017, consolidated
revenue and consolidated profit for the year ended 31 December
2017 would have been HK$15,900,885,000 and HK$1,596,498,000
respectively.

—E-)\FEFR m Annual Report 2018
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44, RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS 44, RkTEFIEHE

Defined contribution retirement plans

The Group operates a MPF scheme and an ORSO scheme for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the Group in funds under the control of the
trustees.

Under the ORSO scheme, contribution of 5% of the employee’s monthly
salaries are made by the employees and by the Group. The Group's
contributions may be reduced by contributions forfeited by those
employees who leave the schemes prior to vesting fully in the
contributions. The Group also participates in the MPF schemes, which
are available to all employees not joining the ORSO scheme in Hong
Kong. Monthly contributions to the MPF scheme are made equal to 5%
(2017: 5%), or a fixed sum of the employee’s relevant income in
accordance with the local legislative requirements.

Subsidiaries operating in Mainland China are required to participate in a
defined contribution retirement scheme organised by the relevant
government authorities whereby the subsidiaries are required to make
contributions at the rate of 10% — 22% (2017: 10% — 22%) of the eligible
employees’ salary rate to the scheme. The Group has accrued for the
required contributions which are remitted to the respective local
government authorities when the contributions become due. The local
government authorities are responsible for the pension obligations
payable to the retired employees covered under the Schemes. Forfeited
contributions could not be used by the Group to reduce the existing
level of contributions.

The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
plan is to make the specified contributions.

The total cost charged to the consolidated income statement of
HK$139,502,000 (2017: HK$135,278,000) represents contributions
payable to the schemes by the Group at the rates specified in the rules
of the schemes.

Nan Hai Corporation Limited @ ABEZERERAR
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45, DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR 45. EREFHRSREEBH &
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM<E
Directors’ emoluments and fees are disclosed as follows: SR RESWELT ¢
Basic salaries,
housing, other
allowances Pension
and benefits  Discretionary scheme
Fees inkind bonus  contributions Total
EXHE -
fE-
Hith2 8, s Rire
re REYAZ LA BE L @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER
2018 2018 F
Executive directors BTES
YU Pun Hoi Tmg - 360 - 18 378
LIU Rong e - 799 - 39 838
LUNG King Cheong' b=t - 572 - 4 576
Non-executive directors FHTES
LAM Bing Kwan MRE 120 - - - 120
LUNG King Cheong' ESE' 2 - - - 920
Independent non-executive B EHTES
directors
LAU Yip Leung %R 120 - - - 120
XIAO Sui Ning BixE 282 - - - 282
HO Yeung Nang BEE:2 120 - - - 120
732 1,731 - 61 2,524
1. Re-designated as a non-executive director of the Company with effect from 1 1. B2018%4 A1 BREFATEARRABIEANTT
April 2018. )
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

45. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR 5. EEFMERSREEEM &
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued) (#8)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) E=M£ (&)

Basic salaries,
housing, other

allowances Pension
and benefits Discretionary scheme
Fees inkind bonus  contributions Total
B ge
FE -
HA2a) i RiKe
we  REYNEH e SEIftR et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
THT THL T THIL THT
2017 2017
Executive directors HITER
YU Pun Hoi T - 367 - 18 385
LIU Rong ElLS - 689 = - 689
LUNG King Cheong ERE 40 1956 - 18 2014
CHEN Dan'! B - 205 - EY) 237
Non-executive director FHTES
LAM Bing Kwan MRE 120 - = - 120
Independent non-executive BIFHTEE
directors
LAU Yip Leung %R 120 - = - 120
XIAO Sui Ning HxE 275 - - - 275
HO Yeung Nang & 120 - - - 120
675 3217 - 68 3,960
1. Resigned as executive director with effect from 31 March 2017 1. B201743 A31 B EFHEMITES

f Nan Hai Corporation Limited @ EEERERATE |




45. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR

Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #(Z 2018 12 A31 HILFE

5. EETFHEAEREERNS

MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued) (#8)

(b) EEBEHAL

(b) Five highest paid individuals

None (2017: one) of the directors was included in the five highest
paid individuals of the Group for the year, details of whose
emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of the five (2017:
four) employees are as follows:

AEEWEEEZQ7F: —F)B
REBARZETMAL - FE 2
SFEBOEN EX - R E (2017
F B EEZMESIT ¢

2018 2017
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET

Basic salaries, other allowances and HAFS - HtEM &
benefits in kind YA = 7,255 5,700
Discretionary bonus BIBTEAL - -
Pension contributions RIS IR 79 78
7,334 5,778

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals, other than
directors, fell within the following bands:

has&RFAL(ESHRIN 2ME
NETIIEE :

Number of highest
paid individuals

BSHEALHE
Emolument bands B <& &5 = 2018 2017
HK$1,000,001 — HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 77T 2 1,500,000 7 7T 4 3
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 /& 7T 2 2,000,000 7 7T 1 1

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December
2017, no emolument was paid to any of the Company’s directors
or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

None of the directors have waived or agreed to waive any
emolument in respect of the years ended 31 December 2018 and

2017.

—E-)\FEFR @ Annual Report 2018
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45. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Senior management

The emoluments paid or payable to members of senior
management were within the following bands:

EREEE

5. EEFHEEREEEM S

ENfRENEREREXE ZMEN

FT5EE :

Number of individuals

AE
Emolument bands <& &5 E 2018 2017
Nil = HK$ 1,000,000 = 2 1,000,000 7T 3 3
HK$ 1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 77T 2 2,000,000 7 7T 1 1

46. COMMITMENTS
(a) Capital commitments

At 31 December 2018, the Group had outstanding commitments

46. KiE
(a) BEAXEIE

R2018F 128310 KEEAF [

as follows: R ST A
2018 2017
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHET FHIT
Contracted but not provided for BERTHMB R
in respect of:
— renovation work — B IR 31,119 57,181
— properties under development — BERPYE 134,954 2,840,404
— expansion of cinema business — R b T 97,551 186,793
— others — Hfh - 20,243
263,624 3,104,621

f Nan Hai Corporation Limited @ FBERBRAR
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46. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b) Operating lease arrangement

At 31 December 2018, the Group's total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating lease are payable as

46. AKifE (48)

(b) REHELZH
MR2018%F 12831 H » KEBRET
A AR E RN 2 A RREEE

follows: RFRRARZET -
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FAT

Land and buildings T REF

Within one year —&R 1,036,848 1,056,053
In the second to fifth years RE_EFRF 4,149,112 4,508,469
Over five years HE 8,177,437 9,655,677
13,363,397 15,220,199

The Group leases a number of properties under operating leases.
The leases run for an initial period of one to twenty years (2017:
one to twenty years), with options to renew the lease terms at the
expiry dates or at days as mutually agreed between the Group and
the respective landlords. In addition, the Group paid additional
rental expenses in respect of certain operating leases which are
dependent on the level of revenue achieved by particular
properties.

47. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Guarantees given in connection with credit facilities granted to/
guarantee payment recoverable from:

AEERBELHEHRAZEYE -
MNP AEH—=2—_+FQ017F:
—E2=4F) wEERHEERHSA
IAEEEEEFHEHBE 2 ARE
BREA - O REEGRE TEER
EYEIEE  £BETRHTHE
FT{SYRATE °

47. R AR

HRTANEFFEREERE BEKEZ
REE D IRIEH 2 &R

2018 2017

HK$'000 HKS$'000

FET FET

An associate (note) —fBE A7 () 20,350 19,522
Note: B eE

In February 1993, a Group's associate borrowed a loan of US$5 million from a Filipino bank
namely de Oro Unibank (formerly known as Equitable PCI Bank Inc and then as Banco de Oro-
EPCl Inc.) (“Banco Unibank”). The loan was secured by a guarantee executed by the Group
("Banco Unibank Guarantee”), and by share mortgage of 74,889,892 shares (the "Philippines
shares”) of Acesite (Philippines) Hotel Corporation Inc. (“Acesite Phils."). Due to the pending
litigation as more particularly set out in note 49, the Group is not able to obtain updated
indebtedness information from Banco Unibank. Given the foregoing limitation, it is estimated
that the outstanding balance of the total indebtedness owing to Banco Unibank was
approximately US$2,599,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$20,350,000) (2017:
US$2,498,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$19,522,000)) by reference to the unaudited
financial statements of the associate as at 31 December 2018.

—E-)\FEFR @ Annual Report 2018
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48. CREDIT FACILITIES

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the Group's credit
facilities were secured by the following:

(a)

charge over interest in prepaid land lease payments under
operating leases (note 15) with a net carrying value of
approximately HK$ 11,008,000 (2017: HK$24,410,000);

charge over certain buildings (note 13) with total net carrying
value of approximately HK$662,343,000 (2017: HK$705,834,000);

charge over certain investment properties (note 14), properties
under development and completed properties held for sale (note
22) with a total carrying value of approximately HK$4,197,003,000
(2017: HK$3,294,348,000);

charge over financial assets at FVTPL with a net carrying value of
approximately HK$212,000 (2017: HK$326,000);

nil share in Sino-i held by the Company indirectly was pledged (31
December 2017: 647,309,000 shares, approximately 5.04% of total
interest of the Company in Sino-i with the market value of
approximately HK$56,963,000);

pledge of certain bank deposits (note 25) of approximately
HKS$6,348,712,000 (2017: HKS6,887,637,000), of which
approximately HK$2,593,411,000 (2017: HK$2,415,410,000) were
for standby letters of credit issued by banks for total amounts of
US$153,950,000 (2017: US$273,000,000), RMB1,142,727,000 (2017:
RMB595,000,000) and HK$50,000,000 (2017: Nil);

personal guarantee given by directors;

charge over certain property, plant and equipment (note 13),
other than certain buildings disclosed in note 48(b), of
HKS$778,128,000 (2017: HKS$1,113,338,000); and

pledge of various share mortgages of certain subsidiaries, bank
accounts charges and corporate guarantee of the Company.

48. EEME
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49. PENDING LITIGATIONS

(a)

In respect of the purported sale of Philippines Shares, which were
mortgaged by Acesite Limited (“Acesite”), by Banco Unibank, to
Waterfront Philippines Inc. (“Waterfront”), a Filipino company, in
February 2003, Acesite, a former subsidiary of Sino-i; Evallon
Investment Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Sino-i; Mr. Yu
Pun Hoi, the executive director of both the Company and Sino-i
and, South Port Development Limited, a former wholly-owned
subsidiary of Sino-i as the first, second, third and fourth plaintiff
respectively issued a claim against Banco Unibank and Waterfront,
on the grounds that the purported sale of the Philippines Shares
was unlawful as such sale was in breach of the terms of the
mortgage; in breach of a compromise agreement reached in
January 2003; and in other breaches, for damages; further or other
relief; interest and costs and etc. in February 2006 under High
Court Number of HCCL 5 of 2006 (the “Case”). The directors of the
Company, after discussion with legal adviser on the outcome of
the Case, considered that the Group would not incur any material
outflow of resources as a result of the above matters.

Dadi Media Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Sino-i, as
plaintiff, issued a claim against two minority shareholders of
Digital HUIGU Real Estate Management Co,, Ltd (‘B2 A E %
BTN A R A F"), a subsidiary of the Company, for the sum
of HK$27,750,498 together with interest thereon and costs in May
2004 under the High Court Number of HCA1130 of 2004. The two
defendants filed a defence and counterclaim in June 2004 and
then an amended defence and counterclaim in September 2004.
The counterclaim was further amended and re-amended. In
December 2004, the two defendants issued a claim against CE
ASP, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Dadi Media Limited, for (1) the
sum of HK$806,250; (2) an award of compensation pursuant to
section 32P of the Employment Ordinance; (3) the sum of
HKS$13,000; and (4) interest and costs under High Court Number
HCA2892 of 2004. CE ASP filed a defence in March 2005. These
two cases are still in progress and no trial date has been fixed. The
directors of the Company note that the cases have been dormant
for a considerable period of time and take the view that the Group
would not incur any material outflow of resources as a result
thereof.

49. FFREFER

(a)

—E-)\FEFR @ Annual Report 2018

Bt Banco Unibank 7 2003 4F 2 A [AIFEE
E /A &) Waterfront Philippines Inc.
(TWaterfront]) #§ 78 H & FA Acesite
Limited ([ Acesite]) fEH #E 10 2 JERE
B m s - RS A B R A
Acesite ~ FEIEIE 2 E I B A RIEE
KREBRAR - HFRAR RN HE
WHTEE 2 T8 AU R REE
# AT & & KT B 2 \]South Port
Development Limited © 9 Bl € A& &
— £ F=REMFRER 2006 F
2 At = E AR #F 7A%R 5 HCCL 5-2006
JHTEX - N EMEE - FIER
E A% [ABanco Unibank & Waterfront
RERE BEAEBLEIERER
MEBEE - LB & E RIEKR
1R BRI 2003F 1 BiER 22
Wi REMER(TRME]) - EEE
BRI RHERETHRE ARA
BERE EARNLEREE  AEEH
TEELEEMNEAEREL °

FREEE2EN B AR K EESR
RNAMERRE « Bixm AbsF iAo
HCA1130-200418 T 4 £127,750,498 /5
T2 ERENERER R
2004 F 5 A AR A B A R s 2
REFEEROHERARMA LR
HRE - ZMAEER2004F 6 A1
EiE kR BB 2004F9 A1
RS IR IR - ZREFHERE
—HEFI R BIEE] 20045128 -
FACEE AR =N - N R
HCA2892-200418 T~(1)806,250/8 7T  (2)
BB B I B E32PIEE T E
(3)13,0007T : RAOFMERER - [
A EEFR AR EN B AR FH
REMER N RE - R EIDZERMR 2005
F3AREME - ZMEREGESD
fEETH - BMARBEEEMBA - K
RAIEEEED  2ERHEYE—
BREME  UTREAKEETEEE
HAEEmMEEFMNERNERKL ©




Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

49. PENDING LITIGATIONS (Continued)

(0)

True Vision Limited (“True Vision”) (@ wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company) and the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement dated 25 January 2017 (the “Agreement”) with Giant
Harvest Limited (“GHL") and Orange Sky Golden Harvest
Entertainment (Holdings) Limited (“Orange Sky”). Pursuant to the
terms of the Agreement, True Vision agreed to acquire the entire
equity interests in City Entertainment Corporation Limited
("“OSGH"). Disputes arising from the Agreement have led to the
following legal proceedings:

According to the terms of the Agreement, the consideration
for the above-mentioned acquisition was to be adjusted
based on certain figures to be derived from a closing audit.
The parties were not able to agree on the amount of
adjustment. GHL commenced legal proceedings on 4
September 2018 to claim for the release of US$37,383,975
out of US$44,528,223 True Vision had placed on escrow on
completion of the acquisition of OSGH. The amount of
US$44,528,223 placed in escrow far exceeds US$37,383,975
being the amount claimed by GHL and Orange Sky.

As GHL did not procure the extension of lease of cinema
space in a mall in Shenzhen nor did it enter into any
contract for substitute cinemas in accordance with the
terms of the Agreement, GHL is, according to the
Agreement, required to pay RMB380,000,000 to True Vision.
True Vision commenced proceedings against GHL and
Orange Sky on 31 October 2018 for their failure to
compensate True Vision in the amount of RMB 380,000,000;
and

True Vision commenced proceedings against GHL and
Orange Sky on 8 November 2018 for the recovery of,
amongst other things, RMB82,145,795.38 as a result of
breach of certain representations, warranties and
undertakings that GHL had provided True Vision pursuant
to the terms of the Agreement.
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The remuneration of the directors of the Company and other ©)
members of the key management during the year is disclosed in note
45.

During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions (b)
with related parties:

50. RERXH

FRN - AAREERETEE
B 2 FBN A M s 45 1K 55 -

BEEHM

FR - AEEHE
5

BEDTRIANATR

Transaction Balance owed/

amounts (owing)
WiEx,/
REEH (ER) &tk
2018 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
TEr TEr
Non-exempted continuing connected transactions FE# % FERER S
Amount in relation to provision of motion pictures, BT RRIREEH 2 08
less distributor fees by*: RETER*:
A company controlled by a director R—BESEH 2 D7 (24,822) (166,456)
Sales of projection equipment to: ﬁ ATA ﬂ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁl@%* :
A company controlled by a director X—REZEH R - 130
Non-exempted connected transactions FRREERS
Advance from: RERTALTZRH
Anon-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary —AM B AR IEERRR - (12,159)
Loan to: HMT GiErs Z%ﬁ :
A company controlled by a director —REEEHZA - 227,739
A company jointly controlled by a director X—BEEAREH 2 AT 175,532 169,096
Interest income on loan to: ) BA ﬂkfﬁf%’(Zﬂ BIA
A company controlled by a director - % S /N 21,277 33,876
Exempted connected transactions EREHERS
Rental income from: ?KELXTQﬁZﬁiHﬂU\ :
Companies controlled by a director —RESEH 2 RFE 1,396 103
Information service income from: JK BUATRRIZEE HEIT%LIW\ :
Companies controlled by a director —REEEHZA 260 (156)
Advertising income from: F'W/{T ARt Jgiﬁﬁii :
A company controlled by a director —REEERHZA 1,239 1,265
Provision of information service by: Eﬂ PATR A AR {5 B AR
A company controlled by a director —BEERH 2 AR (184) (188)
Provision of advertising services by: Eﬂ AT REREES HW% :
A company controlled by a director —BEFEHZA (611) -
Film investment income from: ?Kﬁliﬂ_ ﬂZE%&ﬁuw\ 1
A company controlled by a director —REEERHZA 9 506

—E-)\FEFR @ Annual Report 2018
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50. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

50. FEA X5 (&)

(Continued) b (&)
Transaction Balance owed/
amounts (owing)
WaER
RH%HE (#ER) &84
2017 2017
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FHET
Non-exempted continuing connected transactions FE# % FERER S
Provision of motion pictures by: BT ARRER
A company controlled by a director R—BEEEH 207
Amount in relation to provision of motion pictures Rt R 2 HE70E (1,056,095) -
Amount in relation to provision of motion pictures, R R ZBBEZE
less the distributor fees* BETABR (2:864) (123,534)
Provision of advertising services to: RN REIREES R
A company controlled by a director X—BEFEH 2 AT 7309 789
Sales of projection equipment to: R A TN 2 B 48 6 IO aR
A company controlled by a director X—REEEH 2 DA = 2,702
Non-exempted connected transactions FREEERS
Advance from: REBURTALTZEH
A non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary —AMBARLZIFERRR = (12,135)
Loan to: RATARIRE 2 ER :
A company controlled by a director X—REELRAEH AT 231348 240211
Interest income on loan to: RRTREREERZFEBA
A company controlled by a director X —REFEH AT 13592 14113
Exempted connected transactions ERRBEERS
Rental income from: REUTRARIZHASKA -
Companies controlled by a director X—REEEH 2 RF 1443 131
Provision of advertising services by: BT ARIREES RS
A company controlled by a director X—REEEH AT (2,366) =
Information service income from: REUTREZEERBHA -
A company controlled by a director X—REREH 2 RF] 1,101 5
Film investment income from: RAUT AR ZEFRERA -
A company controlled by a director X—REEEH 2 RF 421 437
S The Group entered into a business cooperation framework agreement in o AREER2017F 11 A30 B A BT R ZHKET

relation to payment for box sharing motion pictures, on 30 November 2017.
Per the agreement a certain percentage of the net box office for a box
sharing motion picture was attributed to the distributor fees while only up to
1% was for the benefit of a company controlled by a director.

S EBREER I  RIFHRE - DREAIFR
BRETEILRBETAERR  MEKZ1%
BX —REEEHZRFME °
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50. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

The terms of above transactions are within normal trade credit
terms and above balances owed/(owing) related parties are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand, except for the
loan to a company controlled by a director, Ms. Liu Rong, of
RMB200,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$227,739,000)
which is unsecured, due on 10 May 2020 and carries interest rate
at 9.00% per annum and the loan to a partnership controlled by a
director, Ms. Liu Rong, of RMB148,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$169,096,000) which is secured, interest-free and
due on 25 February 2023. The maximum outstanding balance
during the year ended 31 December 2018 is equal to the balance
as at 31 December 2018 (During the year ended 31 December
2017: approximately HK$254,324,000).

The Group has not made any provision for bad or doubtful debts
in respect of related party debtors nor has any guarantee been
given or received during the year ended 31 December 2018
regarding related party transactions.

Except as disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, there
was no material related party transaction carried out during the
year.

50. FHEA X5 (&)

(b)
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51. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 51. BB S ceMBER &M
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY BHEE
The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated statement of RérE BB RIRTRE ZREEENT
financial position relate to the following categories of financial assets TMEENAEGEEREEH :
and liabilities:
2018 2018 2017 2017
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value
BEE ANREE HREE AREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TR T THT
Financial assets measured at fairvalue ~ BEAABEREZREEY
through profit or loss SHEE
— Listed equity investments — LRARE 82,481 82,481 199474 199474
— Derivatives —T4&TH 112 112 = =

Financial assets measured at fairvalue ~ BRARBERHEMZEKEEE Y
through other comprehensiveincome ~ & REE

— Unlisted equity investments — I EMRARE 192,112 192,112 - -
— Available-for-sale financial assets at cost ~ — RI{EHH ERB A &2
TREE - - 135591 NATER

— Available-for-sale financial assets at — AN ERANLBENE

fair value JEREE - - 324 324
— Unlisted debt investments — FEMERRE 324 324 = =

Financial assets measured at REBHEEATTEZ

amortised cost CREE
— Cash and cash equivalents —BeRERBLIER 1,334,598 1,334,598 4,397,710 4,397,710
— Pledged and restricted bank deposits — BERRZRAIRITER 6,962,975 6,962,975 8,672,079 8,672,079
— Trade receivables —EWE53E 539,564 539,564 679,668 679,668
— Deposits and other receivables — e REMEWREIE 2,168,201 2,168,201 2,045,154 2,045,154
— Amounts due from associates L oUNETE ] 15,129 15,129 11,238 11,238
— Amounts due from joint ventures —RURABRERE 2,327 2,327 2491 2491
— Amounts due from related parties — [EUEE F 50R 432,715 432,715 258,388 258,388
— Held-to-maturity investment —BEZRIHRE - - 120,106 120,106

11,730,538 11,730,538 16,522,223 16,386,632

Financial liabilities measured at fair value EAABEREZREEY

through profit or loss SHBE
— Derivatives —fTHTIA 26,911 26,911 86,908 86,908
Financial liabilities measured at REBERAGTEZSMEE

amortised cost

— Trade payables —ERNE 5508 1,894,715 1,894,715 2,144,942 2,144,942
— Other payables and accruals — Hih R ZOE R e B 2,091,610 2,091,610 1362414 1362414
— Amount due to a director —R—ZESZHE 65,132 65,132 9,878 9,878
— Amounts due to associates NI 5,492 5,492 5492 5492
— Amounts due to related parties — REE A 178,959 178,959 135,669 135,669
— Bank and other borrowings —RITREMEE 18,719,005 18,719,005 22,896,454 22896454
— Finance lease liabilities —RENEAE 90,090 90,090 87173 87,173
— Convertible and exchangeable bonds — AR KA KB E S 1,150,721 1,150,721 1,172,381 1,172,381
— Other employee benefits — 2l BEF 44,183 44,183 2,064 2,064

24,266,818 24,266,818 27,903,375 27,903,375

} Nan Hai Corporation Limited @ FEERERAT %
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51. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

Financial instruments not measured at fair value include cash and
cash equivalents, pledged and restricted bank deposits, trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables, amounts due from
associates, amounts due from joint ventures, amounts due from
related parties, trade payables, other payables and accruals,
finance lease liabilities, convertible and exchangeable bonds, bank
and other borrowings, other employee benefits, amount due to a
director, amounts due to associates and amounts due to related
parties.

Due to their short term nature, the carrying value of pledged and
restricted bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables, amounts due from/(to)
associates, amounts due from joint ventures, amounts due from/
(to) related parties, convertible and exchangeable bonds, amount
due to a director, trade payables and other payables and accruals
approximates fair value.

The fair value of long term trade receivables, trade payables and
finance lease liabilities approximated their carrying values as the
impact of discounting were immaterial.

The carrying amounts of the bank and other borrowings
approximated their fair values as these borrowings are mainly
floating-rate borrowings.

Financial instruments measured at fair value

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities with standard terms
and conditions and traded on active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market prices.

The valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs
used in determining the fair value measurement of level 2 and
level 3 financial instruments, as well as the relationship between
key observable inputs and fair value are set out below.

51. BRNESCEMBRERSM
RIREEGR)

(a)

(b)

—E-)\FEFR @ Annual Report 2018

YHFBRAANEBETEZEH
TH
YIEAREBEFEZEHTARE
RehERHELER  SERRZR
HIRITER - BB SFHIE - B2
HAth FEUCRIR - FE U & AR FRIR
R A & B EFIA - EUKREET K
- BNESHR - HENFKEK
EFTER  mEHERE  ATHMRE
ARMES RITREMER - Eid
BERAN R—REZHIA R
RAFIARREETT A

MAREIB R EE - e A R R
RITERARB e RERRLER
FEUE 5 5R - R I o WK
- U (R)BE R RIFIR - FEIK
BEPENRE - B (R)BEETR
B MR R AIRRES  R—BE
EIR - BB SRIAN L EMER
FENEERZEREREAREE
GEE=I

REIEWE 78 - [ENESIAR
BEHERBEZANEEREAREE
BE RERMBRFELTERK -

RITREMEEZREEEERAE
BERE  RARZEEEIZRTE
B8 -

BARBETEZEMIA
BB R RGIA RPN ERR
MEBE SHEERABZ ANE
B2 ETHSREMET -

TXHINEEE_ERE=ELR
TAZARBEFERMERMKER
MEEBAMEZIBER 2BAER > A
REZAEEGAEHNERABEZ
BRI BAR ©




Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 HILFE

51. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

(Continued)
(b) Financial instruments measured at fair value
(Continued)

Information about level 2 fair value measurements

The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present
value of the estimated future cash flows based on observed yield
curves.

The fair value of exchange rate swap is determined based on the
forward exchange rate at the reporting date.

Information about level 3 fair value measurements

The fair value of the financial liability at FVTPL (i.e. the derivatives)
of the convertible and exchangeable bonds was determined using
the binomial model, and the inputs into the models at the end of
reporting period were as follows:

a
T
&
.
)

BHE_EANIBETEZEHN
MEH 2 DA BEDREAIBEMN
KRt EbEt R KRB EREZR
R

MEH AABENRERE RS
ZEHEXREE

BEHE=EANI1EETEZEH
AR R A RBES 2R A EER
BakEEzemaEBITETA)
AABEDEA-ZEAGEEXSE
o MREBERRGAZEAZBA
£

2018 2017

Conversion price HE RMB187,580 RMB187,580
AR¥187,580 T | AR¥1875807T

Risk free rate £ [ A =R 2.0% 1.5%
Discount rate IR =& 14.0% 13.5%
Volatility S8 40.0% 35.0%

Risk free rate is based on the yield of Hong Kong government
bond with similar maturity of the convertible and exchangeable
bonds, plus country risk differential and converted into
continuously compounded rate.

Volatility is calculated with reference to the Company’s historical
share price movement matching the period of the conversion
option.

The gain on fair value change of the embedded derivatives of the
Bonds for the year ended 31 December 2018 of HK$65,432,000 (for
the year ended 31 December 2017: HK$26,809,000) was
recognised as “Fair value change on financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss” in the consolidated income statement.

The binomial model required the input of highly subjective
assumptions, including the volatility of share price and discount
rate accordingly, the changes in subjective input assumptions can
materially affect the fair value estimates.

} Nan Hai Corporation Limited @ FBERERAF
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51. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 51. NSz EMEER &R/

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY AREE(8])

(Continued)

(b) Financial instruments measured at fair value (b) BAREEFEZEMIA
(Continued) (#8)

Increasing volatility by 1% would increase the fair value of
embedded derivatives in convertible and exchangeable bonds by
approximately HK$2,277,000 (31 December 2017:HK$4,804,000).
Decreasing volatility by 1% would decrease the fair value of
embedded derivatives in convertible bonds by approximately
HK$1,139,000 (31 December 2017: HK$3,603,000).

Increasing discount rate by 0.5% would decrease the fair value of
embedded derivatives in convertible and exchangeable bonds by
approximately HK$4,555,000 (31 December 2017: HK$21,619,000).
Decreasing discount rate by 0.5% would increase the fair value of
embedded derivatives in convertible bonds by approximately
HK$9,110,000 (31 December 2017: HK$31,227,000).

There were no changes in valuation techniques during the year.

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments
carried at fair value by level of fair value hierarchy:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices); and

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based

on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
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51. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY
(Continued)

(b) Financial instruments measured at fair value
(Continued)

The financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the
statement of financial position are grouped into the fair value
hierarchy as follows:

51. i MBI NcEMBER R

RIREIE (W)

(b) BEAARBEAEZEMIA

(%)
REBRRBRAR AR BEGEZ
SREERABES AATAREE
B

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E1E H28E HE3E @t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FHET FHExT
As at 31 December 2018 " 2018F12H831H
Assets =
Financial assets at fair value BEAREBEIERZ
SREE
— Listed equity investments — FTRABSFKRE 82,481 - - 82,481
— Derivatives —PTETH - 112 - 112
— Unlisted equity investments — I ETRAKRE - 186,418 5,694 192,112
— Unlisted debt investments — I LEHTERBREE - 324 - 324
Total fair value AREEARE 82,481 186,854 5,694 275,029
Liabilities afE
Financial liabilities at fair value BEAREBEIERZ
EHaE
— Derivatives —PTET A - 5,435 21,476 26,911
Total fair value AREEARE - 5,435 21,476 26,911
As at 31 December 2017 R2017F 12 A31 H
Assets EE
Financial assets at fair value BEAREBAEYERZ
ERMEE
— Listed equity securities — ETRRAE 199,474 - - 199,474
— Club debenture — GATES = 324 = 324
Total fair value NABERRE 199,474 324 - 199,798
Liabilities afE
Financial liability at fair value BAREEIERZ
SHaE
— Embedded derivatives —HARITEL A - - 86,908 86,908
Total fair value NABEBEE - = 86,908 86,908

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there have been no
significant transfers between level 1, 2 and 3 in the reporting
period (2017: no significant transfers). The methods and valuation
techniques used for the purpose of measuring fair value are
unchanged compared to the previous reporting period.
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51. BRNESCEMBRERSM
AREE(])

51. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

(Continued)
(b) Financial instruments measured at fair value (b) BAAREEFEZERMIA
(Continued) (#&)
Reconciliation for financial instruments carried at fair value based BREATBRGAEIE(E=F)
on significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) are as follows: SHERARBEIRZEHMIAY
HERINT
2018 2017
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET FHT
Financial assets at fair value through BEARBEREMEEKE
other comprehensive income B eREE
— Unlisted equity investments — I EMRARE
At 1 January R1ATH - =
Reclassified from available-for-sale B AN B S B 75 5 42 A
financial assets upon adoption of FoMERAtHESHEE
HKFRS 9 BIOR 4,357 -
At 1 January (restated) B A1 B (&Ei) 4,357 =
Addition i 1,337 -
At 31 December M12A31H 5,694 -
Financial liabilities at fair value BARBERNEREREE .
through profit or loss THERE
— Embedded derivatives —BmARITETR
At 1 January R1A18 86,908 113717
Change in fair value of embedded BMARNTETRZ
derivatives NABEES (65,432) (26,809)
At 31 December M12A31H 21,476 86,908

52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 52. M RBEERE

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of financial
instruments in its ordinary course of operations and in its investment
activities. The financial risks include market risk (including currency risk,
interest risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

Financial risk management is coordinated at the Group’s headquarters,
in close co-operation with the Board. The overall objectives in managing
financial risks focus on securing the Group's short to medium term cash
flows by minimising its exposure to financial markets. Long term financial
investments are managed to generate lasting returns with acceptable
risk levels.

It is not the Group's policy to actively engage in the trading of financial
instruments for speculative purposes. The Board from time to time
identifies ways to access financial markets and monitors the Group's
financial risk exposures.
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
52.1 Foreign currency risk

52. EAREEE (i8)

52.1 E ¥ E b

Transactions in foreign currencies and the Group’s risk management
policies

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. The Group has exposure to some of its
borrowings which is denominated in United States Dollars (USS)
whereas the Group’s major operations and cash flows are in

UINER 5 RAEE 2 7 B R

EERBRESMIAZ AREELE
XHREeREREXSEMHRRED
R - AEBAS AT (R7T) fHE
ZEHoEREZER  MAKRETIES
BERBRERERAARKEE - A&E

Renminbi. The exposure to foreign exchange risk is shown as
below.

The policy to manage foreign currency risk has been followed by
the Group since prior years and is considered to be effective.

Summary of exposure

USS denominated financial assets and liabilities, translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the closing rates, are as follows:

BFTAR ZINER BB -

REE-BENABEFEZINERR
EERE  URA/EREBKK -

REREE

UETINE 2 & BE E R AENES
ERBME QAT I

2018 2017

HK$'000 HKS$'000

FET FHT

Cash and cash equivalents and pledged RERZFRRESIEEB AR

and restricted bank deposits EHEAR R ZREIRITER 488,408 553,382
Trade receivables FEWE 5 5kI8 13 134
Trade payables ERE S5KIE (100) (697)
Other payables H AT RIR (32,092) (30,864)
Other receivables H b FEUFRIE 402,315 259,381
Bank and other borrowings RITREAMEE (10,592,662) (10,696,960)
(9,734,118) (9,915,624)

Nan Hai Corporation Limited @ EEERERATE
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

52.1 Foreign currency risk (Continued)

BF 755 R 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #(Z 2018 12 A31 HILFE

52. MEEBEER (1)
52.1 ¥ Ak (48)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table illustrate the sensitivity of the Group’s profit
for the year and equity in regards to a 0.5% (2017: 0.5%)
strengthening/ (weakening) of USS$ against RMB at the reporting
date and that all other variables in particular interest rates remain
constant.

TRFEFAEITHARERIRE B B
18,/ (B2 1E) 0.5% (2017 £ : 0.5%) i Fr
BEMEH(ERRFR) #HTE
2 53R o B P RS 2 8

2018 2017
Changesin  (Decrease)/ Changesin (Decrease)/

foreign  Increasein  (Decrease)/ foreign Increase in (Decrease)/
exchange profit for Increase exchange profit for Increase
rates the year in equity rates the year in equity
HEER FREF i NS R FARRT s
#8 (Hd) /8 Cid) /& 28 (hd)/Em Chd)/Em
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TR THT FHT
USS/RMB EIWINE +0.5% (48,668) (48,668) +0.5% (49,578) (49,578)
-0.5% 48,668 48,668 -0.5% 49,578 49,578

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that the
change in foreign exchange rates had occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied to each of the group
entities; exposure to currency risk for both derivative and non-
derivative financial instruments in existence at that date, and that
all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

The stated changes represent management’s assessment of
reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange rates over the
period until the next annual reporting date. Results of the analysis
as presented in the above table represent an aggregation of the
effects on each of the group entities’ profit for the year and equity
measured in the respective functional currencies, translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rate ruling at the end of
reporting period for presentation purposes. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2017.
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
52.2 Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through the impact of
interest rate changes on interest bearing bank and other
borrowings, cash and cash equivalents, pledged and restricted
bank deposits carrying interests at variable rates. Bank and other
borrowings, cash and cash equivalents, pledged and restricted
bank deposits carried at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk. The Group will review whether bank and
other borrowings bearing fixed or floating rates should be drawn
from time to time with reference to the trend of changes in
interest rates. The interest rates and repayment terms of bank and
other borrowings, cash and cash equivalents and pledged and
restricted bank deposits of the Group are disclosed in the financial
statements. The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, the directors monitor interest rate
change exposure and will consider hedging significant interest
rate exchange exposure should the need arise.

Cash flow interest rate risk sensitivity

At 31 December 2018, the Group was exposed to changes in
market interest rates through its bank and other borrowings, cash
and cash equivalents and pledged and restricted bank deposits,
which are subject to variable interest rates. The following table
illustrates the sensitivity of the profit for the year and equity to a
change in interest rates of +50 basis points and -50 basis points
(2017: +50 basis points and -50 basis points), with effect from the
beginning of the year. The calculations are based on the Group's
bank and other borrowings and bank balance held at each
reporting date. All other variables are held constant.

52. MEEBEER ()
522 EREFEE

AEBFAFB MR B ZRITRE
fEs RERFRRELEAR 2K
R B BIRIT RN R E R
MEEE - BFBHEEF B ZR/RITR
Hipfe &  RERFRRNEBEANK
EERRZRBRITFERS A EE A
ERERENXAR  AKEK2E
MR E BRI RBURE B K
FRFBZRITREMEE - AEE
ZRTREMEE A2 kFRAS
B REERRRZREIRITERZF
KNEFIETRMEHRREE - A%
B3R B 3 SRR RSP EOR - AT E
EEENXEPEE  YHREFE
5 P E AN KE LR

H % i I R s

MR2018F 12 A31H » REFERE KT
ARG B ZRITREMEE Re
NERRSEB URBEEB LIRS
RITIF AR M AT IS F R & F) 2 R
b o TREM A FYREET - FRHEF
Ko 25 4 ) 2R 4 B0 450 1 £ 2k 12 -50
fEZ2h (2017 6 ¢ +50 B E 2 & 50 &
) ZHRE - R BEAEER
SmE AHEE 2 RITREMEE N
RARITHERETH o B A b BB
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52.2 Cash flow interest rate risk (Continued)
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52. MG bR EE (1)
522 EREFEE R (F)

2018 2017

(Decrease)/ (Decrease)/
Increasein  (Decrease)/ Increase in (Decrease)/
Changesin profit for Increase Changes in profit for Increase
basis points the year inequity | basis points the year in equity
FrEF g FRE A R
EE28 (AD)/#m (HD)/Em EEEY OAd)/4gEm Cd)/HEm
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER FET TET
Interest rate A= +50 (12,901) (12,901) +50 (1,016) (1,016)
-50 12,901 12,901 -50 1,016 1,016

52.3 Other price risk

Other price risk relates to the risk that the fair values or future cash

52.3 E Mt {E& E b

flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices (other than changes in interest rates and foreign
exchange rates). The Group is exposed to change in market prices
in respect of its investments in listed equity securities classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit and loss.

To manage its market price risk arising from these investments,
the Group diversifies its portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is
done in accordance with the limits set by the Board. The Group's
listed investments are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong,
Shenzhen and Shanghai, Mainland China. Decisions to buy or sell
trading securities are based on daily monitoring of the
performance of individual securities compared to that of the index
and other industry indicators, as well as the Group's liquidity
needs. Investments held in the available for sale portfolio have
been chosen based on their longer term growth potential and are
monitored regularly for performance against expectations.

The policies to manage other price risk have been followed by the
Group since prior years and are considered to be effective.

Equity price sensitivity

For listed equity securities, an average volatility of 16.0% has been
observed in 2018 (2017: 32.0%). The following table illustrates the
sensitivity of the Group’s profit for the year and equity in regards
to 16.0% (2017: 32.0%) volatility in respect of listed equity securities
classified as held for trading.
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

52.3 Other price risk (Continued)

52. M EREE (])
52.3 HE &R (&)

Equity price sensitivity (Continued) RIZGHIE (&)
2018 2017
Increase/ Increase/
(Decrease) in Increase/ (Decrease) in Increase/
Changes in profitfor  (Decrease) Changesin profit for (Decrease)
equity price the year inequity | equity price the year in equity
RAER FREF R IRA(ERE FREF gy
B8 ®=N(RLP) ®i(RD) 2g /(R B/ CRL)
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT FHET FAT
Listed equity AR S +16.0% 13,228 13,228 +32.0% 63426 63426
securities -16.0% (13,228) (13,228) -32.0% (63,426) (63,426)
The assumed volatilities of listed securities represent the s BRERETEENZS
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible change in BEBRUAR+ (AL ZAE
these security price over the next twelve-month period. o et dh v 514 o
52.4 Credit risk 524 E R

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its
contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group. The
Group minimise credit risk by dealing exclusively with high credit
rating counterparties.

The Group's credit risk on cash and cash equivalents and pledged
bank deposits is limited because the counterparties are banks with
good reputation.

Exposure to credit risk

As at reporting period end, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk is the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the statements of financial position.
The Group’s principal financial assets are trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and
pledged and restricted bank deposits. The amounts presented in
the statement of financial position are net of loss allowance.
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
52.4 Credit risk (Continued)

Exposure to credit risk (Continued)

The Group develops and maintains its credit risk gradings to
categorise exposures according to their degree of risk of default.
The Group uses its trading records to rate its major customers and
other debtors. The Group's current credit risk framework comprises
the following categories:

Category
bl

Performing

Rif

Doubtful

R

In default

EH

Write-off

Description

g

The counterparty has a low risk of default and
does not have any past-due amounts.

R F 77RO R R B &I &0
HAFRIR o

Amount is more than 1 year past due or there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition.
BRAFIERBER —FRENTHERBIAR
EERBBEZEM -

Amount is more than 5 years past due or there
is evidence indicating the asset is credit-
impaired.

HIREERE -

There is evidence indicating that the debtor is
in severe financial difficulty and the Group has
no realistic prospect of recovery.
BEEBBRERABAREN KRB R
SETR AR AT Y C A REKIA -

52. BEEREERE (18)

52418 &k (&)
FESEERR (8)
REESIFERBETHEERRTR -
LRI AR A RIS S E YR
BHME - AEBEFERAESSTEAR
TEEEREMBEEATR - AEE
BT EERMIERSEN TER

Basis for recognising ECL
BREREEFERNESE

Trade receivables: lifetime ECL — not credit
impaired

Other financial assets and other items: 12-month
ECL

FEWE 5508 : 2EEHEEBE —WARE
EEERE

HihemEEKREMIER : 12 AEREE
&5

Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired

2HEHREEEE - Y ARELEEERE

Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired

E2HRREREERE - SAEERE

Amount is written off

MIEBRETE

—E-N\FEFH @ Annual Report 2018 |
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

52.4 Credit risk (Continued)

Exposure to credit risk (Continued)

g

|

The tables below detail the credit quality of the Group’s financial
assets and other items, as well as maximum exposure to credit risk
by credit risk rating grades:

52. EAREEE (i8)

524=E Rk ()

FrET iz Bl (&)

TRV AKEEREENEMIAR
ZEEERUARREERRIHRE D
ZERAEERR

Internal 12-month/ Gross carrying Net carrying
Group Notes credit rating Lifetime ECL amount  Loss allowance amount
R2MEAN2H
XEE L AEE AR AHEEER REAE BRAR SREFHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR
Trade receivables 24 Performing/Doubtful  Lifetime ECL ‘ 621,031 (81,467) 539,564
JEWE 5508 RIF/ R PHRHBEEER
Deposits and 20 Performing/Doubtful  12-month/Lifetime ECL 2,310,087 (141,886) 2,168,201
other receivables
e REMER RIF/ R 12188,/25
B REHEEER
Trade receivables JEW B 5 741H

The aging analysis of trade debtors based on due dates that were
not considered as impaired was as follows:

BAR R E BEVERIRME 2 B E 55K
BRI

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHTT
0-90 days past due #1H3 0-90 H 330,835 379,390
91-180 days past due #HI91-180 A 109,754 222,997
181-270 days past due #HR181-270 25,305 30,603
271-360 days past due #1HA271-360 B 21,740 26,641
Overdue for more than 360 days #HI360 H LA | 51,930 20,037
539,564 679,668

Prior to 1 January 2018, an impairment loss was recognised only
when there was objective evidence of impairment (see note
2.13 — accounting policy applied until 31 December 2017). As at
31 December 2017, trade receivables of approximately
HK$30,063,000 was determined to be impaired.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired related to a
number of independent customers that had a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, management believed
that no impairment allowance was necessary in respect of these
balances as there had been no significant change in credit quality
and the balances were still considered fully recoverable. The
Group did not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over these balances.
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 52. MEEBEER (1)

52.4 Credit risk (Continued) 5241=E R B2 (48)
Trade receivables (Continued) JEWE Z 508 (&)

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade
receivables during the year is as follows:

FRENE SREY BEREEED
M -

2018 2017

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FET FAET

At 1 January »1A1H 30,063 24,675
Impact of initial application of IR E R BB R E %R

HKFRS 9 (note 3.1(ii)(@)) Fomz B (3.1 52,043 -

At 1 January (restated) m1 A1 B (&ES) 82,106 24,675

Provision of impairment BB 4,303 2,920

Write-back of impairment during the year £ (R {E (0] (3,670) =

Exchange realignment PE % (1,272) 2,468

At 31 December M12A831H 81,467 30,063

Deposits and other receivables

The aging analysis of deposits and other receivables based on due
dates that were not considered to be impaired was as follows:

e R A A EW A

WIS BRI 2 B R AR
IR AT

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

0-90 days past due # 83 0-90 H 249,358 625,569
91-180 days past due #HI91-180 H 143,825 162,598
181-270 days past due #HEF181-270 H 188,622 136,476
271-360 days past due #H271-360 H 60,822 213,084
Overdue for more than 360 days #HI360 H A £ 1,525,574 907,427
2,168,201 2,045,154

Prior to 1 January 2018, an impairment loss was recognised only
when there was objective evidence of impairment (see note 2.13
— accounting policy applied until 31 December 2017). As at 31
December 2017, deposits and other receivables of approximately
HK$27,480,000 was determined to be impaired.

Deposits and other receivables that were past due but not
impaired related to a number of independent customers that had
a good track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believed that no impairment allowance was
necessary in respect of these balances as there had been no
significant change in credit quality and the balances were still
considered fully recoverable.

M2018F1 A1 BAE - ERBEEZE
BETNRER T EEIAREBR(R
BisE213 — & = 2017412 A31 Al
FERZEETIER) - B20175F 12 A 31
B &k HEMEKRRXELY
27,480,000 8 JLEE € AR (E ©

ERMEYEREIZS REMEK
REYRZREAKEA RIFEAR
BBIEP - RIBEELR  BF
ERDBANZEHEHIE LR ER
w RRARAHEEERLESERE
8 BESDEAR T 2EKE -
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
52.4 Credit risk (Continued)

Deposits and other receivables (Continued)

52. MERIRERE (18)
5248k (&)
B REMMW T (F)
ERIRS R E M REYERE Y R G

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of deposits

and other receivables during the year is as follows: BREBIT :
2018 2017
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET T
At 1 January K1 A1H 27,480 43,851
Impact of initial application of HKFRS 9 IR IE R B %S 2R
(note 3.1(ii)(c)) 295k 2 2 (HI7E3.1(i)(0) 87,096 =
At 1 January (restated) ®1 A1 B (&ES) 114,576 43,851
Provision of impairment B B 33,112 3,570
Write-back of impairment during the year & AR (B 5[] (579) (21,142)
Write-off as uncollectible Hif1 851 AT Y 2] 5108 (4,212) (1,302)
Exchange realignment PE 5, % (1,011) 2,503
At 31 December M12A31H 141,886 27,480
52.5 Liquidity risk 525 BN E & Ak

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for
their own cash management, including the short term investment
of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected cash
demands, subject to approval by the Company’s Board when the
borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of authority. The
Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements
and its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities at
the end of the reporting period of the Group’s non-derivative and
derivative financial liabilities, based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the
reporting date) and the earliest date the Group can be required to

pay.
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
52.5 Liquidity risk (Continued)
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Specifically, for bank and other borrowings which contain a
repayment on demand clause which can be exercised at the
lenders’ sole discretion, the analysis shows the cash outflow based
on the earliest period in which the Group can be required to pay,
that is if the lenders were to invoke their unconditional rights to
call the loans with immediate effect. The maturity analysis for
other bank borrowings is prepared based on the scheduled

repayment dates.

52. MEEBEER (1)
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Total More than More than
contractual On demand 1year but 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted or within less than less than
amount cash flow 1year 2years 5years
REEREH RERS BB-F BBEmEF
REE RERELE kA BARME BIRESF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TR Thr TiEx TR
As at 31 December 2018 #2018F12A31R
Non-derivatives: FFETR:
Trade payables EGEY: 1,894,715 1,894,784 1,894,375 409 -
Other payables and accruals HiERZERE B 2,091,610 2,091,610 2,091,610 - -
Amount due to a director R—ZEZZE 65,132 65,132 65,132 - -
Amounts due to associates RBENEZUE 5,492 5,492 5,492 - -
Amounts due to related parties REBEH B 178,959 178,959 178,959 - -
Bank and other borrowings BAIREMEE 18,719,005 20,166,664 7,564,403 8,588,815 4,013,446
Convertible and exchangeable bonds AT & AT R &5 1,150,721 1,150,721 1,150,721 - -
Other employee benefits HivE =M 44,183 47,567 17,420 12,920 17,227
Finance lease liabilities HENERE 90,090 97,177 45,960 28,245 2972
24,239,907 25,698,106 13,014,072 8,630,389 4,053,645
Financial quarantee issued BERLMEER
Maximur amount quaranteed REEREE - 20,350 20,350 - -
Derivatives: fTETA:
Financial liabilities at fair value RARBENERR
through profit or loss RESHER 26911 26911 21,476 - 5,435
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
52.5 Liquidity risk (Continued)
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52. MHEBEER (&)
52,5 RENE &k ()

Total More than More than
contractual On demand 1 year 2years
Camying  undiscounted or within but less but less
amount cash flow 1 year than 2 years than 5 years
RERAH REXH BR—F HRmE
RRE RensgE —4R BARRE ELRAE
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
THEL FHET THEL TiET FHL
As at 31 December 2017 R017E12A31R
Non-derivatives: FTETA:
Trade payables ERE 570 2,144942 2,145,659 2,137,7% 7,863 -
Other payables and accruals HiENZERES B 1362414 1362414 1362414 - -
Amount due to a director R—ZEEHE 0378 9378 93878 - -
Amounts due to associates RS NRIZIE 5492 5492 5492 - -
Amounts due to related parties REBEFE 135,669 135,669 135,669 - -
Bank and other borrowings RTRAMEE 22,896,454 24997917 10773663 3,895,134 10329,120
Convertible and exchangeable bonds AT |2 A X 1,172,381 1,172,381 1172381 - -
Other employee benefits HitESEH 2064 2,064 - - 2064
Finance lease liabilities BERERE 87173 02,024 63,098 24,594 4332
21816467 29923498 15,660,391 3927591 10,335,516
Financial guarantee issued BEMBBER
Maximum amount guaranteed RREREE - 19522 19522 - =
Derivatives: fTETR:
Financial liabilities at fair value BALBENEER
through profit or loss REERAR 86,908 86,908 86,908 = =
Taking into account the Group's financial position, the directors of EEIANEF B - AAFE
the Company do not consider it's probable that the lenders will EREETATKA 1T ER SR
exercise its discretion to demand immediate repayment. The ERENEER - KA RIESEHEE @ %
directors of the Company believe that such term loans and ETHIE I R AR & A R REE S
convertible and exchangeable bonds will be repaid in accordance R EBEBERHEEN R A EE
with the scheduled payment dates set out in the agreements B AEMEEHNTE
which are summarised in the table below:
Total More than More than
contractual On demand 1year 2years
Carrying  undiscounted or within but less but less
amount cash flow 1year than 2 years than 5 years
RUEREH REXD BB-F BBmE
REE BReRELH -£R BORWE BHREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TARL TER TER TER TER
As at 31 December 2018 R2018F12831H 19,869,726 21,399,498 8,087,518 9,298,534 4,013,446
As at 31 December 2017 M2017E12 4318 24,068,835 26227,189 12,001,976 3896093 10,329,120
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53. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Group'’s capital management is to ensure
that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order
to support its business and maximise shareholders value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in
light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the
current and previous years.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by total equity plus net debt. Net debt is calculated as the sum
of bank and other borrowings, convertible and exchangeable bonds and
finance lease liabilities less the sum of pledged and restricted bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents as shown in the statements of
financial position. The Group aims to maintain the gearing ratio at a
reasonable level. The gearing ratios as at the reporting date were as

53.
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follows: BEZEABBLENAT
2018 2017
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET FHET
Current liabilities REBERE
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 6,805,091 9,653,920
Finance lease liabilities BEHESE 42,078 59,189
Convertible and exchangeable bonds AL K Al R E A 1,150,721 1,172,381
Non-current liabilities FREEEF
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 11,913,914 13,242,534
Finance lease liabilities BEHESE 48,012 27,984
Total debt (v 19,959,816 24,156,008
Less: Pledged and restricted bank deposits B B R R IR TR K (6,962,975) (8672,079)
Cash and cash equivalents RENERRSIER (1,334,598) (4,397,710)
Net debt BRFEE 11,662,243 11,086,219
Total equity ERBE 6,955,339 7,195,250
Total equity and net debt ERHEERERFE 18,617,582 18,281,469
Gearing ratio EEAMELE 62.64% 60.64%
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54. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 54,

Comparative amount of impairment loss on trade receivables and
impairment loss of deposits, prepayments and other receivables of
approximately HK$2,920,000 and HK$3,570,000 have been reclassified
from “Other operating expenses” in consolidated income statement and
“Bad debt written-off and provision for impairment of receivables” in
consolidated statement of cash flows to “Expected credit loss on
financial assets/ impairment loss on trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables” in the consolidated income statement and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2017 for
comparative purpose.
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List of Properties
- )
M=—BxR
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT REDRYE
Interest Floor area on
attributable to completion Expected
the Group insq.m.  Type of yearof  Stage of
Location in percentage (approx.)  development completion  development
REBES EREEE

VESE BRESL ERMHTER) BREEEH Rt ERED  BERR
Reclaimed site located at Liu Wan, mEERE R OE 100 526,000  Shopping arcade/ 2022 Construction in

Shekou, Shenzhen, Guangdong BT residential/hotel/ progress

Province, the PRC recreational

facilities
as/kE/ WE  ERIE
BIE /1R ER

Aresidential development located HEERETHRET AR 100 758000 Commercial/ 2022 Constructionin

at Guanghua Gonglu, Huadu EENERR residential progress

District, Guangdong Province,

the PRC

mg/E% WnF  EERIR
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Five-Year Financial Summary

AFMBRREE

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last

FEEBEAEMBRFREZREREERREL

five financial years is set out as follows: BEHFWT :
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TET THT FHExT THT FHET
Revenue g 16,789,451 15900885 9050870 4,200,117 3153015
Profit/(Loss) for the year UTATEEEA
attributable to: w5/ (E18) -
Owners of the Company RARIEA A 1,140,854 1708027 13595553 238875 (701,731)
Non-controlling interests IEE RS (166,509) (105592) (81,161) 16,555 (45248)
Profit/(Loss) for the year FRRF(BE) 974,345 1602435 1278392 255430 (746979)
Total assets BEE 41,226,213 46,893,049 32,747,051 17469258 12,661,095
Total liabilities BERE (34,270,874) (39697,799) (27,541,052 (13552,693) (8838752
Net assets BEHE 6,955,339 7,195,250 5205999 3916565 3822343
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